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ABOUT FRASERS GROUP

Founded as a single store in 1982, Frasers Group
plc (Frasers Group, the Group, the business or the
Company) is today the UK's largest sporting goods
retailer by revenue.

The Group operates a diversified portfolio of sports, fitness, premium
lifestyle and luxury fascias in over 20 countries. We have more than

25,000 colleagues across five business segments: UK Sports Retail, Premium
Lifestyle, European Retail, Rest of World Retail and Wholesate & Licensing.

Our purpose is to serve consumers with the world's best brands. This requires
us to hove the right product, in the right place, at the right time and ot the
right price. Cur strategy is aligned to this purpose and is based on three
interconnected focus pillars ~ the brands we sell, our digital offering and

our physical stores. These are supported by o set of enablers, focused on
our people, systems, automation and data.

MISSION STATEMENT

TO SERVE OUR CONSUMERS

WITH THE WORLD'S BEST SPORTS,

PREMIUM AND LUXURY BRANDS.

BUSINESSIETEOS]

WE DO NOT RUN THE BUSINESS FOR THE SHORT-TERM
BUT WORK TO ENSURE WE DELIVER SHAREHOLDER
VALUE OVER THE MEDIUM TO LONG-TERM, WHILST
ADOPTING ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES THAT ARE
CONSERVATIVE, CONSISTENT AND SIMPLE.

Printed or Steinbets 1007, Recyaied and Carzon Captured throuyn the Vuudland

Our impact since 2007

We became a listed public company in 2007.
In the years since we floated, the Group has greatly
contributed to the British economy. This includes:

£250M

Approx. £250m paid
in staff share bonuses

25,000

Have a workforce of
approx. 25,000 people
worldwide, approx. 19,000
of which are in the UK

£2,100M

Contributed approx.
£2100m in VAT and Duty

£190M

Approx. £190m paid
in sales commission to
retail bonuses

£600M

Contrikuted approx.
£600m in UK
Corporation Tax

£180M

Contributed approx.
£180m in NI employer
contributions

All igures are since stock morket listing in 2007

“It was the Agencies we were after"...
“We had to get you in order to get to
the agencies”

‘TUESDAY 4 OCTOBER 2016 MR STEVE TURNER
(ASSISTANT GENERAL SECRETARY UNITE UNION)

rust. helpieg to Create new! Brlish suodiand ac oss the t K

FRASERS GROUP

OUTLOOK

The Group is continuing to invest in its
physical and digital elevation strotegy
and our omni-channel offering is growing
in strength. Our stores in the UK have
reopened above expectations and our
online channel continues to significantly
outperform pre-Covid-19 periods. None
the less, management remains of the view
that there is a high risk of future Covid-19
pandemic restrictions, likely to be over this
Winter and maybe beyond.

The board of Frasers Group has continued
to consider the probable return of
restrictions during FY22, including within
its ing judg \ts and esti

for FY21. As the effects of the Covid-19
pandemic continue to cause future
uncertainty, including the Delta variant
surge we are currently seeing, the board of
Frasers Group considers it cannot currently
confirm with enough material accuracy
what the outcome for FY22 will look like.

Based on this we will not be giving

a projection to the market for FY22
performance. Any projections produced
by third parties such as research analysts
are not produced on behalf of Frasers
Group plc and Frasers Group plc takes
no responsibility for such projections.

As a result prospective investors and
other market participants shoutd not
treat, and Frasers Group plc does not
intend to treat, the financial projections
produced by third parties as indicative
of the market expectations of Frasers
Group plc's future financiol performance.
We specifically note that we are under
no obligation to corréct estimates made
by financial analysts or to inform the
market should we come to believe that our
actual performance will differ from those
estimates.

We will review the current situation

again at the half year and depending on
whether there is more certainty on further
restrictions or not we may be able to give
guidance at that point.
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. FRASERS GROUP

GROUP AT
A GLANCE

UK SPORTS
RETAIL

54.3%

Total Group Revenue

£1,968.5M

10.7%

UK Sports Retail includes core
sports retail store operations

in the UK, plus all the Group's
sports retail online business
(excluding Bob's Stores, Eastern
Mountain Sports and Sports
Direct Malaysia), the gyms, the
Group's Shirebrook campus
operations, retail store operations
in Northern Ireland, Evans Cycles
and GAME UK.

Our store footprint is significant,
with 806 stores across the UK,
totalling approximately 6.5m
sq.ft. of retail space. The majority
of stores are operated under the
SPORTS DIRECT, USC, Evans
Cycles and GAME fascias.

4

v

: . . 20.3%

Total Group Revenue
PREMIUM pE—
. 770 .
LIFESTYLE

The Group's Premium Lifestyle division offers a broad range of clothing, footwear and accessories
from leading global contemporary and luxury retail brands through our fascias in the UK: Flannels,
Cruise, van mildert, House of Fraser, Sofa.com and Jack Wills along with their related websites.
The majority of these fascias operate as multi-brand premium retail destinations and are focused
on providing fashion conscious consumers with high-end and on trend products. The segment is
- supported by our Group-wide centralised commercial and support functions, giving the benefits
of scale and operating efficiencies to each fascio. The segment is a significant part of the Group's
new generation retail concept and as such, in certain locations, Premium and Lifestyle stores

are co-located alongside our Sports retail stores to benefit from increased customer footfall and
operating synergies.

s

14

EUROPEAN
RETAIL

17.0%

Total Group Revenue

The total Premium Lifestyle store count is 179 stores and approximately 4.2m sq.ft. of retail space.

4.2%

Total Group Revenue

REST OF
THE WORLD

Rest of World Ret cludes m_u“u_‘ﬂm and outdoor retail stores in the US under the Bob's Stores and Eastern
Mountain Sports fascias and n:m_:_. corresponding e-commerce offerings. It also includes the Group's retail
stores in Malaysia, under the Sports Direct fascia, and its corresponding e-commerce offering.

_

Total Rest of World store count is 76 stores and approximately 1.3m sq.ft. of retait space.

12.3% N2

11.8%

European Retail includes a

the Group's sports retail stores,
management and operations
in Europe including the Group's
European distribution centres
in Belgium and Austria as we
as GAME Spain. The total
European store count is 486
stores and approximately 3.6m
sq.ft. of retail space.

4.2%

WHOLESALE &

LICENSING EXZN

\ The Wholesale & Licensing segment operates our globally renowned heritage Group brands

continued to elevate the Group's (such as Everlast, Lonsdale, Karrimor and Slazenger) and our wholesale, licensing and distribution
European stores and qu_w relationships across the world, ‘as well as our partnerships with third party brands that we

to further tailor the Group's license-in to sell certain products. The Group's own brands are managed both individually and

consumer value propo centrally within this segment. This unique, integrated approach to brand management leverages

our local markets. the expertise of our people, encourages innovation, and ensures consistency. N

During FY21, management

nied on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captuied through the Woadland Trust, hélping to create new British woodtand across the UK
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGH

i //
Group usderlying EBITDA™ //

: : / \
increased by 29.4% to \\
£390.8m - 18.5p /)
compared to £302.1m in the /
Group revenue decreased \ . prior period /4/

by 8.4%

Excluding acquisitions and
on a currency neutral basis,

Excluding dcquisifions and on a

- currency neutral basis,

EBITDA increased 16.9

4
//

revenue decreased by 11.4%™

R e Reported basic earnings per

I f
i, ' share fell by 189.2% to a loss ) \
Group gross b . of 16.5p, from a profit,
margin increased to 42.2% of 18.5p
from 42.0% Underlying basic earnings? per
9
share decreased by 204.9% to a
loss of 17.0p from @ profit of 16.2p

Reported profit after
tax was a loss of
£78.0m down 177.2%
from a profit of
£101.0m

decreased by 95.1% to £5.8m
from £117.4m i

Prinited on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Frust, helping to create new British woadland across the UK
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STRATEGIC AND
OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS ——

ittt | Yanoen, Mun)erry{ WIGAN]

FEARLESS 1000 e’ﬂ@ £1,000,000 SHARES WERE AT
SCIEME LAUNCHED 20 | £500,000 26.0% OWNERSHIP RETAIL

AT YEAR END
The scheme exists to reward our top 1000 performers @@ £250'o°° . PAR K
when our share price reaches £10, for 30 consecutive h
trading days. These top performers will be nominated by 2@@ £125'°°° D

their colleagues for the embodiment of our 3 core values:

- - L £5°'°°° HUGO BOSS :
Think Without Limits, Don't Hesitate, and Own It. ?@@ SHARES WERE \AT Zﬂﬁn@@é} Eﬁ‘

R 18.5% @WN@@TD{IU@ £41,750,000

A AT YEAR END
PURCHASE PRICE

20221 ELEVATION
PROGRAMME SUATS

27
2178 TOTAL APPLICATIONS TOTAL
HIRES

-

44%
MALE

55%
FEMALE

Printed on Steinbeis 100°% Recycled and Carbgn Captuted through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new British woodland across the UK
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FRASERS GROUP

OUR RESPONSE TO COVID-19

Throughout the Covid-19 pandemic, our highest
priority has been to protect the health, safety
and wellbeing of our colleagues. This reflects
both our duty to keep our people safe and

the business imperative: if we are not safe, we
cannot trade.

Our response has been based on a number of
key principles, in particular:

+ following Government guidelines and
exceeding them in certain aspects;

+ completing thorough risk assessments and
regularly updating them; and

* communicating effectively, so our people
understand what we are doing and their
part in keeping themselves and their
colleagues safe.

The standards we have developed have been
shared and followed across the Group, except
where local legistation mandates a different
approach.

. The Group's senior management have been
closely involved in our response, ensuring
the safety of our people is put first and that
sufficient resources and equipment are
available. We have also been supported by an
independent health and safety consultant, who
is helping us to drive continuous improvement,
including in relation to our response to Covid-19.

Our Initial Bmuvo.-.uo To Covid-19

In last year's report, we detailed the steps we
had taken across our warehouse, office and
stores in the first few months of the Covid-19 .
pandemic. These steps are summarised below.

Virtually all furloughed colleagues received
100% of pay during the first lockdown, in excess
of the 80% guaranteed by the Government,
and we sent home on full pay all ¢olleagues
over 60, as well as those categorised os
vulnerable or at risk. Other measures we have
introduced included random temperature
checks for colleagues, strict protocols for
self-isolation after contact with a positive case,
encouraging regular testing and providing full

8

pay for people who nmmmﬁom#?m. while they are
unable to work.

In summary, in the early stages of the Covid-19
pandemic we:

Warchouse

« Invited the local environmental health
officer and our independent consultant to
review our controls and social distancing
measures .

* Reduced the amount of traffic in and out of
the building and in key areas, for example
by staggering start, finish and break times,
moving agency staff to four-day weeks and
opening a new entrance to reduce traffic
through reception

* Introduced seven-day health and safety
coverage, to support the warehouse teams

* Provided first aiders with advice and PPE
(personal protective equipment), to protect
them when first aid was needed

. _3n_m3m:~mn hygiene stations and created
o new role of “Social Distancing Marshal”

* Introduced 'no contact’ security checks
Office

* Required colleagues to work at home
wherever possible and where they needed
to shield

+ Communicated restart guidance through
Slack {an internal messaging service
available to all head office colleagues)

* Increased cleaning, provided hygiene
stations throughout and limited capacity in
key areas such as kitchens and lifts

* Implemented protocols to ensure there was -

no mixing between warehouse and office
staff in common areas such as canteens

» Allowed only authorised visitors and
encouraged meetings through digital
platforms

Stores

++ Created a retail restart pack for stores

reopening, including signage, PPE, increosed

cleaning schedules, lower store occupancy
levels, one-way systems in-store and
training documents for all new procedures

* Reduced traffic in and out of the building
and in key areas by staggering start, finish
and break times

* Revised delivery and processing procedures

to maintain social distancing

* Added sanitisation stations throughout
stores and encouraged colleagues and
customers to use them

* Used unannounced visits by the Health &

Safety team to ensure the retail restart pack

had been correctly implemented

Our approach was well regarded by local

“authorities, with positive feedback following

unannounced visits to our stores ond
warehouse.

Adapting And Developing Our P d

Throughout this financial year we have built
on our initial actions, as we have updated our
risk assessments and adapted to changing
guidance. This has enabled us to introduce
new and stronger measures, in particular as
the Covid-19 variant first identified in Kent
began to spread. Examples of our key activities
undertaken in the year are set out below.

»  August 2020. We reviewed our warehouse
risk assessment and shared it with the
warehouse and agency teams. We started
weekly anti-viral 'fogging’ of offices, sorters
ond other areas to supplement the regular
cleaning schedule, enhanced workstation
plexi-screens in the office to support social
distancing and introduced maximum
capacities for meeting rooms.

+  September 2020. We reviewed our
warehouse risk assessment and our first
aid guidance and introduced a screening
questionnaire for all visitors.

+  October 2020. We introduced face shields
on all sorting machines, as an additional
layer of protection.

*  November 2020. We reviewed and updated
our warehouse risk assessment and shared
it with the teams. Face coverings became
mandatory in the warehouse, and were
encouraged in offices (except for medical
and operational exemptions), going beyond
Government guidance. We issued guidance
to all agencies and departments about
reporting Covid-19 cases, including follow-
up actions required.

* December.2020. We reviewed the head
office risk assessment and shared it with all
departments. To enhance social distancing,
we closed 50% of shared work areas and
the office workstations used by people who
could not work from home, and further
reduced meeting room capacities. We
reviewed and communicated our contacts
guidance and shielding requirements and
made face coverings mandotory in head
office. All head office collecgues received
a Covid-19 controls review document,
requiring an electronic signature of
acceptance. .

+  January 2021. We reviewed the warehouse
risk assessment and issued a warehouse
working refresh. We produced risk
assessments for security, transport and
training and shared them with the relevant
teams. Training started for all warehouse
management and supervisors, with
the “Covid Captain” role introduced to
monitor work areas. We increased anti-
viral fogging in all areas, over and above
the manufacturers’ guidelines, and issued
guidance on pre-shift cleaning.

February 2021. We further enhanced the
fogging procedures and produced a risk
assessment for the Personalisation team.

We believe our efforts have been highly
effective. For example, infection rates at our
Shirebrook campus have been consistently
below those in the local community, We

will continue to adapt our approach as
circumstances change.

Outside of the UK we have complied with

all local Covid-19 laws and guidance which,

at a minimum, includes the same store and
warehouse measures as implemented in the UK.

Printed on Steinbeis 100 Recycled and Carhon Captured through the Wondland Trust. helping to create new British woodiand across the UK
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FRASERS GROUP

CHAIR'S STATEMENT

Introduction ~

The Covid-19 pandemic continues to be a
significant challenge for the country, the retail
industry and for Frasers Group. Our stores were
closed again in November 2020, followed by a
significant closure in the week before Christmas
which then led to the third lockdown in January
2021. These lockdowns resulted in virtually all of
our UK stores being closed for approximately
six months in FY21. Our European stores

were also impacted by closures although the
impact was not as punitive as it was for the UK
business. .

| am proud of how our colleagues have

battled through these very difficult times to
help us achieve a solid set of financial results
6n an underlying EBITDA boasis. We are a
resilient business but the Covid-19 pondemic
has resulted in some significant non-cash
accounting impairments to our asset base. Our
RNS announcements in February and April 2021
gave warning of the situation and consequently
we have to report an overall profit before tax of
£8.5m down from £143.5m in FY20.

We appreciate the Government support with
the furlough scheme and business rates relief.
We are predominantly a bricks and mortar
business and this support has enabled us to
keep stores open that otherwise might have
been closed, particularly loss making House

of Fraser stores, saving many jobs. We must
cadtion however that the return to pre Covid-19
business rates will present a threat to a number
of these stores. There must be a change to the
outdated business rates system for us to justify
the survival of some of these House of Fraser
stores.

We are looking to take on a number of
ex-Debenhams stores across the country but
the excessive business rates make the viability
of these investments, and the jobs that could
be created, less likely. Again, we ask for clarity
from the Government and for a new ond
appropriate policy on business rates.

Elevation Without Limits

We continue to invest in all areas of the
business to support our elevation strategy.

Our flagship Sports Direct store on Oxford
Street re-opened in June 2021 at o cost of
approximately £10m to the-Group and we have
received overwhelming endorsements from our
customers and our brand partners such as Nike
and Adidas.

Our Flannels business continues to go

from strength to strength since we took full
ownership during 2017 and hos revenue CAGR
from the end of FY18 to FY21 of approximately
40%. We have an ambition to reach
approximately £2 billion in gross turnover by the
end of FY26, with o forecast split of 60% from
physical stores and 40% from online channels.

We will continue to invest across the portfolio
of our retail fascias, always pushing the
boundaries and thinking without limits, Our
investment in our digital capability, including
on platforms and people, will continue as will
i in ion in our h

to support our bricks and clicks fulfilment
capabilities.

The Elevation No Limits strategy is working
and we are fully supported by our third-party
brands as elevation is complimenting their own
strategies.

Results

We do not hesitate to remind our stokeholders
of our key accounting principles, namely being
conservative, consistent, and simple. It is with
this in mind that we present our financial results
for FY21in a period of uncertainty, with in our *
opinion, the effects of the pandemic far from
over, and a probable risk of further restrictions.

Our results highlights are:

*  Underlying EBITDA increased to £390.8m
(FY20: £3021m) |

*+  Revenue decreased to £3,625.3m (FY20:
£3,957.4m}

*  Profit before tax £8.5m (FY20: £143.5m}
¢ Net debt of £248.9m (FY20: £366.0m)

More underlying detail is given throughout this
Annual Report and Accounts. The highlights
and explanations of these by segment is set out
in note 4.

Our People

Our people are our finest resource and we are
committed to treating all of our colleagues with
dignity and respect. Throughout the pandemic
we have kept colleagues engaged with regular
update videos and a provision for help and
wellbeing support where people needed it.
Frasers Group colleagues are talented, loyal
and resilient. | have been very impressed how
they have found creative ways of working
through the challenges of the pandemic with
undiminished enthusiosm. The Board ore very
appreciative of the efforts of our colleagues
during these challenging times.

The Board is really pleased that The Fearless
1000 share scheme was unanimously voted
through ot the AGM in October 2020 and is
now up and running. The Board is receiving
regular updates and progress reports and we
are comfortable it is running as intended. The
aim of the scheme is to pay out significant
bonuses in the form of shares if the share price
stays above £10 for 30 consecutive trading
days. This could see 10 colleagues receiving
shares worth £1m each if the share price is at
£10 at the vesting dates. One thousand of our
Fearless colleagues, who live and breathe our
values of thinking without limits, not hesitating
and owning it, will be eligible to receive share
bonuses ranging from £50k right up to £1m if
the share price is at £10 at the vesting dates.
There is also a cash bonus scheme which runs
concurrently with the share scheme which will
pay out bonuses for those eligible colleagues
who do not qualify for the Fearless 1000.

The Frasers Group Elevation Programme was
introduced in September 2020 to attract highly
talented people to Frasers Group. The quality
of the recruits from the initial intake has been
strong and they have impressed people across
all levels of the organisation including the
Board. We are looking to run this programme

Prinlted on Steinbeis 100°% Recycled und Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new Bntish woudland across the LK

again in September 2021 with a new intake of
talent and our assessment centres are now up
and running. Our objective is to populate the
organisation with high calibre, high potential,
well trained people who we intend to be the
future leaders of the Company.

isitions And St ic i

During the year we increased our investments in
Hugo Boss and Mulberry and we also acquired
the DW Sports and Fitness business. These
investments are consistent with our strategic
objectives and align with our elevation strategy. -

As at period end, we held approximately
16.4% directly ond indirectly in Hugo Boss. We
consider this strategic investment in Hugo Boss
to be very successful. We have strengthened
our relationship with the company and have
regular and constructive dialogue with the
senior executive team. We have noted press
speculation about a potential acquisition of
Hugo Boss and stated we had no intention to
bid in our RNS of 26 May 2021.

We held approximately 36.8% of Mulberry
Group plc at the year end. We believe this is
an iconic British brand and hope that together
we can build a mutually beneficial partnership
going forward. ’

We acquired certain assets of DW Sports
Limited from administration for a cash

i ion of £37m. The tr i
complements the existing gym and fitness club
portfolio within the Group and is consistent with
the Group's elevation strategy. Frosers Group
tooks forward to elevating the gym and fitness
assets and is also pleased to have soved a
number of jobs. Further detail on the trade and
assets acquired can be found in note 31.

We consider a combination of both organic
and acquisitive growth will assist in the ongoing
delivery and success of our Elevation Strategy
and we will continue to look ot potential
opportunities across a range of categories to
complement and enhance our Group offering,
in the UK, Europe ond beyond if appropriate.
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vil Social & G

We are proud of the successes we have had
with our sustainability ogenda to date. For
instance the majority of our waste from our
Shirebrook delivery centre is recycled and

we are targeting zero waste to landfill from
Shirebrook in the next few years. Excluding
acquisitions during the year, our stores and
gyms are operating on 100% renewable power
and we are targeting a reduction of 10% power
usage in our stores over the next few years.
Sustainability will continue to play a key role in
our future processes and procedures led by our
Sustainability Steering Group which is executive
sponsored by our Chief Financial Officer.

We are proud to invest in local communities
and to support a key facet of British life, the
high street. We provide jobs for over 20,000
people in the UK alone and during the
pandemic we have done our utmost to retain
and support as many colleagues as possible
with very few redundancies.

During the year we have given approximately
£25m in discounts to NHS stoff as we reopened
in June 2020 in gratitude to the unbelievable
job they have done during the Covid-19
pandemic,

Our workers representative Cally Price

is a shining example of good corporate
governance and wé thoroughly recommend
the appointment of such a position across the
boardrooms of corporate Britain. Cally brings
colleague queries and concerns directly to
the boardroom for action by the Board. Cally

takes a very active part in every Board meeting, .

which she attends in full, and her vote counts
for as much in @ Board vote as mine or the
executive team. Alongside Cally, the rest of
our Non-executive Directors bring their own
knowledge and experience to their roles in
helping to ensure we do the right thing by our
stakeholders. .

The Board

We recently went through an independent
review of.the Board which is @ mandatory
obligation once every three years. We are very
happy with the findings and will act on the
recommendations.

10

We will continue to look at the construction of
the Board ensuring we have the oppropriate
blend of skills and experience. We consider
diversity, and energetic and passionate
individuals to be priorities as we look to
strengthen the Board in the future.

Due to the success of the Worker's .
Representative Board role we have decided
to extend the tenure of Cally Price for a
further few years and she will be proposed for
re-election at the 2021 AGM.

Dividend And Share Buyback

Our share buy back programme has continued
which is a demonstration of our confidence

in the Company and the strategy for future
growth. Further details can be found in Note 36,

No final dividend will be payable in relation to

OUR BUSINESS

Business Model

Founded by Mike Ashley as a single Store in
Maidenhead in 1982, Frasers Group plc today
operates a diversified portfolio of sports, fitness,
premium lifestyle and luxury store fascias. The
Group's colleagues work together with our
suppliers and our third-party brand partners
to serve customers in over 20 countries. The
Group aspires to be an international-leader in
sports, lifestyle, and luxury retail. The Board

is committed to treating all people with
dignity and respect. We value our people,

our customers and our shareholders and we
strive to adopt good practices in our corporate
dealings. We aim to deliver shareholder value
over the medium to long-term, whilst adopting

FY21as we intend to make further ir

iples that are conservative,

in the business to support the elevation
strategy.

Outlook

The Covid-19 pandemic continues to create
uncertainty and we must be prepared for
more lockdowns in the future. There must be
concerns about the stability of some retoilers
as Government support schemes come to
an end, yet there still seems to be very little
tangible long-term action being taken by
the Government to save the high street.
Notwithstanding the probable risk of further
lockdowns, which are considered and do
impact our property accounting estimates,
Frasers Group is confident in our long-term
strategy which we believe will help us to get
through this difficult period.

We will continue on the path of elevation and
to invest in our talented and loyal colleagues.
Our business is built on rock solid foundations
and we believe we are well set for some
promising times in the future.

David Daly
Non-executive Chair

5 August 2021

consistent and simple. Our strategy is set out in
the "Our Strategy - Elevation,No Limits” section
of this report.

Our business model remains consistent in
providing customers with the world's best
brands. This requires us to have the right
product, in the right place, at the right time
and at the right price. Our vision is to become
the elevated, multi-channel platform for our
Sports Retail and Premium Lifestyle fascias. To
this end, we are elevating across all channels to
enhance the customer journey’every step of the
way.

The Group's business model is explained in
greater detail below. This includes on outline of
our fascias and retail channels, management
of our property portfolio, our people, our
third-party brand partners, our Group bronds
and our centralised support functions. .

Business Structure

The Group is structured across five business
segments: UK Sports Retail, Premium Lifestyle,
European Retail, Rest of World Retail and
Wholesale & Licensing.

In UK Sports Retail, we offer a complete range
of sporting apparel, footwear and equipment
through our predominant fascia,

SPORTS DIRECT.
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This segment includes our lifestyle fascia

USC. Our current forward-looking view is

that the majority of our offering to customers
must include leading third-party brands. The
elevation of our sports retail proposition is

key to ensure we are fully aligned with the
future direction and ambitions of these brand
partners. UK Sports Retail includes core sports
retail store operations in the UK, plus all the
Group's sports retail online business (excluding
Bob's Stores, Eastern Mountain Sports and
Sports Direct Malaysia), the gyms, the Group's
Shirebrook campus operations, retail store
operations in Northern Ireland, Evans Cycles
and the GAME UK stores and online business.

In Premium Lifestyle, we are developing the
Group's premium and luxury offering, which
consists of the Flannels, Frasers, House of «
Fraser, Jack Wills and’Sofa.com fascias, along
with Cruise and van mildert, We aim to offer
fashion-conscious consumers a luxurious,
multi-brand retail destination with high-end
and on-trend products. -

In European Retail, we are evolving our
customer proposition in line with the elevation
strategy, while also seeking to increasingly
tailor our proposition to the local markets in
which'we operate. These include the Republic
of Ireland and continental Europe.

In Rest of World Retail, we operate 43 stores
trading as Bob's Stores and Eastern Mountain
Sports and we also have 33 stores trading as
SPORTS DIRECT in Malaysia.

In Wholesale & Licensing, the Group retains
a portfolio of world-famous heritage

brands, which we offer via our fascias, and
also wholesale and license to partners
internationally. Our own brands include
Everlast, Lonsdale, Karrimor and Slazenger.
The Group is also proud to have a number of
sporting and entertainment personclities as
ambassadors, as well as supporting sporting
events and venues. .
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Multi-Channel Elevation Strategy

Our elevation strategy continues to work
towards improving our offering to customers
across all our channels, including marketing,
social media, product, digital and in-store. This
aims to enable the Company, along with our
third-party brand partners, to connect with
custommers via a consistent voice across multiple
platforms, including online, mobile, and on the
high street. This strategy enables our stores and

. our online operations to complement -

each other. .

The websites for each of our core fascias in
the UK, including SPORTSDIRECT.com, USC.
co.uk, Flannels.com, + co.uk and

technology and features including a first in kind
bra fitting studio.

Following the success of the Flannels regional
concept, the Group has developed a new
regional flagship concept. This concept
encompasses a much larger footprint and
incorporates new categories for the fascia
including beauty and food & beverage. The
first store to launch in this new concept is at
Meadowhall Shopping Centre with further sites
due to open in the coming financial year such
as Fosse Park in Leicester and Liverpool

city centre.

A significant milestone for the Group was

GAME.co.uk, have undergone significant
enhancements to facilitate optimum oppeal to
consumers. Our product offering across these
core fascias, both in-store and online, aims to *
create a compelling shopping experience in
key categories that include, amongst others,
football, women's, kids, running, cycling,
lifestyle, fashion, luxury and gaming.

We offer product across a range of price points,
including good, better and best. This enables
us to offer more premium product, which is
net-new to the business. This gives consumers a
greoter range of choices for those who wish to
shop for premium products, whilst still retaining
our original entry-level and continuity product
offerings.

Progression Of The Elevated Store Model

The elevation of the Group's stores, continues
to progress and evolve across fascias and
territories. As reported last year, for Sports
Direct the enhanced concept introducing

an area not just for USC, but also for Game
with a Belong Gaming arena and Evans
Cycles was delivered at the new Portsmouth .~
store. These combined elements develop the
destination status of our stores catering to

a wider customer base. The Group has also
pushed boundaries with the opening of the
game changing Sports Direct flagship store on
London's Oxford Street shortly after financial
year érid. The store features world class
design incorporating new activation spaces,

the new Frasers concept with the
opening of Frasers Wolverhampton. The store
extends to ¢.34,000 sqft housing beauty,

. fashion, lifestyle, kids, home and food &

beverage. This new store is a live example of
the Group's vision for the fascia focusing on
experience, brands and service.

The Group is highly acquisitive across fascias
for new stores and with ive |

Qur People

The Group's policy is to treat all our people with
dignity and respect. Frasers Group colleagues
work together across all areas of the business
and we are proud that Frasers Group plc is one
of the first public companies in the UK to make
an elected Workers’ Representative a Board
member. We welcome all new colleagues into
the Group following the acquisitions in the year
and those who joined us through the Frasers
Group Elevation Programme. :

Remuneration and Rewards .

Qur policy is to foster a reward-based culture
that enables our colleagues to share in the
success of the Group. It is Company policy to
pay above the statutory National Minimum
Wage, including rates that are above the
statutory National Living Wage for those
over 25 years of age in the UK. In addition to
this, in current period the Group poid awards
and incentives of approximately £7.0m, from
which both permanent and casual colleagues
benefited.

can offer a portfolio of new store deals
providing a variety of retail offerings. The Group
is prepared to sign tong term leases for those
landlords willing to co-invest in the elevated
store concepts.

Investment in Freehold properties remains an
option to assist the store elevation strategy as
has been the case in previous financial years.

Further details of the property strategies and
current property portfolio are included within
the Chief Executive’s Report and Business
Review section of this annual report.

We are pleased that the Fearless 1000 share
scheme is now up and running along with

the Fearless Focus performance reviews. One
thousand of our Fearless colleagues, who live
and breathe our values, thinking withotit limits,
not hesitating and owning it, will be eligible to
receive share bonuses ranging from £50k right
up to E1m if the share price is at £10 at the
vésting dates. -

‘Workers’ Representative

The Frasers Group Workers' Representative
is Cally Price, a Manager ot our Cardiff Boy

store. The Workers' Representative has a unique *

insight in to the Group and will speak on behalf
of the Group's workforce at all scheduled
meetings of the Board in order to facilitate o
healthy and constructive dialogue. Due to the
success of the Worker's Representative Board
role we have decided to extend the tenure of
Cally Price for a further few years and thus she
will be proposed for re-election at the

2021 AGM.
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’

Colleague Engagement

In addition to the Workers Representative,

the Company als6 has an ongoing dialogue
with colleagues via an initiative called "Your
Company, Your Voice.' This is a system whereby
colleagues are abie to raise any issues of their
choosing via a number of different routes, both
physical and digital. This feedback is passed
to senior management and the Workers
Representative for review and appropriate
action.

Our Global Third-Party Brand Partners

We work with our leading third-party global
brand partners and provide significant
prominence for them with our customers across
all our'platforms.

Our third-party and Group brands are
managed by central brand and marketing
teams, This centralised structure significantly
benefits the Group by enabling the individual
brands to participate in Group buying and
sourcing; aggregated supplier relationships
and enhanced supply chain disciplines; Group
inventory monitoring and replenishment;

and more inspired and harmonious visual
merchandising in-store.
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Our Strategy - Elevation No Limits

Our purpose is to serve consumers with the world’s best brands. This requires us to have the right

product, in the right place, at the right time and at the right price. Our strategy is aligned to this
purpose and is based on three interconnected focus pitlars - the brands we sell, our digital offering
and our physical stores. These are supported by a set of enablers, focused on our people, systems,
automation and data. By continuing to elevate our performance across all areas of our strategy, we

will achieve our vision: to become the elevated multi-channel platform for sports, premium and luxury.

Strategy

Key achiavemant in FY21

Priotities for FY22

N Brands

Our customers want to have the choice of the
world's best brands, whethar in sporting goods or
the premium and luxury segments. Being oble to
offer these brands is essentiol for our success. We
therefore focus on building excallent relationships

During FY21, our achlevements included:

. further growing our relationships with key
brand owners, such as Nike for Sports Direct,
Burberry for Flannels, and Hugo Boss for
House of Fraser, giving us improved access to
the praducts our customers demand;

and truly integrated teams with key third-party
brand owners.

This powetful brand offering is supported by our
complementary range af own brands, where we
aim to offer unrivalled cheice and value, and *
drive growth through influencer partnerships and
brand collaborations. We will continue te consider
strotegic acquisitions that bring ottroctive brands
into the Group.

. our strategic in Hugo
Boss AG, reflecting our growing relationship,
our confidence i its future ond the potentiol
for synergies between our businesses; and

+  increosing our strotegic investment in luxury
handbag retaller Mutberry.

During FY22, our priosities are to:

. continue to build our successful third-porty
brand partnerships and further improve our
access to their best products; ond

Invest in evolving our own brands, to ensure
they remain relavant to consumers by
responding to changing styles ond trends,
and continue to complement the key third~
party brands we offer.

Reference to Principol Risks,
see page 31,

Digital

Both customers and bronds want access to digital

channels that offer an excellent experience.

Through our digital elevation strategy we

are Investing more than £100m to elevate

our proposition across our retail channels.

This investrent wilt byild on our core digitat

foundations, to suppert future growth ond agility. It

includes continulng to improve the online customer
i d fully targeted il

in platforms that support customer service,

engagement and data. We are also investing in

digital marketing to drive soles growth,

During FY21, our achievements included:

. significantty improving tha customer

nce, customer service and the
underlying platform for our digital business,
reflecting the critical importance of a strong
web presence during Covid-19 related
lockdowns; ond

. introducing our first digital marketing
progromme, to support branding and sales
growth.

During FY22, our priorities are to:

. further invest in our online retail capabilities,

porticulorly on the luxury side of the business,

including our website, customer service and

payment platforms; and

+  continue to invest in digital marketing and
use of sociat media, to both drive sales ond
provide insights nto customer behaviour,

Reference to Principot Risks,
see page 31,

Physical

The continual elevation of our physical store estate
is a fundemental part of our strategy to moke
them destinations customers want to come to and
where brand owners want thelr products to be
seen. We do this by rolling out elevated stores and
by elevating existing stores, To drive efficiencies

in running our store estate, we will continue to
develop our operating model and introduce new
store technology. We will also consider strategic
acquisitions that add attractive locations to the
store estate. .

During FY21, our achievements included:

. continuing to open new cancept stores,
i ing a flogship multi foscia offerng

In Portsmouth ond a new Frasers store in

Wolverhampton.

ficantly Investing in our fiogship Sports
Direct stare on Oxford Street, London which
opened to great occlaim in June 202); ond

*  acquiring the trade and ossets of DW Sports,
complementing our existing gym and fitness
club portfolio,

During FY22, our priorities are to;

. roll out new elevated stores, including new
concepts such as food and beverage and
beauty for Flannels;

+  develop the latest iterations of our elevated

°  store concepts;

progress the onging elevation of our existing

store portfolio; and -

+  selectively open elevated stores in Europe,
witha .mnﬂ« on tha Sports Direct and USC
fascias.

Reference ta Principal Risks,
see page 3.

Enablers

We need to have talented people who will

enable us to succeed, supported by training that

ampowers them to achieve. To attroct new tofent,

we will continua to develop our employer brand,

while further improving internal communication to

drive engagement with existing colleagues.

We will also continue to invest in our systems and

Gutomation to enhance efficiancy, and In our data
ilities, so wa can make driven decisions

wherever possible. .

During FY2}, our achievements included:

. making significant progress with how we
ottroct, engage and develop tatent, including
defining our core values, welcoming 27
new people in our commerciol department
through the Frasers Group Elevation
Programme, introducing the Fearless
1000 bonus scheme and Fearless Focus
performanca reviews, and developing a new .
learming management system {LMS);

+  fuither investing in automation, in particular
to improve fulfilment for our digital business;
and

. enhancing data sharing with suppliers
through electronic data interchange {EDI),
improving management of stock and
streamlining supplier payment processes.

During FY22, our prioritiés are to;

. roll out our new performance reviews across
the business, go live with the LMS, and recruit
the next intake for the Elevotion Programme;

. continue to increase automation, to support

i business and

icol stores as quickly and

effectively as poss
+  continue onboarding products onto EDY; ond
«  capture customer data and insights through
growth in our digital business, digital
marketing and the roll-out of our loyolty
progromme,
Reference to Principal Risks,
see page 31.

Key Performance Indicators

The Board manages the Group'’s performance by reviewing a number of key performance indicators
(KPIs). The KPIs are discussed in this Chief Executive's Report and Business Review, the Financial
Review, the Environment section and the “Our People” section. The table below summarises the

Group's KPls.
. 52 waeks anded 52 waeks ended 52 weeks anded
25 April 2021 26 April 2020 28 April 2019
Group revenue £3,625.3m £39574m £3.701.9m
Underlying EBITDA' £390.8m £302.4m £287.8m
Group gross margin 422% 420% 42.8%
Undartying bosic earmngs per share« V (120p) 16.2p 17.6p
Underlying free cash flow 4 £427.8m £263.1m £273.3m
Net dabt £2489m £366.0m £378.5m

KPIS

Number of retail stores + 1,547 1534 968
Waorkfarce turnover 28.9% 28.6% 23.0%
Packaging recycling* 11164 tonnes 12,358 tonnes 12,807 tonnes

1) The method for caleulating undertying EBITDA is sat owt in Note & and the Glossary.

(2)  The method for calcutating underlying basic earnings per share is set out in Note 15.

{3} Underlying free cash flow is defined as operating cash fiow after working capital and pre IFRS 16, made up of undeslying EBITDA plus realised *
foreign exchange gains and losses, less corporation tax paid. Further detail on this calculation can be found in the Financial Review.

{4 The method for calculating Net debt is set out in the Financial Review.

(5) Excluding associates and stores in the Baltic states thot trode under foscias other than SPORTLAND or SPORTSDIRECT.com. and other niche

fascios. Includes GAME and Sofa.com concessions,

16} Cardboard and plastic recycling,
The Directors believe that underlying EBITDA,
underlying basic EPS and underlying free cash
flow provide further useful information for
shareholders on the underlying performance
of the business in addition to the reported
numbers and are consistent with how business
performance has been measured internally.

They are not recognised profit measures under

IFRS and may not be directly comparable with

“adjusted” performance measures used by other
companies. See Glossary for further information

on the Group's Alternative Performance
Measures.

Management will, from FY22, change our
main reporting KPI from underlying EBITDA to
adjusted profit before tax (PBT). From FY22,
the Group will therefore no longer report
underlying EBITDA. Adjusted PBT is reported
profit before tax less the effects of exceptional
items, unhedged foreign exchange (FX], gains
and losses on strategic investments and share
scheme charges.

ted on Stenbers 100°, Recycled and C.arbon Captured tirough the Woodland i rust. helping to create new Bntish woodland across the UK

Management has taken this decision for the
following reasons:

- With the continued significant investment
in and roll out of our elevation strategy
on both the physical and digital fronts,
the importance of depreciation and
amortisation to both the Board and
our stakeholders in terms of assessing
performance has grown.

- Our understanding from a number of
financial sectors, including the banking
sector, is that IFRS16 is becoming an
increasingly important consideration.

- With this new measure, we are trying
to align with the Financiol Reporting
Council's thematic standpoint with regard
to ‘alternative performance meosures' as
far as possible, whilst retaining a degree
of interpretation given that factors
outside of our control, such as FX and
strategic investments movements which
are exceptionally difficult to forecast,
particularly months in advance.

Adjusted PBT for the 52 weeks ended 25 April
2021 was a loss of £53.7m. See Glossary for
reconciliation to reported PBT.
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Group revenue

The Board considers that this measurement is a
key indicator of the Group's growth.

Underlying EBITDA

Underlying EBITDA shows how well the Group is
managing its trading and operational efficiency
and therefore the overall trading performance
of the Group.

Gn?up gms margin

The Board considers that this measurement is o
key indicator of the Group's trading profitability.

.Underlying basic earnings per share (EPS)

Underlying basic EPS is a measure of adjusted
total shareholder return and ultimately an
indicator to our shareholders of the success of
our elevation strategy.

Underlying free cash flow

Underlying free cash flow is considered an
important indicator for the Business of the
cash available for investment in the elevation
strategy.

Net debt

Net debt is an indicator of both the Group's
investment in the elevation strategy and its
covenant headroom which is a key component
of the Group's going concern considerations,

Number of retail stores

The Board considers that this measure is an
indicator of the Group's growth. Thee Group's
elevation strategy is replacing older stores and
often this can result in the closure of two or
three stores to be replaced by one larger new -
generation store.

Workforce turnover

The Boord considers that this measure is o key
indicator of the contentment of our peoplé. For

- more details refer to the retention section of the
"Our People" section of this report.

Packaging recycling

The Board considers that this measurement is
a key indicator of our impact and commitment
to the best environmental practices. For more
details refer to the environment section of

this report.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT AND

BUSINESS REVIEW

Performance Overview

Group revenue decreased by 8.4% to £3,625.3m

in the year. UK Sports Retail decreosed by
10.7% to £1,968.5m, Premium Lifestyle revenue
increased by 1.9% and European Retail |
decreased by 11.8% to £615.2m. Rest of World
Retail revenue was £152.7m, down 12.3% and
revenue in the Wholesale & Licensing division
decreased by 4.3%.

Group gross margin in the year was consistent
with the prior year with a small increase of
20 basis points from 42.0% to 42.2%. UK

Sports Retail margin increased 110 basis points

to 42.1% (FY20: 41.0%) largely due to the
continually improving product mix. Premium
Lifestyle’s gross margin decreased by 340 basis
points from 48.3% to 44.9% lorgely due to a
reduction in concession sales within House of
Fraser as a percentage of total sales which
have a higher gross margin. European Retail
gross margin increased 60 basis points from
38.4% to 39.0% largely due to the continually
improving product mix. Rest of World Retail
margin decreased 250 basis points from 44.4%

. to 41.9%, largely due to the lower margin rate

in the US business which makes up a larger
proportion of the segment in FY21. Wholesale
& Licensing gross margin increased 310 basis
points to 44.0% (FY20: 40.9%), largely due to
UK wholesale.

Group operating costs decreased by 15.7% to
£140.0m (FY20: £1353.0m), largely driven by
savings in store costs during the Iockdowns os

for a reconciliation of Group operating costs
toselling, distribution and administrative
expenses. .

As a result, Group underlying EBITDA for the
year was up 29.4% to £390.8m {FY20: £302.1m).

-Excluding acquisitions and on a currency

neutral basis, underlying EBITDA increased
16.9%. UK Sports Retail underlying EBITDA

was £279.2m up from £227.4m in FY20, while
Premium Lifestyle underlying EBITDA was
£53.9m, up from £4.5m in FY20. European
Rétail underlying EBITDA was £4.1m, down from
£51.8m in FY20, Rest of World Retail underlying
EBITDA was £25.6m, up from a loss of £6.8m

in FY20 and Wholesale & Licensing underlying
EBITDA increased to £28.0m from £25.2m.

There were property related impairments in

the period totalling £317.0m (FY20: £122.6m),
including £168.2m in relation to right of use
assets (FY20; £97.8m), £84.4m in relation to
freehold land and buildings (FY20: £nil), £63.8m
of other property, plant and equipment (FY20: -
£24.8m) ond £0.6m of investment properties
(FY20: £nil). Property related impairments have
been recognised following a re-assessment of
future expected cash flows largely driven by
anticipated future lockdowns as a result of the
Covid-19 pandemic, the change in consumer
behaviour in moving from physical to onfine
shopping, the impact of Direct-To-Consumer
and increasing costs as a result of Brexit.
Further details including sensitivity analysis is
included within Note 2.

a result of the Covid-19
support schemes such as CJRS (Coronavirus
Job Retention Scheme) and business rotes-relief
particularly in House of Fraser. The amount
received by the Group in the period in regard

to the CJRS (or equivalent where received

in non-UK territories) was approx. £80m.

The amount of business rotes relief received

by the Group in the period {or equivalent

where received in non-UK territories) was
approx. £97.5m. See the Financial Review
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Depreciation and ion charges have
increased-by 11.3% to £307.5m (FY20: £276.3m)
largely due to an increase in freehold land and
buildings depreciation, following the change in
useful economic life estimate in the period. See
accounting policies for further details.



FRASERS GROUP - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

Group underlying profit before tax " decreased
to £5.8m (FY20: £117.4m), largely due to the
effects of the Covid-19 pandemic including
the closure of retail stores, the assoclated
isioning and i i and dep

und urncrtlsutlon charges. Underlying basic EPS
for the year decreased by 204.9% to a Iuss of

. 17.0p (FY20: profit of 16.2p).

Within other comprehensive income, the Group's
hedging contracts decreased by £16.5m (FY20:
decreased by £18.7m) as a result of the fair value
movements in the period. With regard to the
Group's long-term financial assets, fair value
movements have resulted in a gain of £77.3m
(FY20: loss of £19.7m) in the period.

The Group generated free cash flow during

the year of £427.8m, up from £263.1m in the

prior period. Net debt decreased by £17.1m to
£248.9m at period end. Spend on acquisitions
ond capex, including Wigan Robin Retail Park
and warehouse automation, was offset by
continued strong cash generation in the core
business. Net debt currently stands at 0.5 tlmes
reported EBITDA {FY20: 0.7 times). .

() Underlying profit before taxation exclures the effects of (FRS 16,
realisad loreign exchange gains / losses in selling and

loss
disposal of subsidiaries, strategic investments and properties.

REVIEW BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

UK Sports Retail

The UK Sports Retail segment includes all of the Group's sports retail and USC store operations in the
UK (including Northern Ireland), all of the’ Group's sports online businesses {excluding Bob's Stores,
Eastern Mountain Sports, Baltics and Malaysia), the Group's gyms, Evans Cycles, GAME UK stores and
online operations and the Group's Shirebrook campus operations. UK Sports Retail is the main driver
of the Group and accaunts for 54.3% (FY20: 55.79%) of Group revenue.

32weoks ended S2werla anded

25 apli 2021 26 April 2020

(em) tem)

UK Sports Retall Rovenue. j . 19685 22023
Cost of Sales 114392 3004
Gross Profit i - " 893 9032
Gross Morgin % a1 20

Revenue decreased 10.7% to £1,968.5m. Excluding acquisitions, revenue fell 14.6%. This was largely -
due to the temporary store closures in the UK caused by the Covid-19 pandemic, partially offset by
growth in our online business and. pent up demand on store reopening.

UK Sports Retail gross margin increased to 42.1% {FY20: 41.0%), largely due to the contlnuclly
improving product mix. Excluding acquisitions gross margin increased to 45.0% (FY20: 43.5%).

Operating expenses decreased by 16.8% to £548.7m largely driven by savings in store costs during
the store closure periods s a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. Excluding acquisitions, operating
expenses decreased by 20.2% largely driven by savings in store costs and Govemment support
schemes during lockdowns as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Underlying EBITDA for UK Sports Retail was £279.2m (FY20: £227.4rn), an increase of 22.8% for the
year, largely due to the strong reopening of stores ofter lockdowns, growth in our online business and
improved operating efficiencies.

UK Sports Retail Store Portfolio™

- 25 April 2021 26 April 2020
England 9 367
Scatlond . 3 2
Wales B El 3
Northern Ireland . 2 ”
ste of Man 1 - 5
usc 25 - - 2
Evans Cycles R ® 50
GAME UK 2a7 207
TotaL - 08 68
Opened - 9 2s -
Closed . 198y 1s3)
Acquired N 2 256
. _Areolsghul approx. 6.5m approx. 6.3m
0 Tablo cxcudes the Groug's stondalone Gy
2 The GAME UK store ¥20: ing s Direct include B
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Premium Lifestyle

Premium Lifestyle consists of Flannels, Cruise, van mildert, House of Fraser, Jack Wills and Sofa.com
fascia stores and corresponding web sales.

52 waeks ended 52 weeks ended

28 aprl 2011 26 Aprit2020

em) {Em)

Gross Transaction Value (GTV) " - Lt 788.1 9031
Premium Lifestyle Revenue 7356 . 20
Cost of soles . 1405.3) © una
Gross Profit s 3303 3486
Gross Margin % 445 @3

GV beir et of VAT, di nd sales where th

Premium Lifestyle sales increased by 1.9% to £735.6m (FY20: £722.0m), mostly due to new Flannels
stores and increased web sales. Excluding acquisitions, sales increased 1.4%. The Premium Lifestylé
gross margin for the year decreased by 340 basis points to 44.9% (FY20: 48.3%] largely due a
reduction in concession sales within House of Fraser as a percentage of total sales which have a
higher gross margin.

Premium Lifestyle opérating costs decreased by 20.1% to £275.1m (FY20: £344.1m) largely driven

by savings in store costs during the store closure periods as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and
Government support schemes such as business rates relief particularly in House of Fraser. As a result,
underlying EBITDA improved from £4.5m in FY20 to £53.9m in the year, largely due to Flonnels store
openings, growth in our onfine business, continued operating efficiencies and business rates relief
particularly in House of Fraser. ) .

Premium Lifestyle Store Portfolio

25 Agril 2001 26 apr1 2020
Flonnels R a E2
Cuise - i s s
van mildert . i 1 . [l
Jack wils__{ 60 &
House of Fraser / Frasers g § a a8
Selacom® - Y 2
16Montrose N 3 -
Garment Guarter 1 -
Povche R T N
ny En
Opened . n )
Acauired . - s W
Closed ) te2)

. Arealsaft) opprox. 42m | oppror. 45m

o 17 concessidns (FY20: i i House
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European Retail

The European Retail division includes the Group's sports retail store management and operations
in Europe, including the Group's European distribution centres in Belgium and Austrio, stores and
corresponding web business in the Baltic regions and GAME Spain stores and corresponding web
business.

52 weeks ended
26 Apri) 2020
Aem)
Euopoon Retail Revenue 6977
Cost of Sales (a298)
Gross Profit ’ 279
Gross Profit % 1Ba

Revenue decreased 11.8% to £615.2m. On d currency neutral basis and excluding ocquisitions,
European Retail revenue decreased by 20.5% largely due to the temporary store closures caused by
the Covid-19 pandemic.

European Retail gross margin increased to 39.0% (FY20: 38.4%) largely due to the continually
improving product mix. Excluding acquisitions and on a currency neutral basis, margin is up 100 basis
points to 46.3%. : ‘

Operating expenses increased by 10.2% to £238.1m (FY20: £216.1m). Excluding acquisitions ond on o
currency neutral basis operating costs increased by 9.3% largely due to property related provisions
including prior year releases as a result of disposals. As a result, underlying EBITDA decreased 92.1%
to £4.1m.

All of the folIQ\‘ying stores are operated by companies wholly owned by the Group, except Estoni
Latvia and Lithuania where the Group owns 60.0%.” .

Prir!ted on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Cartion Captured through the Woodiand Trust, helping to creaje new British woodiand across the UK *
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FRASERS GROUP

. European Retail Store Portfolio

Rest Of World Retail

25 April 2021 26 Apris 2020 Rest of World Retail includes sports stores in Malaysia trading under the SPORTS DIRECT fascia,
GAME Spain 236 261 retail stores in the US trading under Bob's Stores and Eastern Mountain Sports and their online
Republic of treland® 9 3 businesses. In Maloysia the Group has 33 stores which are 51.0% owned by the Group.
Belgium 3 35 .
Estonio” P 25 S2wasks onded
25 april 2021
Ausiria . 20 2
]
Partugal 20 2 -
Rost of World Revenue 1527
Latvia® v 8
o Cost of sates : 188
Lithuanio® 8 8
Gross Profi - 640
Poland 1t 16
- Gross Margin % B a9
Stovonia u [
Czech Republic, 2 i Rest of World Retail sales were £152.7m for the year. Gross margin was 41.9%, down from 44.4%
Hungary L) 8 in the prior year, largely due to the lower margin rate in the US business which makes up a larger
Syprus s L2 proportion of the segment in FY21. Underlying EBITDA was £25.6m, from a loss of £6.8m in FY20. This
Holard 2 2 was largely due to operating efficiencies in the US business.
Slovakio s s ¢ .
France 4 4 Rest of World Retail Store Portfolio
Germany 2 2 4
Curembourg 2 2 25 Apsil 2021 26 april 2020
Spain 5 T Malaysio 3 El
lealand 1 1 Bob's Stores. 2 . u
ToTAL ase o Eostern i 2 20
F 7 1
Opened B 1 Areo fsat) - pprax. 13m approx. 13m
Closed 128) )
Acquired - 265 & Licensing . .
Avea(sat) . . approx. 3.6m opprox. 40m
- oD fomcios The portfolio of Group brands includes o wide variety of world-famous sport and lifestyle brands.
@) Excluding Heatans fascia stores The Group's Sports Retail division sells products under these brands in its stores, and the Wholesale
& Licensing division sells the brands through its wholesale and licensing activities. The Wholesale
& Licensing division continues to sponsor a variety of prestigious events and retains a variety of
-globally recognised celebrities and sporting professi as brand amb
S2waeks onded 32wesks anded
apr 2021 26 Aprit 2020
sem (em)
Wholesale . 1315 =Y
Ucansing 08 258
Total Wholescle & Licancing Revenue § 13 1602
Cost of Sales (@581 9471
Grass Profit 15 655
. Gross Morgin % 481 03
Wholesale & Licensing total revenue decreased by 4.3% to £153.3m (FY20: £160.2m).
Wholesale revenues were down 2.2% to £131.5m (FY20: £134.4m), due to reductions in UK wholesale
activity offset by.an increase in the US. Total gross margin increased by 320 basis points to 44.1%
(FY20: 40.9%). Wholesale gross margins increased 430 basis points to 33.6% (FY20: 29.5%), largely
. due to UK wholesdle.
Licensing revenues in the year were down 15.5% to £21.8m (FY20: £25.8m).
Operating costs decreased by 2.2% to £39.4m (FY20: £40.3m). As a result, underlying EBITDA
increased by 11.1% to £28.0m (FY20: £25.2m).
16
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PROPERTY REVIEW

The store elevation program remains a key
focus point for the Group across all fascias and
territories. For Sports Direct, the new stores
continue to push boundaries as demonstrated
by the opening of the new Portsmouth Sports
Direct store incorporating a USC, Evans and
Game, as well as a Belong gaming arena.
Further to this, shortly after financial year end
the newly refurbished London, Oxford Street
flagship opened featuring world class design
incorporating new activation spaces, technology
and features including a first in kind bra fitting
studio. In Europe, the portfolio of six Toys R Us
properties acquired during FY20 in Spain hove
now been developed launching as elevated
Sports Direct stores in the same format as the
UK.

A significant milestone for the Group was
delivering the new Frasers concept with the
opening of Frasers Wolverhampton, another
example of the continued store elevation
programme. The opening of such stores
demonstrates the Group's commitment to
physical retail and ability to create genuine retail
destinations. )

Flannels remains an important fascia for the
Group. The key focus has been the development
of the Regional Flagship concept introducing
new categories for the fascia such as beauty,
food & beverage and active. Terms have

been agreed to launch this new concept at
Meadowhall Shopping Centre which is set to
open in the coming financial year. Further sites
for this concept are also due to open at Fosse
Park in Leicester and Liverpool city centre.
Another notable event in FY21 was the
acquisition of 42 DW Stores. The acquisition
enhanced the Group's gym and UK Sports Retail
estate. A refurbishment and rebranding exercise
commenced shortly after acquisition and will
continue into the coming financial year.

The primary objective for the estate continues
to be the transition to turnover based rents.
The Group is highly acquisitive across fascias
and with co-operative landlords can offer o
portfolio of new store deals providing o variety

7

of retail offerings. The Group is prepared to sign
long term leases for those landlords willing to
co-invest in the elevated store concepts.

With leasehold activity across the Group
expected to increase over the coming year, the
same is likely to apply with freehold acquisitions
as we capitalise on favourable market conditions
coupled with the Group's growing requirement
for retail space. !

UK RETAIL STORE PORTFOLIO

Sports Stores in the UK (including
Northern Ireland):

+  The Group is currently operating from 394
stores in England, 39 in Scotland, 31in Wales
and 21 in Northern Ireland. There were 14
openings and 20 closures for'Sports Direct
fascia stores over the period. 42 stores were
acquired as part of the acquisition of DW
Sports comprising a number of ‘combined’
-sites with retail and leisure. Six of the store
closures were sites acquired as part of this
acquisition where agreements could not
be réached with landlords resulting in 33
‘combined’ and 3 stand-alone Sports Direct
stores as additions in the period. 13 of the
remaining 14 closures occurred due to
relocations into elevated multi-fascia stores.

Noteworthy openings include Portsmouth,
Birmingham Fort, Scunthorpe and Wrexham
where existing Sports Direct stores were
closed to relocate into an elevated multi-
format store.

offering as part of the elevated store model
across all formats. As mentioned previously,
both a GAME and Evans Cycles concept has
been developed to form part of the elevated
Sports Direct format in selected locations.
Over the coming financial period there will
be a push towards more multi-fascia store
openings incorporating each of these fascias.

All new store openings include a USC lifestyle

Evans Cycles

+  There are ¢urrently 48 Evans Cycle stores
operating, @ reduction of two stores over
the period. During FY21 the Evans Cycles
concept was first introduced as a store-i
store area in our latest Portsrmouth multi-
fascia store alongside Sports Direct, USC,

Game & Belong. This concept will continue .

to be developed to roll out into selected
future store openings.

GAME UK

«  Over the period, the relocation programme
moving Game into selected Sports Direct
stores was accelerated. Coupled with the
new Sports Direct store openings featuring
an area for Game, the overall number of
stores for the UK estate increased to 247
having closed 67 and opening 72 (net
increase of 5 stores).

+ The Belong gaming arenas are building
their presence across the UK featuring in a
number of the new-Sports Direct openings
such as Portsmouth.

PREMIUM LIFESTYLE STORE
PORTFOLIO

Flannels, Cruise and Van Mildert

*  Across Flannels, Cruise and van mildert
during FY21 there were 6 openings and 2
closures, resulting in a net increase of 4
stores. Combining these fascias, the total
estate amounts to 47 stores.

Key openings for Flannels include Rushden
Lakes, Kingston Upon Thames and
Wolverhampton. The Glasgovs Cruise
store was also extensively refurbished and
expanded.

A major area of development has been

the Flannels Regional Flagship concept,
incorporating new categories such as
beauty, food & beverage and active. The
first regional flagship to open will be
Flannels Meadowhall which will extend

to approximately 55,000 sqft with further
locations to follow over the coming financial
year including Fosse Park in Leicester and
Liverpool city centre.

Pm!led on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodiand Trust. helping to create new British woodland across the UK

House of Fraser

* At the end of FY21 there were 43 House of
Fraser stores trading, a net decreose of 5
stores ofter 6 closures and 1 opening.

A key highlight was the delivery of the new
‘Frasers’ store concept ot Wolverhampton. .
This new store showcases the elevated
format and what can be provided upon
agreeing appropriate new long term lease
deals.

Much of the estate continues to remain

on short term flexible leases. Whilst
negotiations are ongoing to transition stores.
to long term leases it is anticipated that
there will be further closures, particularly

os business rates come back into effect in
FY22.

*  However following the demise of major
high street retail chains we envisage new
location opportunities to come to fruition
over the coming financial period, albeit
again punitive business rates at many of
these locations put the viability of doing
these lease deals in doubt.

Jack Wills

«  Over FY21 there were 7 store closures and no
openings reducing the estate to 60 stores..
We continue to negotiate with landlords to
move to long term leases.

= A new store concept is under development
with the ambition to open in new key
markets across the UK. The new concept is
intended to be finalised over FY22.

Forecast Openings UK FY22

Over FY21, despite the challenges faced
relating to the Covid-19 pandemic the
Group continued the elevated store roll

out programme. For the coming financiol
year the Group's ambition is to increase

the new store activity across fascias, with

a particular focus on Sports Direct and
Flannels. Key new stores include the new
Flannels Regional Flagships along with new
Sports Direct flagships such as Birmingham
city centre. However, it should be noted that
program risk remains relating to-factors
linked to the Covid-19 pandemic.
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EUROPEAN RETAIL
STORE PORTFOLIO
Republic of Ireland {ROI) -
+  Over FY21 the remaining Heatons store

. conversions to include Sports Direct were
completed.”

« There was one opening in the year, with 39
stores ot the period end. Shortly after the
year end a new store in Galway opened, a
first for the Group in that market.

+ The intention for the corming financial year
is to increase the store estate across RO,
this has been bolstered by the increasing
number of new location opportunities now
being presented. In certain locations other
Group fascias not currently trading in the
ROl are being considered.

Continental Europe

« The Group continues.to operate sports
stores in 18 countries in continental Europe.

« 21 Sports retail stores in Europe, excluding
Republic of Ireland (plus 26 non-core, .
speciality and outlets),

+ Total sq.t. of approximately 2.7m of
all sports fascias in Europe (including
Sportland, Lillywhites, Sportsworld etc).

+ Closed 25 GAME stores in Spain during the
period as part of rationalising the estate
and removing duplication finishing the
period on 236 stores.

« Twelve openings in four different countries,
three of which were relocations.

* 10 closures in seven different countries with
a mixture of closing non-performing stores
and closures linked to relocations. The 1
Austrian store closure was due to a sale of
our freehold property in Salzburg.

+  During the period 8 Sports Direct stores
incorporating a USC were opened during
the period totalling 117,65 sq ft of retail
space. 5 of these were freeholds purchased
in FY20 that have been refurbished and
opened as elevated Sports Direct stores.

A further freehold store opened in Malaga
shortly after FY21. .

18

+ Asisthe case in the UK, the Group is firmly

committed to the rollout of elevated stores
across'Europe. Due to the accelérated shift
to online experienced across Europe due to
the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic and a
number of retailers reducing their portfolio
size. The Group believes it can copitalise
on these market conditions to efficiently *
expand our physical estate, focusing on
capital city and flagship opportunities.

REST OF WORLD RETAIL‘
STORE PORTFOLIO

+ 33 stores in-Malaysio with three openings
and one closure in FY21. The closure was a
Tesco based store leaving us with three as
we continue to relocate our stores to higher
performance locations. ) -

+  The Molaysian elevation and expansion
drive continues, with 2 new elevated stores
opened in the period. We now have a total
of seven elevated stares in the region in line
with UK standards ond four stores with o
USC retail area.

+ As amajor milestone our flagship ASEAN
- HQ opened in FY21in the Sunway Pyramid

shopping centre with the adjoining retail
store opening shortly.

+ 43 stores in the USA, following two closures
and one opening in FY21.

Frechold / Long Leaschold Proporty Purchases:

- " Over FY21 a total of 14 properties were
acquired across the UK totalling £84.3m.
The most significant purchase was Robin
Retail Park in Wigan for £41.8m. No
properties were acquired in Europe or RoW.

« Disposal of property assets continues to be
standard practice for the Group. During the
period 4 disposals completed in the UK and
3 disposals completed in the EU.

«  For the upcoming financial period it is
anticipated that there will be an increase *
in acquisition activity as we capitalise on
favourable market conditions coupled with
the groups growing requirement for retoil
space. Disposals will continue as has been
the case in previous financial years.

Mike Ashley
Chief Executive
5 August 2021

Prinlted on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured lhrough the Woodland Trust. helping to create new British woodland across ihe UK .
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Financial Statements for'the Group for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021 are presented in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS).

Summary Of Results
. S2weaks anded 52 waeks ended

Bapilzon 26 April 2020

em) e}

Revenue ~ 36253 29574
Reported EB1TOR S0 5510
Underlying EBITDA 3908 3024
Reported profit before tox as as
n before tax 58 2.4

Earnings per shara (EPS]

Pence por share

Penco per shore

165)

185

Reported basic EPS
ing basic EPS

w20}

162

income and it

EBITDA is before i
costs, tox, di iati isation and

imp

costs, finance income and finance
. It includes the Group's share of losses from

associated undertakings and joint ventures. Underlying EBITDA is calculated as EBITDA before the
effects of IFRS 16, realised foreign exchange gains / losses in selling and administration costs, profit /
loss on disposal of subsidiaries,.strategic investments and properties.

Foreign Exchange And Treasury

The Group reports its results in GBP but trades
internationally and is therefore exposed to
currency fluctuations on currency cash flows
in various ways. These include purchasing
inventory from overseas suppliers, making
sales in currencies other than GBP and holding
overseas assets in other currencies. The Board
mitigate the cash flow risks associated with
these fluctuations with the careful use of
currency hedging using forward contracts and
other derivative financial instruments.

The Group uses forward contracts that qualify
for hedge accounting in two main ways - to
hedge highly probable EUR sales income and

Currency Hadging ogainst

USD inventory purchases. This introduces a
level of certainty into the Group's planning and

ing process. Manag has revi d
detailed forecasts and the growth assumptions
within them and is satisfied that the forecasts
meet the criteria as being highly probable
forecast transactions. .

As at 25 April 2021 and as detailed in note 29¢
the Group had the following forward contracts
that qualified for hedge accounting under

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, meaning that
fluctuations in the value of the contracts before
maturity are recognised in the Hedging Reserve
through Other Comprehensive Income. After
maturity, the sales and purchases are then
valued at the hedge rate.

Currency value . Timing_ . Rates
USD/ GBP. USD inventory purchases UsD 720m Fr22-F123 136 - 141
UsD/EUR USD inventary purchases S0 120m FY22.FY2a 12113
EuR/GBP Euro soles EUR 240m 123 099

The Group also uses currency options, swaps and spots for more flexibility against cash flows
that are less than highly probable and therefore do not qualify for hedge accounting under IFRS9
Financial Instruments. The fair value movements before maturity are recognised in the Income

Group Operating Costs
Statement.
S2wanks ended 52weaks anded ) )
8 ApAl 2021 26 April 2020 The Group has the following currency options ond unhedged forwards:
tem tem "
Group operating costs 1400 13530 Currancy Erpectedine Curmancy vatue Timing Rates
Oepreciotion and amortisation 258 s EUR/GBP Euro soles £UR 380m Fr23 099"
Intanglbte impeirment - 59 . . . . _ .
\FRS 16 depreciation P e The Group is proactive in managing its currency Given the potential impact of commodity prices
RS 6 prT—— o) on yegulrerv?ents. The Treasury team works closely on raw rnaterwl costs, the Group may hedge
1FRS 16 reversal of rent expanse. 0 s with senior management to understand the certain input costs, including cotton, crude oil
1FRS 16 reversal of aneraus lease provision (36.6) 15551 Group's plans and forecasts, and discusses and and electricity.
Realised FX loss/(gain) 263 1349) understands gppropriate financial products
Operating income 368 - 25 with various financial institutions, including
SELLING, DISTRISUTION AND ADMINISTRATION COSTS 110 a0y those within the Group Revolving Credit

costs for the of m

Group

9

it reporting:

i.  Excludes depreciation, amortisation and impairments of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and realised FX gains and losses; and

Includes other operating income.

19

Facility (RCF). This information is then used to
implement suitable currency products to align
with the Group's strategy.

. Regular reviews of the hedging performance

are performed by the Treasury team alongside
senior to ensure the inued
appropriateness of the currency hedging in
place, and where suitable, either implementing
additional strategies and / or restructure
existing approaches in conjunction with our
financial institution partners.

Printed on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new Briish woodiand across the UK
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Taxation

The effective tax rate on profit before tax in FY21 was 1017.6% (FY20: 29.6%). This reflects the impact
of the increase in property impairments and disallowable depreciation.

Earnings
52 wesks endad-
26 April 2020 Change (%)
Reported EPS {Basic) 185 1189.2)
Underlying EPS {Basic] 162 12049)
Welghted average number of shares .an:cc 501,955,281 505,826,890

Basic earnings per share {(EPS) is calculated by
dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary
shareholders by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial period. Shares held in Treasury and
the Employee Benefit Trust are excluded from
this figure.

“The underlying basic EPS reflects the underlying performance

of the business compared with the prior period and is calculated

using the weighted average number of shases, It is not a recognised

profit meosure under IFRS and may not be directly comparable with *

"odjusted" performance measuros used by other companies. Further
details can be found in the Glossary.

Dividends

The Board has decided not to pay o final
dividend in relation to FY21 {(FY20 £nil).

The Board remains of the opinion that it is

in the best interests of the Group and its
shareholders to preserve financial flexibility and
facilitate future investments and other growth
opportunities. The payment of dividends
remains.under review,

Capital Expenditure

During the period, gross capital expenditure
(excluding IFRS 16) amounted to £219.4m (FY20:
£323.5m), which included £84.3m on freehold
properties (FY20: £177.2m} and £48.5m on
warehouse automation (FY20: £31.1m).

20

Strategic Investments

The Group continues to hold various strategic
investments as detailed in Note 20. In addition
the Group also holds indirect strategic
investments within contracts for Q_mmﬂm:nm and
options. .

The fair values of the contracts for difference
dnd options are recognised in Derivative
Financial Assets or Liabilities on the Group
Balance Sheet, with the movement in fair value
recorded in the Income Statement.

Acquisitions

On 22 August 2020, the Group acquired

the trade and assets of DW Sports for cash
consideration of £37.0m which is deemed to

be the fair value of the consideration. The
acquisition complements the Group's existing
gym and fitness club portfolio’and is consistent
with the Group's elevation strategy. Goodwill
represents the premium associated with
advantageous site locations, potential growth
opportunities offered by economies of scale,
and the assembled workforce. The fair value
adjustment to property, plant and equipment
relates to the management's assessment of the
price that would be paid for the acquired assets
in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the acquisition date. The leases
were acquired under short-term licences and
therefore no right-of-use asset or lease liability
has been recognised on acquisition.

During the year the Group acquired the entire
share capital of Psyche Holdings Limited,

the entire share capital of GRMNT Limited,
and the trade and assets of 18 Montrose for
consideration of £2.7m. These acquisitions
will provide increased product offerings in

the Premium Lifestyle division. The fair value
adjustment to property, plant and equipment
relates to the recognition of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities.

Related Parties

MM Prop Consultancy Limited, a company
owned and controlled by Michael Murray, who
is a member of key management personnel
as per IAS 24, continues to provide property
consultancy services to the Group. MM Prop
Consultancy Limited is primarily tasked with
finding and negotiating the acquisition of new
sites in the UK, Europe and Rest of the World
for both our larger format stores and our
combined retail and gym units. It also provides
advice to the Company's in-hcuse property
team in relation to existing sites in the UK,
Europe and Rest of the World.

In'the year all properties are assessed. Those
that are considered by the Group's independent
Non-executive Directors to have completed
development and be eligible for review at the
year-end are assessed and if required valued by
an independent valuer who confirms the value -
created by MM Prop Consultancy Limited. The
Group's independent Non-executive Directors
then review and agree the value created and
have full discretion to approve a payment to
MM Prop Consultancy Limited of up to 25% of

_ the value created. There is a current pipeline of

‘

properties that may be eligible to be assessed
both positively and negatively by the Group's
Non-executive Directors in future years.

In the current year £2.5m has been accrued
based on 25% of the value created on two
properties where the gain has crystallised
through contract exchange or completion

of sale (FY20 - £nil provided and Enil paid,
MM Prop Consultancy Limited wos last paid
in relation to FY19). This is payable to MM
Prop Consultancy Limited and agreed by the
independent Non-Executive Directors.

During thé period the Group entered into an
agreement with M.P.M Elevation Limited, a
company owned and controlled by Michael
Murray in relation to elevation strategy services.
M.P.M Elevation Limited will be paid en annual
fee of £0.1m in relation to the provision of the
elevation strategy services,

Other related parties are disclosed in note 34.

" Cash Flow And Net Debt

Net debt decreased by £117.1m from £366.0m
at 26 April 2020 to £248.9m at 25 April

2021. Interest on bank loans and overdrafts
decreased to £11.2m (FY20: £17.8m) largely due
to reduced usage of the RCF in the period.

The analysis of net debt at 25 April 2021 and at 26 April 2020 was as follows:

25 April 2020 26 April 2020

{&m) {Em)

Cash and cash equivalents 457.0 ! 5340
Borrowings (705.9) 1900.0)
(248.9) (366.0)

NET DEBT

The Group's Working Capital Facility is £913.5m (FY20: £913.5m). It is available until November

2021 and is not secured against any of the m_.o:nm assets. £847.5m of the fa

November 2022,

y is due to expire in

The Group continues to operate well within its banking covenants and the Board remains
comfortable with the Group's available headroom. Note: due to the timing of payroll and supplier
payments, net debt at calendar period end 30 April 2021 was approximately £350.0m :u<~o

approximately £408.0m).

Printed on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Gaptuied through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new British woodland across the UK
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CASH FLOW

Total movement is as follows:

FRASERS GROUP

Receivables includes a £118.3m reimbursement osset in relation to the Group's ongoing non-UK
tax enquiries (FY20: £118.3m) and £131.0m relating to deposits in respect of derivative financial
instruments {FY20: £71.3m) with the increase mainly relating to Hugo Boss.

Lease liabilities

The maijority of the decrease in property, plont and equipment relates to the impairments of free}!cld
land and building and plant and equipment due to the Covid-19 pandemic and factors such as

changes in consumer behaviour.

IFRS 16 right of use assets have decreased largely due to impairments. Lease liabilities have

increased largely due to remeasurements during the period,

Long-term financicl assets have increased during the period due to the additions of Hugo Boss AG

and Mulberry Group plc.

Inventory has decreased largely due to o reducl}on in inventories held within the Rest of World

segment.

21

S2wasks ended Shwaaks ended :
38 April 2021 36 Aprt 2020 Provisions have increased mainly due to an increase in property provisions os a result of the Covid-19
fml? tem) pandemic.
3908 3021 N
Realised FX lloss) / goin 263) 348 Payables have increased largely due to rent payments under negotiation as a result of the Covid-19
Taxes paid (5931 tas.5) pandemic. . .
Movement in Inventory 993 12081 :
Working capital and ather 23 955
UNDERLYING FREE CASH FLOW AFTER WORKING CAPITAL ans 631 COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
INVESTED IN: 1t balance sheet items are shown below:
Purchase of own shares ta3) 139) . :

- Dividend poid to non- interest 031 - 23 aprit 2021 26 apdi 2020
Purchase of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired (9. (73} (] temi
Purchose of listod investments ma.a) (248 Investments 14949 _wss
Purchose of intangibles _ 110} - Debtors 1666 868
Purchaso of assoclatas - 1561 Credit ling due within one yaor 1609.0) 50151
Proceeds on dispasal of investments and derivatives 551 29 N . . e y . L
Proceas on disperalof angible: s - relates to in and long financial assets. The majority of the
‘Net copttol axpanditura o) ol increase relates to due to g r of our US and purchases of physical
P—— ) - shares in Mulberry Group plc and Hugo Boss AG.

';‘f‘“"‘"‘“"“”"‘ ”“':: - - 1:': l:: The majority of the movement in debtors relates to an increase in collateral to cover margin

iance income receivad less inance costs poid Y . Hpte N - N .

— ot po £08) N requirements for derivative transactions held with counterparties.

DECREASE (N NEY DEBT 1 - us

{1} This tablo excludes the impoct of IFRS16. Creditors relates to amounts owed to Group undertakings, the decrease relates to subsidiary

’ dividends declared during the period.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET .
Significant balance sheet items are shown below: Chris Wootton
. p— 2682020 Chief Firiancial Officer
— — pm) S August 2021

Property. plant and equipment sisz 19419 X
Right of use assots 2097 3057 :

~Long-term financlal assets 2633 84

Inventory - 10966 11983 ,
Trade and other rocaivables se65 a2
Provisions G612} - (3360) R
Trade and other poyables “646.3) 1602.5)
o (6267)
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'NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The table below sets out where the information required by sections 414CA and 414CB of the
Companies Act 2006 can be found in this Annual Report.

WORKERS' REPRESENTATIVE REPORT

I have now been the Workers' Representative
and Non-executive Director for over two
years. The role has been challenging given the

Requinemant Location Rolavant Policies
Matters = pages 261027 i

‘ "~ on Staft Hondboak Employee Data

Employees S OuRCES - page2) Piivacy Statement

STAFF INVOLVEMENT - page 62

Social Matters”

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT - poge 25

Acceptoble Use Palicy

Human Rights

SUPPLY CHAIN - page 25
MODERN SLAVERY ACT 2015 - poge 25

Anii-Bribery & Conuptien policy

ANTH-BRIBERY & CORRUPTION - page 25
WHISTLEBLOWING - poge 25

Anti-Stovery and Human Trafficking
alicy

Stafl Handbook Anti-Bribery &
Carruption policy

Whistleblowing Policy

Code of Conduct / Supply Policy

Businoss Model

BUSINESS MODEL - paga 10

Principot Risks and Business Activity
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of the Covid-19 pandemic. However,
it is immensely rewarding and | remain proud
to.be representing my colleagues at Frosers
Group. .

With the continuous lockdowns and the
uncertainty the Covid-19 pandemic has brought
during the post year to the Group, protecting
our colleague’s wellbeing and maintaining
consistent, transparent communication have
been vital. | continue to have full control and

. and places its people at the forefront of any

successes.

This year, despite the shift to working virtually,

| remain fully involved in all Board and strategy
meetings, giving fresh insights and perspectives
on decision making, and my relationship with
the other Board members has gone from )
strength to strength. I continue to be involve

in all decisions and dence di
safe systems of work to maintain good Covid-19
practices at our warehouse, offices and stores.

Whilst we navigate the year éheud and the
hall it will undoubtedly bring, | hope |

ownership of a confidential whi ing
hotline for retail colleagues, as well as the staff
welfare portal, where every colleague has the
opportunity to anonymously raise any concerns
or queries that they may have. | operate with
complete transparency and any findings from
these platforms are shared with the rest of
Board.

As port of my role as the Workers

ive, | have collaborated with our
Training team and the Retait Trust to safeguard
the wellbeing of our colleagues. Using the
most frequently asked questions from the
stoff portal, the Retail Trust's psychologists
and counsellors have used their expertise to
answer our colleague queries. We have run
regular webinars and discussed financial
support, emotional support and coping
mechanisms for all Frasers colleagues during
the Covid-19 pandemic. Each webinar was
recorded and made available across all of our
communication platforms.

Furthermore, | am pleased to confirm that
despite the evident challenges thot the
Covid-19 pandemic has brought, we are
currently implementing pay reviews for our
retail teams, demonstrating the value and

faith we place in our people. In addition to this,
we have launched our ‘Fearless 1000" bonus
scheme where some of our colleagues have

the potential to be rewarded with life-changing
bonuses. | om proud to represent my colleagues
and a.business that rewards its people so highly

P,rir!ted on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured lhrough the Woodland Trust. heiping to create new BmiQx woodland across the UK

can continue to make a positive difference at
Board level to ensure that our people continue

. to be at the'heart of all business decisions, and

to help drive our Elevation No Limits strategy
forward. .
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ESG REPORT

Our People

We employ more than 25,000 people across
the Group. Despite the challenges raised by the
Covid-19 pandemic, during FY21 we continued
to enhance many aspects of how we manage
our people, to ensure that those who work

hard and want to be challenged can excel and
quickly progress within Frasers Group.

Cuiture And Values

Having the right culture is critical to sustainable
business success. We want our colleagues to
feel valued and engoged, and to have o culture
that helps us to attract, retain and develop
talent to create our future leaders.

This year, we worked with a specialist
consultancy to develop an employer value
proposition for the Group. As part of this we
looked to understand how our people perceive
our culture, including our unique strengths

and where we can improve. Interviews with
people at all levels of the business showed

that we have a culture of acting fost and
without hesitation, and where people rise to the
challenge and are valued for their contribution.
We see strength in difference, offer the
potential to progress and develop strong loyalty
among our people.

Areas for improvement included the need for
better communication, more focus on work-life
balance and clear objectives. We have already
begun to address these matters, including i
establishing an internal communications team.
Our "Your Company, Your Voice' portal also
supports engagement and communication,
allowing our people to raise questions and .
concerns with the Workers Representative, with
the responses then published. Other initiatives
this year include our new performance
management process {see below) which
includes objective setting. Following a return to
the office under Covid-19 guidelines, we have
also introduced ‘Frasers Fridays’, so head office
colleagues can request to work from home on
Fridays.
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Drawing on our people’s responses, we have
defined the core values that underpin how we
work. These are:

*  Ownit and back yourself
» Don't hesitate and act with purpose

+  Think without limits and take the team
with you

We have communicated these values across
the Group and use them in our recruitment,
performance management and reward
schemes {see below). We will continue to
embed them going forwards.

The project also enabled us to define our
employer value proposition. For our existing
talent, this is about being trusted to perform.
For future talent, Frasers Group is ‘for the
fearless'’.

Retention

We aim to hire the most talented and capable
individuals across our sector, and to retain their
valuable knowledge and experience within the
Group. During FY21, 29% of our UK salaried
colleagues left the Group which is consistent
with FY20.

Store Manager stability within Sports Direct

is currently sitting at 84%, this is a decrease

of 1% compared to FY20. Assistant Manager

ty currently sits at 87%, an increase of
2% compared to FY20. Footwear Manager
stability currently sits at 94%, an increase of 6%
compared to FY20.

A significant proportion of our people have
been furloughed at various times in FY21, in
particular when store closures have been
mandated. Use of the furlough scheme hos
enabled us to retain people within the business,
while accessing Government support when our
stores have not been able to trade.

Diversity And Inclusion

We believe diversity plays an important role
in a successful business. We strive to ensure
that our people reflect the diverse cultures and

’

values of our customer base. We endeavour to
provide equal opportunities, recruit those with
the best skills and capabilities for the role and
to ensure that training, career development and
promotion opportunities are available to all.
We will not tolerate discrimination on grounds
of gender identity, sexual orientation, race,
nationality, religion, age, disability or any other
grounds.

We endeavour to meet our responsib
train and employ disabled people. Applications

for employment by people with any disability
are given full and fair consideration for all
vacancies and are assessed in accordance with
their ski ilities. People who have a first

and abi
language other than English are important to
our business. We provide free English language
lessons, to help them participate and be
successful in our workplace and more broadly
as citizens. Since their introduction in January
2017, 248 colleagues have attended these
classes.

The table below shows the gender diversity of our workforce at the year end. Approximately 53% of
our workforce is female, including 35% of our senior management {FY20: 32% UK workforce). We aim
to ensure that both male and female candidates are provided with equal opportunities to apply for

and work in all positions across the Group.

Fomale Mals
Directors T, C25% 75%
Other senior managers i 35% 65%
Other employees 53% 7%

Gender Pay Gap

Our gender pay gap report for 2020 was
published in August 2021. We are pleased to
report that we have maintained a 0% average
gender pay gap across the Group over the
past three years compared to 6.3% in 2017.
We attribute this change to a continued focus
on reviewing and applying our pay structures
consistently across the business. We recognise
there is a difference in total earnings between
female and male colleagues. We are therefore
continuing to explore and implement methods
that will éstablish enhanced processes and
training tools for our employees and engaged
workers to achieve maximum earning potential
through our various bonus and commission
schemes. :

Talent And Capability Development

We invest without limit in people who show the
potential to be future managers and leaders,
and who can drive the elevation strategy.
Home-grown talent is key to us and many of
our management and senior positions are
through internal promotions.

To inspire our home-grown talent, we offer
existing colleagues the chance to take
apprenticeships, including obtaining relevant

Captured through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new Brtish woodland across the UK

external qualifications. Over 100 colleagues
have started apprenticeships since May 2020,
learning about topics such as customer service,
HR, finance, IT, warehouse management and
various levels of retail management. We have
also recruited new people into apprentice
positions within IT and are looking at extending
this to other areas of the business.

We ran our first early careers programme for

_graduates this year, with 27 people joining -

our commercial function through the Frasers
Group Elevation Programme. This two-year
programme will create the future leaders for
that part of the organisation and enable the
highest performing participants to earn up to

. £80,000 in their second year or to enter other

areas across the commercial team. The trainee
commercial managers (TCMs) started with an
intensive three-week orientation, covering the
Group's purpose, strategy and culture as well
as all aspects of the commercial division and
the essential skills required. The TCMs also took
part in a three-day business simulation, to learn
how their decisions affect other areas of the
business. :

The 2020 intake also has a dedicated Early
Careers Manager who is responsible for their
learning and development, running frequent

.
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professional coaching and mentoring sessions
to ensure they are getting the most out of the
programme and supporting them in all areas
of the role. The Early Careers Manager also
supports the entire commercial team to ensure
the programme runs effectively. The Frasers
Team has been on hand to shift the structure *
and scope of the programme to fit in with the
business'’s strategy throughout the Covid-19
pandemic and make sure all the relevant
learning needs are accounted for. A second
cohort of people will join us in September 2021
and we will look to recruit for other parts of
the Group in future. We also continue to run
placement years for undergraduates, primarily
within [T,

Managing performance is essential for
identifying key talent and helping our
colleagues to achieve their growth potential.
We have therefore introduced our Fearless
Focus performance reviews which went live

for head office colleagues in March 2021 and
will be rolled out across the business. We have
ed competencies against which to judge
performance and will also assess behaviours
against the values described above. Each
function's objectives will filter down to the
objectives for individuals and provide clear
expectations about performance. We will also
generate development plans, so colleagues
can improve in their current roles or fulfil their
aspirations to progress, in conjunction with our
succession planning.

L ing And Devel t

Ensuring our teams have the knowledge

they need to perform at the highest level is
paramount to the continued success of the
business. While we have had to adapt our
approach to learning and development during
the Covid-19 pandemic, we are looking forward
to resuming regular in-person training when
possible, as part of a blended approach. Our
Shirebrook training centre is state of the art and
is supported by our brand partners Nike, Puma
and Adidas who have their own environments
in the campus. The facilities offer an unrivalled
training environment, which alongside the
Shirebrook store, give colleagues the perfect
mix of classroom and on-the-job training.
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We offer a varied portfolio of training options
for our teams. The training and development
portfolio continues to grow and includes brand
and product knowledge, customer service,
management training and induction, as well
as our apprenticeship courses and free English
lessons.

In FY21, we started to develop asnew learning
management system (LMS) on Netex's Learning
Cloud platform. This went live to selective
groups in early 2021 with the aim to roll out to
all UK employees by the end of the calendar
year. Learning Cloud is industry leading in size
and scope, showing the importance we place
on the continued learnings of our colleagues.

It contains a blend of interactive e-learning
modules, videos and documents on specific
skills and capabilities, as well as allowing us

to create bespoke content and digital events.
The system will give managers the option to
recommend further training to their teams

and to report on engagement, which wi
allow us to understand the uptake of training
and to monitor completion of any mandatory
courses. Learning Cloud is easily accessible

and is compatible with PC's, laptops, tablets
and mobile phones, giving every employee the
option of how they wish to absorb their training.

While the Covid-19 pandemic has reduced
the opportunity for face-to-face training, we
have stepped up the use of online platforms.
This has included our Fearless Fortnights,
where we record a webinar every two weeks
on a specific topic. Examples include webinars
on performance reviews and on improving
communication skills. .

Remuneration And Reward

We foster a reward-based culture that enables
our colleagues to share in the Group's success.
In the UK, our policy is to pay above the
National Minimum Wage, including rates that
are above the National Living Wage for people
aged over 25. We offer bonus schemes and
incentives depending on the role and the fascia,
and colleagues receive discounts across all
fascias. )

The Fearless 1000 incentive scheme aligns the
interests of our people and our shareholders.
Colleagues can be awarded points for

their performance by leaders across the
organisation, including for living our values. The
scheme runs for four years and if a £10 share
price target is reached for 30 consecutive days,
result in an award of shares or a cash
equivalent for the top 1,000 people, with the top
ten receiving an award equivalent to £1m at a
share price of £10 on vesting. The scheme also
includes a cash.reward for all other colleagues
outside of the top 1,000 people based on their
length of service with the Group.

We have also introduced the Frasers
Champions recognition scheme, which allows
people to nominate colleagues for an award
for demonstrating our values. The strongest
nominations each month are championed
across the business and receive an additional
month's pay. As at April 2021, 72 people had
received an award. .

In addition; the introduction of the Fearless
Focus performance reviews described above
will support the move to a more structured ond
robust performance-related pay review process.

Casual Workers

We strive to ensure our arrangements for casual
staff are fair and equitable. All casual workers
are paid the same rates as full-time employees
in the same role. We promote stability in
working hours, while our casual workers also
benefit from the fle: ity to decline shifts at
any time. This flexibility also benefits the Group,
enabling us to adjust staffing levels to cope with
peak times and quieter periods.

Casual workers are also included in the Fearless
1,000 bonus scheme,

Health And Safety

As the Group grows, we have continued to
increase our focus on consistently implementing
health and safety measures and evaluating our

. safety performance. We implement our polices,

in conjunction with legal standards, to protect
our colleagues and customers.

During the year, the Group introduced a
new improvement team, responsible for
enhancing the efficiency and effectiveness
of our operations at Shirebrook. This team
is reviewing all processes across the site and
pulling together contributions from different
teams, including health and safety. This has
the potential to further improve our safety
performance at Shirebrook.

In FY20 we ::..u_m_.:m:wm& a new accident

and incident reporting system, replacing
paper-based reporting with an online system
accessible from all our stores and businesses.
We are now reviewing the potential to
implement a more integrated system, which
will link to claims and capture the information
required by our insurers.

Appropriate health and safety training is vital

and we have focused this year on training the
store management teams. This training covers
all aspects of in-store safety, from testing

fire alarms to carrying out evacuations and
reporting incidents. The Covid-19 pandemic has
limited the number of people who have been
able to take this training in FY21 and we are
looking to introduce a digital format to speed
up the roll-out and make the training more
engaging. :

The majority of in-store health and safety
incidents relate to customer trips and falls. The
elevation programme is helping to reduce this,
by providing more space in store aisles and an
elevated shopping experience.

Health And Safety Performance

All RIDDOR incidents are recorded and are
reportable to the local authority. The health
and safety team meet the Derbyshire local
authority with responsibility for Shirebrook on
a quarterly basis and work closely with other
authorities when required. All accidénts and
incidents are investigated ina timely manner
and warehouse RIDDOR incidents are reviewed
during these meetings.

During FY21 there were no fire, local authority
or environmental enforcement actions or
prosecutions and no work related fatalities.

1_.___;3 on Steinbeis 100°, Recycled and Carbon Captured thruugh the Woodtand Trust. helping to create new Brtish woodland across the UK
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Wellbeing

Colleague wellbeing is always a focus for

us and has become even more important
during the Covid-19 pandemic. We continue
to partner with Retail Trust, which provides

all Frasers Group colleagues with access

to free and confidential wellbeing support.
Retail Trust offers advice, financial assistance,
face-to-face and telephone counselling,
cognitive behavi | therapy, non-rep
grants, career development support, legal
guidance and on-site critical incident support.
The helpline is available 24 hours a day, seven
days o week.

To erisure our people know what support is
available through Retail Trust, we have elevated
our communications during the Covid-19
pandemic. This has included webinars and
education sessions for managers, so they are
aware of what is available, os well as social
media messaging and other communications
for colleagues. This has resulted in a noticeable
uplift in use of the Retail Trust service.

Human Rights And Modern Slavery

We are committed to respect and equal
treatment for all people.

We recognise that modern slavery is an
ongoing challenge for organisations, especially
those decling in consumer goods, and we
remain committed to addressing this risk.
Ultimately, we strive to ensure that no slavery
or human trafficking takes place within our
business or supply chain. We have policies in
place aimed at proactively identifying and
mitigating these risks. These policies aim to
send a clear message that we do not tolerate -~
these practices.

We have a range of tools in place inctuding
videos and literature to educate colleagues
about their rights and a number of
communication channels, including an internal
telephone hotline and ccmmenls boxes on site,
for reporting any feedback or Anyone
making a report can remain anonymous if they
choose. We also continue to review and develop

bodies, including the Gangmasters and Labour
Abuse Authority and the police, to support our
training and knowledge.

If we-find, or suspect, that any organisations or
individuals are participating in modern slavery
we will take immediate action. Accordingly,

we hove a policy of reporting any suspicious.
activity to the police, which has historically
assisted in successful convictions. Our s54

Modern Slavery Act statement can be found on

our website www.frasers.group.

Developing Our HR Function And People
Policies

We are investing in the structure and capabitity
of our HR function, to enable it to effectively
support the Group as it continues to grow.

As part of this, we are reviewing our people
policies and the way that they govern our
people’s beh . as well as the approprit
mechanisms we need to have in place to
ensure compliance. This will allow us to take

@ more preventative approach toinstances of
non-compliance.

Our main focus for policies under review
includes attendance management, maternity/
paternity/parental leave, performance
capability and redundancy. A significant and
positive change will be the maternity policy
for our casual workers where they will remain
engaged with us throughout thejr maternity
leave period.

Community And Charity

We are committed to engaging with the local
and wider communities around our stores and
our offices in London and Shirebrook, and we
@im to minimise any detrimental impact on
them.

Our Sports Directory subsidiary hos been a
specialist supplier of sports equipment to the
education sector for over 25 years, and port of
the Frasers Group since 2016. Sports Directory
plays a key role in giving back to schools in
the UK and helping to keep our young people
fit and healthy, often giving children their

first experience of team sports. Through its

our colleague training,
and evaluation of outcomes, and work with
our employment agencies and ather relevant
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‘My School’ scheme, schools purchase sports
equipment from the business and Sports

Directory gives them the opportunity to claim
a voucher worth 25% of every purchase. To
date, Sports Directory has issued over 42,000
vouchers to UK schools, which equates to
more than £3.2 million worth of free sports
equlpment Sports Directory has also, via the
P baller's A iation, donated
free gqulpment to 72 football league clubs.

In addition to Sports Directory, we support the
development of grass roots talent in tennis via
Slazenger. We have donated over £350,000 of
tennis equipment to schoals and tennis clubs
via the Slazenger Academy. The Academy is
supported by Tim Henman, as well as the All
England Tennis Club.

Closer to the Shirebrook campus, we donated
winter clothing to Nottinghamshire YMCA,
which was distributed to homeless people in
the local community. Store managers olso *
contribute to their local communities. An
example of this is in Aberdeen, where the store
has in previous years worked alongside a local
hospital to donate presents to the staff. Due to
the Covid-19 pandemic, this was not possible
this year, so instead the store donated to a local
food bank.

Frasers has also worked on a number of
initiatives to empower women in sport. The,
highlights of this include working with Women
in Sport to supply kit for their 'Duughters and
Dads" programme, which encourages girls to
play more sport. The Group also sponsored
the “Driving Force" series on Sky Sports that
highlights the challenges faced by elite
sportswomen.

As discussed in the Chair's statement, on 15
June 2020, in England, we offered a 50%
discount to all NHS staff in our Sports Direct
stores as a gesture of goodwill to these
fantastic individuals as our stores re-opened; it
was an overwhelming success with gross sales
of approximately £50m before discount and *
approximately £25m after discount.

Prinlled on Steinbeis 100°% Recycied and Carbon Captured through the Woodtand Trust. helping to create new British woodiand across the UK

Anti-Bribery And Corruption

The Group has an Anti-Bribery and Corruption
Policy in place, which was originally created
following the introduction of the UK Bribery
Act. As a result of the Act, all policies and
procedures were reviewed to ensure compliance
measures were put in place to mitigate staff
being offered and / or accepting bribes. We
have a zero-tolerance approach to bribery and
corruption at Frasers Group, and we encourage
our people to speak-up if they have concerns
that bribery or fraud is taking place. No
instances of bribery, corruption or fraud have
been reported during FY21, '

Due to the number of acquisitions into the
Group since 2018, the Group is reviewing policy
to ensure that the policy remains effective.
The revised policy will be subject to Audit
Committee oversight.

Whistleblowing

The Group has an approved whistleblowing
policy ond a number of processes operate
which support our policy including Your
Company Your Voice, our Retail Support Unit
Asset Protection hotline as well as a dedicated

* whistleblowing e-mail address.

A policy review ond revision process is ongoing.
The updated whistleblowing policy and related
processes will be subject to Audit Committee
reporting, approval and oversnght onan
ongoing basls
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ENVIRONMENT

We recognise that supporting and protecting
the environment is important to our
stakeholders and to the future success of our
business. We therefore look to be proactive

in making a positive contribution to the
environment, including through reducing

our energy use and greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions, minimising waste, maximising
recycling ond considering how we can make our
products more sustainable.

Frasers Group welcomes the introduction of
the Taskforce for Climate-related Financial

iscl {TCFD). We ur d thisis
an important step in tackling global climate
change and we look forward to sharing our first
full disclosure in next year's Annual Report. As
part of this process we have engaged external
advisers to carry out a gap analysis to ensure
we are in a strong position to meet these
requirements. There is more to do and we have
already begun identifying opportunities and
risks around climate change and are using
these findings to inform future strategy.

Embedding Sustainability

During FY21, we formalised our approach

to sustainability in a number of ways. This
included creating a dedicated sustainability
function, which has been seeking out and
implementing projects that are beneficial to the
Group and the environment. .

Towards the end of the 2020 calendar year, we
formed a network of S inability Ck i

experts in retail, procurement, design, legal,

HR and finance. The Steering Group set the
Group's sustainability strategy and monitor our
progress, as part of our wider ESG approach.
This will enable us to take a more strategic
approach to environmental matters in the years
ahead.

Training for our Sustainability Champions has
been delayed-due to the Covid-19 pandemic
but will take place as soon as practicable.
We intend to run workshops, bring in external
speakers and provide an opportunity for our
Champions to share good practice and learn
from each other.

Enhancing Energy Efficiency

The sustainability team's primary focus in the
year was on reducing energy use and GHG
emissions, primarily through behavioural
changes and best practice. The vast majority of
our sites have smart meters, giving us live and
accurate data which is fed into a monitoring
and alerts system. This allows us to take action
when usage issues are identified.

We continue to comply with the UK
Government's Streamlined Energy and Carbon
Reporting (SECR) and have identified key creas
where we can make further energy reductions,
in particular energy usage in our stores and
efficient transport and logistics.

Improving the environmental performance
of our store portfolio is a significant focus for
us and presents the greatest opportunity for

under the sponsorship of the CFO. This
reflected our belief that the best way to embed
sustainability across the Group is to take
everyone on the journey with us. All colleagues
were given the opportunity to take part and we
received a significant number of applications
from around the business, demonstrating our
colle ‘ interest in envi | issues.

The Sustainability Champions work within their
own departments, using their unique knowledge
of their day-to-day roles to help make all

areas of the business more sustainable. They
feed back to the newly formed Steering

Group, which hos representatives from senior
manag nt and key dep: 3 in:lusjing
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costs savings. For example, LED
light replacements resulted in a 52% energy
reduction and rapid payback on their upfront
cost. All new light fittings are now LED and we
are rolling out o programme of LED lighting
upgrades at a rate of two stores a week. We
have also upgraded the external lighting at
Shirebrook to LED.

We have trialled replacing overhead door
heaters in stores with infrared heaters, which
are much more energy efficient. In our
Mansfield store trial, for example, we replaced .
three 12kw blow heaters with a single 3kw
infrared heater. However, store closures due to
the Covid-19 pandemic halted these trials ond
we are awaiting more data and feedback from

store colleagues on the heaters’ effectiveness,
before planning a full roll out.

In addition, we carried out desktop studies of
the feasibility of replacing air itioning units
in our stores with more efficient units. While
these studies showed that retrofitting stores

is not cost effective, particularly for leasehold
premises, we are using more efficient units

in new stores. We will continue to review the
practicality of replacing existing units, ot least
annually.

In support of the transition to a low-carbon
economy, we have installed 18 electric vehicle
chargers at several points cround our head
office which are provided at cost to colleagues.

Excluding acquisitions during the year the
electricity supplied to all of our stores and
gyms is from 100% renewable sources. Our
hirebrook distribution centre el is from
a local independent power supplier, which
supports the grid during the transition to a
green network and a zero-carbon economy.

Transport

The Group's truck fleet all meet the Euro
6 standard and we use an engine fuel
additive to further reduce emissions. By using
iner optimisation, which imises the
amount we can get into a container, we save
approximately 0.6315 tonnes of carbon per
forty foot container. Therefore, since 2013, we
have cut our impact by approxi

Waste And Recycling

Reducing waste ond maximising reeycling is
another important area of focus for us and we
have a target to send zero waste to landfill from
our UK operations by 2025. We are planning to
look at targets for the rest of the world once our
UK waste streams are managed os efficiently as
possible. .

Our approach to managing each of our waste
streams is set out below.

Cardboard

Sorting our recycling into different streams at
our Shirebrook warehouse allows us to facilitate
the recycling of approximately 95% of our
cardboard.

We are a AAA producer of cardboard waste,
which means that we produce clean, high
density bales of a consistent quality. This
attracts a high buy-back price and ensures we
are a preferred supplier when demand is low.

"90% of our cardboard is reprocessed in mills in

the UK by our recycling partner who we work
closely with to constantly improve recycling
rates. On average, we recycle around 900
tonnes of cardboard each month.

Paper

All office paper is made from Steinbeis recycled
paper in partnership with the Woodland
Trust and recycled after use. From January to

26,473 tonnes of carbon. That is equivalent to
31,478,002 kilometres of lorry travel'or 787 times
around the world,

We work with our factories and third-party
brands to optimise our container space and
reduce the number of containers shipped, to
avoid fuel waste caused by ‘shipping air'. Our
freight forwarders continue to work hard to
condense shipping and to compare the impact
of different transport modes, such ‘as rail or
road.

All parcels we send to customers via DPD are
corbon neutral and we receive a certificate
each quarter settin~~g out the GHG emission
savings as a result. During the year we sent
56,572 parcels via DPD, saving 24,275kg of CO2,
the equivalent to planting 93 trees.

Pm!ted on Steinbeis 100> Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodtand Trust. helping to create new Briish woodland across the UK

D ber 2021, the partnership has created
3,363.36m” of new native woodland in the UK to
remove 130,494kg of carbon dioxide.

Plastic

We have a separate baling operation

for plastic, which eliminates end-of-bale
contamination. The plastic we produce on
site is high grade, making it very suitable for
recycling. Office plastics are also separated at
source and recycled.

We aim to reduce single-use plastic within

the business as far as possible, such as tags,
pallet straps and packaging bags. We are
working hard to identify the 'hotspots’ we need
to address first and actively procure more
sustainable alternatives.
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Electrical Waste

IT waste is disposed of by a s;;eciulisk
contractor who also cleans any hard drives of
sensitive information where required.

The majority of electrical waste we generate
is light bulbs and tubes which are loaded into
waste containers provided by Electrical Woste

" Ltd and exchanged os required.

Fridges and freezers are collected by the
supplier, as required.

Occasional appliance waste is put in the scrap
metal bins for recycling.

Metal

We recycle scrap metal from Shirebrook and
our stores through a partnership with two local
companies. We are now sorting different grades
where possible, to facilitate a faster and more
efficient process.

General Waste
Every month, around 105 tonnes of d|

Recycling Performance

In FY21, we recycled 86% of the waste we
generated at our Shirebrook distribution centre
(FY20: 88%). This included:

* 6,418 tonnes of cardboard (FY20: 12,358
tonnes}

* 30 tonnes of waste paper (FY20: 27 tonnes)

» 285 tonnes of plastic (FY20: 623 tonnes)

_* 771 tonnes of metal (FY20: 778 tonnes)

* 3,227 units of electrical equipment (FY20:
5,051 units)

In FY21, we separated and directly recycled
7,558 tonnes (86%) of materials. A further 1,241
tonnes (14%) of mixed waste was collected by
specialised recyclers. : .

This compares to FY20 where we separated
and directly recycled 10,200 tonnes (88%) of
materials and sent away o further 1,517 tonnes
(12%) of mixed waste to specialised recyclers.

.The recycling rate has stayed broadly

mixed recycling (non-sorted recyclables /

consi: year on year but the absolute

general waste) are baled from our Shirebrook
distribution centre. Once baled, the waste is
sent to a third party for recycling at cost to us.
This has reduced by approximately 45 tonnes
per month from last year, partly due to the
Covid-19 pandemic and portly due to bettér
separation of waste which ensures we can sell
more of our own recycling.

Recycling Initiatives In FY21

We continue to work on reducing waste and -
increasing recycling. During the year, we have
communicated to all colleagues that our
expectation is for waste to be recycled. We
have supported this by replacing individual
bins at desks with recycling bins in offices to
sort waste at source. Food wastt is also now
recycled. We are trialling waste segregation in
store, to further increase our recycling rates.
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quantity of waste produced and recycled this
yeor is down significantly due to store closures
because of the Covid-19 pandemic. There was
therefore much less stock coming into the
warehouse and no waste coming back from
stores during the country-wide lockdowns.

Product Design And Sourcing

We continue to explore ways to enhance the
sustainability of our products. Carrying out a
"sustainability check’ is now part of the design
and procurement process for all new products
to ensure we use the most sustainable materials
and processes for each line. We review
continuity products annually and refresh them
with @ more sustainable material or process, if o
viable option exists.

+ For FY22, our biggest sustainability project will

be to improve the sustainability of the products
we offer, looking ot water use, chemicals,
carbon emissions and raw material production.

As part of this, we are a founding signatory
of WRAP's (Waste and Resources Action
Programme) Textiles 2030 initiative, which

is designed to accelerate the fashion and
textiles industry's shift towards circularity and
system change. Signatories will collaborate on
carbon, water and circular textile targets, and
contribute to national policy discussions. To
help move our product improvements forward
WRAP provides a scenario planning tool which

‘calculates environmental impacts such os water

and energy saving benefits from swapping
materials or processes. We continue to look

for more recycled content in our products and *
request a recycled content or reduced impact
option with every proposal from suppliers.

Improving Our Packaging

We continue to work to reduce the volume of
packaging for our products and to increase
the recycled content of the packaging that
remains. For example, we use an auto-boxing
machine that cuts boxes to the exact size
required, substantially reducing the quantity
of card used. We continue to use 100%
recycled card for all our own-brand shoeboxes.
and all our card for packaging or labelling

is non-laminated, for easier recycling and
plastic reduction. This required substantial
research ond development to get the desired
quolity and appearance, while minimising the
environmental impact. -

The Group has joined the On-Pack Recycling
Label (OPRL) scheme, which ensures UK-wide
adoption of a simple recycling symbol system,
to help increase recycling rates. All the
packaging we have produced since April 2020
has an OPRL symbol assigned and printed on it,
to help consumers dispose of it at home within
the correct waste stream.

Our new Sports Direct bag for life which is
coming in Summer 2021 will have 85% recycled
content, up from 70% recycled content in FY20.
We are also introducing standard Sports Direct
carrier bags made from 100% recycled material
(80% post-consumer waste and 20% factory
waste) later in the year and all fascias with o
plastic carrier will have at least 30% recycled
content. Our plans to roll out these recycled
in-store bags have been deloyed, as we use up
old stock due to store closures because of the
Covid-19 pandemic.
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Frasers stores will have an FSC certified
recycled grass paper bag.

Our in-store hangers are now made from more
than 80% recycled polypropylene, replacing the
virgin plastic hangers we previously used.

Reducing Water Use

Reducing water usage in our estate is a focus
for us. We have begun installing water-saving
Hippo blocks in toilets in our stores and at

the Shirebrook distribution centre. These save
around three litres of water per flush. The
installation in stores is taking place in line with
the annual maintenance rota, meaning cll
stores will be covered within 12 months.

Other Environmenta! Initiatives

The Group is involved in a number of other
environmental initiatives.

Group subsidiory Gul Watersports has teamed
up with the Big Blue Ocean Cleanup (BBOC)
to be its official partner for the next 3 years.
The BBOC mission is to drive positive change
towards clean oceans that support all marine
wildlife and sustainable living.

The Eco boat operated by BBOC will be

“conducting one of the biggest microplastic

surveys in the world by collecting vital
microplastic data using manta nets. The

P data coll d will be ilable to
Governments and groups across the world to
use for policy change. The team wilt also rescue
marine animals that have become trapped in
pollution.

Another huge part of BBOC's work is beach and
river clean ups. It provides equipment to help
volunteers clear beaches and rivers around the
world. :

For Earth Day 2021, we partnered with Trees for
Cities to support its work planting trees in urban
communities and promote the health benefits
of spending time outdoors.

Frasers’ donation allowed it to plant 3,500 trees
on our behalf and supported work to improve
qir quality in school playgrounds, as well as
teaching children to grow vegetables whilst
learning about where their food comes from.
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GREENHOUSE GASlEMISSIONS AND
ENERGY CONSUMPTION

REPORTING PESIOD. 1 Méy 2020 to 30 April 2021

BASELINE YEAR™ Fr20

coNsouDaTION

APPROACH Financial control

All entities and focilities globally, i

Emissions from air

BOUNDARY SUMMARY
erissions.

d or under i
of i

tabe e 1

information with

financiof years, to aid

This excludes consumption from refrigerants
due to the cost of data collection, although
this is expected to be negligible in comparison

consumption is based on the amounts of
electricity purchased through the period, as well

. as heat and steam the Group generates for its

to the Group's total consumption. Scope 2 own use.
Year - P [ac)
‘Scope 1 consumption (kWh) 95479574 101337897
Scope 2 205,650,446 276618984
Total Scope 1 and 2 ians (kwh) 301130020 956881

The Covid-19 pandemic has brought about significant emission reductions,

The table below shows energy consumption for the UK and UK offshore areas only:

o, financial perfor ting he 10 30 Apiil 2021 which is aligned with firanciol Hear i
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS yoor of Frasers Group. The diffarenca in sissions of these date rangas is cxpected to be negiigibls ‘Scope 1 consumption (Wh! 70342651
ouaeg FACTOROATA  56cRn GHG emission focters covering the period Juy 2019 - July 2020 have been used for ol missions sources. Scopa i 141502626 19547553

Tota! Scape t and 2 ) 220845275 276143250
ASSESSMENT “The footprint s calculated in Gas (GHG)
HETHaROLOGY ;";:"";g SECR ouidance Scope : sed coedation approach. _ Frasers Group is committed to responsible~ refit of lighting to the latest LED technology.
ESTIMATIONS 8% of the 23% of ene d sustainability, which i
<colculoted party pr rgy management and sustainability, which it b n .
" L ) The number of face-to-face meetings with

INTENSITY RATIO Emissions per £m of revenue

 Duetothe impact of Covid-19, the base year chosen for allfuture SECR comparisans is FYZ0 {1st May 2019 to 30th Apr 2020, For the end of March
e i e, . e a2

ond oll of April 2020, there is

6nd predominately the closura of “nonassential retif, removing previous estimates.

The Group has engaged a third-party provider
to assess emissions and energy consumption for

the periods reported in these results.

Scope 1 GHG emissions comprise the emissions
associated with the combustion of fuels and
operation of any facility by the Group. Scope

2 GHG emissions comprise the emissions
associated with electricity consumption by

the Group, as well as emissions from any
generated electricity. The non-UK emission
factors ore those published by IEA and specific
to each country. Scope 3 GHG emissions are
calculated based on the purchased quantities

of commercial fuels, using published emission
factors for the Well to Tank (WTT) impact

and additionally from metered electricity
consumption and published emission factors for
the Transmission & Distribution (T&D) aspect of
the delivered utilities.

CO2 equivalent factors are used, which ensures
we have reported on all of the emission sources
required under the Companies Act 2006
Regulations. Con i iders all
Group companies ond no adjustments have
been made to comparatives for prior periods
for subsidiaries newly acquired in the period.

The Group's CO2 emissions and supporting metrics are detailed in the follgwing table:

Year [ac) Frao
Scope ) CO? emissions (tonnes) 09 20987
Scope 2 CO? emissions {inarket basod) (tonnes) 24260 68162
Scope 3 CO2 amisslans ftonnes) 6359 2550
Tota! Scope 1. 2.and 49298 96699
02 emissions tonnes) / £m tumover 137 264
CO2 emisslons s Tunover index (2020 = 100) 561 100

65.4% of Scope 1and 2 emissions relate to the UK and UK offshore areas.

The table below shows the Group's energy consumption. Scope 1 consumption relates to the
consumption of fuel and consumption from facilities operated by the Group.
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pr the organisation where it
is cost effective to do so.

During the reporting year the Group has
implemented the following energy and carbon
fficiencies across the ion to ensure
that energy consumption and associated

emissions are reduced:

- Each Retail site in the UK has been set a
weekly target for consumption. The actual
consumption versus the Target has been
reported on a weekly basis using the half
hourly data from the previous week, in
a league table format. Any Retail sites
consuming more than target have been

contacted and given guidance on actions to

take to bring consumption down. This hos
been part of a wider project to influerice
behaviour, by communicating the process
of controlling Retail consumption, on a
daily basis. When Frasers Group returns to
“business as usual”, there is an indication

and expectation that consumption will have

reduced by 10% due to the actions taken
during the previous 12 months versus the
FY20 baseline;

- We continue to upgrade fluorescent lighting

to LED. For the Retail sites all opportunities
to replace lighting during a refit were taken
and the resulting consumption has reduced

by c. 52% for those sites that have had a full
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colleagues and suppliers has reduced
through the increased availability of video
conferencing thereby reducing the amount
of travel and further reducing Frasers Group
carbon footprint.

We are Implementing mini Building
Management Systems that are highly
flexible based on common industry
standards and provide excellent energy
savings;

We are using additional submetering within
sites and properties to improve real time
energy consumption and promote granular
in-depth review of facility energy data;
Heating and Ventilations systems are
undergoing triols that include retrofits to
improve energy efficiency; and

We are i voltage optimisation
projects that provide cost effective solutions
and deliver optimised supply voltage.

A number of other energy efficiency measures
are under consideration for implementation
during the next reporting year.
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Environmental Policy

“During FY21, we defined.an environmental

policy for the Group. This sets out our
commitments to;

+ have robust and transparent reporting and
governance of environmental issues c

minimise our carbon dioxide emissions

reduce waste, so we meet our target of zero
waste to landfill by 2025

consider the environmental impact of our
supply chain, and

work with partners to enhance
environmental performance.

The policy will be shared with suppliers along
with our regular terms and provided to new
colleagues upon induction.

Our newly formed Steering Group will ensure
the palicy is implemented as part of business
as usual. This will be supported through regular
tracking and reporting of targets and with

the engagement of o third party energy ond
carbon reduction specialist.

The policy is further supported by our
commitment to initiatives such as WRAP's
‘Textiles 2030 which obliges us to measure and
report our progress annually. .
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The Directors confirm that, during FY21 they:,
consider they have acted ifi good foith, and in
the way that would be most likely to promote
the success of the Group for the benefit of

its members as a whole having regard to the
stakeholders and matters set out in s172(1){a)-{f)
of the Companies Act 2006. -

This statement séts out the matters considered
under each subsection of $172(1) (a)-(F} and
provides cross references to where further
information can be found in the Annual Report.
Details of some key decisions taken have also
been provided.

The Likely Consequences Of Any Decision In
The Long Term

The Directors are mindful that any decisions
they make now can, have possible long-
term consequences. The Directors take into
consideration the strategy, purpose, values
and culture whén making decisions. During
the year the Directors have made decisions
based on Board papers, presentations from
senior executives, information documents,
and discussions with external advisors.

Principal Decision/Steps: During the year
the Board commissioned a report on the
culture’of the Group. The outcome from
this was three key principles, set out below,
which will enhance the Group's journey

in enabling colleagues to implement the
elevation strategy long term.

- Ownitand back yourself;

- Don’t hesitate and act with purpose.

= Think without limits and take the team
with you;

. The Interests Of The Company’s Employees

Details of initiatives and engagement with
our colleagues is set out in the Our people
report and the Directors’ Report.

Principal Decision/Steps: During the year
the Group introduced the Fearless 1000

Pnrlterl oh Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodiand Trust. helping to create new Brilish woodland across the UK

.

Bonus scheme which was approved by

shareholders at the 2020 AGM and the

Frasers Group Elevation Programme to

attract the best talent to the Group.

The Need To Foster The Company's Business
i ips With Suppliers, C

And Others

Details of the Company's business
relationships with suppliers, customers,
regulators and lenders are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report.

Principal Decision/Steps: The Directors have
worked closely with suppliers and banks
during the Covid-19 pandemic to ensure
that the Group remains in the best possible
financial situation. The Elevation No Limits
strategy targets stronger relationships with
key brand partners, and this continues to
be a priority. Enhancements were made

to the retail websites to enhance customer
experience, due to the higher demand

for online purchases during the Covid-19
pandemic.

The Impact Of The Company's Operations
On The Community And The Environment

The ESG report details of the initiatives we
have undertaken in sustainability and the
community.

Principal Decision/Steps: During the year
discounts worth approximately £25 million
were offered to NHS staff working in our.
local communities to recognise their
conitribution in the Covid-19 pandemic. A

_ network of sustainability champions has

been set up across the business together
with a steering group which sets the ESG
strategy and monitors progress. The Board
has also adopted an Environmental Policy
during the year.
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f. The Desirability Of The Company

Maintaining A Reputation For High
Standards Of Business Conduct

At alt times we endeavour to adhere to
strict corporate governance standards.
An external Board evaluation was carried
out during the year covering all aspects
of Board and committee pevformunce

dotions will be reviewed and
appropnate action plans put in place. The
Non-executive Workforce Director is another
method by which we are implementing
good corporate governance. Cally Price
brings colleague queries and concerns
directly to the boardroom for action by the
Board. Further details can be found within
the Workers Representative Report.

. Principal Decision/Steps: Although an

external review is only required once every
three yedrs, the Board has decided to
undertake yearly external reviews. External
advisors have been appointed to review the
Group's policies and ensure they reflect best
practice. Further details can be found within
the External Board Review. *

9. The Need To Act Fairly As Between Members
. Of The Company

All members of the Company hold ordinary

- shares which attach the same rights and

benefits. Shareholders are able to raise
any queries through the Investors Relations
email address. All investor presentations are

. made ovailable on the Group website for

shareholders to access. The AGM allows an
opportunity for all shareholders to attend
and ask questions of the Board. Following
the lifting of Covid-19 restrictions we intend
to revert to an in-person AGM this year. This

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our Risk Management Framework

The Board has overall responsibility for the effectiveness of the Group's systems of risk management
and internal control. These systems are intended to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failing
to achieve business objectives, and they provide ble. but not absol against the
risk of material misstatement or financial loss.

The Audit Committee supports the Board with discharging its resp under a di
authority. The Chief Executive Officer has overall accountability for managing risks in the business,
and his direct reports dre accountable to him for eife:tively managing those risks within their remits.

The Group s risk monagement framework compnses a top-down and bottom-up approach to risk

will altow shy to meet face-to-f
with Directors.

Principal Decision/Steps: The re-
commencement of the shnre buyback

has b i all sh hold
bv |ncreasmg the percentage ownership
held by each investor by reducing the total
number of outstanding shares.
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Principal risks are discussed and agreed by executive
management through the Comphonce & Risk Group and by the Audit Committee on behalf of the
Board. The Board and/or its sub-committees discuss each principal risk ot least annually and receive
presentations and detailed risk reporting from risk owners on a cyclical basis. Risk owners re-evaluate
principal risks in advance of each Compliance & Risk Group discussion. Any changes are reported to
the Audit Committee, as part of our Group Risks Profile reporting: .

The Complmnce & Risk Group provides y bet: i 's ‘.

ilities for risk and internal contmls and the oversight roles of the Audit
Committee and the Board, It facilitates cross-functional discussion and collaboration across principal
risk areas and matters of internal control. It also facilitates horizon scanning and emerging risk
discussions, challenges the appropriateness of internal controls and progresses their effectiveness.
The Compliance & Risk Group's activities are reported formally to the Audit Committee. Our Steering
Groups will also report formally to the Compliance & Risk Group, completmg our governance
structure.
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Our approach to risk management:

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Campliance & Risk Grou

Board ( Audit Committen | Sub-committees
"

Steering Groups

Assessment Of Principal Risks

We have carried out a robust assessment of
our principal and emerging risks in the period
and our principal risks profile remained largely

THREE LINES MODEL

First tine

Secondline

Third fine

MONITORING &
ASSURANCE

COMMUNICATION
& ING

Principal risks are cascaded to operational
teams and central functions for discussion and
action on risk mitigations, as part of operational

. risk management activity. Operational risk
management facilitates the elevation of risks
to the Compliance & Risk Group, for onward
reporting to the Audit Committee. We continue
to elevate our operational risk activity as part
of our risk management roadmap for FY22 and
we have put plans in place to focus on this in
the next period.
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Internal Audi

ASSURANCE

During the period, the Audit Committee, on
behalf of the Board, has:

+ undertaken a full review of the Group risk
register;

*  received ra{pons on the continued
de of the risk nent
framework, including risk appetite
parameters and.internal controls definitions;
and

+ received risk owner presentations, detailed
risk reporting and summary update
reporting on the Group's principal risks
profile, for further discussion and challenge.

The key elements of the Group's internal control

fromework are monitored throughout the year

in this way.

Board Review

The work of the Audit Committee and the
Internal Audit & Risk team has been presented
to the Board for discussion. The Board is

. satisfied that the Group's systems of risk

management and internal control (including
financial, opertitional and compliance controls)
have opercted effectively during the financial
period, up to ond including the date of this

report, and no significant failings of internal ~ + *

control were identified during the period.

The Group is.comniitted to continuously
improving its risk manogement framework and
methodology, in line with regulatory standards
and the Group's elevation strategy.

unch d through the period.

We have continued to respond well to

the challenges presented by the Covid-19
pandemic. The effects of the pandemic on
economies and society at large have been more
prominent than expected. Whilst mandated
restrictions are currently easing, travel is
opening up and the vaccination programme

in the UK continues at pace, new variants
continue to emerge. Uncertainty therefore
remains over the period of time needéd to bring
the Covid-19 pandemic under control. As a
result, this risk remains a key focus for us.

During the period, we have continued to
respond to the pandemic by:

«  prioritising the safety of our people and
customers; .

+ re-aligning our strategic response, to ensure
we are able to serve our customers;

evaluating the strength of our business on
all levels; and

optimising opportunities for growth and
investment, to ensure we are well placed for
the period of economic recovery.

As a result; our operating performance has
remained robust. This risk has therefore been
evaluated through the normal course of
reporting and in our viability statement, rather
than through separate risk disclosure in this
period.

Brexit has presented some challenges to the
Group in respect of administration, planning
‘and logistics, but we do not currently consider
these to be material. Accordingly, our
evaluation of Brexit risk has reduced since

the prior period, though this remains part of

. our ongoing monitoring of broader global

macroeconomic conditions, events or political
factors, We will continue to monitor the full
effect of implementing the UK-EU Trade and
o-operati and the devel
of the trading relationship with the EU.
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Environmental, social and governance
(ESG) issues feature more prominently i
our disclosures. Climate and sustainability
risks have remained an integral part of
our commitment to ESG and our business
operations, but have previously been
incorporated into our broader disclosures

 on corporate and social responsibility. With

increasing regulation and in recognition of the
ial signifi of this risk to
the Group in the future, we have enhanced our
reporting and have included this as a separate
principal risk for greater transparency.

The following risks and mitigations are an
extract from our principal risks profile ond are
not presented in any order of priority. Principal
risks are those which we consider pose a threat
to our business model, future performance,
prospects or reputation. s
Reference To Strategy

Buiilding excellent
relationships with the world’s
best brands

Elevation in our digital

offering

Elevation of our physical
stores

Enablers : People, Training,
Brand, Communication,
Systems, Automation, Data

Risk Trends

1 Increasing

<= Unchanged

‘ Decreasing
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

Strategy

NN -
The Group continues to deliver its elevation strategy, which focuses on the brands we sell, our digital

offering and our physical stores. Our vision is to become the elevated multi-channel platform for
sports, prermum and luxury brands.

We continue to deliver well against all aspects of our strategy, during a challenging operating period.

sk CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

- . The Board d he Group and detoiled
annual reviews, :

- Ou Groupis diverse in terms of geogrophy and prod able

We foil to delives our ‘oppartunities and challenges with agiity, to maximise u(mnvcmka of our strategic amiiions.

strategy efficiently, = We continue to evaluate strotegic brand acquisiions, o provide product and chaice In line with our brand strategy
on a timely the store estate.

basis, or we adopt the

- our
‘wrang strategy, which - Propery " e
impacts our long-term = Wemanitor our p - bosis.
ah, - ouw analysis i
ambition, efficient and effect i
’ - for insig . -
- Ongoing internal and external our strategic dir iing, engagement and
elfective delivery.
’
¢
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Third-party Brand Rélmionships Key Suppliers And Supply Chain Management

m
Key brands, brand suppliers and major manufacturers are central to our business and elevation

strategy. Our strategic acquisitions and business model aim to bring attrocklve brands into the
Group, to support customer demand and choice.

Our supply chain is international and is subject to stringent management of supply chain logistics
and working capital, to ensure the flow of product in line with our strategic ambition..

We have continued to strengthen our brand and supplier relationships during the pandemic,
demonstrating the strength of our business model and strategic periormonce This also supports new

product ilability, in line with our el
RISK. . coNTaOLS
- policy. i hich inned by our
<ommitment to plduzL vt vt comome eestomen
We fai IpS with key d this
tevarage our supplier = Dedicated relationshi and support tuly i
‘ond brand partaer engagement,
v - The ‘ s own-brand products. A Group-owned
to secure the right . vl <t
s o e eness suw»vmm.nmv Torter dversiis st
at the right price ar - continued to secure
quality, and to mast or m.,.ng supple, dun o the depth an ot of ur commercol elatanships.
exceed our customers - > lier Manuol,
s oy agreements ore i place. which help to support an flactive supply chain network,
impact ow slevation - Ouw cwnbrond investment ety
targets, performance and chaice. .,
- long-term grawth. Inftuencer partnerships and brand i i ies for
= Electronic Data Interface {EDI) capability improves our process ¢ Yy igh the

supplier angogement through a dedicoted supplier porta,
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Brexit or Global M

(! ic) Or Political Factors

_.

The global pandemic and Brexit are core aspects of this risk in the period under review. We also

monitor global and national political change on an ongoing basis, for impacts on our strategy and
supplier networks. These are external events and we respond well to those factors we can control.

_The strength of our business and our performance enables us to absorb the broader indirect
,economic impacts associated with this risk, as we have a proven track record of responding with

agility to prioritise

We are

trade and performance and maximise opportunity.

to

and building on opportunities that

ing our prog
support product and brond avoilability through our digital offering and physical stores.

RISk

Foilus (3 antcipote,
evoluate or appropriately
respond to external events
such os Brexit, or broader

- the pande

CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS
Pandamic:
- ive response p with ight and prioitisation.
- ou ing and i wellbeing.
- 3 i i ion, reviow ond
monitoring. !

- i 5 o resutt of mandated periods of lockdown,
~ ovestments in our oreli i 'y suppert our

Eftective supplier and supply chain management optimises working capitaf and leverages and strengthens our
commerciaf relationships.

alobalmacrosconomic. - Effective  cash i i i tiquidity,tong tty and trading
conditians, events portner support. . -
{pandemic) or politicat - i s, with timely
factors, may rsk the - . p through
achi of our - fhreus!
performance targats, X
fimpact our strategic - W cany out an ongoing evituotion of Brexit risk impacts with reporting to the Board,
directlon orlonger-term . yo monitor UK-EU trade i ion of the P
viability, ar result in lost n
greement. E
opportunities for growth, ! . .
- ouw logisics, and the flow of goods supports product
ovailabilky. :
Monitoring of economie and political changa:
- i % with
oversight and Boord reparting.
- iy £ Risk Group hold fisks discusslans, with oversight reporting ta the Audit ~
Committee, .
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Treasury, Liquidity And Credit Risks

N

Short, medium and long-term funding arrangements support our business operations and our ability
to meet our financicl obligations and deliver our strategic ambitions. .

Funding availability remains a principal risk but the overall risk level trended downwards towards the
end of the period, based on our trading performance and strategic delivery through the height of
Whilst revenue has been impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic and prolonged periods
of mondated store closures, we have increased our e-commerce trade, supporting our liquidity
position. We are also prioritising renewal of our working capital facility which matures in November
2022, through strong funder dialogue and engagerment, supported by the Group's robust Business
performance.

Interest rate risks arise on net borrowings. Foreign exchange risk arises from international trading,
future sales and purchases in foreign currency, loans to non-UK subsidiaries and unhedged options

to buy or sell foreign currency. Credit risk arises primarily through our Wholesale and Licensing |
customers and there is some level of counter-party risk exposure, although we do not consider this to
be material. .

RISK CONTROLS AND KITIGATIONS
1 = Our Boord reporting on debt, covenants, funding and cash flow pesitions includes stress testing and extensive
business risk scenaria anclyss,including Braxit, Covid-1, costs.

Failure o oppropriately e roup Tsosury unction manoges iy, rest e nd frign exchange k.

manage our funding and The policy, with 3 L

Tiquidity positions and reporting.

securo cecess to funding ber 2022, with angaing i gag

markets might impact funders for renewal.

our plans for growth,the N e of internal an

iy 10 marmen o Orngoing mont ot our standard suite of internal and

truding requirements, poring.

meet longer-term - Our hedging sustegy i nnuelly os part of our

Fabiliti ongoing reported to Board,

viobility of our business. - surplus cash, borrowi " i erheria
= We use forward for to o i vg transactions.
= Wehove o credit policy In ploco, with regy iroring b it i

See Note 3 to the Financial Statements for further detail on financial risk management.

Prir!ted on Steinbeis 100°% Recycled and Carbon Captured hrough the.Woodiand Trust, helping to create new British woodiand across the UK



FRASERS GROUP - ANNUAL REPORT -2021 '

FRASERS GROUP

Customer ’

. - | S
Customer engagement and retention is vital to our Group, whether through our physical stores or ~ *

online. Harnessing customer value and loyalty across the Group is multi-faceted but underpmned by
our product offerings, price and service.

We have enhanced our e-commerce offering and significantly improved our customer experience
through our elevation strategy, as well as our customer service and the underlying platform for our
digital business.

We continue to strengthen our elevation through our new concept stores and flagship multi-fascia
offerings.

RISK coNTROLS

Technology Ci ility And Inf Renewal

_. ’

We operate ina e and ch -focused market., Our systems need to be
at the forefront of customer service excellence and support our end-to-end supply chain logistics.
Available technology is constantly evolving and managing changes and transformation in this
environment is a'key focus.

We have invested heavily in this period in our automation, platforms and delivery capabilities, which
support an enhanced online and in-store customer experience, and our business resilience.

Our roadmap includes improved technology and information security capabilities; aligned to our
business continuity and IT disaster recovery review, which continues to strengthen our controls,

R1sK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

Ongaing monitoring of customer insights an feedback, and compatitor and market trends, enbles us to respond
Failure to anticipate and and drive our custornar-lad strategy.

respond to custormer

- Continuedi n our customer i and
paeds or changes i imprave our customer experisnce. i of our 5 "
Cpending. or to dive by now in-store technology. -

and defiver customer - We continue to develop and invest in our onfine offering, capacity and copability, including our automation ~
capalbiiis and paymerd plcionms, for an improved customer exgeriunc

Tt :
st sige engogement to aoraness.

- i of our ESG agends trategy, in line with our customer focus,

Legal And Regulatory Compliance .

The legal and regulatory landscape in which we operate is constantly changing, Our commitment to
delivering robustly on our obligations is central to our culture and values.

We have increased our assessment of this risk in the period, based on factors which continue
to impact the legal and regulatory landscape in which we operate. We are conservative in our
assessments and are confident in our ability to manage these risks effectively. The trend | we
are reporting recagnises anticipated changes through our horizen scanning and emerging risks
evalugtions, until we have implemented our response plans.

AisK -_CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

ced and qualified in-house legal team provic i new and

emerging legislative and regulatory raquirements.

- Extoral advisers provide additional services and training i i
teom.

as required by the

An oction o incident

moy oceur wmm s -
a legal or r

breachand

impocts our business

fincneial, commercilly

areas are priori inctuda

in response to the Covid-19 pe
protection and health and solety.
- Our Code of Canduét supports our ethi
i-Beibery & Corruption,

lghts, the Listing Rules, data

hl:hnvlnmi end cubure,and ou regulior polces e, forcxomple
Conlictsof et
o resah n tgeron. - Wereviewthe of y inducti for
all collaogues.

= A reviw of ot lismewok or angoing moritringof compllance s in progress.
- Thetegalteamisakey the Risk Group.
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- ligned to the business strat
- orword b pports our
Failure to maximise ¥ to compete.
the uso of our exdsting - i
technology o to e _ . lins wonbone ,
. i i munn.mv e et
may aummmumym - Growthofow o b suredby \aini
hel emerging techno " it

change and defiver'our
stategic ambition.

~ Wa hove an engaing cycle oftraining prograrmmes to support ffactive use of existing technalogies and new
i businesse: yora

ing our i i y our strategle
tachnology defivery and the rabustness of our second-line oversight.
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Cyber Risks, Data Loss And Data Privacy
1
-
Attempts to attack or gain unauthorised access to systems and data are becoming increasingly

sophisticated. Our systems are critical to our operations and trading. We have legal and commercial
obligations to protect the secyrity and privacy of the data we hold and process.

We combine the continued investment in our digital offering, automation and technological change
with the strengthening of ot people and in-house capabilities, to deliver on our risk mitigations.

A1sK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

= We have strotegies and policies in place to support our IT secuity,

- losely with our parte
copoblliies. Cap livery, security and G
trotegic

icos beyond our in-house
Our partners inciude Microsoft,as wall as ather

sunpon o our
A cyber-attock may result N on .u

in dota loss and/or denial
of service, impocting
siness financially ~ Wehave enhanced our i i pabilities and

and ore reviewed reguarly.

- Weconduct an annval our eyber i 2
analties or lost trade, as wal ! vber p Grovp.

help to mi ion and dnl\vevy of our change and tronslormation programme.
- 0 Group ond 3
- Ouin-house Legalteam supports scor-ine monioring and eparting oflegilotive complionce.

our ability to operate.

protect the data we hold
nnd process may st in

v acguotary brecc! our averseas operations).

= We routinely action and retain Data Pratection mpoct Assessments

- Ow policy framewrk is sublect to ongoing review and ravision. with externe) suppart and'in line with our governance
ogenda.
- activity.
ess Cont ity Management And lneldnnl Response .
Our Head Office and Distribution Centre at Shirebrook and our e-commerce activity are critical to

our business operations. There is an ongoing and increasing reliance on the availability of technology
across our Group. We need the ability to respond to incidents effectively and on a timely basis, to
ensure continuity of operations and trade.

ausx CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS
- ow ity and 1T v i ing with external
Failue to respand oy testing with
effectively or on a timaly .
bs - ow . with cleor role
cidants or evants - i commitment
impEtthe GroWD  _ Ongaing training
financially through )
{ast revenue or have - totemaland

incident respanse plans.
o reputationaf impact - y prioritisation of 1T [ is revi

based on our capabilty
‘and communicatians.

port of our

- jime targets for both

- Criticol rcovery capabi

s alln to our insuronco cover,oppetits and conirls
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Pririled on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Waodland Tiust. helping to create new British woodland across the UK : o

Group Entities And Extended Enterprise

Our Group is complex and extensive and includes oversight of our third-party and extended
enterprise partners and suppliers. We are committed to ensuring we have the right levels of
transporency, consistency and monitoring across our Group, to enable effective oversight in line with
our values and culture.

We have an appetite for acquisitions as part of our strategic growth agenda. Our integration

. strategy is bejng formalised and captures lessons learned to support ongoing efficient and effective

acquisition engagement and management.

RISK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS .
- e p and its changes s subject to ragular
Failure to effectively i of our sish framowork and
monitor activities across = Oversight ibil support rsk-based
‘o Group entiies, assurance. -

- i i our supply chaln managemant and suppler and portnar raltionships.

bl 1t of aur
e cnteron - Risk and controls reporting acrass th

tnendud enterprise;

e fncal processes for comp ey policies, contro p
ol - i inplace i
compliance issues. - p i framework
across the Group. .
People, Talent Management And Succession .
B -
Our business benefits from strength and depth of kr talent and which has

long been pivotal to its success. Retaining and protecting this talent, providing for succession and
an ongoing programme of attracting cmd developmg new talent is core to our people plans and
objectives,

We have made significant progress in the period in this afea and when new initiatives have time to
embed, we expect to see this risk trend decrease.

aisk CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS
- i of i * supports our futura tolent
pipeline.
- Wereonit gaps necessary for our growth
- i and pr it o
Failure tg attract, etain or expariance.

develop Galent across our
business and [mplement
effective succession
‘lanning might impact - Asixpillor People Framawork supparting performance and talent recognition is now In place across the Group.
ow ability ta achieve - i i . with i tracking.

business and sirates ot shore o

- Anew appraisal system hos been introduced with cleor expectations for performance. opportunities for dovolopment
and broader succession planning.

we th
our paople, with an elevated and re-energised website to attract talent,
transformation. - A L

‘adopt our cora pnn:is\ns

feorless and

- The Workers' Represantative is 0 Board Director who supports communication channals and gives olr pooplo @ voice
at the highest tevel in our business.

- we diversity and inch .
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Social &

{ESG)

_.

Tackling climate change is a global imperative and the resulting increase in regulation is o key focus

area for the Group.

" Measures which support climate change initictives and our wider ESG agenda continue to be key
components of our strategic direction, supporting sustainability, the broader social agenda and

consumer choice.

RIsK CONTR

We havo Bocrd-lovel engogernent and an Executive spansor ofour ESG ogendo.

- The y 'g Group braadens our inabil 9v.
K i ive proi through our
supply chain.
Failure to maximisa - Wehay ity Champiens in place, il pport.
osition end volue - W i Carbon Red
relating to ESG foctors - readiness for i the Taskforce for Cli FO,
might impoct our ability . 8 N
1o achiove out growh, We have an enviranmental policy in place, which hos been reviewed and opproved by the Board,
3 - fawing a supp i 0 ESG mattes.
strategic ambltions. = We havo energy officiency targ i 0 ist support.
- the provision of ions and school

Review and Conduct suppe and
colleague and :upylmv anboarding. . . .

The 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code *
requires the Board to express its view of the
long-term viability of the Group and assess the
Company's prospects, copital management
and principal risks.

Accordingly, the Board regulorly carries out
thorough and robust assessments of the risks,
including stress testing the Group's resilience
to threats to its business model, strategy,
future performance and liquidity and the

" risks identified in the Principal Risks and

Uncertainties section of this Report, together
with the steps the Group has taken to mitigate
them. In addition, the Board regularly reviews
the performance and financing position of the
Group and its projected fundmg position and
requirements. .

The Group continues to face the chcllenges
presented by the Covid-19 pandemic on
the retail industry and changing consumer

Property

B

This is a new risk added during FY21. The retail landscape continues to see significant changes with
a high volume of retail properties vacant due to the high level of retail insolvencies and retailers
moving away from bricks and mortar to e-commerce due to the shlf( in consumer behaviour, which
*has further been increosed due to lhe Covid-19 pandemic.

As a result of the above,

both the value and value in use of retail properties has declined.

ik CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS. M

For new store loases work with our rents thot i linked to
There s o financiol Store turmover.
isk 10 the Group i our ! N
commitment to o lease or fit quts.
tho value of our freehold = As units become wo look with more tootfall

properties decline where

less footfall to our stores.

cesilience,

‘We are actively reviewing our lease portiolio and

The ireehold estate is actively managed by the property team and we will look to dispose of sites which are not
aligned with the Groups strategy.

Mike Ashley

Chief Executive on behalf of the board

5 August 2021
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beh , in addition to supply chain issues
dueé to both the Covid-19 pandemic and Brexit.

The Board chose to review these over a three
and a half year period to 27 October 2024.
This period is partially covered by the Group's
Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) up to November
2022 plus two years beyond the maturity date.
Management are currently of the opinion that
any negotiations to replace the current facility
will be concluded well in advance of maturity
with the expectation that a new facility will
have a minimum term of three years. This .
period also best reflects both the short term
budgeting and.planning process of the Group,
the longer term forecasting and the expected

les for strategy impls ion. The
process adopted to prepare the model for
assessing the viability of the Group involved
input from a number of departments across the

business to model a conservative scenario.

Prinlted on Steinbeis 100 Recycled and-Carbon Captured thraugh the Woodland Trust. helping to create new British woodland across the UK

VIABILITY STATEMENT

In refation to each viability related risk the
Board has:

Covid-19

+ reviewed the impact of the pandemic on the
Group’s soles and margin in relation to both
store and online revenue;

forecast and modelled future temporary
full store closures from potential further
lockdowns (two months in FY22 and two
months in FY23), potential Government
support, foreign exchange exposure and
cost saving initiatives.

Market Forces

* tested the business model's resilience to
changes in the retail market and responses
to variability in sales and margins;

taken into account further consumer shift
from bricks and mortar to online; and

forecast the |mpact of key suppllers going
direct to consumer.”

"Treasury & Financial Risk

+ reviewed the RCF and its suitobility for
the Group's cash flow cycle and liquidity
requirements;

considered the maturity date of the Group's

RCF aond the potential financing options

post November 2022; and

+ reviewed the Group's hedging strategy.

Brexit

+ forecast and modelied increased costs

+ associated with leaving the EU and impact

on margin.

Supply Chain

* reviewed the arrangements with key
suppliers; and

« forecast and modelled increased costs

associated with such items as container
shortages.
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Viability has been assessed by performing
sensitivity analysis and stress testing of the
Group's FY22 budget and forecast for the
viability period prepared by management.
This comprised a recent review by the Board

. of @ number of scenarios in which the Group's
income statement, balance sheet and cash
flow forecasts were stress tested to determine
how much the Group's trade would need to
be affected in order to breach the Group's
covenants (being interest cover and net debt to
EBITDA ratios). These scenarios included:

+ afurther decre&se in sales of 10%, margin
remgining consistent with original budget
and direct costs falling in line with sales;

« afurther decrease in sales and margin of
10%, with no change in direct overheads;

+  maximum breakpoint, being breach of
covenants per the Group's RCF (Sales
would need to reduce by a further 20%
than forecast, with no change in direct
overheads)

The Group's working capital facility is at_
£913.5m {FY20: £913.5m) available until
November 2021 and is not secured against any
of the Group's assets. The Group enacted an

extension option for a further year to November

2022 for £847.5m.

The Group has consistently created a strong
free cosh flow from underlying trading and
has an appropriate hedging strategy to meet
currency risks. There have been no post
balance sheet changes to liquidity.

The impact on the projected cash flow as a
result of the conservative model has been
reviewed, if required management have a

. number of mitigating actions which could be
taken such as-putting on hold discretionary

spend, liquidating certain assets on the balance

sheet, reduction in labour and marketing costs.

%
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Based on its assessment, the Bocrd has a
reasonable expectation that the Group will

be able to continue operating and be able to
meet its liabilities as they fall due for a period

of approximately three and a half years, to the
end of the expected minimum maturity of new
Group finance arrangements and facilities (the -
period of the assessment).

The Viability Statement was approved by the
Board on 5 August 2021, and signed on its -
behalf by: -

Chris Wootton

Chief Financial Officer

5 August 2021

THE BOARD

DAVID DALY

Non-Executive Chair, Chair of the Nomination
Committee

Appointed: 2 October 2017 .

Committees: Nomination and Remuneration
Committees

Previous roles:

David held a number of positions. during

a 30-year international career with Nike,
where his primary focus was the business of
football. He started in a sales role in 1986, later
becoming sales director for Nike UK / Ireland.
He retired in 2015 as a Senior Director for
Nike's Club and Federation business, where he
was responsible for the global merchandising
business for all of Nike's leading football clubs.

Present roles:
David is a Non-executive Director
of Fulham Football Club.

Key skills, expericnce and contribution:
David's career at Nike gave him significant
first-hand knowledge of the sporting goods
industry. He has worked in senior roles in
sales, marketing, product development and
general management, giving him o thorough
understanding of consumer trends and
behaviour. He spent 18 years working outside
the UK and this international experience has
proven crucial to the Board. David joined the
Board in October 2017, allowing him to gain a
sound understanding of the business before *
being appointed as Chair in October 2018. His
focus has been on improving best practices,
corporate governance, promoting diversity
and driving the elevation strategy. He ensures
the Boord functions effectively by facilitating
an open and productive debate and providing
constructive challenge.

Prir!!ed on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new British woodland across the UK’

MIKE ASHLEY

Chief Executive

Appointed: 1982 (founder)

Previous roles:

Mike established the business of the Group
on leaving school in 1982 and was the sole
owner until the Group's listing in March 2007.
He was Executive Deputy Chair prior to being
appointed Chief Executive in September 2016.

Key skills, experience and contribution:
Mike was the founder of the Group and has
the necessary skills for formulating the vision
and commercial strategy of the Group. With
over 40 years in the sports retail business with
Sports Direct he is invaluable to the Group.
Mike's knowledge and experience in all areas
of retailing, buying, warehousing and logistics
ensures that he is crucial to the effective and
efficient running of operations. During the
continuing Covid-19 pandemic his decisive
leadership has meant the Group has managed
to come out of this crisis in good health and
will be able to take advantage of future
opportunities.
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CHRIS WOOTTON
- Chief Financial Officer
Appointed: 12 September 2019

Previous roles:

Chris worked in the assurance practice at PwC
for much of his accounting career, including
working on large corporates and listed entities.

Key skills, experience and contribution:

‘Chris is a Chartered Accountant. After joining .
the Group, he quickly understood the business
and progressed rapidly within the Finance
team. He has helped the Group on its elevation
path and significantly improved the Finance
team’s skills, experience and capabilities.

Chris is a key driver of the Group's occounting
principles, namely being conservative,
consistent and simple.

Chris has had to play a key role as part of the
Leadership team in the Group's response to
the Covid-19 pandemic, including stakeholder
management, and cashflow management and
forecasting. .
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CALLY PRICE

Non-Executive Workforce Director and Workers'
Representative

Appointed: 1 January 2019

Previous roles:

Cally began her career with Frasers Group as
@ casual sales assistant in our Sports Direct
Aberdare store in 2007.

Present roles:

the Company's Workers' Representative and
Manager of the Cardiff St David's Sports Direct
store. '

Key skills, experience and contribution:

With over 12 years' experience with Frasers
Group, starting on the shop floor working under
a zero hours contract, Cally is ideally placed
to ensure that the voice of the workforee is at
the forefront of the Board's discussions and
decision-making. She has current knowledge
of every aspect of the day-to-day running

of a retail outlet and applies this to her
directorship. Cally is committed to ensuring
full transparency across the Group and has
control of the workforce company app and
confidential hotline, taking on the responsibility
of answering every colleague personally.

Cally reports to the Board with worker issues
raised and consistently challenges them

from her unique perspective. Alongside our
colleague development team, Cally has been
committed to ensuring that the wellbeing of
all Frasers Group colleagues is paramount
during these unprecedented times. Through
our refationship with the Retail Trust, Cally has
p! cf i bi with trained
mentol health advisors, to offer support and
guidance to our colleagues. When restrictions
have permitted her to do so, Cally also sits
with Senior Management at our Shirebrook
Head Office twice weekly, ensuring that she is
continuously involved in the running of Frasers
Group. Cally has become both the voice and
face of our people, representing all of our
colleagues and providing a collective voice
for'all.

RICHARD BOTTOMLEY OBE

Senior Independent Non-executive Director,

Chair of the Audit Committee

Appointed: 1 October 2018 =

Committees: Audit and Nomination
Committees

Previous roles:

Richard has over 25 years’ expetience working
with listed companies during his time as a
senior partner at KPMG, and he remains o
member of the Audit Committee Institute.

Prior to joining the Board, Richard waos a
Non-executive Director of Newcastle Building
Society, where he chaired the Audit Committee.

Present roles:

Richard is Chair of Trustees of the Greggs plc
1978 Retirement and Death Benefits Scheme.
He is also o Non-executive Director of MSL
Property Care Services Ltd, Marsden Packaging
Limited and Jessgrove Limited.

Key skills, experience and contribution:
Richard has strong experience in corporate
governance, corporate finance and strategy.
His experience in the audit sector has proven
beneficial. Richard has been influential in
the recruitment of a Head of internal Audit,
ensuring that risks are properly assessed and
mitigated.

Pnr!ted on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Caplured through the Wooclland Trust. helping to create new British woodtand across the UK

DAVID BRAYSHAW -

Independent Non-executive Director, Chair of
the Remuneration Committee

Appointed: 8 December 2016

Committees: Audit, Nomination and
Remuneration Committees

Previous roles:

Dovid is a very experienced senior investment
and commercial banker. He has over 30 years'
experience with organisations such as Barclays
Copital, HSBC, Citigroup and Pilkington plc.

Key skills, experience and contribution:

David graduated from Oxford in 1975 with a
Masters of Arts in Chemistry. He has spent

a long career in corporate fipancing for a
number of major financial institutions, and
was the Group Treasurer of Pilkington plc.
David spent 15 years at Barclays Capital,
advising FTSE 350 companies on all aspects
of corporate, syndicated, and capital markets
funding, together with interest rote, foreign
exchange and balance sheet hedging. He hads
funded countless public company acquisitions
and remains involved in an advisory role with
several corporates and banks in a private
capacity. He has a proven track record in the
finance and acquisitions sector, providing
sound advice in line with the Group's elevation
strategy.
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NICOLA FRAMPTON
Independent Non-executive Director *

Appointed:  1October 2018

Committees: Audit and Rermuneration
Committees

Previou: s .
Prior to joining Domino's Pizza Group, Nicola |
was at William Hill from April 2010. She was
Managing Director of its UK Retail division,
working closely with the Board, Exco and”
operational management. During her time at
William Hill, Nicola led & number of successful
major innovation and transformation projects.
Before switching to an executive management
career, Nicola spent the previous ten years
working in the professional services industry,
most recently as a Director at Deloitte.

Present roles:

. Nicola has spent most of her recent career in

senior executivé management roles and has
recently been appointed to a new position
with Domino’s Pizza Group, where she is Chief
Operations Officer.

Key skills, experience and contribution;

Nicola has extensive experience in risk
management, assurance and corporate
governance across a wide range of industries,
having specialised in these areas of corporate
activity at both William Hill and prior to that
whilst at Deloitte. The Board benefits from
Nicola's current retail experience as the serving

. Managing Director of a large non-competing

retail business. Nicola serves as a Trustee
Board member on o number of charities and
brings an inf i ive on corp:
responsibility to the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Chair's Introduction

As Chair, | om responsible for leading the Board

to make decisions that will benefit the Group

and ultimately its stakeholders. My role is to

ensure that we adhere to high standards of . .
corporate governance and allow the Group

to thrive during these particularly challenging

times. From the downturn of the high street

to the current Covid-19 pandemic, we have

remained resilient and robust in our approach

to corporote governance.

Our Non-executive Directors have a great depth
of experience, remain independent throughout
all discussions and are rigorous in challenging
the Executives in the best interests of the Group.
Our Executivé Directors understand the Group's

- volues and behaviours. They work tirelessly to

retain and grow shareholder value, engage our
workforce and promote the Group's strategy.

The Board and the Audit Committee held
more meetings than usual during the year, to
ensure that matters arising from the Covid-19
pandemic were dealt with effectively and
promptly. | would like to thank Board members
for their additional time and commitment
throughout this period.

With increasing stakeholder focus and incoming

regulation, we have increased our work on

improving our environmental impact and -
sustainability. During the year, the Sustainability : -

Steering Group was formed under the CFO's

leadership. Further details are included in our

ESG report. . .

Further information regarding our compliance :
with the Code can be found in our Corporate
Governance Statement.

David Daly .
Non-executive Chair

5 August 2021

Prinlted on Steinbeis 100% ‘Recyc}ed and Cérbor\_Captu;‘ed‘chrough the Woodland Trust. helping to create new Bﬁtish woodland across the UK . . -
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This Corporate Governance Report and
Statement sets out how the Company has
applied the principles in the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code during its financial yeor
ended 25 April 2021. A copy of the Code is
available at www.frc.org.uk.

Disclosures in relation to DTR 7.2.6 (share
capital) and DTR 7.2.8 (diversity) are set out in

Provhlon Requirement

'CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMEN

Culture

During the year, the Board received an
i it report on the employee value

the Directors’ Report and in the
Committee Statement.

The Board considers that it comptied with the
majority of the principles and provisions of the
2018 UK Corporate Governance Code for the
period ended 25 April 2021. The following table
sets out the provisions which have not been
fully complied with during FY21:

Reason for nan-complianes Resohution

36 Remuneration schemas should

afignment with long-term shareholder

interests. Shore awards grant

this purposa shauld be refeased

for sale on o phasod boss and

be subect to @ total vesting and

holding period of five years or mere

The Remuneration Cammittee
jovelop a formel palicy for

post-employment shareholding

requirements encompassing both

wnvested and vested shares.

The Group does ot have an LTIP As noted i

he Directars

share schem for the Executive . Remuneration Report, an executive
Directors. shore scheins vill be put to
shoreholders at tha AGM in respect of

Chris Wootton.

BOARD LEADERSHIP AND COMPANY
PURPOSE
The Board

There were no Board changes during the
year. The Board's stability has enabled the
Company to confidently meet the challenges
of, and navigote successfully through, these
unprecedent times.

The Board decided to renew the appointment
of our workforce Director, Cally Price, for a
further few years, subject to AGM election

until October 2024. Cally has had o huge
impact on the Board and successfully acts as a
conduit between the workforce and Directors.
She brings new insights and perspective to

the Board and ploys a key role in helping
colleagues understand the challenges and
opportunities facing the business. She has
continued to work tirelessly in briefing the
workforce on developments during the Covid-19
pandemic. | om also pleased to be continuing
in my role of Chair for a further term of three
years, following its renewal by the Board in July
2020.
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Business Model

The Group's-business model remains consistent

- in providing customers with the world's best
brands. This requires us to have the right
product, in the right place, ot the right time and
at the right price. In ensuring the sustainability
of this we have applied the multi-channel
elevation strategy in elevating not only our
stores and brands, but also the customer
experience. Further information on the Group
business model and strategy can be found in
the Strategic Report. Governance plays a key
role in the business model and the delivery of
strategy as the Board defines expectations and
verifies performance towards the delivery of
strategic cims and objectives.

proposition, including the culture of the Group
which is discussed further in the.Our People and
External Board Review section of this Annual
Report. Our culture is embodied in a strong
work ethic, creativity and risk, underpinned by
three key principles to guide our people in an
aspirational and instructive way:

- Ownit and back yourself,
- Don't hesitate and act with purpose.

- Think without limits and toke the team with

you;
Further information on the Group's culture
is contained within the “Culture and Values”
section of this report.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group has a number of stakeholders to
consider and we use o variety of methods to
ensure that we capture their views and use
them to shape our decisions. Stakeholder
engagement is important to our performance,
and we take on board both commendation and
constructive criticism. However, whilst we are
mindful of each stakeholder group, we have to
balance their views against other competing
factors and recognise that the result may not
be positive for all stakeholder groups. During
the year, the Board has made decisions based
on Board papers, presentations from senior
executives and discussions with and reports
from external consultants.

Employees

Please see the Directors' Report for details of
colleague engagement.
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Shareholders

Our AGM provides an opportunity for all
shareholders to engage with the Board

and submit questions. Due to the Covid-19
pandemic, the 2020 AGM was a closed

meeting. However, shareholders were invited

to submit questions prior the meeting. All
resolutions were passed dt the meeting and no
resolutions received an “against” vote of 20% or |
more.

The views of major shareholders are shared
amongst the Board when received and we
respond as necessary. The Board ensures that
it is available for questions at the half year
and full year results presentations, to' which
major shareholders are invited. Shareholders'
opinions are closely monitored through analyst -
and broker reporting and all correspondence
received from major investors is circulated to
the relevant committee chair or the Board as
appropriate.

Customers

We strive to continually improve customer
engagement and satisfaction. The Customer
Service function has continued with its
elevation phase, to support customers by
offering innovative, easy to use technology
and creating a culture of highly engaged

coll A new contact

solution has been deployed across all fascios
within the Group, improving customer
communication channels, allowing custoriers to
self-service and improving the level and speed
of response provided by the Customer Service
teams. This work continues, as we offer more
contact channels to enable customers to reach
out to one of our customer care team, helping
to resolve enquiries faster than ever before.

We are committed to listening to our customers
and have recently engaged an independent
externol partner to help us understond and act
upon customers’ feedback. We have i

our reporting, resulting in process changes .
and helping us increase our external Customer

" Satisfaction (CSAT) score. The Board approved

for store f g the
Covid-19 pandemic to ensure the safety of
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customers and colleagues. The Board also
approved a 50% discount for customers
employed by the NHS in recognition of their
work during the pandemic.

Through our digital elevation strategy we

are investing more than £100m to elevate

our proposition across our retail channels.
This investment will build on our core digital
foundations and includes initiatives to improve
the online customer expérience by carefully
targeted investment in platforms that support
customer service, engagement and data. We
are also investing in digital marketing to drive
sales growth. )

Suppliers .

We aim to forge strong and transparent
relotionships with all of our suppliers, to enable
us to provide customers with excellent products
and to meet the standards that our brand
partners set for their products. The Elevation No
Limits strategy targets stronger relationships
with key brand partners (including our Strategic
Investments) and this continues to be a priority.
Having worked with Nike for over 30 years, the
Chair is instrumental in engaging and helping
to maintain our relationship with one of our key
brand partners, Nike.

Dedit i and ment and
commercial teams support truly integrated
supplier engogement. Electronic Data Interface
(EDI) capability also improves our process
efficiency through the commercial cycle and
enhances supplier engagement, through a
dedicated supplier portal,

We have long-standing relationships with two
key gateway suppliers, which we use to source
Group own-branded products.

Further details in relation to environmental and
ethical considerations can be found within the
Environment Report.
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Regulators.

The Group makes every endeavour to comply
with its legal and regulatory obligations. We
regularly liaise with HMRC, the FRC and the
FCA in an open and transparent manner. The
Finance team and the Board have established
regular communications with tax authorities
internationally.

During the Covid-19 pandemic, Board members
liaiséd with the Government on a number of
occasions, to clarify the Group's position, for
example, regarding store closures.

Lenders

Alongside attending all Board meetings, the
CFO is always available to inform the Board
of any updates in relation to financial lenders.
With the assistance of the Finance team, the
CFO ensures that the Group complies with

the terms and conditions in its credit facility
agreements. The CFO regularly liaises with the
Chair of the Remuneration Committee and the

. Chair of the Audit Committee, to discuss the

Group's financial performance.

During the Covidi-19 pandemic, the Board
discussed cash flow forecasts and the
availability of headroom in the RCF. This
uncertain time also led to Board discussions
regarding other financing methods, including
the Covid Commercial Finance Facility.

Our Finance team has engaged with our
lenders during the year. There was a particular
focus duririg the early period of the Covid-19
pandemic in the UK, ds management held
regular conference calls with lenders to say
engaged and informed.

Community

-Details of our engagement with the community

can be found in our ESG report.
Workforce Concerns

Workforce concerns regarding the business
and its operations are taken seriously and we
provide a number of ways that colleagues can
voice their issues. When issues arise, colleagues
are encouroged to speak to their line managers,
or they can seek advice from the Retail Trust.

If colleagues want to express their concerns
confidentially or anonymously, they can use the
whistleblowing hottine or 'Your Company, Your
Voice'. Cally Price works with colleagues across
the business to resolve issues and she reports
issues to the Board during scheduled meetings.
The Company Secretary is made aware of

all whistle blowing reports and has access to

i advice as i

Director Concerns

During the year, no concerns were raised by the
Board regarding the operation of the Board or
the management of the Group.

Conflicts of Interest

Details of procedures regarding Directors’
conflicts of interest, including the Relationship
Agreement with Mike Ashley as the controlling
shareholder, can be found in the Directors’
Report. -

Corporate Governance Policy Rﬁview

During the year, external advisors were
appointed to review the Group's governance
policies and ensure they are documented and
reflect best practice. A review of.these findings
will take place in FY22 once the external review
is completed.
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DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Chair

The Chair leads the Board, ensuring
constructive communications between Board
members and that all Directors are able to play
a full part in the Board's activities. The Chair
sets Board agendas and ensures thot Board
meetings are effective and that all Directors
receive accurate, timely and clear information.

The Chair communicates with shareholders
effectively and ensures that the Board
understands the views of major investors. The
Chair also provides advice and support to

both the Executive and Non-executive Board
members. Upon his appointment, the Chair met
the independerice criteria set out in provision 10
of the Corporate Governance Code.

The Chief Executive

The Chief Executive has a pivotal role in
formulating and implementing thé Group's
strategy. He is responsible for the day-to-day
running of the business, equipping himself with
o team of executives to ensure that the Board's
decisions are implemented. The Chief Executive
is the main point of communication between
the senior executives and the Non-executive
Directors, and regulorly updates the Board on
the Group's trading position.

The Senior Independent Director

Richard Bottomley, OBE, is the Senior
-Independent Non-executive Director. He
supports the Chair and Non-executive Directors
and is available to assist shareholders if they
have concerns. .
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Role Of The Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors have broad
experience from a wide range of sectors.

Their role is to understand the Group in

its entirety, to constructively challenge

strategy and management performance,

set exécutive remuneration and ensure
appropriate succession planning is in place.
The Non-executive Directors must also ensure
they are satisfied with the accuracy of financial
information and that effective risk management
and internal control processes are in place.

Independence

There are currently three independent
Non-executive Directors, as well os a
Non-executive Chair, a Non-executive
Workforce Director and Workers'’
Representative, and two Executive Directors.
"All Non-executive Directors, other than the
Non-executive Workforce Director and Workers'

P ive, were i d ind de
upon appointment. The Non-executive
Workforce Director and Workers' Representative
is not considered to be independent as she is
employed by the Group.

Delegation of Responsibilities

The Board has three sub-committees, namely
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Committees
are governed by Terms of Reference, which
provide details of matters delegated to

them. The Terms of Reference are available
on the Group's website at frasers.group/
financials/corporate-governance. The roles
of the Chairman, Chief Executive and Senior
Independent Director are clearly defined

and set out in writing. The role profiles were
reviewed ond updut?:_d during the year.

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Remuneration
policy

* Remuneration
schemes

Service
contracts for
senior executives

‘KEY BOARD
RESPONSIBILITIES

Approving budgets

- Setting the Group's values and standards

Approving strategic aims and objectives

Approving acquisitions and disposals

Approving the appointment or removal of
Board members

Approving foreign exchange and -
commodities transactions above
a material level

AUDIT

" COMMITTEE

External
audit

Financial
reporting
Internal
audit

Risk
management

Compliance
and fraud

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Composition of the Board

Succession planning

Matters Reserved For The Board

There is a formal schedule of matters that require Board approval, as they could have significant
strategic, financial or reputational impact on the Group. These matters were reviewed and updated
by the Board during the year. ’
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Board Performance

On an annual basis the Non-executive
Directors, led by Richard Bottomley, review the
performance of the Chair, taking into account
the views of the Executive Directors, The
outcome of the review is relayed to the Chair,
with constructive comments to improve future
performance. During the period, the Chair

i d the perfe of all N tiy
Directors, to ensure their performance remains
effective and that they are committed to and
capable of performing the role. The Chair has
di { with each N ive Director
how they can improve their knowledge,
behaviour and skills, in order to be better
equipped for the role. The performance of the
Executive Directors was also reviewed by the
Chair and the Non-executive Directors and
performance objectives set.

An external review by Belinda Hudson Limited
was also carried out during the year and this is
discussed within the Board Review report.

A number of informal meetings also took
place throughout the year between various
Non-executive Directors and the Chair without
the Executive Directors present.

Director Commitment

Prior to accepting Board positions, prospective
Directors are informed that following induction,
they are required to dedicate between 15
and 20 days per annum to fulfil the role of a
Non-executive Director. Non-executive Directors
are aware that scheduled and unscheduled
meetings may take place, as well as other
events including site visits, shareholder
meetings and strategy meetings. The time
commitment specified in Non-executive
Directors' letters of appointment is regularly
reviewed by the Nomination Committee and
was recently deemed to be appropriate.
Regular training is offered to all Directors

and this is further considered during Director
evaluations. . :

The Directors are expected to attend all
scheduled Board meetings and are asked to
use best endeavours to attend unscheduled
meetings. To assist with managing their
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commitments, the Non-executive Directors are
given prospective annual Board calendars early
in the second half of the preceding year. During
the year, there were five scheduled and seven
unscheduled Board meetings.

Appointment Documentation

Details of Executive Directors’ service contracts,
and of the Chair's and the Non-executive
Directors' appointment letters, are contained
within the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Copies of service contracts and appointment
letters are available for inspection at the
Company's registered office during normal
business hours and at the Annual General
Meeting. Neither of the Executive Directors hold
a directorship of another FTSE 350 company.

Meeting Documentation

A detailed agenda is established for each .
scheduled meeting and appropriate
documentation is provided to Directors in
advance. Regular Board meeting agenda
items include reports from the Chief Financial
Officer, reports on the performance of the
business and current trading, and specific
proposals where the Board's approval is
sought. The Board monitors and questions

p and reviews antici i results.
The Board also receives reports from the
Non-executive Workfdrce Director and
Workers' Representative, who attends all Board
meetings. :

During Board meetings, presentations are
made on business or strategic issues where
appropriate, and the Board considers the
Group's strategy at least annually. Minutes of
Committee meetings are circulated to all Board
members for agreement. Capies of analysts’
reports and brokers’ notes are also provided

to Directors. Guest attendees are invited to
present at Board meetings.

Board Meeting Attendance

The Board has a formal of regular i where it app! major ond uses its
expertise to advise and influence the business. The Board will meet on other occasions as and when.
required. - .

The Directors’ attendance at Board and Committee meetings during the year, and the total number
of meetings that they could have attended, are-set out in the table below. Attendance was high for
all Directors, who attended all meetings unless prevented from doing so by a prior commitment.
There was a high number of unscheduled meetings during the yecr, to discuss the Group's response
to the Covid-19 pandemic and its impact on our colleagues and stores. A number of additional Audit
Committee meetings also took place. A strategy day was held in October.

Board &
Mustings:  Mustings:
Scheduled Unschedulad

‘Mike Ashlay - /s n
Richord Bottomley”s Sf6_. %
David Brayshaw 6l6 7
Oavid Daly 6/6 n
Nicola Fromptan o6 w
Chris Wootton o -
Cally Price 66 n

" i one was scheduled ot short natice, due to being on haliday,

Note: A number of Audit Committe

ing: .
members ings ot the invitation of the Commilttee Chairs. Boasd members attended
thoso motings for infornation rathar d may not for the full duration ing:
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Company Secretarial Support

All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary, and may
take independent professional advice at the
-Company'’s expense, subject to prior notification
to the other Non-executive Directors and the
Company Secretary. The company secretarial
team has been strengthened during the year,

to support the Group's expansion and ensure
compliance with increased regulation,

The Company Secretary ensures that the
Company maintains appropriate insuronce
cover in respect of its Directors and Officers.
He also advises the Board on corporate
governance matters. During FY21, external
training was provided to the Board on the
Market Abuse Regulation.

The Group's Position And Prospects

The Board take responsibility for the
preparation of the Annual Report and
Accounts for FY21, and is in agreement that
taken as a whole, they are fair, balanced and
understandable. We are confident that the
Annual Report and Accounts provide. sufficient
detail and thot our shareholders have been
provided with the necessary information on
the Group's position, performance, business
model and strategy, further details of which
can be found in the Strategic Report. Detailed
information on the Group's financial position
and performance can also be located in the
Group Financial Statements.

The Covid-19 pandemic and the resulting
closure of non-essential retail stores for much
of the year, has had significant impact on
high-street retailers, including the Group. During
this period the Board has met on a number of
occasions to discuss the impact of the Covid-19
pandemic on trading and the Group's long-term
future. The Covid-19 pandemic is deemed to

be a highly significant issue for the Group. The
Board is confident that the Group has adequate
resource to remain in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and has continued to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements. As a result
of its findings, the Board has adopted a going
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concern statement for FY21, and full details of
this can be found in the Directors’ Report. The
Directors have also assessed the prospects

of the Group over 3.5 years, the Viability
Statement can be found at pages 36 to 37.

Risk Management

The Board's responsibilities and procedures

for managing risk and the supporting systems
of internal control are set out in the Principal
Risks and Uncertainties section of the Strotegic
Report and further information is included in
the Audit Committee Report.

Controls in respect of financial reporting and
the production of the consolidated financial
statements are well established. Group
accounting policies are consistently applied
and review and reconciliation controls operate
effectively. Standard reporting packages are
used by oll Group entities to ensure consistent
and standard information is available for
the production of the consolidated financial
statements. The Group Accounting Manual is
under a cycle of ongoing review ond forms part
of our internal-controls continuous improvement
activity during FY22.

The Board has carried out a robust assessment
of the Groups' emerging and principal risks in
the period and further detail can be found in
the Strategic Report as noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to present the report of the Audit
Committee (the Committee) for the 52-week
period ended 25 April 2021. The report sets out
the Committee’s work and areas of focus during
this unprecedented year, which has seen the
global spread of Covid-19 and Government-
mandated lockdowns impacting all
geographies across our Group. The Committee-
has therefore focused on and discussed the
Group's performance, and the impacts of, ond
response to these external factors.

We monitored the Group's ongoing viability
and going concern positions, incorporating
the impacts of the pandemic and including
the review of key accounting judgements and
estimates. We have kept the Group risk profile
and emerging risks under continued review
and had clear oversight of the activities of
the executive Compliance & Risk Group. We
have also monitored the Group's response to
opportunities and acquisitions, to ensure we
come through the period stronger and on track
to meet our strategic targets on the return to
brodder economic recovery.

On behalf of the Board, the Committee
monitors the Group's financial reporting
processes and the integrity of its financial
statements and ensures high standards of
quality and effectiveness in the external audit
process. The Committee also reviews and
monitors the effectiveness of the Group's
systems of risk management and internal
control, governance and compliance.

We have built a strong and productive working
relationship with RSM since their appointment
in 2019 as our External Auditor and we value
the integrity, strength and depth of their audit
and approach.

The Committee has supported manogement
with the Group’s RCF renewal with potential
new and existing lenders and is comfortable
with the strength of engagement and financial
support for the business and its strategic intent.

We have made strong progress against our
continuous improvement assurance agenda
across governance, risk and control and this
was noted in the Group's externcol Board
evaluation which is discussed in more detail
within the External Board Review report We
also continue to strengthen relationships with
our Big 4 and Top 10 co-source partners. We
have closely monitored the Government's audit
and governance reform agenda and considered
our approach to readiness as part of our FY21
and FY22 agendas. -

The Committee values the ongoing work of the
Group's Retail Support Unit and Digital Risk
teams and continues to seek assurance thot
their work remains a strength in our Group. Our
performance as a business has remained strong
in these extremely challenging circumstances.

It has been impressive to see the continued

- strength and depth of experience across

all our business teams and their ability to
withstand and manage the significant risks that
materialised. '

Taking its responsibilities as a whole, the

Committee is satisfied that the going concern
basis of accounting is appropriate (see further
detail at page 64) and that the Group is viable

-over its assessment period (see page 36).

I would like to take the opportunity to thank all
our colleagues for their valuable commitment,
contributions and support towards our Group
performance.
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Membership

During the year, the Audit Committee
camprised three Non-executive Directors, David
Brayshaw, Nicola Frampton and myself as
Chair. Biographies of each Committee member
are set out in the Directors' profiles on pages 37
to 39 of this Annual Report. .

As Chair of the Audit Committee and Senior

- Independent Non-executive Director, | am
satisfied that the Committee's membership
includes Directors with recent and relevant
financial experience and competence in
accounting, risk management and governance,
and that the Committee as a whole has
competence relevant to the retail sector in
which the Group operates.

Meetings

The Committee met eight times during the
year as we have extended our agenda to
accommodate our assurance requirements.
Non-Committee members of the Board an

The Main Responsibilities Of The Audit

Committee

The Committee’s main responsibilities, os
dell by the Board, i h
during the year and cre set out in the
Committee’s Terms of Reference. These include
oversight, assessment and review of:

ial S And

The integrity of the Group's financial
reporting as o whole and any formal
announcements relating to the Group's
financial performance, including any
significant judgements contained in them;
and

*  The Group's assessment of its going concern
and longer-term prospects and viability.

External Auditor

The effectiveness of the external audit
process taking into consideration
relevant UK professional and regulatory

the i team ded
Committee meetings at my invitation to
ensure the Committee is kept informed of
important developments in the business and
the risk and control environment. Attendance

; and

Developing and implementing policy on the
supply of non-audit services by the External
Auditor and approving any such work.

Risk And Internat Controls

by members of the executive
team also helps to reinforce a strong culture

of risk management within the business.
Non-Committee members do not participate in
Audit Committee decision making.

Our External Auditor attended all Committee
meetings during the year. The Committee *
meets privately with the External Auditor at
least annually. In my capacity as Chair, | have
regular meetings with the External Auditor
prior to each Committee meeting during

the audit planning process and as the audit
progresses, to address issues early and to avoid
any surprises. | am also in continuous contact
with the Board Chairman, Chief Executive,
Chief Financial Officer, External Audit Lead
Partner and our Head of Internal Audit &

Risk M, who has an indep: nt
reporting line to me.
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+  The effectiveness of the Group's internal
financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems, including the
activities of the Internal Audit function,
and driving an agenda of continuous
improvement;

* Identifying and assessing principel and
emerging risks and risk exposures; and

*+  The effectiveness of whistleblowing
arrangements.

In addition, the Committee:

Supports the Board in discharging its
ibilities for C G e
Code compliance;

Advises the Board on the outcome of the
external audit and whether it considers
the Annual Report and Accounts, when
taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and

Monitored the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management ond internal control
systems and received detoailed reports
and presentations on principal risks
management;

Continued to support the Finance

"leadership and evaluated the strength and

depth of the Finance team;

its Terms of Reference; and

and provide inf
necessary to shareholders to assess the
Group's position and performance, business
model and strategy;

Makes recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, reappointment or removal
of the External Auditor;

* Approves the External Auditor’s fees and
terms of engagement; )

+  Maintains strong relationships with the
Board, executive management, the External
Auditor and Internal Audit, in the execution
of their respective responsibilities; and

* Reports to the Board on how the Committee
has discharged its responsibilities during the -
year.

During The Period

The Committee focused on a nurnber of
significant areas of internal control (including
financial, operatiorial and compliance controls).
During the period, the Committee:

« Monitored the business response, internal
controls and impact on the Group's financial
performance and reporting as the Covid-19
pandemic risk materialised;

«  Reviewed the Group's financial statements
and assessed whether suitable accounting
policies have been adopted and whether

has made appropriate
estimates and judgements;

*  Reviewed the detailed scenarios and
assumptions behind the going concern basis
of accounting and longer-term viability;

Assessed the effectiveness of the external
audit process and considered the
reappointment of RSM as the External
Auditor for FY22;

Together with the Board, considered the
Committee’s own effectiveness.

Printed on Steinbeis 100° Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new Briish woodland across the UK



FRASERS GROUP - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

Risk Management And Internal Controls

Information on our approach to risk
management and internal control is set out

in the risk section of the Strategic Report and
concluding of our review of these systems is
set out on page 30. Our plans for continuous

i of our risk and
internal control systems remained in place
during the year and establishing a Group
Internal Audit & Risk Management function has
reinforced our progress. The work of our Retail

** Support Unit is central to the Group's system

of internal control. The Unit provides internal
assurance on the efficacy of controls over our
retail operational procedures and systems.

In the year, the Committee focused on a
number of significant areas of internal control,
including:

+  Solvency and liquidity;

*  Business continuity, IT disaster recovery and
incident response;

«  Climate risk and our environmental, social
. and governance agenda, supporting *
Taskforce for Climate-related Financial
Disclosures reporting; and
+ The'Group's banking arrangements.

See further at page 39 for the Board's
on Corp e.

Audit Quality

The C ittee received ¢ i

updates from RSM and the business in response
to outlined reform proposals in the current
Government consultation: restoring trust in
audit and corporate governance.

Building on the three significant reviews in

the last couple of years -the Competition and
Markets Authority (CMA) Market Study, the
Kingman Review and the Brydon Review - the
UK audit-sector, the audit profession, dudit
regulation, and the quality of the audit product,
have never been under greater scrutiny.

.+ Key legisl and latory obli The Committee will continue to oversee the
including data ey demic-related pment of plans for i readiness
regulation and oversight of Government in resp! I the curvent -
plans for audit and governance reform External Auditor

- strengthening controls over financial
reporting;

+ Cyber risk and data loss prevention,
including strengthening of our information
‘security capability;

. Progress against business and finance
systems transformation;

Updates on the governance policies review
and reporting; .

Reviewing significant accounting
judgements and estimates;

The valuation of assets and stock and the
calculation of associated provisions;

The effectiveness of hedge oé:ounting
.and the management of foreign currency
exposures;

Property and the systems in place to ensure
impairments are recognised on a timely
basis; - .

46

The Committee was pleased to recommend the
reappointment of RSM as External Auditor for
FY21 following a robust external audit review of
FY20. The length of tenure of RSM as external
auditors is 2 years.

RSM has reported to the Committee that, in its
professional judgment, it is indep: within
the meaning of regulatory and professional
requirements and the objectivity of the audit
engagement partner and audit staff is not
impaired. The Audit Committee Ras ossessed
the independence if the auditor, and concurs
with this statement.

The Committee evaluates the effectiveness of
the external cudit process on an ongoing basis
and makes recommendations annually to the
Board on the External Auditor's reappointment.
The External-Auditor is then proposed for
reappointment (as applicable) each year at the

In making its recommendations to the Board,

the Committee considers a number of factors
relating to the level of service provided by the
External Auditor, the quality of its work and its
independence. These include:

+  The quality and scope of the planning of
the external audit, including the External
Auditor's assessment of risks and how it
intends to evolve the audit plan to respond
to changes in the business;

*  The quality and timeliness of the External

Auditor’s reports to the Committee and the
- Board during the year;

The level of understanding that the External
Auditor has demonstrated in relation to the
Group's businesses and the retail sector;

The objectivity of the External Auditor’s view
on any deficiencies in internal control which
came to its attention during the course of its
audit-work, and the robustness of challenge
and its findings o areas which require
management judgement;

* The contents of any external reports or

regulatory statements published in respect
of the External Auditor; and

* The nature and scope of non-audit services *

provided by the External Auditor and the
level of fees charged for these services.

We have a stringent policy and approval
process in place in respect of non-audit
services and our view is to keep this type of
engagement minimal unless in exceptional
but reasonable circumstances, and in line with
Group policy.

Opinion On The Annual Report And Accounts

The Boord has asked the Committee to advise
it.on whether the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and
understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the
Group's position, performance, business model
and strategy.
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The Committee has reviewed the process
for preparing this Annual Report in order to
assess whether other information contained
in it is consistent with the Group's financial
statements for the 52 weeks ended 25 April
2021. This process has included the following
key elements:

* Reviewing new regulations and reporting
requirements with external advisers
to identify additional information and
disclosures that may be appropriate;

*+  Preparing a detailed timetable and
allocation of drafting responsibility to
relevant internal teams with review by an
appropriate senior manager;

+  Providing an explanation of the.requirement *
for the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, to be fair, balanced and
understandable, to those with drafting
responsibility; B

*  Monitoring the integrity. of the financial
statements and other information provided
to shareholders to ensure they represent
a clear and accurate assessment of the
Group's financial position and performance;

*  Reviewing significant financial reporting
issues and judgements contained in the
financial statements;

Review of all sections of the Annual Report
by relevant external advisers;

*  Review by the senior manager working
group responsible for the Annual Report
process; and -

Overall review of the contents of the Annual
Report and Financial Statements for the
period under review.

The Committee. has advised the Board that
it considers the Annual Report and Financial
Statements for the year ended 25 April 2021,
when taken as a whole, to be fair, balanced

. and understandable and that they provide the

necessary information to assess the Group's
position, performance, business model and
strategy.
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Significant Financial Reporting Issues

The C il has i d the fe ing areas of sit during the period and held
discussions with management and the External Auditor in reviewing these matters. The Committee is
satisfied with how each of these matters has been discussed and addressed.

‘CMA Order 2014 Statement Of Compliance

Frasers Group confirms that it was in compliance with the provisions of The Stotutory Audit Services
for Large Companies Market Investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Processes and
Audit Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014 during the financial period ended 25 April 2021. The
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C i haos d d oll the items above in detail with the External Auditor.
Review Of The Committee’s Effectiveness

The annual review of the Commiittee's effectiveness was included in the externally facilitated Board
evalugtion during the period. The Committee is pleased to see the positive outcome of that report, as
well as its observations and recommendations.

The Committee has i e and annual planning cycle in the year and will continue
to build on this in FY22. | monitor and assess the effectiveness of the Committee regularly as Chair
and invite input from the External Auditor on this.

Key Objectives For FY22
The Committee's key obiecti'ves for FY22 are:

+ Continue to momtor the impacts of the pandemlc on our business, its performcnce, its response
cnd its financial position;

Oversee the of plans in to the

trust in oudit and corporate governance;

's reform p Is: restoring

Monitor continuous improvement of the Group's systems of risk management and internal control;

Maintain a strong relationship with our External Auditor and engagement on the delivery of a
robust, efficient and effective external audit; and

Strengthen assurarice activity across the Group based on the three lines model, (uécountability,
actions, assurance).
Richard Bottomley . ) .

Chair of the Audit Committee and
Senior Independent Non-executive Director

5 August 2021

Prir!ied on Steinbeis 100°% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust, helping to create new Brtish waodland across the UK . -
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder

To meet the Group's needs, the Nomination
Committee must ensure thot the Board
remains competent, diverse, well balanced and
equipped to deal with any present or future
issues which may arise. It is also important
that the Nomination Committee both supports
ond chall the decisions of the E i
Directors, which includes reviewing the Group's
leadership and making recommendations
regarding the dppointment of new Directors
and extending the term of office of existing
Directors.

Biographical details of each Committee
member are shown in the Board of Directors
profiles on pages 37 to 39. )

The Nomination Committee usually meets
formally twice a year, although additional
meetings take place when appropriate. The
Committee formally met three times during
FY21, with all meetings being held virtually due
to the Covid-19 pandemic. The Committee
members also had o number of informal
discussions during the year. All members of

Directors and senior mcnc§ement,

taking irito account the challenges and
opportunities facing the Group and the
skills and expertise therefore needed on the
Board;

+ Formally documenting the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors;

Identifying potential candidates for senior
posts, and making recommendations to the
Board; and

+  Considering the r dations to
shareholders for re-electing the Directors,
under the annual re-election provisions of
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code.

A full list of the Committee's responsibilities
are set out in its Terms of Reference which are
available on the Group Website: www.frasers.
group.

What Has The Committee Done During

The Year?

Board Nominations

* The Committee :onsideréd and
re d to the Boord the,

the Nomi C i are N
Directors and, with the exception of the Chair,
are considered to be independent. :

The ibilities Of The i
Committee Include:

+  Reviewing the leadership needs of the
Group, looking at both Directors and senior
management;

* Reviewing the composition, structure and
size of the Board, and recommending
-adjustments to the Board, having regard to
diversity, skills, kr and i

reappointment of Cally Price as Non-
executive Workforce Director. In moking
this recommendation, the Committee
recognised the enormous value and
contribution that Cally brings to the Board.
She provides great insight and perspective
on all important issues that affect the
performance of the workforce across the
organisation.

* The Committee considered and
recommended the ‘election or re-election
of all Directors at the AGM, following

« Reviewing-the time the Non-executive
Directors are required to spend discharging
their duties;

of the Board, candidates to fill Board
vacancies as and when they arise;

» Considering succession planning for
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Identifying and nominating, for the approval

of their effecti and
commitment.

Composition of the Board

+ The Committee has reviewed the Boord's
compasition and we continue to look to add
talented people to the Board, who will bring
the appropriate skills and experience. The
restrictions as a consequence of Covid-19
lockdowns have slowed the process but we
remain committed to strengthening our
Board. We have again spoken to Audeliss
recruitment which specialises in recruiting
diverse talent and we have also had
discussions with o number of candidates
with strong experience and a background in
HR. Audeliss has no other connection with
the Company or any of its Directors.

» In considering new appointments to
the Board, the Committee will identify
suitable candidates to fulfil the skill-sets
required, by taking into account succession
planning and diversity objectives. Members
of the Committee and the executive
management team will then meet with the

fidate before the C i il

recommending the appointment to the
Board.

Board Evaluation

* Belinda Hudson Ltd was engaged
to conduct the FY20 external Board
evaluation. Due to restrictions caused by

- the Covid-19 pandemic this was delayed

until FY21. Neither the Company nor any of
its Directors has any other connection with
Belinda Hudson Ltd. The evaluation was
conducted via one-to-one interviews with
individuél Directors and key members of
senior management. This is discussed within
the Board Review report,

Annual Performance Appraisals

All Board members, both Executive and
Non-Executive, went through an annual
performance review during FY21 and each
Director engaged fully in the process. This
included setting objectives for each individual. |
led these appraisals, as Chair of the Board and
the Nomination Committee. This process will be
repeated annually. Richard Bottomley, Chair of
the Audit Committee and Senior Independent
Non-executive Director, led my performance
appraisal and goal setting.
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The Directors will take into account any
development needs identified in their appraisals
and will be challenged on how they have taken
action against these goals during their next
onnual appraisal.

Diversity and Inclusion

The Boord reviewed various diversity and
inclusion policies from other companies, to
enable us to benchmark ourselves against
industry stondards. As a consequence we have
now updated our Board Diversity policy, which
can be found on.our website at

.https://frasers.group/

The Board hos two female Directors,
représenting 28% of the Board. There is
currently no representation from ethnic minority
backgrounds on the Board. However, we note
the contents of the Hampton Alexander Report
and the Parker Review for FTSE 250 companies
and we are continually seeking to increase
diversity at Board level, as reflected in our
objectives below.

The Group's objectives in relation to Board
divérsity and inclusion are:

« To ensure that the Boord has an appropriote
mix of skills, experience and knowledge,
to ensure o variety of perspectives are
represented on the Board and enable the
Board to effectively oversee and support the
Group's growth and management;

To maintain Board representation from
the workforce, which brings the voice of
colleagues into the boardroom, supports
our strategy of investing in our people and
enables the Board to effectively oversee
and support the Group's growth and
management.

« To increase female representation on the
Board to 33%, in line with the Hampton
Alexander target; and

+ To strive'to appoint at least one Director
of colour to the Board by 2024, as
R recommended by the Parker Review.

The Group achieved its Diversity policy
objective in respect of gender and age, by
having a strong gender balance in senior
management and their direct reports (see
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gender diversity table of page 23, and a varied
representation of ages in middle and senior~
mancgement. When reviewing candidates

who moy become potential Board members,
the Committee has regard to factors including
P ional experience, skills, edt ion,
gender, ethnicity and background to ensure ,

a variety of perspectives are represented at
Board level. As discussed above, we have been
working with a recruitment agent specialising in
diverse candidates. The Board is conscious that
to successfully deliver the strategic goals of

the business our people, including the Board of
Directors must reflect the diverse cultures and
values of our customer base.

The Committee recognises the advantages

of having a diverse team and has therefore
reviewed the composition of the senior
management team, inctuding their direct
reports. A number of senior management
roles were held by women at period end,
including the Head of Internal Audit and Risk
Management and UK Financial Controller. Our
senior leadership team is 27% female, whilst
the overall UK workforce is approximately 52%
female.

We were pleased that our most recent Gefder.
Pay Gap Report showed a reduction in the
median gender pay gap within our largest
relevant subsidiary (SPORTSDIRECT.com Retail
Limited) to 0%. However, we will continue to
explore ways to address other gender pay gap
differences within our business.

Further details on diversity and inclusion are set
out in the Our People Report. -

Frasers Group Elevation Programme

During FY21, we worked with We are Wiser to
launch the Group's new Elevation Programme.
This has resulted in the recruitment of a diverse
mix of talent, with the potential to become the'
future leaders of the Group.

David Daly

Chair of the Nomination Committee _

S August 21 ‘_
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FRASERS GROUP

EXTERNAL BOARD REVIEW

We recognise that some of the main driving
forces behind the success of Frasers Group

She compiled a comprehensive report which
covered all aspects of board and committee

are our Board, Ct i and

teams. To ensure we are getting the best from
our Board, we undertook an independent review
of our Board and Committee effectiveness. We
hoped that this review would provide insight
and clarity into how our leadership team is
performing, especially when benchmarked
against other listed companies, as well as
highlight areas of improvement that would

.add value to the Group and ensure we become

market leaders in governance and best
practice.

In Janugry 2020, the Board agreed to engage
Belinda Hudson Limited to undertake a review
of our Board and Committee effectiveness.
Belinda is a recognised expert in enhancing
board effectiveness and has over 15 years'
experience working with Boards, Committees
and directors of FTSE 350 companies. Belinda
Hudson Limited has no other connection with
the Group or any of its Directors.

The Board review was originally due to be
completed prior to the April 2020 financial

year end. However, it was deferred when the
first lockdown was initiated as there was a
strong preference for conducting face to face
interviews, As it became clear that face to face
meetings would not be an option for some
time, it was decided to proceed with remote
meetings early in 2021 to ensure that evaluation
of the Boord's performance could be conducted
by the end of the April 2021 financial year.

Methodology

Belinda ¢ i i 1e-to-or
discussions with members of the Board and

a selection of senior management who have
regular interaction with, and support the Board
and Committees. She attended the February
2021 Board meeting for observational purposes.
Belinda was given unfettered access to the
previous 12 months' Board and Committee
papers and minutes and governance

* documents to inform her review.
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P . It was broken down into the
following categories:

- Board composition and dynamics
- The Board's role

- The Board at work

- Committees

The report was presented to and discussed with
the Board at the April 2021 Board meeting.

Outcomes ) .

The report highlighted the many strengths of
the Board and Committees and contained

. several recommendations for further

development. The Board accepts the
recommendations and where necessary, is
taking steps to implement them.

Belinda's findings in each section were as
follows:

Board Composition and Dynamics.

The report found that “the Board at Frasers
Group has enjoyed a good period of stability
since the CFO was appointed in September
2019. The Board has strengthened and is
becoming increasingly effective under the
leadership of the current Chair with strong
support from the Senior Independent Director
and others.” .

The Board ition benefits significantly
from the inclusion of a full-time employee

as the Non-executive Workforce Director
and Workers' Representative. It provides the
Board with “full transparency and visibility on

. the perspective of the workforce without any

filters” and very strong insights into workforce
engagement. - . .

Despite some previous investor opposition to

the Chair, the review presented o positive view

of the Chair. He brings many relevant and
useful strengths and is growing into the role
well, Board members and Senior Management
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were unanimous in their agreement that he was
an excellent choice for the role. He

Despite the challenges identified, the overall
of the Board's ition, senior

“invaluable knowledge and experience
relating to the sector, ecosystem and brand
relationships” and his relationship with the
Chief Executive “is based on openness and
transparency as well as mutual trust and
respéct. The relationship appears robust so
that they can challenge each other and handle
disagreement”. The Chair is committed to
developing his skills and addressing the gaps in
his knowledge. .

The overall view of the Senior Independent
Director and other Non-executive Directors of
the Board was positive. They are all diligent -
and focused on acting in the best interests of
the Group. They bring with them a breadth
of knowledge ond experience that they

are willing to share both inside and outside
the boardroom. The Senior Independent
Director plays a very useful role in developing
external relationships through networking and
promoting the Group in a positive light.

The leadership provided by the Chief

Executive was described as being inspirational,
honest, transparent and collaborative. The
Chief Executive plays a pivotal role in the
success of the Group. He adopts a positive

and constructive attitude to the Board and |
welcomes input and challenge from the
Non-executive Directors. The review highlighted
the disparity between internally held views of
the Chief Executive and the Chief Executive's
external reputation. He is taking steps to
remedy the impact his external reputation

has on the Group by stepping back from his
external facing roles - to enable the next
generation of talent within the Group to elevate

“the external reputation of the Group.

The review has identified some oreas of
suggested development including the
recruitment of a Non-executive Director

with strong listed company experience and
achieving a greater degree of diversity in Board
composition. While the Board benefits from
good gender diversity, it lacks age and ethnic
diversity. The Nomination Committee will seek
to address these issues during the next financial
year.
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leadership and dynamics was overwhelmingty
positive. Members of the Board and Executive
Ci it enjoy positive relationships and
generally engage in positive Board behaviours.

The Board's Role

Board members have a good understanding of
the role’ of the Board, but further development
is needed to ensure that the Board fulfils all
aspects of its role and strengthens certain
aspects of the Group's corporate governance.
These issues are already being addressed

by the Board following a report produced by
external advisors. )

Belinda noted that the Board offers a good mix
of support and challenge and adds value on
many fronts. The Non-executive Directors make
@ good contribution to the Group in ways that
go beyond the usual remit of Non-executive
Directors. The introduction of the strategy

day has been very “positive and useful” and
leaves scope for further development. The
current oversight that the Board exercises over
the financial and operational performance

is sound. Areas where improvements can be -
made include stakeholder focus and oversight
of health and safety. However, it has been
highlighted that the Board took great interest
in the health and safety of the workforce during
the pandemic.

It is encouraging that the Board is increasingly
focusing on people related matters, has
employed experts to review and develop its
employer volue proposition and is actively
pursuing e strategy of developing a younger
cadre of management to support the
sustainability of the Group. The intention of
communicating a positive culture from the
top appears to be effective; as Non-executive
Directors have made positive reports that
“there is a strong sense of opportunity and
trust enjoyed by employees.” The Board is

also driving the agenda of increasing diversity
and inclusion throughout the Group with the
CFO and Non-Executive Workforce Director
and Workers' Representative leading the
initiative. The Board is robust, has influence and

communicates a positive culture whilst leaving
room for further growth and development as
the business grows.

The Board at Work

The current arrangements for the frequency of
formal Board meetings have been assessed as
appropriate and beneficial as they meet the
needs of the Non-executive Directors without
placing unnecessary burden on the Executives.
The format of the meetings has also been
commended as it gives the members ample
opportunity to interact outside the meetings
and develop their relationships.

The information provided to the Board is
generally of a good quality and is presented in
a very open and transparent manner. However,
improvements can be made to the timeliness

in which it is provided. There was concern that
the Company Secretarial team was-sometimes
overwhelmed but this team has recently been
strengthened with the recruitment of two new
hires and is better placed now to provide strong
support to the Board and Committees.

Committees

The review of the Committees was equally
encouraging. Although areas of improvement
have been identified for each of the
Committees, the overarching conclusion was
that they are becoming increasingly effective in
carrying out their functions.

The Audit Committee has become more
effective under the leadership of the Chair.
His background as a partner in a Big Four
accounting firm means he brings useful and
relevant experience. The Chair's management
of meetings has been commended and

the Committee enjoys good support from
management. .

It has also been recognised that the
Committee's oversight of risk governonce

has seen significant improvements with the
recruitment of the new Head of Internal

Audit who has made good progress in the
further development of the risk

framework and is “bringing increased rigour to
the work of Internal Audit.”

The Audit Committee enjoys a relationship with
the External Auditors that is collaborative and
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positive but also robust and challenging.

The review has highlighted the "very positive
and extensive role” the Remuneration
Committee has played in the development of
the Fearless 1000 share plan which secured
strong shareholder support at the October
2020 AGM. The Group is currently spearheading
numerous initiatives to overhoul policies and
processes to ensure it offers competitive

- packages to employees with strong drive

and support from the Committee and input
provided by external remuneration consultants.
David Daly

Chair of the Nomination Committee

5 August 2021
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

Dear Shareholder,

As the Chair of the Remuneration Committee
{the “Committee’) | am pleased to present
our Directors' Remuneration Report for the
year ended 25 April 2021. This report is split
into three parts: this Annual Statement, the
Policy Report and the Annual Report on
Remuneration.

Actions Taken In FY21 And Impacts On Pay

A key context for decisions taken by the
Committee in 2020 was the impact of Covid-19
on our business. Following the onset of the
Covid-19 pandemic in late Q12020, the
Committee supported the.actions taken by our
Board in relation to pay and wider colleague
welfare. These actions were considered
appropriate to align to the experience and
perspective of our shareholders and other
stakeholders, including our colleagues.

The actions taken included the following:

+ from May 2020 due to the impact of the
-Covid-19 pandemic, our CFO, together
with the Chief Commercial Officer and
the Non-executive Directors agreed, in
order to assist the Company, to make the.
personal sacrifice of reducing their salary, or
respective fees, to £40,000 per annum, This
treatment applied until October 2020, at
which time withheld amounts were paid;

« colleague welfare was prioritised:

+ from Mérch 2020, we sent home all
colleagues over the age of 60 or those
with underlying health issues which was
over and above Government guidance
whilst continuing to pay them in full;

in the UK we paid virtually all of our
contracted colleagues {including “casual
workers” } in full during March, April, May
dnd June 2020 even though our stores
were closed for the vast majority of that
time; and
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« although the business has accessed
i .

upport

including furlough and business rates
relief, we used these programmes in the
way in which we understood these to
be applied, and the consequence has
been that there have been no major
redundancy rounds within our business
despite extended lockdown periods.

+  the wider societal contribution of the
business was supported:

we offered our fleet of vehicles to the
NHS for transporting vital equipment to
where it was most needed; and

+ we also offered NHS staff discounts on
bikes ond sporting goods equipment in
our Evans and Sports Direct stores. On
15 June 2020, in England, we offered
a 50% discount to all NHS staff in our
Sports Direct stores as a gesture of
goodwill to these fantastic individuals
as our stores re-opened. It was an
overwhelming success with gross sales
of approximately £50m before discount
and approximately £25m after discount.

Against this background, we were very pleased
to be able to launch the new incentive plan

for our colleagues which we are calling the
Fearless 1000 and which was approved by over
99.9% of our shareholders voting at the 2020
AGM. The Fearless 1000 could pay out £100m
in shares if our share price reaches £10 at any
time during the performance period. The share
price must stay above £10 for 30 i

Following the successful launch of the Fearless
1000 plan in October 2020, the UK entered into
lockdown in December 2020 and a significant
portion of our stores were temporarily closed.
This has the potential to limit our ability to

hit the share price targets thot apply to the
plon. We have therefore decided to extend

the performance period for the Fearless 1000
plan, which will now end in October 2025
(being a total performance period of five years).
As a result of this change, the performance
period for the Fearless 1000 and the proposed
Executive Share Scheme (explained further
below) will be aligned.

In terms of senior executive remuneration in
Fy21

* Mike Ashley has not received any *
remuneration from the Company since
before the Public Offering in 2007 and
continues to decline any remuneration in his
role of Chief Executive;

» asnoted above, our CFO's salary was
reduced to'the equivalent of £40,000 p.a.
from May 2020 until October 2020; and

no LTIP award operated for senior
executives in FY21, and the CFO and other
selected senior executives were specifically
excluded from participation in the Fearless
1,000 plan.

“Against the background of our overall modest
itioning on ive pay and idering

the CFO's exceptional-efforts in leading the

company through a period of unprécedented

challenge to produce the resilient performance

that is detailed elsewhere in this report, the

C has decided that it is appropricte

trading days to trigger the vesting of shares at
the end of the vesting period which could see
10 colleagues receiving shares worth £1m if the
share price is at £10 at the vesting dates. One
thousand of our Fearless colleagues, who live
and breathe our values, thinking without limits,
not hesitating and owning it, will be eligible to
receive share bonuses ranging from £50k right
up to £1m if the share price is at £10 at the
vesting dates.

to award our CFO a bonus of £100,000 for FY
2020/2021(67% of base salary). In awerding
this bonus, the Committee considered a range
of performance factors, including Group

* financial performance, progress on strategic

and personal perfe 1ce. This

award was paid as a cash sum.

The Committee exercised what it regards as
normal commercial judgement in respect of
Directors’ remuneration throughout the year
{and in all cases in line with the Company's
Director's remuneration policy).
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There were no other exercises of judgement or
discretion by the Committee save os detailed in
this report.

Revised R
Pay InFY21

ion Policy And Operation Of

At the 2021 Annual General Meeting {AGM') we
are asking shareholders to renew our 3-year
Director’s remuneration policy (*policy”) which
was last approved at our AGM in 2018 (98.8%
approvall. .

Where any changes have been made to the
2018 policy, these are highlighted in the policy
report section. In particular, we are making
three changes in the operation of Executive
Director pay.

CFO's Salary

«  Chris Wootton's salary has been increased
to £250,000 p.a. from st May 2021 (FY21:
£150,000 p.a.).

Chris joined the Board of Directors in
September 2019, with this being his first
main Board CFO role at a listed PLC. Since
that time Chris has grown and developed in
the role of CFO and his strong performance,
leadership and contribution to developing
the strategic direction of the business is
considered to merit an appropriate review
of his salary level at this time, now that he
has been in post for approximately

18 months.

+  Asa Committee we are content that even
with this increase the salary level for our
CFO remains amongst the lowest in the
FTSE 250.
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Board Succession

As a Remuneration Committee we fully support the prospective changes within our Board and senior
team more fully described in the announcement dated Sth August 2021, Although some of these
changes will not become effective until later in the three-year period in which our new policy will
operate, we already know some of the detail around how we want pay arrangements for our new
senior executive team to be aligned to, and support, the growth and elevation strategy which our
Board succession changes will seek to accelerate and deliver.

. Accordingly, where we are able to do so, in the new policy we hove set out'details of proposed

incentive arrangements for our Executive Directors (both current and prospective) and particularly

.our new Executive Share Scheme, as described below. Any further details of pay arrangements for

new Executive Director appointments will be disclosed ct the appropriate time when they join the

Board.

New LTIP To Align To Principles Of Fearless 1000

At our 2021 AGM, We will be seeking shareholders’ approval for a new share plan (&he “Executive

Share Scheme'’)

which seeks to opply many of the principles of the Fearless 1000 to an LTIP. Three

awards, each subject to a £12 share price target, will be initially made to Chris Wootton (CFO), Sean
Nevitt (Chief Commercial Officer) and David Al-Mudallal (COO). An award, subject to a £15 share

price.target, is also proposed to be made to Michael Murray when, as anticipated, he joins the Board.

The key terms, and how these compare to the key terms of the Fearless 1000, are summarised below:

EXECUTIVE SHARE SCHEME

FEARLESS 1000 PLAN

AWASD LEVELS

Threg initiod owards are expectod
to b made to the CFO, Chief
Commercial Officer and COO over 18
millian shores in tota} {600,000 shares
maximum per persant

Aslingle award is expected to bo
made 1o Michael Murray, an his
‘appointment to the Boord, over
671,409 shares in total, being a
number of shares which ot o share
price of £15 per shoro lles the 10p
per share nominal volue of those
shares) wil be worth £100million

The value of awards can be reducad "
by the value of salaries paid in the
period to vesting

10 milion shares in total
100,000 shares maximum per person
{0r10p 10 performers worth Elmilion
each for those individuals ot £10 per
sharel: further allocations between
athors in the top 1000

TIMING OF AWARDS

Awards to CFO, Chief Commercial
Officer nd COO ta be made as soon
as possible after 2021 AGM.

o Michae) Murray to be mode
9 the Board

Award period began following 2020
AGMan 7 October 2020

“TARGET SHARE PRICE FOR VESTING

Eithor £32 per share (for awards to
CFO, Chief Commercial Officer and
€O} or £15 per share Iproposad
award to Michaol Murray

£10 per shore

PERFORMANCE PERIOD

Up to 4 years from AGM 2021

Up 105 yeors from AGM 220
(extended by ) year due to impact of
the Cavid19 pondemic) .

POTENTIAL VESTING DATES

1f the share price target is achicvod
by Octaber 2025: awards vest In two.

1 £10 target achieved by October
2025: awards vest in two squat

50% 1 year later The Cammittee may

tranches. 50
1year later The Committee moy

corly if the
€15 shore price target is achloved.
Howaver, shares

early if the
£15 share price target is achieved.
Howeve, shares e

delivered in two wranches
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The extension of the performance period

for the Fearless 1000 plan is seen to benefit
participants as it provides an additional period
to achieve the £10 share price target given that
the difficulties ossociated with the Covid-19
pandemic have impacted the business in the
first year of the Fearless 1,000 plan.

As a Committee, we consider it very important
to olign Executive Directors and senior
executives to the aspiration of the Fearless
1000, albeit at an enhanced performance
target of £12 or £15 as appropriate.  *

Chair And Non-executive Director Fees

Although not a matter for the Remuneration
Committee (being a matter reserved for the
Board), the Board has delegated responsibility
for setting the remuneration of the Chair to the
Remuneration Committee which has carried
out a review of the Chair’s fees and of the
Non-executive Directors’ fees. As a result of that
review the Board has decided to increase fee
levels for the Chair and Non-executive Directors
os detailed on page 58. This is the first increase
in fees to the Chair and Non-executive Directors
since the IPO in 2007. *

Format Of The Report And Matters,To Be
Approved At Our 2021 AGM

At the 2021 AGM, shareholders will be asked to
approve three resolutions related to Directors’
remuneration matters. These resolutions are:

* to approve the Directors’ Remuneration
Policy; .

* to approve the Directors' Remuneration
Report; and

to introduce the new Executive Share
Scheme described above.

The vote to approve the Directors’
Remuneration Report is the normal annual
advisory vote on such matters.

If approved by our shareholders, the Directors’
Remuneration Policy will apply for o maximum
of three years from the 2021 AGM and will
replace the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
previously approved at the 2018 AGM.

For completeness, a resolution will also be
proposed at the 2021 AGM to ame.nd the
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Fearless 1000 plan for consistency with the
Executive Share Scheme with regards to
potential acceleration of the vesting and
release of shares if the £15 share price target for
the award to Michael Murray is achieved.

| hope that our shareholders remain supportive
of our approach to executive pay at Frasers
and vote in favour of the resolutions on

. remuneration matters to be tabled at the 2021
AGM. :

David Brayshaw
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

5 August 2021

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
POLICY ’

This report contains the material required

to be set out as the Directors' Remuneration
Report for the purposes of Part 4 of The
Large and Medium-sized Companies and
Groups (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment)
Regulations 2013, which amended The Large
and Medium-sized Companiies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 ('the
DRR Regulations’).

This part of the report sets out the Company's
proposed Directors’ Remuneration Policy

- which, subject to shareholder approval, shall

take binding effect from the date of the 2021
AGM and remain valid until the 2024 AGM.

The proposed Policy is determined by the
Committee, and key proposed changes to
elements of the current Directors’ Remuneration
Policy, which was approved by shareholders

at the 2018 AGM and expires at the 2021 AGM
bhdve been highlighted for ease. As explained
in the statement from the Chair of the
‘Remuneration Committee, the Remuneration
Committee has decided to introduce a new
executive share scheme that appropriately
aligns Executive Directors’ interests with

the interests of shareholders by focusing on
absolute shareholder value, and intends to
seek shareholder approval for the Executive
Shore Scheme at the 2021 AGM. Consequential
changes have been made as to reflect the
changes to the Remuneration Policy.
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. "' FUTURE POLICY TABLE .

The table below describes each of the of the rerr

Executive Directors.

PURPOSE / LINK TO STRATEGY

package for the

MAXIMUM PERFORMANCE MEASURES

CHANGES TO POLICY TO BE APPROVED AT

REMUNERATION . . . OPERATION THE 2021 AGM
BASE SALARY Fixed element of the remuneration package, where the Basa salaries are v s for thon  Not applicable. Na change.
bolance of fixed and variable remuneration s aligned to Mike Ashley, who does ot currently receive a salary) are
strotegy of ik v asalary lor his  set ot levels below the amounts typically paid by similar
and et tha Compeny remunertion hiosophy of role - sied comparies, he Commites eoinsdisretion o
. N performance with a sharlng of risk u levels considered soposiae for the
Serweon Exocutes Dector s consigeing i sre ond complontn
BENERITS it e excepton of 0 70% olleogue dicounton  Tha curantExeculive Dietorsdorot eceean ‘Athough the Remmuneration. Commiteshos ot set on ot aplicabie Na change,
products purchosed from the Group's retail stores, which iscount whieh s ot benefits Exacutive Director
is availabla to Exceutive irectors othar than Mike avallable for Mike Ashley. may teceive, tha Compony retains discraion o set
. X Ashley, no additionat benefits are genarally available . " benefits ot a leved which the Rersrction Committes .
1o Executive Directars, The seme leve) of discount is ¥ ogainst o
4 ‘avalable to all calleagues. (o 76cnit 0 now acutive Dirctor taing o accoum.  uppor th angoing ey of e Company. .
individual circumstances: Such
enelis moy nclu rlscaton expenes mor iy
. detailed in ‘Approoch to Recritment Remuneratiort
. ey
RETIREMENT Provide post-emplayment bapellts ta recruit and retain  Tho Execulive Directars are entitled ta part The curont mosirum employescontrbuton tothe Nt appiicable. No change.
BENEFITS individuats of the calibre required for the business. der pensi stakeholdei .
. employees.
The Committee moy increase emplayer contribution .
On request this benefit i i
supplement n liew of o necessary.
ANNUAL BONUS Diector for per i ther thon Mike Ashiey, may earn  The moximum bonus thit an Exaculive Aay bonus Dppur\uﬂil‘{shuﬂ bo assessed against one or  No change. .
N supports the Group's strategy and abonus. 100% of salary + ear shall be 200% of sal financial  mora ond finked
would bo deferred inta shares for o period of twa years,  yaar. - tothe Company's umlagyund/ev(hl performance
. wnless the amount to be doferred amount. would be less . of the E»ecutive Director with the weighting
than £10,000. The Committee also & discrction Detwoen tha metics determinad by the Coronitios
0t to operate deferral in an excoptional case and i olevans. Bonuses wil bo determined between 0%
. whera salory paid in the yeor was £250,000 o less. and 100% cf the maximum apportunity based on the
‘Committee's assessment of the applicabe metrics. .
Any bonus paid would be subject to clawback for o .
period of 3 years following its determination i The annual bonus plan i a discretionary arrangement
. event of gross misconduct, materiol misstatement of the and the Cammitee retains a standard power to apply
Company's financial statements or corporate fallure. itsjudgement to adjust the outcome of the annual bonus .
. . pln for any perlormance measure (from zera ta any
: cap) should it consider that to be appropriote.
LonG, ExeculiveOirectors, thar than Mike Ashley, may raceive For awards witha €15 shere price fargeL. the maximum  Awords willvest subject to on absolute e Introductian of the Ex:(u!we Share Scheme, uhich s our
of i he o i i target of either £12 or £35. o ovor at will roward our senlor
to promte alignment . mayhe nominal cost optians or conditional the target for any period o4 30 cansocutiva deaiing dars exmuties i ochiering eined ertrmence ove e
- E shore ich vest to the axtent . duting the four-year performanca period long tes
Scheme. - canditions are satisfied aver a pericd of four years. For awards with a £12 share prica target, the maximum
X ‘oppartunity for an Executive Oiector will be an award  The Committee may set additional performance
. . The Comittee shaft hove discretion ta reduce the hares. conditions on awords under the Executlve Shara
- umber of Shares subject to on oward granted under Scheme, as it considers appropriate.
. the Exccuiive Shore Schem by an amount equal to the
th performance period. .
Clowback and mluspreisionsapsly o overds ranted
undir tha € Sehirme. Ay amounts
. Teceiod urr the xecuivs s S oy & bn
' subject to clawback for a period of 3 years followi B '
the and of the performana perio n he even of 055
. misconduct, matericl misstalement of tha Compony's . .
. - financial stotemens, eorporate failure of reputational . .
damage. -
As s normal, the Committee retains power o settle :
Gwards in cash in exceptianal cases only. .
53
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The table below sets out an overview of the approach to remuneration for the Chair and

Non-executive Directors.

PURPOSE / LINK F THE

Chair and Non-executive Director fees

O

in respoct of the i
which ceflect the responsibiliies and duties placed upon them, while also having regard to morket

Provide cn appropriote reward to attract and proctice.
rotain Dicectars of the colibee required lor the
business. Non-executive Directors receive a fixed annual fee.
the i 2 ‘and are not entitied

or
‘bonus and share

The irector is entitied to

Nan-execulive Directors may be eligible for benefits such as the use of secratarlal support, travel costs
or other bencfits that may be appropriate. -

The oggregate fees and any benelits of the Non-executlu
Worklorce Director) will not exceed the limit from time

irectars fincluding the Non-executive
ime set out in the Company's Articles of

Association for such fees. This is currently £500,000 p.a. in aggregote. A resalution will be put to
e o)

does not

reftect eny forin of aspiration.

Expl ion Of Perf Chosen

Any bonus opportunity would be Subject

to performance metrics determined by the
Committee and linked to the Company’s
strategy and/or the performance of the
Executive Director in role. The metrics and
performance against them would be disclosed
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report in which
payment of the bonus was disclosed, or if
later when they were no longer considered
commercially sensitive. Any performance
measure may be varied or substituted by the
Committee if an event occurs which causes
the Committee to determine that it would be .
appropriate to do so. The rationale for any such
variction or substitution would be given in the
next Directors’ Remuneration Report.

The proposed Executive Share Scheme will be
subject to o performance measure determined
by reference to the Company share price as
well as personal performance. This metric has
been chosen as it aligns the interest of the
Executive Director with those of shareholders.
The target share price required for vesting

is considered stretching {being either £2 or

£5 obove the target for the Fearless 1000
plan) and will therefore reward sustained
performance over the long-term.
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In addition to the shere price performance
measure, it is intended that awards under the
Executive Share Scheme will be granted subject
to two underpins requiring:

i. . satisfactory performance ratings for each
participont; and .

anticipated delivery of our elevatiol
strategy. -

The purpose of the underpins is to ensure that
a minimum level of performance is achieved
before an award may vest {in addition to
achievement of the share price performance
target). Details of the performance measures
and underpins that apply to each award
granted under the Executive Share Scheme to
an Executive Director will be disclosed in the
appropriate Directors’ Remuneration Report
{subject to considerations of commercial
sensitivity).

ion Of Diffe In i

[l ions Of Application Of

Policy For Other Colleagues

The Company has a large number of colleagues
with different responsibilities and differing levels
of seniority. Reward policies for colleagues
other than Executive Directors are determined
by reference to grade, role, performance and
other relevant factors. The Committee engages
with the wider workforce on the remuneration
policy through the Non-executive Workforce
Director, whose feedback and views are sought
by the Committee.

The Committee has reviewed the solaries, other
ion and other employ conditions
of senior and middle managers throughout
the Group, and has taken them into account in
considering Executive Directors’ salaries and the
crection of new incentive schemes in order to
create a sense of common purpose and sharing
of success. .

In response to those considerations, the Frasers
All-Employee Omnibus Plan (known as “Fearless
1000") was launched following approval by
shareholders at the 2020 AGM. The Fearless
1000 plan is intended to provide a significant
one:off reward for eligible and qualifying
colleagues if a stretching share price growth
target is achieved within a five year period
from the 2020 AGM.). There are two related but
distinct ports to the Fearless 1000 as follows:

« cash bonuses to eligible and qualifying
colleagues in the Company's group, to
reward them for their loyolty and hard work;
and o

share awards to those 1,000 eligible and
qualifying colleagues in the business who
most demonstrate outstanding service and
performance consistent with the Company's
values.

Further details regording the Fearless 1000
are provided in the Our People section of this
Annual Report.

ted on Steinbeis 100°% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new Bntish woodland across the UK

Remuneration Policy

The chart below sets out an illustration of the
policy for FY22 in line with the future policy
table above, The chart provides an illustration
of the total remuneration opportunity that
could arise under four different levels of
performance. No chart is included for Mike
Ashley, who does not receive any remuneration
from the Company. If Michael Murray joins
the Board as anticipated, an updated version
of this disclosure will be provided in the next
Directors’ Remuneration Report following his
appointment. . .
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Chris Wootton, Chief Financial Officer

4000 ~
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Performance

W recivaey [ rersion
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Puformance In Line Maximum

With Expectétians

Performanca

W [ ] shaosrcosomn

For the purposes of the chart, the following assumptions have been made.

SCENARIO

FIXED PAY

soNUs

‘Maximum Remunaration
with 50% Shore
Prica Incraasa

wm

Minimum remuneration

Porformance in fine with

expectations

Bose salary of £250.000.

An amployer pension contribution of
3% of solary, capped o first £50000
of salary.

No benelits [as no benefits are
currently proposed to be provided to
the Executive Directors in FY22 other

which,
in the opinian of the Cormittoe,
cannot bo reffectad In theso charts

—_ e ositsvolusdepends uponthe value

Maxim

wneration with 50%.
share price increase

of the Exceutive Director's purchase).

No bonus earned.

No vesting &1 share owards:

No bonus eorned because in the

opinion of the Comsmitiee, the

performanca metrics will be set
would

No vesting of share awards becouse
in the opinion of tha Committee,

v g
require the ochievement of stretch
performance.

will only vest as o
result of stretch performance.

To i i

When agreeing a remuneration package for the appointment of a new Executive Director, the
Committee will apply the following principles: *

+ the package will be sufficient to attract the calibre of Director required to deliver the Company’s
strategy;

* the Committee wilt seek to ensure thot no more is paid than is necessary; and

the next Annual Report on remuneration, the Committee will explain to shareholders the
rationale for the arrangements implemented.

The Committee will ordinarily seek to impl it the i k with the
elements referred to in the policy table on pages 53 to 54. Consistent with the DRR Regulations, the
Committee retains discretion to make appropriate remuneration decisions outside that policy to
meet the individual umstances of the recruitment, subject to the limits and parometers of this
recruitment remuneration section of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy.

ELEMENT APPROACH

Base sofary and benefits page 53.In fine with the DRR Ragulations.

" - - o——
thera is no formal cap an salaries in relation to o recruitment.

Retirement benefits Aligned with the XY may be provided at
rotas aigned to employes lavel.although the Commitas may provide for such amount to be pald to @

pension arrangement or pald os a supplement to base salory in liew of a pension artangement.

Variable remunaration Any variabla i iva Dir tothe
Pl Diractars'
The
levels. The C to reflect

the circumstances of the recruitment,

The i v i idate to buy-out i
arrangements forteited on leaving  previous employer. in doing so, the Committee will have regard to
refevant performanc

suc} o v the form of cashor
shares) and the timeframe of such arrangements, ’
. Whilasuch awards are exluded frars i i .
at the o higher of the.

fosfaited unnngmlnxx

Buy-out awards will ba subject to forfeitura or clawback on early departure, with 100% belng subject to
forteituro if the Executive Director departs within 12 manths of Jolning, and o sfiding scale down to 50%
il the departure occurs within 12 and 24 months of joining, at the Cammittee's discretion.

Relocation costs. W necessary, il
futther iol years, as it

Is paid than s necessary.

of appaintment and for a
will seck to ensure thot no mora

A bonus of 200% of salary is earned,

Calcufated based on the valua of

00,000 shores {moximum potential
vesting for an award to the CFO
under the new Executive Share
Schemea the end of FY21 (using @
3 monsh averagel.

A bonus of 200% of salary is eamed.

Coleyioted based on the valua of
600,000 shares ot the end of FY21
using a 3 month avéragel pius 0%
share price increaso,

55"

Any share awards referred to in this section will be granted as far as possible’ under the Company'’s -
existing share schemes. If necessary and subject, where relevant, to the limits referred to above,
awards may be granted outside existing share plans as permitted under the Listing Rules, which
allow for the grant of awards to facilitate, in unusual circumstances, the recruitment of an Executive
Director.

Where a position is filled internally, any on-going remuneration obligations or outstanding variable

. pay elements shall be allowed to continue according to their subsisting terms or be adjusted to,

reflect the new appointment as appropriate.

The remuneration package for a newly appointed Non-executive Director would normally be in line
with the policy set out in the future policy table above for Non-executive Directors.

Printed on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captuied through the Woodland. Trust. helpihg to create new Briish woodland across the UK
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Service Contracts And Policy On Payments For Loss Of Office

The Company’s policy is for Executive Directors to be employed on the terms of service contracts

which may be terminated by either the Company or the Executive Director on the giving of not more’

than 12 months’ notice. All Directors are subject to annual re-election.
Executive Directors
Details of each current service contract are set out below:

UNEXPIRED TERM /

CONTRACT BATE aTCE sy GOVERNING LaW

Mike Ashlay - 0272007 12 months* Englond & Wates

Cheis Wootton 06/037200 6 months Englond & Wales
Mr Ashloy's i he notico i he is uncble s duties for over 120 doys in any

consecutive 12 months.

The principles on which the determination of payments for loss of office will be approached are
summarised below:

Payment in ieu of notice

Non-Executive Directors

The Non-executive Director’s enter into an agreement with the Group for a period of three years,
other than the Chair whose agreement continues until terminated in accordance with its terms. The
appointments of the Non-executive Directors may be terminated by elther party on one month's
written notice and in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. Termination would
be immediate in certain circumstances (including the bankruptey of the Non-executive Director).

Non-executive Directors [other than the Non-executive Workforce Director) do not and.are not *
entitled to participate in any bonus or share scheme. The Non-executive Workforce Director is
entitled to participate in employee bonus and share schemes for employ including all-
schemes.

The approach to determining Non-executive Directors pay is to benchmark ourselves against
other companies/retailers within the FTSE 250. Each year the remuneration of all Directors is put
for shareholder approval at the AGM. Last year, 99.81% of shareholders voted in favour of the
remuneration report. )

Non-executive Directors are subject to confidentiality undertakings without limitation in time.

. poyment n lieu af commission, benefits or

holiday entilement) during the i p:nud

The Company may alther ) poy the poyment in e of oicein  lump sur o i s discrtion pay
the d,

rio
e reduced i he event tha the Execuiva Direcor aveins lernctne ncome witi 1 e period..

Mike Ashley does not receive any solary of contractual benefits, and his service contrort does ot
provide for a poyment inlieu of notice.

Annual bonus Wihethor 0 aword  banus i fll o in part n the event of  termination of emplayment would be

number of factors,

o i the Executive Di
during the ion, Typically

ba pro-rated for t i inati i perle
the year of i may be paid
whally incash ot the slction of the Cammitee

poid to "good leavers” and
‘Any bor »

Any deferred bonus i [ inaii hon on dismissal
cause) and be releosed i of the origi
although the Comittes h i

Executive Shore Schema 1 an Executive Director ceoses employment or resigns during the performance period, his unvested
award . Howeve, if the i or the Commi i

‘good leaver’then awards ars retained and may vest In the normal course subject to the performance
condions, Avords il nrmaly be plu rated by relarence 1 the proponion of the pefermance

period for whic tor,if earlier, resignation). The
Eormitees o & ondord ooy v vt pro-roting. Vested bus unexercised awards may normally

be retained by o participant, except in cases of misconduct.

Other payments The right
Syt ors o 3664 et n sy o1 o ssting Il oo o o sy o domages for
breach of such an abligation) o by way of sattlemant or compromise of any cloim arsing in connection
ar employment, . payments
of legol fees to make

an aword on recnuitment of on irector (o buy out i forfeited on

foaving a pravious employer then the leaver provisions for that award would be determined at the time
. of grant. A poyment may olso be mads in respect of occrued but uniaken holldoy. For the avoidance of

doubt, the policy does not includs an explicit cap an tha cost of tesmination payments
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Non-executive Directors are not entitled to receive any compensation on the termination of their
appointment.

Details of the Non-executive Directors’ letters of appointment are set out below:

ND DATE OF
Dateof latterof  APPOINTMENT (subject

- Pesition appointment  to annuclre-slection at

he AGM)

David Daly . Non-cxecutiva Chair 16 July 2020 15t October 2023
Dovid Brayshaw X ive Diractor 23 April 2020 2022
Nicola Frampten *_Non-exccutive Director VOctober 2018 30th Septomber 2021
Diroctor 3 October 2018 2021

Colly Price - "Non-executive Diractar 6 October 2020 Sth October 2022

Copies of the service contracts of Executive Directors and of the appointment letters of the Chair
and Non-Executive Directors are available for inspection ot the Companv s registered office during
normal business hours and at the AGM.

Payments Outside The Policy In This Report

The Committee retains discretion to make any remuneration payment or payment for loss of office
outside the policy in this report:

where the terms of the payment were agreed before the policy came into effect;

where the terms of the payment were agreed at a time when the relevant individual was not
a Dwector of the Company ond in the opinion of the Committee, the payment was not in
v ion of the individh a Director of the Company; or

*  tosatisfy contractual commitments made under legacy remuneration arrangements.

For these y " includes the of awards of variable remuneration and,
in relation to an cword over shares, the terms of the payment are “agreed” at the time the award is
granted.
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Engagement With Shareholders

The Committee consults major shareholders
and ive groups where appropri
concerning remuneration matters.

General representations have been received
from investors regarding overall FTSE
remuneration. The Committee has due regard
to the Investment Association principles, and
is always happy to receive feedback from
shareholders. There have been no changes

to the Remuneration Policy as a result of
shareholder engagement.

Colleague Reward

It is worth reminding shareholders that our UK

Il ( ing the Executive Directors)
who have participated in our share schemes
have received, subsequent to any IPO bonus
payments, o total value of £250m of owards
since their introduction: )

In addition to share schemes, the Company
operates other bonus and incentive awards for
its workforce. By way of recent example, in FY21
colleagues in our UK retail operations received
a total of £5.4m in bonus and incentive awards.
A significant proportion of these other bonus
and incentive awards were paid to our casual
retail workers. .

During FY21, the Company launched the
Frasers All-Employee Omnibus Plan (known

as “Fearless 10007} following approval by
shareholders at the 2020 AGM. The Fearless
1000 plan is available to all eligible and
qualifying Fraser Group employees (except for
the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Commercial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer and is intended to provide a significant
one-off reward for employees if a stretching
share price growth target is achieved within a
five year period. .

There are two related but distinct parts to the
Fearless 1000 plan as follows:

* Share awards to those 1,000 eligible ond
qualifying employees in the business who
most demonstrate outstanding service and

values; and .
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performance consistent with the Company's

+ Cash bonuses to eligible and qualifying
employees in the Company’s group, to
reward them for their loyalty and hard work.

A similar incentive plan is also available for our
non-employee Group workers.

As explained in the Committee Chair's letter,
we took the decision to extend the original four
year performance period for the Fearless 1000
plon to up to five years due to continuing UK
lockdowns in FY21. As a result, the performance
periods for the Fearless 1000 plan and the
proposed Executive Share Scheme will each
end in October 2025.

The Remunieration Committee remains
committed to transparent and simple
remuneration for Executive Directors based
upon reward for significant financial and
personal performance only. The Committee
also remains committed to appropriately
rewarding our large and loyal workforce,

Our Workforce nominated Director, Cally Price
engages with colleagues through regutar and
multi-channel communication mechanisms.
This enables colleagues to understand the
strategy of the Corfipany, the vital role all
colleagues play in contributing to the overall
success of the Group and how this is rewarded
and to raise any questions directly with a Board
member. Cally has been directly involved in
the review of retail colleague pay during FY21.
The Committee has reviewed the salaries, other
ion and other empl; conditi
of senior and middle managers throughout
the Group, and has taken them into account in
considering Directors’ salaries. The Committee
has considered pay and employment conditions
of colleagues {other than the Directors) and has
aligned pension contributions and colleague
discounts of the, Directors with employees.

Whilst the Company hos not directly consulted
with'employees on Directors’ remuneration, the
views of colleagues can be expressed by the
Workforce Director.

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION .

This part of the Directors' Remumneration
Report sets out the actual payments made by
the Company to its Directors with respect to
the period ended 25 April 2021-and how our
Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be applied
in the year commencing 26 April 2021.

for FY22

of our R ion policy

The members of the Committee have no
personal financial interest, other than as
shareholders, in the matters to be decided, no
actual or potential conflicts of interest arising
from other Directorships and no day-to-day
operational responsibility within the Compariy.
Base Salary And Fees

Chris Wootton's salary has increased to
£250,000 per annum, with effect from 1 May

2021 (from £150,000). Whilst the Committee is
aware of sensitivities towards salary increoses

Pension (Audited)

- The contribution rate for Chris Wootton will be

3% of salary, capped at first £50,000 of salary,
being the maximum employer contribution
rate available under the Company stakeholder
pension scheme. No Director participated in a
defined benefit scheme.

Mike Ashley is not eligible to receive employer
contributions under the Company stakeholder
pension scheme. .

Annual Bonus Scheme

Chris Wootton will be eligible to earn a bonus
in respect of FY22. Any amount earned shall
be determined by reference to one or more

" performance metrics determined by the

Committee and linked to the Company's
strategy and/or Chris Wootton's performance

in role. The Committee will provide appropriate
and relevant levels of retrospective disclosure of

for executive directors Hly, the

the criteria applied to the FY22 bonus.

salary increase for Chris is considered
appropriate due to his very strong performance
in his role since oppointment in September
2019,

Despite this increase, Chris' base salary will
remain at o level well below the lower quartile
for @ CFO in a business of the size and
complexity of the Group.

Mike Ashley does not receive a salary for his
role,

Fees for the Chair and Non-executive
Directors are normally reviewed annually.

In respect of fees for FY22, David Daly will
receive an increased annual fee of £150,000
(from £100,000) for his role as Chair. Richard
Bottomley, David Brayshaw and Nicola
Frampton will each receive a fee of £65,000
(from £50,000) for their roles as Non-executive
Directors. Cally Price will receive a fee

of £20,000 (from £15,000} for her role as
Non-executive Workforce Director.

helping to create new Bntish woodland across the UK

Any such bonus shall be of up to 200% of
salary, and any bonus earned in excess of 100%
of salary may be subject to deferral.

Mike Ashley shall not be eligible to earn a
bonus in respect of FY22.

. Long Term Incentives

Chris Wootton will be eligible to participate
in the new Executive Share Scheme (subject
to shareholder approval of at the 2021 AGM).
He.will receive an award of 600,000 shares.
The award may vest four years after grant,
subject to o stretching absolute share price
performance target.

Mike Ashley is not eligible to be granted awards
under the Executive Share Scheme.
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Single Figure Table (Audited)

The aggregate remuneration provided to individuals who have served as Directors in the period
ended 25 April 2021is set out below, along with the aggregate remuneration provided to individuals
who have served as Directors during the prior financial year.

Of Di Sharehotding And Share Interests (Audited)

The beneficial interests of the Directors who served during the year and of their connected persons
in both cases ot the beginning of the financial year, or at the date of appointment-if later, and at the
end of the financial year, or at the-date of resignation if earlier, in the share capital of the Company
are shown below: . .

Long-term
e R e T e S0 T R —
FY2) FY20 FY21 FY20 FYzi» FY20 FY21 FY20 FY2) FY20 FY21 FY20 FY2L FY20 FY2 FY20 - date of reslgnation dato of casignation

£000 £000 £000 E0O0 €000 £000 £O00 000 €000 FOOO £O00 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 DIRECTORS AS AT 25 APRIL 3031 -

. EXECUT! Mike Ashley 330,000.000 330,000,000
ke fshley - T . . T T T T Chris Woottan - g .
Chris Wootton® 150 88 - - 100 - - - 1 1251 89 151 89 100 David Daly 24205 21007
Jon Kempster? - NA 63 NA_ - NA___- NA - NA | NMA 64 NA 64 NA Nicolo Frampten . 5732 hd
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS . David Broyshow . 36N Nen
David Daly . 100 W0 - - - 100 101 00 101 - B R 10090 : . 10000
David Broyshaw o s0 - . - - . T 50 s so s - Colly Pice - B
Nicolo Frompton 00 - - - . 11 5 5 s s - There has been no change to the interests reported above between 25 April 2021 and 5 August 2021,
Richerd Boviondey L AL UL S VU R TS N Other than noted on page 62 the Company did not receive any notifications under DTR 5 between
oty Prce T R B U - M B 25 April 2021 and S August 2021,

ToTaL @ en - - w0 . . . 2 & s _an_am__am_we - : .
) Ghiis Woottarfs remuneration fo FY20 as set out i the table i his remuneration for the period from the dote of his appointment on 12 September As at 5 August 2021, neither Chris Wootton nor Mike Ashley participate'in any Company share

2019,

@2} Jon Kempsters remuneration for FY20 s set out in the abovo table i his remuneration for the pericd from 29 Aarl 2019 until 12 September 2019
" when e ceosed 1o be an Executive Director. No poyment was mode to Jan following his resignation.

{31 Further detalls of the bonus outturn for Chris Woattan for FY2) can be found on page S5.

@) Pensions ore provided via a defined contiibution to the Company staksholder pension scheme (see page 7).

Further Information On The FY21 Annucl Bonus
Chris Wootton received a bonus of £100,000 in respect of FY21, =

In awarding this bonus, the Committee considered Chris’ strong leadership of the Group through a
very challenging period. While no formal criteria were set at the beginning of the year due to the

" uncertainties of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Committee considered the impact of Chris' contribution
to the financial results detailed in the Financial Review and his personal leadership of the Group's
response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Payments For Loss Of Office And P To Former

No payments for loss of office or poyments to former Directors were made in FY21.

58

Prinited on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Caplured.!hrougﬁ the Woodland Trust. helping to create new British woodland across the UK

scheme arrangement. Therefore, there are no outstanding share scheme interests held by any
Director of the Company.
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- Performance Graph And Table . - : * Total Ceo R ion And Perf Reloted Pay

_The following graph shows the Company's performance d by the Total Shareholder Return

The table below shows details of the total remuneration and performance-reloted pay for khe
Company's Chief Executive over the last ten financial years.

compared with the performance of the FTSE 100 and FTSE 250 Index {excluding investment trusts).

—&— FrasersGroupple | ——d— FISE100  ——8— FTSE 250 x (nvestment Trusts

“Total rmuneration

Executive Sharo Schome
‘a % of maximum

portunity
FY21 - Mike Ashley il NA
450 e it - FY20 - Mike Ashley Nif N/
119 - Mike Ashley il /A
. 400 FY18 - Mike Ashloy il wa
Y17 - Mike Ashloy™ il [
350 FY12 - Dove Forsey® £62500 A
FY16 ~ Dave Forsey £150000 N/A
. 00 Y15 - Dove Forsey £1500004 0%
+ Y14 - Dova Forsey £150000 NA
250 FY13 - Dave Forsey £150000 7
. FY12 - Dave Forsey - _£150000 A
200 {1 Mike Ashley was appointed os Chief Exacutive with effect from 22 Seplomber 2016.
@ Dove Forsey ek with ol om 22 Sopember 2016 s i i i 25 Apdl 2016 unt)
150 the dote his resignbtion took effect
(3) " The figures far FY1S reflact Dave Forsay's dacision on 6 June 2016 1o f over 1 million shares which wise have been dus to
100 vest an 6 Septenber 2017. .
50 —_— | . - - .
Chief Execlmve To Employee Pay Ratio
£0 Taon T zom T won o o 1T T o T 20 T sew T mow T wme Rl In line with reporting requirements, the Company is.required to disclose ratios which compare .
Yoa . the.total remuneration of the Chief Executive, to the remuneration of the 25th, 50th and 75th
.

The Committee considered these as appropriate indices against which to compare the Company'’s

percentile of the Group's UK employees. The Company has not disclosed these ratios and associated
supporting information on the basis that Mike Ashley is not remunerated by the Company.

performance. They are widely accepted os national measures and include the companies that

investors are likely to consider alternative investments.

.

Pn’n'(ed on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodiand Trust, helping to create new British woodland across the UK
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Sharcholder Voting

The following table sets out actual voting in respect of the resolution to approve the Directors’
Remuneration Report for the year ended 26 April 2020 at the 2020 AGM and the resolution to

approve the Directors' Remuneration Policy at the 2018 AGM,

DIRECTORS' REPORT
The Directors of Frasers Group plé present their
Annual Report and Accounts for the period

ended 25 April 2021. The Group's Corporate

Governance Statement forms part of the
Directors' Report. .

Vetes Tatal vates Vte
Votes for whor Vel shaguint i
Directors for the yeor ended 26 April 2020 263,015,430 9981 896866 - 019 46430296 1087
Directors Remuneration Policy g
(vote to epprove ot 2018 AGM] . _ aa9ar08s 984 1007 159 450081107 e
e e o e 64203582 9999 2810 001 a6ammass nosz

Ivote to amend at 2020 AGM in respect of Faarless 1,000)

_ David Brayshaw
Chair of the Remuneration Committae on Behalf of the Board.
5 August 2021

61

incipal Activities And Business Review

The Chief Executive's Report and Business

Review provides.a detailed review of.the
Group's current activities and potential future
developments together with matters likely to
affect future development, pérformance and
conditions. Principal risks and uncertairities
likely to affect the Group are set out within the
Principal Risks and Uncertainties section. The
financial position of the Group, its cash flow,

. liquidity position and borrowing facilities are

described in the Financial Review. The Strategic
Report covers environmental matters, including
the impact of the Group's businesses on the

environment, the Group's workforce, customers,

Results For The Period And Dividends

Revenue for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
was £3,625.3m and profit before tax was £8.5m
compared with £3957.4m revenue and £143.5m
profit before tax in the prior period. The trading
results for the period and the Group's financial
position as at the end of the year are shown

in the attached financial statements and
discussed further in the Chief Executive's Report
and Business Review and in the Financial
Review on pages 19 to 21. :

The Board has decided not to propose a final
dividend in relation to FY21 {FY20: nil). The

+ Board remains of the opinion that it is in the

best interests of the Group and its shareholders
to preserve financial flexibility, facilitating future
investments and other growth opportunities.
The current situation in relation to the Covid-19
pandemic has resulted in a number of retailers
finding themselves in extreme financial

suppliers and on ¢ y

The principal activities of the Group during the
period were: - .
+ retailing of sports and leisure clothing,

footwear and equipment, lifestyle and -
luxury apparel; .

" retailing through department ;tores. shops
and online; .

+  wholesale distribution and sale of sports
and leisure clothing, footwear and . :
equipment, lifestyle and luxury appérel
under Group-owned or licensed brands; and

* -licensing of Groyp brands.

Frasers Group ple, through various subsidiaries,

has estabtished branches in a.number of

different countries in which the business
operates.

We fore currently feel that
paying a final dividend ot this uncertain time
would be inappropriate when facing such an
unknown future. The payment of dividends
remains under review.

Share Capital And Control

As at 5 August 2021, there are 640,602,369
ordinary shares of 10p in issue and fully paid,
of which 127,180,137 were held in treasury. As at
the period end there were 121,260,175 ordinary

. shares held in treasury.

Further information regarding the Group's
issued share capital can be found in note 24.
Details of our share schemes are also set out in

note 24,

There are no specific restrictions on the transfer
of shares, which are governed both by the
general provisions of the Articles of Association

Further inf on the Group's
activities is set aut at the front of this document
and in the Chief Executive's Report and *
Business Review.

Pn‘nlted on Steinbeis 10_0% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust, helping to create new British woodland a&ross the UK

and prevaj 1. The Directors are
not aware of any agreements between holders
of the Company's shares that may result in
restrictions on the transfer of securities or on
voting rights. )
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Authority To Issue Shares

The Directors were authorised to allot shares

" in the copital of the Group up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £17,311,406 (being
approximately. one third of the then issued
share capital) for the period expiring at the 2021
AGM. .

In line with guidance from the iation of

Share buyback programme. The Company
recommenced its Share buyback programme
on 4 May 2021 and on 21st June 2021 and since
4 May 2021 has purchased 5,919,962 additional
ordinary shares. No shares have been disposed
of by the Company to this date.

Shareholders

No shareholder enjoys any special control

British [nsurers, the Company was also granted
authority to issue a further third of the issued
share capital to a total nominal amount of
£34,622,812 in connection with a rights issue.

An authority to allot shares uptoa

maximum nominal value of £2,596,711 (being
approximately 5% of the then issued share
capital} as if statutory pre-emption rights did
not apply, was also approved. In addition, the
Directors were-granted a further authority

to allot up to a maximum nominal value of
£2,596,71 (being opproximately 5% of the then
issued capital) os if statutory pre-emption rights
did not opply when such allotment was for the
purposes of financing (or refinancing, if the
power is used within six months of the original
transaction) a transaction which the Board
determined to be an acquisition or other capital
investment of a kind contemplated by the
Pre-emption Group's Statement of Principles on
disapplying pre-emption rights.

The Group was authorised to make market
purchase of ordinary shares of 10p each in

the Company of up to a maximum aggregote
number of 77,849,395 representing 14.99% of
the Company's issued ordinary share capital at
the 2020 AGM. The above authority expires at
the close of the next AGM of the Compony.

The authorities expire at the close of the

next AGM of the Company, but a contract to
allot shares under these authorities may be
made prior to the expiry of the authority and
concluded in whole or part after the AGM, and
at that meeting other authorities will be sought
from shareholders.

Share Buyback

During the period to 25 April 2021 the Company
did not purchase any shares under the

62

rights, and, except as set out below, there are
no restrictions in the transfer of shares or of
voting rights. :

As a controlling shareholder Mike Ashley has

entered into a'written and legally binding

Relationship Agreement with the Company.

This agreement ensures that the controlling
h lies with the ind ds

provisions set out in Listing Rule 6.5.4. Under

the terms of the Agreement Mike Ashley
undertook that, for so long as he is entitled to
exercise, or to control the exercise of, 15% or
more of the rights to vote at general meetings
of the Company, he will;

* conduct all transactions ond relationships
with any member of the Group on arm’s
length terms and on a normal commercial
basis;

« exercise his voting rights or other rights in
support of the Company being managed in
accordance with the Listing Rules and the
principles of good governance set out i the
2018 UK Corporate Governance Code and
not exercise any of his voting or other rights
and powers to procure any amendment to
the Articles of Association of the Company;
and : .

other than through his interest in the
Company, not have any interest in any
business which sells sports apparel and
equipment, subject to certain rights, after
notification to the Company, to acquire
any such interest of less than 20% of the
business concerned, and certain other
limited exceptions, without receiving

the prior approval of the Non-executive
Directors; and not solicit for employment
or employ any senior employee of the
Company.

The Comipany has complied with this Agreement’

independence provisions during the period and,

as far as the Company is aware, the lling
with them.

his i have also complied

As at 25 April 2021, the Company had been advised that the following parties had an interest in 3%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company pursuant to Rule 5 of the Disclosure Guidance

and Transparency Rules (“DTR");

sencentace oF
wmsenos IUSDORDNARY e op
NaREs LD carmaL Votoina

Mars weLo
Mike Ashley * 330,000,000 63.54% Indirect
Phosi Aot Manogamart porers Ui - sas7aos2 e e

) Miko Ashley holds the shares

i A
shares (58.44% of share capital of the C

which hold i
(510% of the issued ordinary share capitol of

the Company} respectively:

{21 These figures are as at 1 April 2021 being the last date an which the Company was notified of  chonge in the parcentago of shares.

Between 25 April 2021 and.5 August 2021 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of
this Report) there have been no changes in the interest held by the above parties.

ADR Programmes

We are aware of unsponsored American
Depository Receipt (ADR) programmes

. established from time to time in respect of our

shares. We have not sponsored or authorised
their creation and any questions should be
directed to the relevant depository.

Frasers Group has not and does not intend

to offer or sell its ordinary shares or other
securities {in the form of ADR or otherwise) to
the general public in the United States nor has
it listed or intend to list its Ordinary Shares

or other securities on any national securities -
exchange in the United States or to encourage
the trading of its Ordinary Shares on any over

the counter market located in.the United States. -

The Group does not moke arrangements to
permit the voting of ordinary shares held in the
form of ADRs and its publication of periodic
financial and other information is not intended
to facilitate the operation of any unsponsored
ADR programme under Rule 12g3-2{b) of U.S.
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended or
otherwise.

F’rin’led on Steinbeis 100% Recycted and Carbon Captured through.the Woodland Trust, helping to create new British woodland across the UK

Articles Of Association

The Company's Articles of Association may only

be amended by special resolution at a general
meeting of shareholders. Subject to I

“lows and the Company's Articles of Association,

the Directors may exercise oll powers of the
Company.

Takeovers

. The Directors do not believe that there are any

significant contracts that may change in the
event of o successful takeover of the Company.

* Share Schemes

Details of the Executive share scheme are set
out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Colleague Involvement .

The Group currently has more than 25,000
colleagues in its stores, offices and warehouses.

The workforce is notified of announcements
and major changes in the business via
Company emails, Slack, social media and

our intranet, as well as information being
communicated through line managers.

The Company has elected a Workers'
Representative, Cally Price, who attends all
Board meetings and provides feedback from
colleagues to the Board and is a trusted .
advocate for colleagues. The Company also has
the “Your Company, Your Voice" scheme which
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enables colleagues to raise issues of concern
via ion boxes. The ibutions are
read by senior manogement and the Workers'
Representative who provides the Board with
an overview and replies to colleagues as
appropriate. A selection of questions received, ’
and answers given by management are
displayed in c al areas for coll

Cally has been key in representing colleague’s
views in the Board room and has a dedicated
time slot at every scheduled Board meeting.
Much focus this year has been on the impact.
of the Covid-19 pandemic on our I

Diversity And Equal Opportunities

The Group's recruitment policy is to match the
capabilities and talents of each applicant to
the appropriate job. Factors such as gender,
race, religion or belief, sexual orientation, age,
disability or ethnic origin are ignored, and .
decisions are made with regard to candidates
irrespective of these factors. Discrimination in
any form is not tolerated within the Group.
Applications for employment by persons

with any disability are given full and fair
consi ion for all ies and are

and Cally has been involved in Board decisions
and communication to staff regarding new
safe systems of work approved by the Board

to maintain good Covid-19 practices at our.
warehouse, offices and stores and has also
provided feedback to the Board on mental
health webinars run in conjunction with the
Retail Trust. Cally makes weekly visits to Head
office and has worked with management on
initiatives including diversity, pay structures and
staff benefits.

Training programmes and induction courses
provide the workforce with opportunities to
keep up to date with the latest developments
of the Group. Prior to the Covid-19 pandemic
our annual retail conference offered attendees
an opportunity to celebrate their successes,
receive updates on how the Group's strategy
is progressing, and for them to judge how

the Group is performing via the ‘Confident or
Concerned" questionnaire.

There are various incentives available to our
retail colleagues. These incentives include our 5
Star Commission Scheme, Turnover Bonus, PBT
Bonus, Stocktoke Bonus and other commission
schemes. These schemes vary between foscias.
Retail colleagues (including casual workers) are
also eligible to participate in the Fearless 1000
bonus scheme.

Further information on engagement with our
people can be found in the Our People report.
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assessed in accordance with their particular
skills ond abilities.

The Group endeavours to meet its
responsibilities towards the training and
employment of disabled people, and to
ensure that training, career development and
omoti iti ilable to all.

P PP ies are
The Group makes every effort to provide -
continuity of employment if any of our
colleagues become disabled. Attempts

are made in every circumstance to provide
employment, whether this involves adopting
the current job role and remaining in the same
job or moving to a more appropriate role.

Job retraining and job adaptation are just

two examples of how the Group works in the
interests of its workforce to promote equal
opportunities in order that an individual's
employment within the Group may continue.
The Group values the knowledge and expertise
that our people have gained throughout their *
time with us, and therefore dées not wish to
lose valued colleagues.

Further information on our approach to
diversity can be found in the Our People report
Business Relationships

Details of relationships with our suppliers,
customers and other stakeholders are set out in
the 5172 statement within the Strategic Report
and the Corporate Governance Report.

Research And Development
The Group designs some clothing and footwear

for our in-house brands for sale in stores.
External brands are purchased from third-party

suppliers although we do work with them to
agree on the specific pieces which we sell
in-store,

Charitable And Political Donations

During the year, the Group made charitabte
donations of £3k (2020: £13k) in the UK, No
political donations were made (2020: nil).
Further information on our charitable donations
and community initiatives can be found in the
ESG Report.

Directors

Details of current Directors, dates of .
appointment, their roles, responsibilities and
significant external commitments are set out on
pages 37 to 39. The membership of the Board
of Directors has remained the same throughout
Fy21

Although the Company's Articles of Association
require retirement by rotation of one third of
Directors each year, the Group complies with
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code and
at each AGM all of the Directors will retire and
stand for reappointment. :

Information on service contracts and details of
the interests of the Directors and their persons
closely associated (PCAs} in the share capital
of the Company at 25 April 2021, and at the
date of this Report, is shown in the Directors’
Remuneration Report.

Copies of the service contracts of Executive
Directors and of the appointment letters of the
Chair and Non-executive Directors are available
for inspection at the Company's registered
office during normal business hours and at the
AGM.

No Director has a directorship in common or
other significant links with any other Director.

Director appointments are governed by The
Companies Act 2006, the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code and the Group's Atticles of
Association,

The Directors confirm that:

* so far as each Director is aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which the
Company's auditors are unaware; and
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- the Directors have taken all steps that they
ought to have taken to make themselves
aware of any relevant oudit information and
to establish that the auditors are aware of
that information:

Directors’ Conflicts Of Interest

The Board has formal procedures to deal with
Directors’ conflicts of interest. The appointment
letters of Non-executive Directors state that
they agree to consult with the Chair prior to
accepting any directorships in publicly quoted
companies or any major external appointments.
Also, if any Non-executive Director becomes
aware of any potential conflicts of interest

the Chair and Company Secretary must be
notified as soon as this becomes apparent.
During the period neither the Chair or the
Company Secretary were aware of any

further appointments or potential conflicts of
interest..The independence of Non-executive
Directors is reviewed by the Board annually. All
Directors complete an annual questionnaire

to record any potential conflicts of interest .
The questionnaire for FY21 did not disclose any
conflicts of interest

The Company has entered into a Relationship
Agreement with Chief Executive, Mike Ashley,
whose wholly-owned companies, MASH
Holdings Limited and MASH Beta Limited, .
currently hold approximately 5.10% and 58.44%
respectively of the issued share capital of the
Company (excluding treasury shares). This
agreement is described in the Directors' Report.
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Diractors’ Indemnities : ' .

The Group has qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the Directors within the meaning given
to the term by 234 and 5235 of the Companies Act 2006. This is in respect of any potential exposure
of liability in their capacity as a Director of the Company and of any Company within the Group.
Such indemnities were in force throughout the financial period and will remain in force.

Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust

We note that-the Trustees of the Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust have waived their right to
receive dividends on the ordinary shares comprised in the trust fund. No dividends were paid by the
Company for the period ended 25 April 2021 (FY20: £nil),

Disclosures Required Under Uk Listing Rule 9.8.4
The information required by Listing Rule 9.8.4 is set out in the table below:

APPLICASILE SUB-PARAGRAPH WITHIN LR 9.84 DISCLOSURE PROVIDED

(0 It

est capitalised by tho Graup N

£2) Publication of unaudited fino

i information . L

{3) Requirement deleted from the Listing Rules - N

{4) Dotaits of long-term Incontive schemes anly. . 3
involuing o Director -

Going Concern

The Group's business activities, together
with the factors likely to affect its future

- development, performance and position are set

out in the Chief Executive's Report and Business
Review. .

The financial position of the Group, its cash
flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilitie:
are described in the Financial Review. In .
addition, the financial statements include the
Group's objectives, policies and processes

for managing its capital, its financial risk
management objectives, details of its financial
instruments ond hedging activities, and its

“exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group still trades profitably, is highly cash
generative and has considerable finoncial
resources. The Group is able to operate within
its banking facilities and covenants, which
runs until November 2022, and is well ploced

operational existence for the at least 12 months
from the date of these financial statements.
Trading would need to fall significantly below
levels observed during the pandemic to require
mitigating actions or a relaxation of covenants.
On this basis, the Directors continue to adopt
the going concern basis for the preparation of
the Annual Report and Financial Statements
which is a period of ot least twelve months
from the date of approval of these financial
statements.

Accountability And Audit

A statement by the External Auditor con
be found on page 66 detailing its reporting
responsibilities. The Directors fulfit their
responsibilities, and these are set out in the
Directors’ Responsibilities Statement.

Auditor

RSM UK Audit LLP will be proposed for
at the AGM. In accordance with

as they arise. As a consequence, the Directors

business risks successfully despite the continued

has the level of trading

base case and also a number

15) Woiver of smoluments by o Director - NA
{6) Waiver of future emolumants by a Director K NA to take ge of strategic
7) Non pro-rata aflotments fo cash (ssuerl - A " ) ;
» believe that the Group is able to manage its
18) on pro-rata allotments for cash (major A
subsidiaries) -
(9) Porent panicipation in a placing by o listed . . “Nim uncertain economic outlook.
subsidiory .
101 Contracrs of signif - - .
1) Contracts of significanca - WA to date since the impacts of the Covid-19
T e ason of services by o canteoling . page 56 pandemic and has forecast and projected a
2) Shareholdr waivers of dividends ) page 61 o N ! y "
— - - of even more conservative scenarios taking
3 Idar waivers of futurg dividen : :
{13) sharehol of fotur dividends . L] into account a potential further wave and
010 Agroements with cantralling sharsholders . poge 62 iated loch

Green House Gas E

i And Energy C: i
See The Environment report

Annual General Meeting

Further details on the date, time and format of proceedings wili follow shortly ofter the finalisation

of these Annua! Report and Accounts, taking into account Government guidance surrounding the
Covid-19 pandemic.
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s over winter, Government
support, foreign exchange exposure and

cost saving initiatives. These forecasts and
projections show that the Group'will be able

to operate within the level of the current

facility and its covenant requirements (being
interest cover and net debt to EBITDA ratios).
Managemerit also has a number of mitigating
actions which could be taken if required such as
putting on hold discretionary spend, liquidating
certain assets on the balance sheet and paying
down the Revolving Credit Facility. See the
Viability Statement for further details.

Having thoroughly reviewed the Group's
performance and having made suitable
enquiries, the Directors are confident that the
Group has adequate resources to remain in

. . .
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5489(4) of the Companies Act 2006, resolutions
to determine remuneration are to be agreed at
the AGM.

Post Balance Sheet Events.
See note 36 of the Annual Accounts.
Future Developments.

Future developments are discussed throughout
the Strategic Report.

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk management is discussed in note
3 of the financial statements.

By Order of the Board.

Tom Piper
Company Secretary
S August 2021
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the
Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report, the
Directors’ Remuneration Report, the separate
Corporate Governohce Statement and the
financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare
. group and company financial statements for
each financial year. The directors have elected

In preparing each of the group and company
financial statements, the directors ‘are required
to: .

a. select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

b. make jud and ac: i imal

that are redsonable and prudent;

c. for the group financial statements, state
whether they have been prepared in

under company law to prepare group financial
statements in nce with i ional

d with international accounting

accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
are additionally required under the Listing Rules
of the Financial Conduct Authority to prepare
the group financial statements in accordance
with international financial reporting standards
adopted pursuont to Regulation (EC) No
1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union:
The directors have elected under company law
to prepare the company financial statements

in accordance with United Kingdom Generally *
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable law).

The group financial statements are required
by law and international accounting standards
in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and international
financial reporting standards adopted pursuont
to Regulation (EC)'No 1606/2002 as it applies
in the European Union to present fairly the
financial position and performance of the
group; the Companies Act 2006 provides in
relation to such financial statements that
references in the relevant part of that Act to .
financial statements giving o true ond fair
view are references to their.achieving a fair
presentation.

Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the group ond the
company and of the profit or loss of the group
for thot period.
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standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006
and international financial reporting
standards,adopted pursuant to Regulations
{EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the
European Union;

d. for the company financial statements,
state whether applicable UK accounting
standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the company financial
statements;

o

prepare the financial statements on

the going concern basis unless it is ~
inappropriate to presume that the group
and the company will continue in business.

The directors-are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are sufficient

. to show and explain the group's and the

company’s transactions and disclose with”
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the group and the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial
statements and the Directors’ Remuneration
Report comply with the Companies Act 2006
and, as regards the group financial statements,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of

the group and the company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of froud and other irregularities.

i 5 Py
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¢ To The Discl
and Transparency Rules

Each of the directors, whose names and
functions are listed on pages 37 to 39 confirm
that, to the best of each person’s knowledge:

a. the financial statements, prepared in
accordance with the applicable set of
accounting standards, give a true and
fair-view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit of the company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole; and

o

. the Strategic Report contained in the

Annual Report includes a fair review of
“the development and performance of the

. business and the position of the company
and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, together
with o description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face.

The directors are responsible for the

maintenance and integrity of the corporate

and financial information included on the

Company's website.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing

the preparation and dissemination of financial

statements may differ from legislation in other

jurisdictions.

Chris Wootton
Chief Financial Officer
5 August 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF FRASERS GROUP PLC

OPINION

We have oudited the financial statements of

Frasers Group PLC {the ‘parent company’) and
its subsidiaries (the ‘group) for the period ended
25 April 2021 which comprise the Consolidated

Income , the Co i | it
of C ive Income, the C lid
Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Cashflow

t, the Co i S of

Changes in Equity, the Company Balance
Sheet, the Company Statement of Changes in
Equity and notes to the financial statements,
i a y of significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework
thot hos been applied in the preparation of
the Group financial statements is applicable
law and International Accounting Standards
in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and international
financial reporting standards adopted pursuant
to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies
in the European Union. The financial reporting
.framework that has been applied in the
<preparation of the parent company financial
statements is opplicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including

Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial .

Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion:

+ the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the group's and of the
parent company's affairs as at 25 April 2021
and of the group's loss for the period then .
ended;

the group financial statements hove been
properly prepared in accordancé with
International Accounting Standards in
conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and international
financial reporting standards adopted
pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002
as it applies in the European Union;
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+ the parent compony financial statements
have been properly prepared in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

+ the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
{UK)) and i law. Our ibiliti
under those standards are further described

in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the group and parent
company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our oudit of
the financial statements in the UK, including
the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed
public interest entities and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have
concluded that the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements is appropriate.
For an explanation of how we evaluated
management's assessment of the group's
and parent company's ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting
and our key observations arising in respect to
that evaluation, please see the Impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic and Going Concern key
audit motter.

Based on the work we have performed, we

have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on
the group's or the parent company's ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at

least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

In relation to the entities reporting on how they
have applied the UK Corpoi e

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that,
in our professional judgment, were of most
ignifi in our oudit of the group and

Code, we have nothing material to add or
draw attention to in relation to the directors’
statement in the financial about

parent company financial statements of the
current period and include the most significant
d risks of material misstatement |

whether the directors considered it appropriate

to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Our ibilities and the ibilities of
the directors with respect to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.

Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters

Group ~ Recurring risks

. Voluckion'of inventory

* Impairment of property related assets
+  Property, Legal and Other Provisions
¢ Classification of investments

Group ~ event driven

+ Impact of the Covid 19 pandemic and going
concern

Materiality

Group

+  Overall materiality: £11.1million

»  Performance moteriality: £7.2million
Parent Company :
= Overall meteriality: £1imillion

*  Performance materiality: £7.1 million
Scope

Our Group audit procedures covered 88% of
revenue, 88% of total assets and 78% of the
result before tax.
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(whether or not due to fraud) we identified,
including those which had the greatest effect
on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of
resources in the audit and directing the efforts
of the engagement team. These matters, and
any comments we make on the results of our
procedures thereon, were adk d'in the
context of our audit of the group and parent
company financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters,
This is not a complete list of all risks identified
by our audit.

y- and

Key audit matter descrij

At 25 April 2021, the Group Consolidated
Balance Sheet records inventory of £1,096.6m
(2020: £1,198.3m). This amount is net of an
inventory provision of £219.8m (2020: £223m).

The Covid-19 pandemic resulted in physical
stores being temporarily closed at various
points during the period and the resultant
reduction in the level of demand and a reduced
ability to sell through seasonal inventory may
increase the risk of invéntory obsolescence.

As described in note 2 to the financial
statements, management use a forward looking
inventory provisioning mode! which calculates
a provision by category of inventory based on
historical experience, pricing and discounting
strategies and management's assessment of
risk.

There is significant estimation involved in the
calculation of inventory provisions to ensure
that inventory is held ot the lower of cost and
net realisable value. This involves consideration
of expected future losses on sale of inventory
including assessing the likely impacts of the
Covid 19 pandemic, inventory obsolescence and
the additional costs to sell which need to be
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included in calculating the net realisable value
of inventory. :

Due to the factors explained above, we have -
identified the valuation of inventory as a key
audit motter.

How the matter was addressed in the audit
In respect of inventery valuation we:

» Assessed the appropriateness of
management’s inventory provision
caleulations, including testing the accuracy
and completeness of the data used and the
mathematical accuracy of the provisioning
model

Critically challenged the assumptions made
in the inventory provision model in respect
of the expected level of discounting and the
expected costs of sale, including:

~- The basis on which expected discounts
were calculated and whether calculated
discounts were realistic based on
historical experience and the current
trading environment

- The assumptions regarding the
expected volume and allocated costs of

ibuting { g) and reprici
product

- Whether different assumptions and
estimates should be applied for different
fascias given the differentiated product
mix

«  Considered management's strategic options

for addressing demand in the uncertain
retail economic environment present as a
result of the Covid 19 pandemic, including
discounting levels and further development
of on-line retail channels.

As a result of our findings from challenging
‘management’s model, we independently
developed an alternative model that applied
historic inventory loss experience to calculate
a provision against current out of season and
clearance inventory and inventory that would
beexpected to remain unsold and fall into
those categories in future periods. In addition,
we recalculoted the expected future tunnelling
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. We then formed an assessment, based on

n
" market data, to reflect the impact of the

and repricing costs to take account of our
assessment of the likely future costs of these
activities in relation to products that would
have a net realisable value which was below
cost.

s with and

Covid-19 pandemic. This included consideration
of forecast future sales performance, expected
margin decline, the increased risk of inventory
becoming out of season and adjustments
considered relevant for specific fascias,

where the risk of inventory obselesence was
considered to bé-higher. Our alternative model
allowed us to develop an estimate of the level
of provisiof we considered appropriate and
supportable against which we were able to
assess monagement's estimates.

Key observations

Our audit work on inventory valuation, and
in particular the development of our own

alternative provision model, did not identify
any material misstatement in the inventory
provisions,

Impairment of property related assets
Key audit matter description

As aresult of the Covid 19 pandemic and
changing patterns of retail consumer behaviour,
particularly in relation to physical stores, the
Group identified that there were indications

of impairment in relation to freehold property
interests, right of use assets and related PPE
(“property related assets’). As required by

IAS 36 {Impairment of Assets) the Group has

-performed an impairment review of all such

assets.

As a result of this review, impairments in
relation to freehold and long leasehold property
(£88.4m), right of use assets (£168.2m) and
related PPE {£63.8m} have been made in these
financial statements.

As described in note 2 to the financial
statements, the impairment review involves

r jud and esti in
relation to the value in use of the property
related assets (being the. net present value

of the forecast related cashflows) and, in the
case of freehold property, comparison of
calculated value in use to internal and external
property valuations. The values derived are
then compared to the book value of the related
assets to determine whether impairment

is required. In making this assessment
management determined each property or
store to be a cash generating unit (CGU).

The value in use calculations involve significant
i ing future fl the
long term growth rate in like for like sales, an
assessment of the propensity for customers
to switch to online purchases, pressure on
margins and determination of an appropriate
discount rate as well as considering the
possibility of future lockdowns. In the case of
freehold property, valuations are dependent
on assumptions regarding the ability to
relet property, the length of void and rent
free periods and future rentals achievable. .
Accordingly we determined that the valuation
of property related assets had a high degree of

estimation uncertainty and this is i by

dontifiod luati

p
and disclosure of property related assets as a
key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in the audit

We obtained an understanding of how
management performed their impairment
testing of property related assets and their
approach to valuation.

We critically assessed the methodology

opplied by management with reference to

the requirements of IAS 36 and tested the
integrity of the value in use calculations and the
calculated impairments by CGU.

In the cose of freehold property, in addition

to assessing the volue in use calculations,

we evaluated the approach to the valuation
of freehold interests with input from an
independent external retail property valuation
expert and critically challenged the underlying
assumptions.

In particular. we challenged the significant
assumptions within management’s models
through:-

- Evoluating management's assumptions .
through consideration of historical and
current trading performance and external
data points

Sensitised the assumptions in
management’s impairment models and
reviewed the financial statement disclosures
documenting assumptions and the impacts
of applied sensitivities

Tested the reconciliation between

the cashflows used in the value in use
calculations with those used to assess going
concern and viability to ensure they were
consistent

Critically challenging whether it was
appropriate to exclude properties from the
impairment mode! and assessing whether
the reasons for exclusion were supportable -
for example where specific properties were
under redevelopment

the sensitivity analysisset out in note 2.

Due to the factors explained above, we have
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+ Comparing the discount rate used with that
independently calculated by our internal
valuation expert
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We assessed whether the disclosures within the
financial statements are consistent with IAS 36.

Key observations . .

Our audit work in respect of the impairment

of property related assets concluded that the
related balances were not materially misstated
and the disclosures management have made
are appropriate. :

Property, Legal and Other Provisions .
Key audit matter description

The Group makes provision for liabilities where
it identifies there is a present obligation as o
result of a past event and where it is probable
that there will be o resultant outflow of
resources that can be reliably measured.

The Group has a significant provision in relation
to legal and regulatory matters and property
related provisions. As detailed in note 28 to

the financial statements, the Consolidated
8alance Sheet includes provisions of £215.8m
(2020: £225.4m) relating to legal and regulatory
matters and £144.1m, (2020: 107.9m) relating to
property provisions which principally comprises
provisions for dilapidations on leasehold
properties.

The dilapidation provision requires significant
judgements to be made as to future amounts
payable based on historical experience,

external advice and evolving conditions within.  ~ «
the property sector.

Additionally, the Group faces a number of

legal, tax and other commercial claims and
significant judgement is required in determining
whether a provision should be recorded and for
what omount.

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Our audit work included the following: -

+ Considering management's assessment
in respect of provisions and assessing
whether the recognition criteria of 1AS

Contingent assets had been met.

* Challenging the assumptions made in the-
dilapidation provision model in respect
of the expected level of dilopidations on
a store by store basis. As a result of our
findings from challenging management's
model, we independently developed an
alternative model that applied historic
dilapidation costs and relevant factors
such as geography and property type as
well as considering the impacts of likely
future changes in the property market. Qur
alternative model allowed us to develop
an estimate of the level of provision we
considered appropriate and supportable
“against which we were able to assess
management's estimates.

* Challenging provisions and related
assumptions with key management outside
the finance function, including members of
the property and legal teams and obtaining
corroborative evidence from third parties in
relation to material ongoing legal and tax
matters .

Auditing the movement in provisions and
checking for completeness through the
review of ongoing claims for dilapidations
and through circularisation of legal advisors
in relation to other claims.

Key observations

Classification of investments ’ .
Key audit matter description

The Group has a number of investments in
which it holds more than 20% but less than
50% of the voting share capitol of the investee.

IAS 28 - Investments in associates and Joint
Ventures - requires that where an investment
falls within this range it should be accounted
for as an associate, unless management can
rebut the presumption that significant influence
exists and can clearly demonstrate thot this is
the case.

The Group sold its investment in French
Connection plc during the year but at the year
end has strotegic investments in Studio Retail
Group plc (36.9%) and Mulberry Group plc’
(26.1%) and has rebutted the presumption thot
significant influence exists. These investments
have been accounted for at fair value through
other comprehensive income as explained in
note 2 to the financial statements.

Since the judgements that the Group has made,
that it does not have significant influence over
Studio Retail Group ple and Mulberry Group

plc, have a significant impact over the financial
statements we have identified the classification
and disclosure of investments as a key oudit
matter. ’

Assessing the five criterio set out in IAS 28
as suggesting whether significant influence
may exist by examining both confirming
and disconfirming evidence. .

In particular we: -

+ Obtained and examined certain
agreements and correspondence
between the Group and the investees to
corroborate managements assertion that
no significant influence exists

* Reviewed investee financial statements,
press announcements, articles of
association, shareholder agreements and
media reports to assess whether there
was evidence of significant influence

*  Made enquiries of the Group's Head of
Strategic Investments to understand
the Group's interaction with those
investments, including in particular, the
nature and purpose of the observer role
on the board of Studio Retail Group plc

+ Considered whether transactions
between the Group and the investees
were indicative of significant influence

Critically challenging whether the
judgements made are clearly disclosed in
the financial statements,

Key observations

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Our audit work included: -

* Assessing the accounting for the above.

investments under IAS 28 - Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures and IFRS 9 -
Financial Instruments.

Our audit work in respect of the classification
of investments concluded that manogement's
judgements that they did not have significant
influence over Studio Retail Group plc and

Mulberry Group plc to be supportable and the
related classification and disclosures made in
the financial statements to be appropriate.

Due to the amounts involved ond the
significant judgements required in quantifying
and assessing provisions we have identified

existence, accuracy, completeness, presentation
and disclosure of property, legal and other
provisions as a key audit matter.

68
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Our audit work in respect of Property, legal and
other provisions concluded that the related
balances were not materially misstated and
the disclosures management have made are

appropriate.

= Obtaining and critically challenging
management's papers addressing the
accounting for the above investments
against the requirement of the accounting

standards and the judgements made in
addressing the questions of significant
influence

- Discussing management’s strategy for
holding the investments and challenging
whether this was consistent with the
accounting treatment -

1. helping to create new British woodland across the UK
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Impact of the Covid 19 pandemic and going
concern

Key audit matter description
The Covid 19 pandemic and the mand

current Revolving Credit Facility expires.

As part of the assessment and as disclosed in’
the viability statement on page 36, the Directors
have determined appropriate sensitivities to the
f includi

temporary closure of retail stores at vorious
times during.the year, has had a significant
impact on the group's revenue and result

. before tax. In addition to heightened audit

risks relating to the carrying value of property
related assets and inventory set out in the
key audit matters above, the p ic has

3 a reverse stress test of the
Group's ability to meet its covenants.

We have identified a key audit matter reloted
to going concern as a result of the judgement
required in undertaking a going concern
assessment in the current uncertain trading

implications for;-

The Group's considerations in relation to
going concern and viability

Accounting for monies received under the
UK Government's Job Retention Scheme
(CJRS)

Significant jidgements are always required
around the assumptions underpinning future
fl jections. These judk are
heightened in the current retail environment
given the uncertainties surrounding the longer
term impact of the pandemic and structural
changes to the UK retail sector. Whilst retail
stores have opened post year end, and web
sales have performed well, the longer term

* impacts on shopping habits and the risks of

a global recession are difficult to accurately
predict.

Taking account of these sensitivities, the
Directors have acknowledged there will be
potentially material variations in forecast
financial performance, but concluded that

the Group has sufficient resources available

to meet its liabilities as and when they falt

due and that therefore there are no materigl
uncertainties that cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

In undertaking their assessment of going
concern, the Directors have reviewed forecast
future performance and anticipated cashflows
for the Group. These forecasts have also been
applied in determining the need to impair
property related assets as set out in the key
audit matter above. Their assessment has
consi cashflow fc and fi i

*and covenants in place for the pevidd to .

November 2022, which is the date at which the
69

-

envil the adequacy and accuracy of
disclosures and the conclusion that there is not
a material uncertainty reloted to going concern.

The Group has received furlough (CJRS) income

of approximotely £80m in the year and has
recognised this as a reduction in payroll costs in
the income statement. The rules that applied to
furlough claims in the year were complex ond
subject to variation and there are significant

Ities for non- i Ci quently
we identified a potential risk of misstatement
relating to the processing and management of
claims.

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Our audit work in relation to going concern
included:

« Obtaining an understanding of
management’s going concern models,
discussing key assumptions with
management and assessing whether those
‘assumptions were consistent with those
applied elsewhere, such as in relation to
i y valuation and the of
property related provisions

* Checking the mathematical accuracy
of management's cashflow models, and
agreeing opening balances to 25 April 2021
actual figures o

» Checking management’s covenant
compliance calculations to determine
" whether there is a risk of breach and
assessed whether the assumptions in
management's base model appeared
realistic, achievable and consistent with
ather internal and external evidence

Comporing forecast sales with recent
historical information to consider the

‘accuracy of forecasting

+ Considering post year end sales potterns to
assess whether they were consistent with
those assumed in the base model

= Testing management's sensitivity analysis
and reverse stress test and performing our
own analysis based on further sensitising of
the models to take account of reasonably
possible scenarios that could arise from the
risks identified

« Challenging management regarding their *
identification of discretionary spend that
could be reduced should mitigating actions
become necessary

*  Reviewil and
relating to the availability of financing
arrangements

+  Evaluating the Group's disclosures on going
concern against the requirements of IAS 1

In relation to the furlough income received
by the Group under the UK Government's
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) we:

+ Obtoined an understanding of how
management communicated and operated
the scheme and the process by which
management calculated and submitted
their claims

+ Reviewed correspondence between the
Group and HMRC .

« Agreed cash received for claims made
during the year to bank statements

+  Reperformed the calculation of a sample of
claims including agreeing details to payroll
records

* Reviewed the internal audit work performed

"over CJRS claim procedures .
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Key observations

Our audit work in respect of the Covid 19
pandemic and going concern concluded that
the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial
stotements is appropriate and we did not
identify any material uncertainties relating

.to events or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on
the group's or the parent company’s ability

to continue as a going concern and that the
associated disclosures are in accordance with
accounting stondards.

However, the impact of the Covid 19 pandemic
on future performance is difficult to predict with
any certainty and no audit can be relied upon
to identify all possible scenarios that may have
future implications for the Group.

“Our work in respect of CJRS claims did not
identify any material misstatement.
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There are no key audit matters relating to.the parent company.

Our application of materiality

When establishing our overall audit mn_dnmwﬂ we set certain thresholds which _._m_n us to determine
the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. When evaluating whether the effects of
misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements as a whole, could reasonably
influence the economic decisions of the users we take into account the qualitative nature and the .
size of the misstatements. Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the
financial statements as follows:

Group Parent Company

OVERALL MATERIAUTY

E1LImiltion {2020: £11.9million)

BASIS FOR DETERMINING OVERALL MATERIALITY * 2.8% of Underlying EBITDA 1% of total omnm.m ({copped at overall

Group

RATIONALE FOR BENCHMARK APPLIED In determining averall moteriality The Parent Company does not trade

EBITDA, revenue and the average result 1o be the most appropr
before tax for the previous three years,

e the Group uses underlying EBITDA

init’s communications with shareholders

- we have determined this to be the most
i y benchmark,

We applied a lower level of materi
to the audit of components and, in
accordance with ISA 320, in relation to
certoin classes of transactions, account
bolances and disclosures.

Underlying EBITDA is def
R 4.and in the glessary to t
stotements,

wae gave consideration to underlying ond therefore total assets is considered
o benchmark,

PERFORMANCE MATERIAUTY £7.2million

‘We set performance mat We set performance mates y at
a level lower than overall mat a level lower than overall materiality
for the financial statements as o far the financiol stotements as o

whole to reduce to an appropriately whole to reduc an oonu:nS:

low level the probability that, in low leve! the probal

and
misstatements exceed 0<e.n= misstatements exceed overall
materiality. matesiality.

The factors wa considered in
g perfermance m

- N the pressures
: and the level of
periods.

isstatements in prior

BASIS FOR DETERMINING PERFORMANCE MATERIALITY 65% of overall materi

{2020; 75% of overall

lity 65% of overall materiofity
i 12020: 75% of overall

REPORTING OF MISSTATEMENTS TO THE AUDIT COMMITTEE Misstatements In excess of £0.6:

Misstatements in excess of E0.6milli

qualitative grounds. - tative grounds.

n
i . and misstatements below that threshold and misstatements below that threshold
. that, in our view, warranted reporting on that, in our view, warranted reporting on

70 : . . .

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our audit approach was based on a thorough
understanding of the Group's business and is
risk based, and in particular included:

+ Evaluation of identified components to
assess the significance of each component
and to determine the planned oudit
response based on o measure of materiality.
This included significance as a percentage
of the Group's revenue, total assets and
result before tax;

* . For those components that were evaluated
as significant, or likely to include significant
risks, either a full-scope or targeted-
approach was taken based on their
relative materiality to the Group, and our
assessment of the audit risk. For significant
components requiring a full-scope
approach, we evaluated controls over the
financial reporting systems identified as
part of our risk assessment and addressed
critical accounting matters, Substantive
testing was performed on significant classes
of transactions and bdlances, and other
material balances, determined during the.
Group scoping exercise;

+  Full scope audit procedures have been

" performed on the financial statements of
Frasers Group plc, and on the financial
information of the main trading ao:ﬁo:_mm

- within the UK Retail component;
Sportsdirect.com Retail Limited, Wareshop 2
Limited, Sports Direct International Holdings
Limited, House of Fraser Limited, The
Flannels Group Limited, Jack Wills Retail
Limited, Evans Cycles Limited and GAME
Retail Limited;

* Inrelationto overseas components we

‘engaged RSM member firms in Austria,
Ireland and Spain, to perform full scope
component audits and RSM in the United
States and Belgium to perform targeted
audit procedures. Additionally, RSM
member firms attended inventory counts in
a number of locations;
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+ The group engagement team reviewed the

work performed by the component auditors. .
We determined the level of involvement

we needed to have in their audit work

at those reporting units to be able to
conclude whether sufficient, appropriate
audit evidence had been obtained as a
basis for our opinion on the Group financial
statements as a whole.

»  Further specific audit procedures over the
"Group consolidation and areas of significant
judgement including impairment of property
related ossets, leases, taxation and treasury
were performed by the group engagement
team.

The operations that were subject to full-scope
audit procedures made up 80% of consolidated
revenues, 82% of total assets and 72% of
absolute profit before tax.

The operations that were subject to targeted -
audit procedures, including specific significant
judgement areas noted above, made up 8% of
consolidated revenues, 6% of total assets and
6% of profit before tax; and

The remaining operations of the Group were
subject to analytical procedures over the
balance sheet and income statements of the -
relevant entities with a focus on applicable
risks identified above. This made up 12% of
consolidated revenues, 12% of net assets and
22% of profit before tax.
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The coverage achieved by our audit procedures was:

]

Result Bafore Tax

M Futi scope

Full scope audits were perfﬁrmed for 5 components {some of which included a number of legal .
entities which were combined for group reporting-purposes), targeted audit procedures for 4
components and analytical procedures at group level for the remaining components.

[l torgeted audit [l Analytical procedures

S i Tt o S
Forsscortaun s e o
Tapreo Avor pRoCEDURES T w e e
Tora : PR

The Group team had planned to visit component locations in Austria, Spain and the USA. However,

these visits were prevented by travel réstrictions imposed as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and

instead the group team held video conference calls and performed remote file reviews to assess the
audit risk and the work plenned and performed in response.

The parent company was subject to a full scope audit for the purposes of the Group and Parent
Company financial statemeénts. -

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report on pages 1to 65 other than the financial statements

and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial or our k ledge obtai in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. - : .

IF we identify such materialinconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required

- to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we hové performed, we conclude that
there'is a material mi: of this other inf ion, we are required to report that fact. .

We hove nothing to report in this regard.

n

Opil;ions on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the part of the directors’
remuneration report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in
the course of the audit:

the information given in the Strategic
Report and the Directors’ Report for the
financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with
the financial statements and those reports
have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requireménts;

the information about’internal control and
risk management systems in relation to
financial reporting processes and about
share capital structures, given in compliance
with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 in the Disclosure
Rules and Transparency Rules sourcebook
made by the Financial Conduct Authority
(the FCA Rules), is consistent with the
financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal
requirements; and

information about the company's corporate
governance code and practices and about
its administrative, management and
supervisory bodies and their committees
complies with rules 7.2.2,72.3 and 7.2.7 of”~
the FCA Rules B N
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Matters on which we are required to report by
exception

In the light of the knowledge and
understanding of the group and the parent
company and their environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified
moterial misstatements in:

the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report;
or

the information about internal control and
risk management systems in relation to
financial reporting processes and about
share capital structures, given in compliance
with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 of the FCA Rules

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matters in relation to which the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in our opinion:

adequate accounting records have not been
kept by the parent company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

the parent company financial statements
and the part of the directors’ remuneration
réport to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not
made; or

we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit.

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the
directors’ statement in relation to going
concern, longer-term viability and that part of
the Corporate Governance Statement relating
to the parent company’s compliance with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Statement specified for our review.
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Bosed on the work undertaken as part of

our audit, we have concluded that each of

the following elements of the Corporate
Governance Statement is materially consistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the audit:

« Directors’ statement with regards the
appropriateness of adopting the gding
concern basis of accounting and any
material uncertainties identified {set out on
page 64);

+ Directors’ explanation as to its assessment
of the group's prospects, the period this
assessment covers and why this period is
appropriate {set out on page 36);

= Directors' statement on fair, balonced and
understandable (set out on page 44);

+ Board's confirmation that it has carried out
a robust assessment of the emerging and
principal risks {set out on page 31);

+  The section of the annual report that
describes the review of effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems
(set out on page 44); and,

* The section describing the work of the audit
committee (set out on page 44)

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully.in the directors’
responsibilities statement {set out on page
65), the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the

dii are nsible for ing the
group’s and the parent company's ability

to continue as a going concern, disclosing,

as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the group or the parent company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

72

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement; whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's repoit that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

The extent to which the audit was considered
capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud

Irregularities are instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations. The objectives of
our audit are to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding compliance with
laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the determination of material amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements,
to perform audit procedures to help identify
instances of non-compliance with other laws
and regulations that may have a material effect
on the financial statements, and to respond
ppropriately to identified or d
non-compliance with laws and regulations
identified during the audit.

In relation to fraud, the objectives of our audit
are to identify and assess the risk of material
misstatement of the financial statements

due to fraud, to obtain sufficient appropricte
audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of
material misstatement due to fraud through
designing and implementing appropriate
responses and to respond appropriately to
fraud or suspected fraud identified during the
audit.

However, it is the primary responsibility of
management, with the oversight of those
charged with governance, to ensure that
the entity's operations are conducted in
accordance with the provisions of laws
and regulations and for the prevention and
detection of fraud. .

In identifying and ussessintj risks of material
misstatement in respect of irregularities,

- including froud, the group audit engagement

team:

« obtained an understanding of the nature
of the industry and sector, including the
legal and regulatory frameworks that the
group and parent company operates in and
how the group and parent company are
complying with the legel and regulatory
frameworks;

inquired of manc’gement, ond those
charged with governance, about their own
identification-and assessment of the risks of
irregularities, including any known actual,
suspected or alleged instances of fraud;

+ applied analyticol review procedures to

identify unusual or unexpected relationships;

« . discussed matters about non-compliance
with laws and regulations and how fraud
might occur including assessment of how
and where the financial statements may be
susceptible to fraud

As the group is regulated, our assessment of
risks involved gaining an understanding of
the effectiveness of the control environment
including the controls established to mitigate
the risks of fraud and the procedures for

As a result of thesé procedures, we considered
the opportunities and incentives that may
exist within the Group for fraud and identified
the greatest potential for fraud in those.areas
in which management is required to exercise

ignificant ju it. In with all
audits under ISAs (UK) we also performed
specific procedures to respond to the risk of
management override and the risk of fraudulent
revenue recognition. These procedures
included:

+ testing the appropriateness of journal
entries and other adjustments based on risk
criteria and comparing the identified entries
to supporting documentation

. ing whether the j its made
in making accounting estimates were
indicative of potential bias

+ evaluating the business rationale of any
significant transactions that are unusual or
outside the normal course of business

testing the operating effectiveness of

the manual controls in relation to the _
completeness, accuracy, and existence of
cash sales

+ investigating transactions posted to nominal
ledger codes outside of the normal revenue
cycle identified through the use of data

* analytics tools.

The Group is subject to laws and regulations

which directly affect the material amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements.

The most significant laws and regulations were

detertmined to be as follows:-IFRS and FRS

102, the UK Companies Act, Financial Conduct
hori lations, including the Listing Rules

complying with regulatory requi
All relevant laws and regulations identified at a
Group level and areas susceptible to fraud that
could have a material effect on the financial
statements were communicated to component
auditors. Any instances of non-compliance

with laws and regulations identified and
communicated by component auditors were
considered in our audit opproach. We remained
alert to any indications of fraud throughout the
audit,
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y
and tax legislation,

In addition, the Group is subject to other

laws and regulations which do not have a
direct effect on the financiol statements but
compliance with which may be fundamental
to the Group's ability to operate or to avoid
moterial penalties. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an
effect: competition and anti-bribery laws, dota
protection, employment, environmental and
health and safety regulations.
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In response to the ‘above, audit procedures
performed by the audit engagement team
included:

+ .reviewing financial statement disclosures
and testing to supporting documentation
to assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulations described
as having a direct effect on the financial

_statements

.enquiring of management, the Audit
Committee'and in-house legal counsel
concerning actual and potential litigation
and claims

reading minutes of meetings of those
charged with governance, reviewing internal
audit reports and correspondence with
HMRC !

A further description of our responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements is located
on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Other matters which we are required to address

Following the recommendation of the audit
committee, we were appointed by the Audit

. Committee and the Board on 18 November

2019 to audit the financial statements for the
year ending 26 April 2020 and subsequent
financial periods. «

The period of total uninterrupted consecutive
appointments is 2 years covering the years
ending 26 April 2020 to 25 April 2021.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's
Ethical Standard were not provided to the
group or the parent company and’we remain
independent of the group and the parerit
company in conducting our audit.

Our audit t;pinion is consistent with the
additional report to the audit committee.

73

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's =
members, as a body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to stote to them
in an auditor's report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the company and the company's members

" as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or

for the opinions we have formed.

Mark Harwood
(Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP,
Stotutory Auditor .

Chartered Accountants -
25 Farringdon Street

London .

EC4A aAB

5 August 2021
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CONSOLIDATED

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

INCOME STATEMENT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

S2wesks andad $2waeks ended ;
N Note 25 Aprl 2021 16 April 2020 For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
) {Emd ot S2wesks anded S2wasks anded
. e ‘683 39514 fote 25 April 2021 26 April 2020
(205e51 229481 - tm tem)
13108 (Lossl/profit for the period 4 780) 1010
031901 -
‘Other operating Incoma. s 168 Y omen
impai 1617 ol 12260 1TEMS THAT WILL NOY BE REC 10 PROFIT OR LOSS
Excoptional tems s w61 031 Foir value mavermont on long term finonciol assets 0 73 T
Profit on sole of properties 7 o1 542 !
ITEMS THAT WILL BE RECLASSIFIED SUBSEQUENTLY TO PROFIT OR LOSS
OPERATING (LOSSY/PROFIT 8 16031 o1y -
wonslatian o foreign operations [z %8 .
Investment income 0 1037 152 = > o — o o ™
- i the peri .
Investimont costs " on ) = 2 recoguaesn e p
For - ineffecti 2529 - 02
Finance income [h 20 30
Fair [ 2525 ) an
Finance cost o 21 293
- Fair valug moverent on hedgad contracts - reclassifid ond reparted In cost of soles 2529 22 w4
Share of loss of associated undertokings W) - uss)

- Foir volue movement b hedged contructs - taxatlon token to reserves 2529 30 38
Foir volue gain on step acquisition » 204 :
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION s uss ‘OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX "y ase)
Toxaton = — 2] ToraL THE PERIOD ey 14
(LOSSUPROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 4 o0l 1010 3

E = ATTRIBUTABLE T
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: of the group o) 652
Equity holders of the Group 830) 8 - o —
g s0 72 ;
16831 14
(LOSSI/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD. 4 n8.0) 010
EAANINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EGUITY SHAREOLDERS
The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.
Pance par thare Pance pershare
Basic cormings ber share . 15 165) 85 °
15, 063 85

"

Property reloted impairments of £317.0m have boen separately presented for the year
which i ithin Selling, distributi snistrati

to bo comporable.

ended 25 April 2021, The prior year comparatlve of £1226m
in the FY20 Annual Report has been reprasented

The Consolidated Income Statement has been prepared on the basis that all operations are o
contjnuing. The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these -
financial statements.
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jC.ON_SOVLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

At 25 April 2021 For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021 -
: Nots 25 Apr 2021 26 April 2020 Mot S2weaks anded 52 weaks ended
. ) ket 25 april 2021 26 Apr 2020
ASSETS - NON CURRENT iEm) (em)
Property, plont and equipment 16 11649 12476 . 2 a2
2 189 Income taxes paid 5 )
Intangible osses s 3¢ NET TmEs - 187
Long:term finar £y 838 b :
B 2 99 Proceeds on disposal of property. plant and equipment and investment property 206 1526
Tars Proceeds on disposal of intangibles assets 5 -
ASSETS - CURRENT Proceed: ) 45
Inventories ) 10966 Purchase of associotes - 561
Trade and other roceivablos 2 465 Purchose of subsidirles, net of cash acquired . E (9.0 031
Derivotive financial assets k) 554 Purchose of property, plant and oquipment - % 1941 (3235)
ok B, 4570 i assets 8 ol -
1533 isted investments o133y (248)
ot AvEn M hyvestment i i o5 05
saunTy
Shar copital 2 641 601 i received . - 90 28
Share premium - a3 w703 NET CASH OUTFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 123041 4
I {2952) {2931 Lease poyments 80} (136
Parmanent 25 o1 o1 oo g el T
25 80 80 =
288 9 2% 11281 5100
Reverse combinati 25 19823 (08731 % 0.3236) te3651
Ovn share reserve 16671 l670] n-controlling Interests 031 -
i - 2 05 280 Purchase of own shores . 7 1639
Shore based 13 - NEY CASH OUTFLO 6103 o2y
Retained carnings 15545 15649
s THE PARENT 11929 12603 = o L
Noa-controlling Interests 181 3o Exchonge moveme 52 50
ToTALEQUITY e 2803 T BEGINNING OF PERIOD U0 as0
uABILITIES casu UDING OVERDRAFTS AT THE PERIOD END 2 4510 s340
lobil % 532 4762 | K
Sonping: obiigations & mf: quzz; The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.
Deferred tox labllities 27 20 256 :
28 3612 3360
16302 sy
LIABILITIES - CURRENT
Derivative iabil 25 192 a2
Trade and other poyables 30 6463 6025
Leasa fiobil 26 1865 s .
Current tox iabiltes. 895 536
s sz
TOTALLIABILITIES 25749 2523 .
ToraLequiTy 27831 30602

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these Financial Statements. The
Financial Statements were approved by the Board on 5 August 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

<
Chris Wootton

Chief Financial Officer
Company number: 06035106
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN EQUITY 4

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

. Shars capitel B Y Ownsharaserve  Titalned samings Othn Tt tbutatlete  Nomeonieling Total
) {tm) Um) em) em) (Em} em) 1Em) 1£m) m) £m)
AT 29 APRIL 2019 2] 2] 1281.7) - o8 167.2) 1490.8 932.5) > 12188 58 pxzir]
Purchase of own shares - - {440} - - 02 - - 1438) - 143.8)
Reversal of FY19 fair votuation of share buybock contre - - 300 - - - - - 300 - 300
TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS IN THEIR CAPACITY AS OWNERS - = 1.0} - - L2} - - m.e) - n.e
Profi forthe finoncil period - - - - - - 538 38 72 1010,
‘OTHER COMPRENENSIVE INCOME
‘Cash flow hedges - recognised nthe period g - - . B - - 64 6t B 164
Cash flow hedges - inelfectiveness. - - - - - - . - 02 02 - 02
Cash flow hedges - reclussified and reported in soles - = - - - - - na uwn - 0nn
Cash flow hedges - reclassified and reported in cost of safes - - - - - - 324 (37.4) - 137.4}
Cosh flow hedges - taration g - B - - B a8 38 - 58
Fair volue adjustmant in respect of long i cognised - - - - - - 197} - 115.7) - 9
Translotion diffarences - Group - - - - 98 - c - - 98 - 98
TOTAL COMPREMI FOR THE PERIOD - - - - 24 - ua {g) 65.2 12 14
AT 26 APRIL 2020 64 8143 sy - ns 61.0) 15649 1951.2) 12673 7o 11803
Acquisitions (note 31} : - - - - - . - - - 0 10
Share scheme - - - 13 - 03 en - 33} - By
Dividends paid to non-cantrolling interasts - - - - - - - - - 09 ©9
TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS IN THEIR CAPACITY AS OWNERS - = - “ - 03 n - 3] L2 no)
ILossVprolit for the fi i - - - - - - 1830} - 820 50 8.0}
OTHER COMPREHENSIVEINCOME . :
Cashflow hedges -ognised in the period - - = - - = - 04 04 - - 0.4
Cashflow hedges - reclassified and reported'in satas L - - - d - - S8 2.8 - 28
Cashilow hedges - rectassified and reported in cost of sales - - - - = - - 7y 7 - 4]
Cashilow hedges - toxation - - - - - . N 30 30 30
Foir value adjustment in respect of I sets - recognised - = - - - 773 - 73 - 3
Translation differences - Group_ N - . - - - 149.) = = 1493 - 1491}
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD s z - - [LA]) - [LA)] 183) ma) 50 166.3)
AT23 ApiL 2020 - ) ey [EE [ tsen) sses e 925 101 o
m The share s d th d shares. .
@ "

movaments in the peciod related to the hedging reservo fnote 25),

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the 52 weeks eénded 25 April 2021

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Frasers Group plc {Company number: 06035106)
is a company incorporated and domiciled in

the United Kingdom, its shares are listed on the
London Stock Exchange. The registered office

is Unit A, Brook Park East, Shirebrook, NG20
8RY. The principal activities and structure of the
Group can be found in the Directors' Report and
the 'Our Business’ section.

Basis Of Preparation

The consolidated Finoncial Statements have
been prepared in accordance with International
Accounting Standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and in
accordance with international financial reporting
standards adopted pursuant to Regulation {EC)
No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European

Going concern N

The Group's business activities, together with the
factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position are set out ini the Chief
Executive's Report and Business Review.

The financial position of the Group, its cash flows,
liquidity position and borrowing facilities are
described in the Financial Review. In addition,
the Financial Statements include the Group's
jectives, policies ond for i
its copita, its financial risk management
objectives, details of its financial instruments and
hedging activities, and its exposures to credit risk
and liquidity risk.

The Group still trades profitably, is highly cash
generative and has considerable financial
resources. The Group is able to operate within
its banking facilities and covenants, which run
until November 2022, and is well placed to take

Union. The lidated Financial S
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified to include fair valuation

o of strategic opportunities as they
arise. As a consequence, the Directors believe
that the Group is able to manage its business

of certain financial assets and d
financial instruments.

The accounting policies set out below have
been applied consistently to all periods in these
Financial Statements and have been applied
consistently by all Group entities. Certain
ubsidiaries have been ¢ based ona
calendar year-end date of 30 April 2021

The numbers presented in the Financiol
Statements have been rounded to the nearest
million.
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risks. despite the continued uncertain
economic outlook.

Management have assessed the level of trading
to date since the impacts of Covid-19 and has
forecast and projected a conservative base case
and also o number of even more conservative
scenarios taking into account a potential further
wave and associated lockdowns over winter,
Government support, foreign exchange exposure
and,cost saving initiotives. These forecasts and
projections show that the Group will be able to
operate within the level of the current facility and
its covenant requirements (being interest cover
and net debt to EBITDA ratios). Management
also have a number of mitigating actions which
could be, taken if required such as putting on
hold discretionary spend, realising certain
assets on the Balance Sheet and paying down
the Revolving Credit Facility. See the Viability
Statement for further details. *

Having thoroughly reviewed the Group's
performance and having made suitoble
enquiries, the Directors are confident that the
Group has adequate resources to remain in

operational existence for at least 12 months

from the date of these Financial Statements.
Trading would need to fall significantly below
levels observed during the pandemic to require
mitigating actions or a relaxation of covenants.
On this basis, the Directors continue to adopt the
going concern basis for the preparation of the
Annual Report and Financial Statements which is
a period of at least twelve months from the date
of approval of these Financial Statements.

Basis Of Consolidation

The lid Financial

incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries) each year. Control is
achieved when the Company:

« has the power over the investee;

» isexposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

* has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns,

The Company reassésses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the
bsidiary. ifically, the results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss from the date the
Company gains control until the date when the
Compony ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
the accounting policies used into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to

trar ions between the bers of the Group
are eliminated on consolidation.

Non- interests in ies are
identified separately from the Group's equity
therein. Those interests of non-controlling X
shareholders that are present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets upon liquidation may initially be
measured at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement is made on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Other non-controlling
interests are initially measured at fair value.

Sub: to ition, the carrying amount

the voting rights of an investee, it i that
it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or
not the Company's voting rights in an investee

. are sufficient to give it power, including:

« the size of the Company's holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
‘holdings of the other vote holders;

potential voting rights held by the Company,
other vote holders or other parties;

* rights arising from other contrac¢tual
arrangements; and

» any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Company has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need
to be made, including voting patterns at
previous shareholders' meetings.

Prir!ted on Steinbeis 100°% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new Briush woodlénd across the UK

of non-controlling interests is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus the
non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent
changes in equity.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to

the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of the subsidiaries is attributed

to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amount of the Group's interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners
of the Compoany.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the gain or loss on disposal recognised in profit
orloss is calculated as the difference between
{i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and {ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill),
less liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. Al amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
{i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as required/

itted by i  IFRS S The
foir value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary ot the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under
IFRS 9 when applicable, or the cost on initial

r ition of an i it in an or -

a joint venture.
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the isiti derati

method. The consit d
transferred in a busifiess combination is
measured at fair value, which is colculated

os the sum of the acquisition-date fair values

of assets transferred to the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners

of the acquiree and the equity interest issued
by the Group in exchange for controt of

the acquiree, Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets

acquired and the liabilities assumed are *
recognised at their fair value at the acqui
date, except that:

* deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with 1AS 12 and |1AS 19
respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related

to share-based payment arrangements

of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered

into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquire are measured
in accordance with IFRS 2 at the acquisition
date (see below); and

+ ossets {or disposal groups) that are
. classified as held for sale in accordance
with IFRS 5 are measured in accordance
with that Stendard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree {if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the
isition-d of the i ifi
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held interest in the acquiree (if cny),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

For business combinations achieved in stages,
the Group remeasures its previously held equity
interest in the acquiree at its acquisition date
fair value and recognises the resulting gain

or loss, if any, in the Income Statement as
appropriate. -

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence and thet is neither

a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies. .

The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in these financial
statements using the equity method of
accounting, except when the investment is
clossified as held for sale, in which case it is
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5.

Under the equity method, an investment

in an associate is recognised initially in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When’
the Group's share of losses of an associate or
a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the dssociate.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes on associate. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share.of the net fair value of

the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment,

after isr Y
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in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 36 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment

in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method from the date when the investment
ceases to be an associote. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate

and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest

at fair value at that date and the fair

value is regorded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with IFRS 9. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
associate ot the dote the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of

a part interest in the associate is included

in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all dmounts previously recognised .
in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if

@ goin or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when
the associate is disposed of.
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When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate but the Group continues to

use the equity method, the Group reclassifies
to profit or loss the proportion of the gain

or loss that had previously been recognised

in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit

or loss on the disposal of the related assets

or liabilities. When a group entity transacts
with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue with customers is measured based on
the five-step model under IFRS 15; ‘Revenue
from Contracts with Customers”:

1. identify the contract with the customer;

2. identify the performance obligations in the
contract; :

3. determine the transaction price;

4. allocate the transaction price to separate
performance obligations in the contract;
and

5. recognise revenues when (or as) each
performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received, or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. Customers hove a right of
return within a specified period and this gives
rise to variable consideration under IFRS 15.
The right of return asset is recognised within
inventory, with the refund liability due to
customers on return of their goods recognised
within trade and other payables.

In the case of goods sold through retait stores,
revenue is recognised when we have satisfied
the performance obligation of transferring the
goods to the customer at the point of sale, less
provision for returns. Accumulated experience is
used to estimate and provide for such returns at
the time of the sale. Retail sales are usually in
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cash, by debit card or by credit card.

In the case of goods sold on the internet
where the customer has opted for delivery,
revenue is recognised when we have satisfied
the performance obligation of transferring

the goods to the customer, which is the point

of delivery to the customer. Transactions

are settled by credit card or payment card.
Provisions are made for internet credit notes
based on the expected level of returns using the
expected value method, which in turn is based
upon the historical rate of returns. In the case
of internet click and collect orders which are
collected in store, the performance obligation is
deemed to have been satisfied when the goods
are dispatched from the warehouse.

In the case of goods sold to other businesses
via'wholesale channels, revenue is recognised
when we have satisfied the performance
obligation of transferring the goods to the
customer upon delivery. Payment terms are
generally 30-60 days with no right of return.

In the case of income generated from
trademarks and licences, revenue is recognised
based either on a fixed fee basis or based

on sales with specified minimum guarantee
amounts in accordance with the relevant
agreements. If the sales-based royalty is not
expected to clearly exceed the minimum
guarantee threshold, revenue is recognised over
the rights period measured on the basis of the
fixed guaranteed consideration. Revenue above
the minimum guarantee threshold is recognised
as earned based on the contractual royalty rate
applied to the sales.

Revenue from Gym membership fees is
recognised on the accruals basis over the
related membership period. '

In the case of revenue from third party
commission on concession sales within the
House of Fraser department stores this

is recognised when goods are sold to the
customer. As we act as the agent this is
stated ot the value of the commission that
the Group receives on the transaction rather
than the gross revenue from the sale of the
concessionaires’ goods.

The Group operates loyalty programmes
which allow members to accumulate points
on purchases and receive exclusive offers and
benefits. The fair value of the points awarded
to customers is determined relative to the
total transaction price and accounted for as
a separate identifiable component of a sales
transaction. Revenue is deferred to match

the estimate value of earned loyalty points.
Deferred revenue is adjusted for the value of
points that are not expected to be redeemed
by customers based on historical redemption
rates. When the points are redeemed and the
Group fulfils its obligations pursuant to the
programmes, the revenue that was deferred is
recognised. In the UK points awarded expire
following & period of 12 months of inactivity,
in Spain they are valid until the end of the
following calendar year.

Revenue from gift cards and vouchers is
recognised when the cards or vouchers are
redeemed by the customer, breakage is
recognised when the likelihood of the card

or voucher being redeemed is remote or

has expired. For gift cards monies received
represent deferred revenue prior to the
redemption.

Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.
Grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in the Income Statement in the
period in which they become receivable.

The Group has received Government support
in the period relating to business rates relief
and the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme
(CJRS) as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.
The amount received by the Group (including
the UK) in the period in regard to the CJRS {or
equivalent where received in non-UK territories)
was approx. £80m. The amount of business
rates relief received by the Group in the period
{or equivalent where received in non-UK

territories) was approx. £97.5m. Government
grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised in profit or loss as a
deduction against the related expense over

the periods necessary to match them with

the related costs. The amounts quoted have
been recognised in Selling, distribution and
administrative expenses in the period.

Exceptional Items

The Group presents exceptional items on

the face of the Income Statement. These are
significant items of income and expense which,
because of their size, nature and infrequency
of the events giving rise to them, merit
separate presentation to allow shareholders

to better understand the elements of financial
performance in the year, so as to facilitate
comparison with prior periods and assess
trends in financial performance more readily.

Interest Income

Interest income is reported on an accruals basis
using the effective interest method.

Taxation

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the Income Statement,
except to the extent it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. The income tax expense or
credit for the period is the tax payable on the
current periods taxable income, based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction,
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences
and to unused losses..

Deferred taxation is calculated using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated Financial Statements. However,
if the deferred tax arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted
for. Deferred tax on temporary differences
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associated with shares in subsidiaries is

not provided if reversal of these temporary
differences can be controlled by the Group
and it is probable that reversal will not occur in
the foreseeable future. In addition, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other
income tax credits to the Group are assessed
for recognition as deferred tax assets. Deferred
tax is determined using tax rates and laws that
have been enacted (or substantively enacted)
by the balance sheet date and ore expected

to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities are provided in full

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tox assets
are offset where there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets ond liabilities
and where the deferred tox balances relate to
the same tox authority.

Changes in current and deferred tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as.a component of -
tax expense in the Income Statement, except
where they relate to items that are recorded
in other comprehensive income or charged or
credited directly to equity in which case the
related deferred tox is also charged to other
comprehensive income or credited directly to
equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

When the non-controlling interest of an existing
subsidiary is acquired the carrying vaolue of the
non-controlling interests in the Balance Sheet is

.eliminated. Any difference between the amount

by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid is
recognised directly in equity.

Other Intangible Assets

Brands, trademarks and licences that are
internally generated are not recorded on the
Balance Sheet. Acquired brands, trademarks
and licences are initially carried on the
Balance Sheet at cost. The fair value of brands,
trodemarks and licences that are acquired by
virtue of a business combination is determined
at the date of acquisition and is subsequently
assessed as being the deemed cost to the
Group.

Expenditure on advertising and promotional
activities is recognised as an expense as
incurred.

Amortisation is provided on brands, trademarks
and licences with a definite life on a straight
line basis over their useful economic lives

of between 5 to 15 years and is accounted

for within the selling, distribution and
administrative expenses category within the
Income Statement. .
Property, Plant And Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated

at historical cost less depreciation less any

* recognised impairment losses. Cost includes

e that is directly attributable to

the isition or construction of these items.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on lidation is recognised
as an asset and revi d for i

at least annually or when a'change in

ci 1ces or situation indi that the

~goodwill has suffered an impairment loss. The
need for impairment is tested by comparing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(CGU), which is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use, to the carrying value.

" Any impairment is recognised immediately in

the Income Statement. Impairment losses on
goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on
the disposal of a business include the amount
of goodwill relating to that business.
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the costs can be
measured reliably.

All other costs, including repairs and
maintenance costs and labour costs are
charged to the Income Statement in the period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided on all property,
plant and equipment other than freehold
land and is calculated on a straight-line basis,
whichever is deemed by the directors to be

Investment Properties

Investment properties, v;hich are defined as
property held for rental income or capital
iation, are initially d at cost

more appropriate, to allocate cost less
residual value, other than assets in the course
of construction, over the estimoted useful lives,
as follows:

+ Freehold buildings - between 10 to 15 years
- straight line

* Leasehold improvements - 5 years or over
the term of the lease, whichever is shortest
- straight line

+  Plant and equipment - between 3 to 5 years
- straight line

During the period the freehold buildings
depreciation estimate was changed from
between 10 to 25 years to between 10 to 15
years. This hos resulted in approx. £30m of
additional depreciation being recognised in
the period. This was based on a review of the
freehold property portfolio by management
and it was deemed appropriate to reduce the
range to better align with the estimate of the
remaining useful lives of the freehold buildings.
This change in accounting estimate is expected
to impact the depreciation charge in future
periods but an estimate of the impact has not
been disclosed due to it being impracticable to
do so given the level of additions ond disposals
that could be anticipated based on historical
trends. .

The assets’ useful lives and residual values.are
reviewed and, if appropriate, adjusted at each
balance sheet date. The gain or loss arising on
disposal or scrapping of an asset is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds,
net of selling costs, and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in the Income
Statement.

Property, plant and equipment where the
carrying amount is recovered principally
through a sales transaction and where a sale is
considered to be highly probable are stated ot

. the lower of carrying value and fair value less

costs to sell.

| )
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being purchase price and directly attributable
expenditure. Where the intention is to hold
property as owner occupied, this is recognised
as property, plant and equipment. ’

tly ir are held
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Investment properties are
depreciated between 10 to 15 years stroight
line, other than the land element which is not
depreciated.

Fair values of the investment properties are’
disclosed.

Impairment Of Assets Other Than Goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Directors
review the carrying amounts of the Group's
tangible and intangible assets, other than
goodwill, to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered

an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset in
its current condition is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. Where the asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent from other assets,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the asset belongs. With
respect to property, plant and equipment,
each store is considered to be a CGU and
reviewed for impairment whereby changes in
circumstances indicate that the recoverable
amount is lower than the carrying value.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing the value in use, the estimoted future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset
{CGV) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
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impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevont asset is
carried at o re-valued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease to the original historic cost and then
as an expense.

Impairment losses recognised for CGU's to
which goodwill has been allocated are credited
initiolly to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any
remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata
to the other assets in the CGU.

’

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(CGU} excluding goodwill, is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would hove
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (CGU} in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the Income Statement immediately.

Assets Held For Sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale
are p d sep: ly and d at the
lower of their carrying emounts immediately
prior to their classification as held for sale and
their fair value less costs to sell. Once classified
as held for sale, the assets are not subject to
depreciation or amortisation.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value: Cost includes the purchase
price of the manufactured products, materials,
direct labour and transport costs. Cost is
coleulated using the weighted average cost
method. Net realisable value is based on the
estimated selling price less all estimated selling
costs.

The Group receives trade discounts and rebates
from suppliers based upon the volume of
orders placed in a given time window. Typical
discounts and rebates received by the Group
include early settlement discounts, volume
rebates on inventory purchases, supplier
rebates based on faulty goods, and marketing
support. Where there is sufficient certainty
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that o discount or rebate will be received in
the future that relates to historic purchases this
is reflected in the cost of inventories. Where
the receipt of rebates is uncertain, the cost of
inventories is held at full cost price until the
rebate is received. Recognised rebates are
released to the Income Statement to the extent
that the stock has been sold.

Cus'h And Cash Equivalents

Cash and cosh equivalents include cash in
Rand and deposits held on call, together with
other short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the Group's Balance Sheet when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial licbilities are
initially measured at fair value, Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities {other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financicl assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished,
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financia! Assets

Classification and i
financial ossets

of

Except for those trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component

ond are measured at the transaction price in
accordance with IFRS 15, all financial assets
are initially measured at fair volue adjusted for
transaction costs (where applicable).

Financial assets, other than those designated
and effective as hedging instruments, are
lossified into the i i

+ amortised cost

fair'value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI)

All income and expenses relating to financial
assets that are recognised in profit or loss
are presented within finance costs or finance
income, except for impairment of trade
receivables and amounts due from reloted
parties which are presented within selling
distribution and ini: ive

assets whose contractuol cash flows are not
solely payments of principal and interest are
accounted for at FVTPL. All derivative financial
instruments fall into this category, except for
those designated and effective as hedging
instruments, for which the hedge accounting
requirements apply (see below).

Assets in this category are measured at fair
value with gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The fair values of financial assets in
this category are determined by reference to
active market transactions or using o valuation
technique where no active market exists.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI)

On initial application of IFRS 9 the Group made
the irrevocable election to account for long
term financial assets at fair value through other

of fi ial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised

toll

cost if the assets meet the following c:

comp income {FVOCI) given these are
not held for trading purposes. The election has
been made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, only qualifying dividend income is
recognised in profit and loss, changes in fair
value are recognised within OCl and never

- {and are not designated as FVTPL):

+ they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and
collect its contractual cash flows

* the contractual terms of the financial
assets give rise to cash flows thot are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding

After initial r these are

lassified to profit and loss, even if the asset is
impaired, sold or otherwise derecognised.

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9's impairment requirements use more
forward-looking information to recognise
expected credit losses - the ‘expected credit
loss (ECL) model". Instruments within the
scope of the requirements include loans and
other debt-type financial assets measured ot
ised cost and FVOCI|, trade receivables,

at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Discounting is omitted where the
effect of discounting is immaterial. The Group's
cash and cash equivalents, trade and most
other receivables fall into this category of
financial instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets that are held within a different
business model other than 'hold to collect’

or 'hold to collect and sell’ are categorised

at fair value through profit and loss. Further,
irrespective of business model financial
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other receivables, amounts due from related
parties, contract assets recognised and
measured under IFRS 15 and loan commitments
and some financial guarantee contracts (for
the issuer) that are not measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Other receivables and amounts due from
related parties

Recognition of credit losses is no longer
dependent on the Group first identifying a
credit Joss event. Instead the Group considers
a broader range of information when assessing
credit risk and measuring expected credit



FRASERS Gioup - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

losses, including past events, current conditions,
reasonable and supportable forecasts that
affect the expected collectability of the future
cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this fomard-lookiné approach, a
distinction is made between:

financial instruments thot have not
deteriorated significantly in credit quality
since initiol recognition or that have low
credit risk (“Stage 1) and

financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in crédit quality since initial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low
("Stage 2°). .

+  “Stage 3" would cover financial assets where
the credit risk has increased to a point at
which it is considered credit impaired

‘12-month expected credit losses’ are
recognised for the first category while ‘lifetime
expected credit losses' are recognised for the
second category.

Measurement of the expected credit losses is
determined by a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses over the expected life of the
financial instrument.

Trade receivables

The Group makes use of a simplified approach *
in accounting for trade receivables and records
the loss allowance as lifetime expected credit
losses. These are the expected shortfalls

in contractual cash flows, considering the
potential for default at any point during the life
of the financial instrument. In calculating, the
Group uses its historical experience, external
indi and forward-looking inf ion to
calculate the expected credit losses using a
provision matrix.

Financial Liabilities )
Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities :

The Group's financial liabilities include

. borrowings and lease liabilities, trade and other
payables and derivative financial instruments.

82

Financial liabilities are initially measured at
foir value, and, where applicable, adjusted for
transaction costs unless the Group designated
a financial liability ot fair value through profit
or loss. Subsequently, financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method except for derivatives and
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, which
are carried subsequently at fair value with
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
(other than derivative financial instruments
that are designated ond effective as hedging
instruments).

All interest-related charges and, if applicable,
fair value changes in currency derivative
instruments that are reported in profit or loss
are included within finance costs or finance
income. Fair value changes in equity derivative
financial instruments are recognised in
investment income or investment costs.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting N

Derivative finoncial instruments are accounted
for at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
except for derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedge relationships,
which require o specific accounting treatment.
To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging
relationship must meet all of the following
requirements:

. (her; is an economic relationship between
the hedged item and the hedging
instrument

the effect of credit risk does not dominate
the value changes that result from that
economic relationship

* the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship *
is the same as that resulting from the
quantity of the hedged item that the entity
actually hedges and the quantity of the
hedging instrument that the entity octually
uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

Written option contracts do not qualify for
hedge accounting and fair value movements
are recognised directly in the Income -
Statement.

For the reporting periods under review, the
Group has designated certain forward currency
contracts as hedging instruments in cash flow
hedge relationships. These arrangements have
been entered into to mitigate foreign currency
exchange risk arising from certain highly
probable sales and purchases transactions
denominated in foreign currencies.

All derivative financial instruments used for
hedge accounting are recognised initially ot fair
value and reported subsequently at fair value in
the Balance Sheet.

To the extent that the hedge is effective,
chaonges in the-fair value of derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in cash flow
hedges are recognised in other comprehensive
income and included within the cash flow
hedge reserve in equity. Any ineffectiveness

in the hedge relationship is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

At the time the hedged item affects profit or
loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in
other ive income is ified
from equity to profit or loss and presented
as a reclassification adjustment within

other comprehensive income. However, if a
non-financial asset or liability is recognised as
a result of the hedged transaction, the gains
and losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are included in the
initial measurement of the hedged item.

If a forecast transaction is no longer expected
to occur, any related gain or loss recognised
in other c income is fe

The Group provides for its legal responsibility
for dilopidation costs following advice from
chartered surveyors and previous experience
of exit costs. The estimated cost of fulfilling
the | ilapidation: igations is
discounted to present value and analysed
between non-capital and capital components.
The capital element is depreciated over the
life of the asset. The non-capital element is
taken to the Income Statement in the first year
of the lease where the cost it represents is of

. no lasting benefit to the Group or its landlord.

‘Wear and teor’ costs are expensed to the
Income Statement. Provisions for onerous lease
contracts are recognised when the Group
believes the unavoidable costs of meeting the
lease obligations exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under the lease. Legal
provisions (including settlements and court
fees) are recognised based on advice from the
Group's lawyers when it is probable that there
will be an outflow of resources and a reliable
estimate can be made.

Other provisions include management's best
estimate of restructuring, employment related
costs and other claims.

Any reimbursement that the Group is virtually
certain to collect from a third party with respect
to the obligation is ised as a

asset. However, this asset may not exceed the
amount of the related provision.

No liability is recognised if an outflow of
economic resources as a result of present
S ch situati

is not probable. Si are

immediately to profit or loss. If the hedging
relationship ceases to meet the effectiveness
conditions, hedge accounting is discontinued
and the related gain or loss is held in the equity
reserve until the forecast transaction occurs.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and a relioble estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

N
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as nt unless the

outflow of resources is remote.
Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease, at inception of the contract.
Lease liabilities are measured at the present
value of the contractual payments due to the
lessor over the lease term, with the discount
rate determined by reference to the rate
implicit in the lease unless (as is typically

the case) this is not readily determinable, in
which case the Group's incremental borrowing
rate on commencement of the lease is used.
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Variable lease payments ore only included in

" the' measurement of the lease liability if they
depend on an index or rate. In such cases,
the initial measurement of the lease liability

- assumes the variable element will remain
unchanged throughout the lease term. Other
variable lease payments such as revenue linked
property leases are expensed in the period to
which they relate.

- On initial recognition, the carrying value of the
lease liability olso inctudes:

= amounts expected to be payable under any
residual value guarontee;

the exercise price of any purchase option
gronted in favour of the Group if it is
reasonably certain that the option will be
exercised; :

any penalties payable for terminating the
lease, if the term of the lease has been
estimated on the basis of the termination
option being exercised.

The lease liability is presented as a separate
line in the consolidated Balance Sheet.

Sub to initial nent lease -
liabilities increase as a result of interest charged

When an indication of impai is i

right of use assets are tested for impairment

in accordance with I1AS 36 by comparing the
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. The right of use assets are presented
within property, plant and equipment in the
consolidated Bolance Sheet.

Sub to initial , right-of-
assets are amortised on a straight-line bosis
over the remaining term of the lease or over the
remaining economic life of the asset if this is
judged to be shorter than the lease term.

When the Group revises its estimate of the
term of any lease (because, for example, it

the ility of a lessee
or termination option being exercised), it adjusts
the carrying amount of the lease liability to
reflect the payments to make over the revised

. term, which are discounted at a revised

discount rate, The carrying value of lease
liabilities is revised using the original discount
rate when the variable element of future lease
payments dependent on a rate or index is

revised. In both cases an equivalent adjustment :

is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use
asset, with the revised carrying amount being
ised over the ing {revised) lease

at the effective rate on the balance ou di
and are reduced for lease payments made.

Right of use assets are initially measured at

the amount of the lease liability, reduced for
any lease incentives (payments made by o
lessor to a lessee assqcioted with a lease, or
the reimbursement or assumption by a lessor of
costs of o lessee) received or impairment, and
increased for: :

* leose payments made at or before
commencement of the lease;

+ initial direct costs incurred; and

term.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual
terms of a lease with the lessor, the accounting
depends on the nature of the modification:

« ifthe renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an
amount commensurate with the standalone
price for the additional rights-of-use

i the modification is for
as a separate lease in accordance with the
above policy

* in all other cases where the renegotiation

* + the amount of any pi
where the Group is contractually required
to dismantle, remove or restore the
leased asset, providing it meets the
Groups property, plant and equipment
capitalisation policy.
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- the scope-of the lease (whether

that is an extension to the lease term, or
one or more additional assets being leased),
the lease liability is remeasured using the
discount rate applicable on the modification
date, with the right-of use asset being
adjusted by the same amount

« ifthe ation results in a d in
the scope of the lease, both the carrying

amount of the lease liability and right-
of-use asset are reduced by the same
" proportion to reflect the partial or full

termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or loss. The lease
liobility is then further adjusted to ensure

its carrying amount reflects the amount

of the renegotioted payments over the .
renegotiated term, with the modified lease
poyments discounted ot the rate applicable
.on the modification date, The right-of-use
asset is adjusted by the same amount.

Sale and leaseback

On entering into a sale and leaseback
transaction the Group determines whether
the transfer of the assets qualifies as a sale
(satisfying a performance obligation in IFRS
15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers').
Where the transfer is a sale and providing
the transaction is on market terms then the
previous carrying amount of the underlying
osset is split between: i

* aright-of-use asset arising from the
leaseback (being the proportion of the
previous carrying amount of the asset that
relates to the rights retained), and

"+ the rights in the underlying asset retained

by the buyer-lessor at the end of the
leaseback.

The Group recognises a portion of the total
gain or loss on the sale. The amount recognised
is calculated by splitting the total gain or loss
into:

* anunrecognised emount relating to the
rights retained by the seller-lessee, and

« arecognised amount relating to the buyer-
lessor's rights in the underlying asset ot the
end of the leaseback. )

The leaseback itself is then accounted for under
IFRS 16.

Rental income from operating leases where
the Group acts as a lessor is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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Treasury Shares

The purchase price of the Group's own sharés
that it acquires is recognised as 'Treasury
shares’ within equity. When shares are
transferred out of treasury the difference
between the market volue and the average
purchase price of shares sold out of treasury is
transferred to retained earnings.

Employee Benefit Trust

An Employee Benéfit Trust has been established
for the purposes of satisfying certain
share-based awards. The Group has ‘de-facto’
control over the special purpose entity.

This Trust is fully consolidated within the
accounts. The cost of shares acquired by

the Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust is
recognised within ‘Own Share reserve! in equity.

Share-Based Payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain Directors and employees.
These are measured at fair value at the date of
grant, which is expensed to the consolidated
Income Statement on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with the corresponding
credit going to equity.

Non-market vesting conditions are not taken
into account in determining grant date fair
value. Instead, they are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments to
vest. At the end of each reporting period the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non market vesting dhd service conditions. Any
revisions, if any, are recognised in profit and
loss with an adjustment to equity.
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Fair value is calculated using an adjusted form
of the Black-Scholes model which includes a
Monte Carlo simulation model that takes into
account the exercise price, the term of the
option, the impact of dilution {(where material),
the share price at grant ‘dote and the expected
price volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend yield, and the risk-free -
interest rate for the term of the scheme. The
expected staff rumbers used in the model has”
been adjusted, based on management's best

Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried

at fair value are included in the Income
Statement for the period except for differences

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in
the Group's Financial Statements and as a
ion from equity in the period in which

arising on the reti ion of nor y
items in respect of which gains and losses are
ised in other ¢ ive income.

For such non-monetary items, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also
recognised directly in other comprehensive
income. Monetary assets and liabilities

estimate, for the effects of non-trar
exercise restrictions, and behavioural
considerations.

Y.

For cash-settled share-based payment
transactions, the Group measures the services
received and the liability incurred at the fair
value of the liability. Until the liability is settled,
the Group remeasures the fair value of the
liability at the end of each reporting period and
at the date of settlement, with any changes in
fair value recognised in the Income Statement
for the period.

* The credit for the share based payment charge
does not equal the charge per the income
Statement as it excludes amounts recognised
in the Balance Sheet in relation to the expected
national insurance contributions for the shares.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of any direct issue
costs,

Foreign Currencies.

The presentational currency of the Group

is sterling. The functional currency of the
Company is also sterling. Foreign currency
transactions are translated into sterling using
the exchange rates prevailing on the dates
of the tr ions. Exchange diff of
the Company arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are included in the Income
Statement for the period.
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d in foreign currencies are

d at the rate of exch ruling at
the balance sheet date, Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retransicted.
Non-monetary items that are held at valuation
are translated at the foreign exchange rate at
the date of the valuation.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of
foreign operations which have a functional
currency other than sterling are transloted
into sterling at foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. The revenues and
expenses of these subsidiory undertakings are
translated ot average rates applicable in the
period. All resulting exchange differences are

din other ive income
and documented in a separate component of
equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, the
cumulative exchange differences that have
been ised as a

of equity are reclassified from equity to the
Income Statement when the disposal is
recognised.

In order to mitigate its exposure to certain
foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into
forword contracts (see Chief Executive's Report

and Business Review and the cash flow hedging

accounting policy).

the dividends are declared. Where such
dividends are proposed subject to the approval
of shareholders, the dividends are regarded
as declared once sharehold: P | has
been obtained and they are no longer at the
discretion of the Company.

Materiality

In preboring the Financial Statements, the
Board considers both quantitative and
qualitative factors in forming its judgements,

* and related disclosures, and are mindful of

the need to best serve the interests of its
stakeholders and to avoid unnecessary clutter
borne-of the disclosure of immaterial items,

In making this assessment the Board cansiders
the nature of each item, as well as its size, in
assessing whether any disclosure omissions or
misstatements could influence the decisions of
users of the Financial Statements.

New mtil Ve ions And
Amendments Adopted By The Group

The Group has not early adopted any other

interpi ion or amendment that
has been issued but is not effective. The Group
applies for the first time the following new
standards: .

+  Definition of Material - Amendments to IAS
Tand IAS 8

Definition of a Business - Amendments to
IFRS 3

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - .
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS
4 and IFRS 16 .

Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions -
Amendments to IFRS 16
* Amendments to References to the

C | F in IFRS Standard:

By ad;:pting the above, there has been no
material impact on the Financial Statements.
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("Standards”) In Issue But Not Yet Effective

At the date of authorisation of these
consolid Financial § 3

there are no standards in issue from the
International Accounting Standards Board
(*IASB") or International Financial Reporting
interpretations Committee (“IFRIC") which
are effective for annual accounting periods
beginning on or ofter 26 April 2021 that will
have a significant impact on these Financial
Statements.
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2.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The critical accounting estimates and
judgements made by the Group regarding

the future or other key sources of estimation,
uncertainty and judgement that may have

a significant risk of giving rise to a material
adjustment to the carrying values of assets and

financial or operating decisions of Studio
Retail Group Plc. Studio Retait Group Plc
can terminate this arrangement at any

time, and can determine which parts of

the Board meetings the representative can
be present at and what information they
are given access to. It should be noted the
Frosers Group representative did not attend
any board meetings in full or part during the
reporting period;

» There is no participation in decision
making and strategic processes, including

lial ies within the next finoncial period are:
* Key Judgements
Determining Related Party Relationshi

Management determines whether a related
party relationship exists by assessing the
nature of the relationship by reference to
the requirements of IAS 24, Related Party
Disclosures. This is in order to determine
whether significant influence exists as a
result of control, shared directors or parent
companies, or close family relationships. The
level at which one party may be d

parti indi about divid
or other distributions;

There have been no material transactions
between the entity and these investee
companies;

There has been no interchange of
managerial personnel;

No non-public essential technical
information is ided to the

to influence the other is also considered for

transactions involving close family relationships.

Control And Significant Influence Over Certain
Entities !

Under'|AS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures if an entity holds 20% or more of
the voting power of the investee, it is presumed
that the entity has significant influence, unless
it can clearly demonstrate that this is not the
case. During the period the Group has held
greater than 20% of the voting rights of Studio
Retail Group Plc, French Connection Group Plc
{sold during the period} and Mulberry Group
Plc, whereby management consider that the
Group does not have significant influence over
these entities for combinations of the fotlowing
reasons:

«  The Group does not have any
representation on the board of directors
of the investee other than a Frasers Group
representative having an observer role
on the board of Studio Retail Group Plc.
Management have reviewed the terms
of the observer arrangement and have
concluded that this does not give them
the right to participate in or influence the
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investee.

In assessing the level of control that
management have over certain entities,
management will consider the various aspects
that allow management to influence decision
making. This includes the level of share
ownership, board membership, the tevel of
investment and funding and the ability of the
Group to influence operational and strategic
decisions and effect its returns through the
exercise of such influence. If management

were to consider that the Group does have
significant influence over these entities then the
equity method of accounting would be used

and terminating their services or employment.
However, in prior periods the Group has
provided Four (Holdings) Limited with o
significont loan. At the reporting dote, the
amount owed by Four (Hotdings) Limited for this
toan totalled £60.0m (£21.6m net of amounts
recognised in respect of loss allowance). The
Group is satisfied that the existence of these
transactions provides evidence that the entity
has significant influence over the investee but in
the absence of any other rights, in isolation it is
insufficient to meet the control criteria of IFRS
10, as the Group does not have power over Four
(Holdings) Limited and therefore Four (Holdings)
Limited is not equity accounted.

Cash Flow Hedging

The Group uses a range of forward and option
contracts that are entered into at the same
time, they are in contemplation with one
another and have the same counterparty.

jud is mode in d i
whether there is an economic need or
substantive business purpose for structuring
the transactions separately that could not
also have been accomplished in a single
transaction. Management are of the view that
there is a substantive distinct business purpose
for entering into the options and a strategy for
managing the options independently of the
forward contracts. The forward and options
contracts are therefore not viewed as one
instrument and hedge accounting for the
forwards is permitted. .

Under IFRS 9 in order to achieve cash flow
hedge accounting, forecast transactions
imarily Euro denominated sales and USD

in
note 20) multiplied by the results of the investee
in the period {as disclosed in note 34) would be
recognised in profit or loss.

and the percentage shareholding (di: 1 il

The Group holds 49% of the share capital of
Four (Holdings) Limited which is accounted
for using the equity method. The Group does
not have any representation on the board
of directors and no participation in decision

denominated purchases) must be considered
to be highly probable. The hedge must be
expected to be highly effective in achieving
offsetting changes in cosh flows attributable
to the hedged risk. The forecast transaction
that is the subject of the Hedge must be highly
probable and must present an exposure to
variations in cash flows that could ultimately
affect profit or loss. Management have

about relevant activities such as ishing
operating and capitol decisions, including
budgets, appointing or remunerating key
management personnel or service providers

reviewed the detailed and growth
assumptions within them, and are satisfied
that forecasts in which the cash flow hedge’
accounting has been based meet the criteria
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per IFRS 9 as being highly probable forecast
transactions. Should the forecast levels not pass
the highly probable test, any cumulative fair
value gains and losses in relation to either the
entire or the ineffective portion of the hedged
instrument would be taken to the Income
Statement.

Management considers various factors when *
determining whether a forecast transaction is
highly probable. These factors include detailed
sales forecasts by channel, geographical area
and seasonality, conditions in target markets
and the impact of expansion in new areas.
Management also consider any change in
alternative customer sales channels that could
impact on the hedged transaction.

If the forecast transactions were determined
to be not highly probable and all hedge |
accounting was discontinued, the Hedging
reserve of £11.5m would be shown in Finance
Income.

Key Estimates
Provision For Obsolete, Slow Moving Or

Defective Inventories

The Directors have applied their knowledge and
experience of the retail industry in determining
the level and rates of provisioning required in
caleulating the appropriate inventory carrying
values. Specific estimates and judgements
applied in relation to assessing the level of
inventory provisions required are considered in
relation to the following areas:

a. Continuity inventory

b. Seasonal inventory lines - specifically
seasons that have now finished

Third party versus own brand inventory

. Ageing of inventory

Sports Retail or Premium Lifestyle

Local economic conditions

Divisional specific factors

@ ™0 a0

Increased cost of inventory and lower
margins with the devaluation of the Pound

Over-stock and out of season inventory as a
result of Covid-19
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Provision estimates are forward looking and
are formed using a combination of factors
including historical experience, s

Dilapidations

The Group provides for its legal responsibility
for dilapidation costs following advice from

knowledge of the industry, group di
sales pricing protocols and the overall
assessment made by management of the

risks in relation to inventory. Management use

a number of internally generated reports to
monitor and continually re-assess the adequacy
and accuracy of the inventory provision. The
additional cost of repricing inventory and
handling charges in relation to relocating
inventory (tunnelling) are considered in arriving
at the appropriate percentage provision. The
assessment involves significant estimation
uncertainty, therefore in order to check

that the assumptions applied remain valid,
management produces a range of outcomes
and the provision is set within this range.

Key assumptions used to create the estimates
are:

» Discounting - Based on historical
experience and management’s anticipated
future discounting including the impact of
Covid-19

Tunnelling - Cost of handling steck for
reworking, repacking and repricing

Repricing - Labour cost associated with
repricing units of stock

» Shrinkage - Stock lost through domage and
theft

Total Group inventory provision at 25 April 2021

is 16.6% (FY20: 15.7%). A 1% change in the total

provision would impact underlying EBITDA by

approx. £13.2m (FY20: £14.2m).

chartered surveyors and previous experience
of exit costs {including strip out costs and

P | fees). use a refe
estimate of £100,000 {FY20: £100,000) for large
leasehold stores, £50,000 {FY20: £50,000) for
smaller leasehold stores (£25,000 per store

for Game UK and Game Spain stores} and
$/€50,000 (FY20: $/€50,000) for non-UK stores.
Management do not consider these costs to be
capital in nature and therefore dilapidations
are not capitalised, except for in relation to

the sale and leaseback of Shirebrook in the
prior period in which a material dilapidati

In relation to the non-UK tax enquiries
management have made a judgement to
consider all claims collectively, applying the
following key estimates to.the gross amounts
{excluding re-imbursement assets):

+  10% penalty (FY20: 10%). A 5% increase to
15% would result in approx. £6.5m increase
in the provision (FY20: approx. £7.0m).

« 3% interest on the liability (FY20: 3%). A

" 1% increase to 4% would result in approx.
£W.5m increase in the provision (FY20:
approx. £10.0m).

Management are satisfied that the judgement

to consider all claims collectively is the only

approach because they are all

provision was capitalised.

A 10% increase in dilapidation cost per store

" would result in an approx. £8.0m reduction in

underlying EBITDA.
Other Provisions

Provisions are made for items where the Group
has identified a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Legal and regulatory provisions relate to

's best estil of provisi
required for legal and regulatory cloims and
ongoing non-UK tax enquiries. Other provisions
relate to management's best estimates
of provisions required for restructuring,

do not consider it appropriate to disclose
sensitivities for key assumptions in isolation as
in practice changes in one assumption would
lead to an offset in another. .

Property Related Provisions

Property related estimates ond judgements |
are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience, external advice and other
factors, including expectations of future évents
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. |
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and commercial. Where

applicable these are inclusive of any estimated

penalties, interest and Jegal costs. See note 28.

dependant on the outcome of a court ruling on '

the interpretation of the non-UK tax enquiries.
Management are satisfied that with regord to

timing o reasonable range of outcomes are all
greater than one year and so are satisfied with
including the provisions as non-current.

Other Receivables And Amounts Owed By
Related Parties |

Other receivables and amounts owed by
related parties are stated net of provision for
any impairment. Management have applied
estimates in assessing the recoverability of
working capital and loan advances made to
investee companies. Matters considered include
the relevant financial strength of the underlying
investee company to repoy the loans, the
repayment period and underlying terms of the
monies advanced, forecast performance of the
underlying borrower, and where relevant, the
Group's intentions for the companies to whicl
monies have been advanced. .
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N
1FRS 16

The key areos of judgemeﬁt in relation to
property leases recognised under IFRS 16
are below:

* _IFRS 16 defines the lease term as the non-
cancellable period of a lease together
with the options to extend or terminate a
lease, if the lessee were reasonably certain
to exercise that option. The Group will
assess the likelihood of extending lease
contracts beyond the break date by toking
into account current economic and market
conditions, current trading performence,
forecast profitability and the level of capital
investment in the property.

« IFRS 16 states that the lease payments shall -
be discounted using the lessee’s incremental
barrowing rate where the rate implicit in
the lease cannot be readily determined.
Accordingly, all lease payments have been
discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate (IBR). The IBR has been determined

“ by using a synthetic credit rating for the
Group which is used to obtain market data
on debt instruments for companies with the
same credit rating, this is split by currency
to represent each of the geographical areas
the Group operates within and adjusted for
the lease term.
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-The weighted average discount rates based on incremental borrowing rates used throughout the
period across the Group's lease portfolio are shown below. The discount rate for each lease is
dependent on lease start date, term and location.

Lease Term ) : Uk Europe Rest of Workl
UptoS years 1% 18% 03% - 08% 1.5% - 33%
Greater thon 5 yeors and up t0 10 yeors 20%-22% 05%-12% 25%-35%
Greater than 10 years and up to 20 years 22%-25% 0% - 14% 29%-37%
Greater than 20 years 25%-26% 1% - 17% 35% - 36%
+ The right of use asset will be revi d for i at each reporting period in line with IAS

36 impairment to review whether the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. For
impairment testing purposes the Group has determined that each store is a separate CGU. The
recoverable amount is calculated based on the Group's Idtest forecast cash flows which are
then extrapolated to cover the period to the break date of the lease taking into account historic
performance and knowledge of the current market, together with the Group's views on future
profitability of each CGU. The key assumptions in the calculations are the sales growth rates,
gross margin rates, changes in the operating cost base and the pre-tax discount rate derived
from the Group's weighted average cost of capital using the capital asset pricing model, the
inputs of which include a risk-free rate, equity risk premium and a risk adjustment {Beta). Given
the number of assumptions used the assessment involves significant estimation uncertainty.
The i used are it with those di: in the Freehold Land and Buildings
and Long-term leasehold section below. Impairments in the period have been recognised for
the amount of £174.9m, being £168.2m against the right-of-use asset (£114.Jm UK Sports Retail
segment, £20.5m Premium Lifestyle segment, £31.0m European Retail segment, and £2.6m Rest
of the World Retail segment) and £6.7m Ggainst plant and equipment (£2.6m UK Sports Retail
segment, £0.5m Premium Lifestyle segment, £3.6m European Retail segment). The impairments
were due to the ongoing impact of Covid-19 and the challenges in the retail sector on the
forecast cash flows of the CGU.

The'key assumptions, which are equally applicable to each CGUY, in the cash flow p}ojecticns used to
support the carrying amount of the right of use osset are consistent with the cashflow projections for
the Freehold land and Buildings impairment ossessment. :

A sensitivity analysis has been performed in respect of sales and margin as these are considered to
be the most sensitive of the key assumptions. With regard to the sales assumption below we have
performed a sensitivity for both no lockdown in year 1and a lockdown which lasts four months -
compared to two months:

Land and Buildings and Long-term ! hold

Freehold land and buildings and iong-term leosehold assets are assessed at each reporting period
for whether there is any indication of impairment in line with IAS 36 impairment.

An asset is impaired when the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. IAS 36 defines
recoverable amount as the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs

of disposal ond its value in use, the Group has determined that each store is o separate CGU.
Impairments in the period have been recognised in the amount of £117.9m (FY20: £nil) due to the
ongoing impact of Covid-19 ond the challenges in the retail sector on the forecast cash flows of

the CGU. This is split £84.4m against freehold land and buildings (£68.7m UK Sports Retail segment
and £15.7m European Retail segment), £3.9m against long-term leasehold (£2.9m UK Sports Retail
segment and £1.0m European Retail segment), £29.0m plant & equipment (£15.1m UK Sports Retail
segment, £8.8m Premium Lifestyle segment, £5.1m European Retail segment), and £0.6m investment
property (all UK Sports Retail segment).

Value In Use (VIU) N

The value in use is calculated based on five year cash flow projections. These are formulated by
using the Group's forecast cash flows of each individual CGU excluding any Covid-19 impact, taking
into account historic performance of the CGU, and then adjusting for the Group's current views on
future profitability of each CGU as a result of Covid-19 and knowledge of the current market. The
key assumptions in the calculations are the sales growth rates, gross margin rates, changes in the
operating cost base and the pre-tax discount rate derived from the Group's weighted average cost
of capital using the copital asset pricing model, the inputs of which include a risk-free rate, equity
risk premium and a risk adjustment (Beta). Given the number of assumptions used the assessment
involves significant estimdtion uncertainty.

The key assumptions, which are equul‘ly applicable to each CGU, in the cash flow projections used to
support the carrying amount of the freehold lond and buildings were as follows:

Key casumptions Yoar1 Yoor2 Yeard Yeara Yours
Sales decline 5% 5% % % 2%
Existing gross margin » 40% 00bps Wb 50bps _ -mSbps __-100bps

. * Operating casts increase per annum % 1% 3% % %
Discount rete &% &% % &% %

Tarminal growth rote of 2%

A sensitivity analysis has been performed in respect of sales ond margin as these are considered to
be the most sensitive of the key assumptions. With regard to the sales assumption below we have

Impact of changaln  {mpalment incragse /
Forecast: mm-ump:u: idecreaset tm performed a sensitivity for both no lockdown in year 1 and a lockdown which lasts four months
Soles year 1 - No lockdown 15% - impravement 239) pared to two months:
Soles year1- ¢ 15% - reduction 635 .
Existing Gross Margin year 1 >40% 100bps - improvement 6 Forecasts . o Impactors  'mpslment tncreaae /
Exsting Gross Margin year 1 >40% 100bps - reduction 53 -
o Selos year 1 Nolackdown. . 15% n (5331
Sales yeor { - & months lockdawn 15% - reduction 576
Exiting Gross Morgin year 1>40% 100bps - improvement .0
Existing Gross Margin yeor 1>40% 100bps - reduction 53
87 -
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Fair value less costs of disposal . .

For those CGUs where the value in use is less than the carrying value of the asset, the fair value less
costs of disposal has been determined using both external and internal market valuations. This fair

value is deemed to fall in to Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as per IFRS 13. The property portfolio
consists of vacant, Frasers Group occupied and third party tenanted units, one property can include
all three types. The following valuation methodology has been adopted for each: )

Seenarle Vatuation methodology Key assumptions
Vacant units Estimated Rental Volue [ERV) and suitoble reversionary yleld  Void period and rent free band ~ two bands applied depending
applied to reflect the market to generate a net capital value. A on circumstances:

doduction to the copital value generated i then made based

on the void period with applicable rates payabla for the yrit

and rent free incentive. -+ 2yoars void, 3 years rent free.
Yield bonds - ranging from 1% - 15%

1yeor void, 2 years rent free; o1

Frasers Group occupied  Willbo assumed the unit s vacant givan there s no lagally
indi pany ag in ploc
and rent free incentive period assumed, the cost amount then
deducted from the capital value generated by the ERV.

Void period and rent free band - two bonds applied depending

1 yeor void, 2 years rent fres; o1

tevarsionary yield. Although we consider the commercial reality * 2 yasrs void, 3 years rent froe.
is thot folr value less costs 10 sell will be higher than vacant  yield bands - ranging from 7% - 15%
possession this very conservative assumption s in ling with
i d that of
oxperts.
Third par AnERV

on the passing rent. ERV bands applied to passing rent = ranging from 0% to -50%.
ir s s - ranging f -15%

vield i fisk  Yield band:
of tenant and renewa to generaie o capital valuo. This wil olso
provide a net intial yield bosed off the current passing rent.

A 10% increase in the market valuation amounts used in the impairment calculations would result in
a decrease in impairment of £7.5m.

The total recoverable amount of the assets that were impaired at the period end was £170.0m, with
£87.0m of this being based on their fair value less costs of disposal and £83.0m being based on-their
value in use.

Key Estimates In Relation To Alternative
Performance Measures

EBITDA is earnings before investment income,
finance income and finance costs, tox,

" - isation and i

It includes the Group's shaie of losses from
associated undertakings and joint ventures.
Underlying EBITDA excludes the impact of IFRS
16, foreign exchange gains/losses in selling and
administration costs, exceptional costs, and the
profit / loss on disposal of subsidiaries, strategic
investments and properties. Underlying EBITDA
also excludes fair value adjustments on step
acquisitions.

The Directors believe that underlying EBITDA,
underlying Profit before tax and underlying
basic EPS provide further useful information for
shareholders on the underlying performance

of the Business in addition to the reported
numbers and are consistent with how business
performance is measured internally. They are
not recognised profit measures under IFRS.and
may not be directly comparable with “adjusted”
profit measures used by other companies.
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Management will from FY22 change our main
reporting KPI from Underlying EBITDA to
Adjusted PBT, Thus from FY22 the Group will no
longer report Underlying EBITDA. Adjusted PBT
is Reported Profit Before Tax less the effects of
unhedged FX, exceptional items, and gains and
losses on strategic investments. Management
have taken this decision for the following
reasons:

»  With the continued significant investment
. in and roll out of our elevation strategy
on both the physical and digital fronts,
the importance of depreciation and
amortisation to both the Boord and
our stakeholders in terms of assessing
performance has grown.

- Our understanding from a number of
financial sectors including the banking
sector is that IFRS16 is becoming an
increasingly important consideration,
including on covenants in many new
financing arrangements.

« With this new measure being introduced
we are trying to align with the Financial
Reporting Council's thematic standpoint
with regard to ‘alternative performance
measures’ as far as possible whilst retaining
a degree of interpretation given factors
outside of our control, such as FX and |
strategic investments movements which
are exceptionally difficult to forecast,
particularly months in advanceThe
following are further key estimates used
with regard to the alternative performance
measures used by the group.

Onerous lease provision

Provisions for onerous lease contracts are
recognised when the unavoidable costs of
meeting lease obligations exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received over the term
of the lease. Where an onerous lease has been *
identified, the property, plant and equipment
associated to that store are also reviewed for
impairment.

Management use store EBITDA in order to
determine whether an onerous lease exists.
Specific assumptions, which involve the use of

. estimates and involve significant estimation

uncertainty, that are used to determine the

level of provision are
with the cashflow projections for the Freehold
land and Buildings assessment except for the
following: .
«  Discount rate 2% (FY20: 2%) across the
Group
Operating costs increase 3% (FY20: 3%)
across'the Group

Store profitability includes 100%
contribution towards central overheads

«  Assumed get out cap of 10 years (FY20: 10
years), being the maximum period for total _
unavoidable costs

Planned store closures, relocations and re-
brandings

A sensitivity analysis has been performed in réspect of sales and margin as these are considered to
be the most sensitive of the key assumptions. With-regard to the sales assumption below we have
performed a sensitivity for both no lockdown in year 1 and a lockdown which lasts four months

compared to two months:

Provislon Incraase /

Foracart: tmpact of: crecne) tor
Soles yeor 1 - No lockdown 15% - Improvemerit 044}
Sales yeor 1 - 4 months lockdown 15% - reduction 1510

. Existing Gross Margin year 1>40% 100bps - impravement 126}
Existing Gross Margin year 1>40%

100bps - reduction ns

Further information on the basis of the estimation of provisioning for dilapidations and onerous lease
contracts is detailed in the provisions accounting policy and note 28.

Impairments of plant and i 1t and shi

p of £24.2m have also

been recognised os a result of identified onerous lease contracts {£6.4m UK Sports Retail segment,
£2.7m Premium Lifestyle segment, £15.1m European Retail segment).

Priv!led on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust, helping to create new British woodland across the UK
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3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's current activities result in the
following financial risks and set out below are
management’s responses to those risks in order
to minimise any resulting adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
principally via:

a. Transactional exposure from the cost of
future purchases of goods for resale, where
those purchases are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency
of the purchasing company. Transactional
exposures that could significantly impact
the income statement are hedged. These
exposures are hedged via forward foreign
currency contracts which are designated
as cash flow hedges. The notional and fair
value of these contracts is shown in note 29;

Transactional exposure from the sale of
goods, where those sales are denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currency of the selling company.
Transactional exposures that could
significantly impact the income statement
are hedged. These exposures are hedged
via forward foreign currency contracts
which are designated as cash flow hedges.
The notional and fair value of these
contracts is shown in note 29;

c. Loans to non-UK subsidiaries, These are
hedged via foreign currency transactions
and-borrowings in matching currencies,
which are not formally designated as
hedges, as gains ‘and losses on hedges and
hedged loans will naturally offset; and

d. The Group uses currency options, swaps
and spots for more fléxibility against cash
flows that are less than highly probable
and therefore do not qualify for hedge
accounting under IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. Exposures in respect of
written options to sell Euros or buy USD are
explained in the Financial Review. These
are not hedged and movements in fair
value could significantly impact the Income
Statement in future periods. See note 29.
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Interest Rate Risk

The Group has net borrowings, which are

" principally at floating interest rates linked to

bank base rates or LIBOR. The Group uses
interest rate financial instruments to hedge

its exposure to interest rate movements using
erest rate swaps although hedge accounting
is not applied. The Group regularly monitors
and reacts accordingly to any exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates and the impact on
its monetary assets and liabilities.

Credit Risk

The Directors have a credit policy in place
and the exposure to credit risk is monitored
on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit
over o certain amount. The Group does not
require colloteral in respect of financial assets,

At each balance sheet date, there were no
significant concentrations of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset
in the balance sheet.

Investments of cash surpluses, borrowings and
derivative instruments are made through banks
and companies which must fulfil credit rating
and investment criteria approved by the Board.

Liquidity Risk

The Group has sufficient liquid resources to
manage the operating requirements of the
business and it does this through utitisation

of its revolving credit facilities together with
equity and retained profits thereby achieving
continuity of funding and short-term flexibility,
while keeping interest to a minimum.

Management regularly review forecasts to
ensure there is adequate headroom on the
facilities and to ensure the Group is operating
within its financial covenants. -

Price Risk

The Group is'exposed to price risk in respect
of its fong term financial assets (in relation to
listed company shares).

The price risk relates to volatility in the market,
and how other comprehensive income and
equity would have been affected by changes
in market risk that were reasonably possible at
the reporting date. If the quoted stock price for
these securities increased or decreased, other
comprehensive income and equity would have
changed. The listed securities are classified as
Long term investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income so there would be
no effect on profit or loss.

The investments in listed equity securities
{long-term financial assets) are considered
medium to long-term strategic investments.
In accordance with the Group's policies, no
specific hedging activities are undertaken in
relation to these investments.

Capital Management

A description.of the Group's objectives, policies

and processes for managing capital are
included in note 29.
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4. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Management has determined to present
its segmental disclosures consistently with
the presentation in the 2020 Annual Report.
Manag considers ionally that
the UK Retail divisions (UK Sports Retail and
Premium Lifestyle) are run os one business
unit in terms of allocating resources, inventory
and ing perf 3
Under IFRS 8 we have not at this reporting
date met the required criteria with enough
certainty to aggregate these operating
segments. We will continually keep this under
review at subsequent reporting dates. We
continue to monitor the impacts of Covid-19,
Brexit, and the continued uncertainties this
has brought relating to the politicel and
economic environments, and market and
currency volatility in the countries we operate
in. European countries have been identified as
operating segments and have been aggregated
into a single operating segment as permitted
under IFRS 8. The decision to aggregate these
segments was based oh the fact that they each
have similar economic characteristics, similar
long-term financial performance expectations,
and are similar in each of the following
respects:

*  The nature of the products;

*  The type or class of customer for the
products; and

*  The methods used to distribute the
products.

90

In accordance with paragraph 12 of IFRS 8
the Group's operating segments have been
aggregated into the following reportable
segments:

1. UK Retail:

i. UK Sports, Retail - includes core sports

{excluding Bob's Stores, Eastern

the gyms, the Group's Shirebrook
. campus operotions, GAME UK stores

operations in Northern Ireland.

Premium Lifestyle - includes the
results of the p i i

Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended

.2 April 2021:

with related websites.

2. European Retail - includes all the Group's
sports retail stores, management and

European Distribution Centres in Belgium
and Austria, as well as GAME Spain stores
and Baltics online. )

3. Rest of World Retoil - includes the results of
US based retail activities, Asia based retail

. activities, along with their e-commerce
offerings.

Eod

of the Group's portfolio of internationally
recognised brands such as Everlast,
Karrimor, Lonsdate and Slazenger.

It is management's current intention to run the
Group as four operating segments being UK

Retail {including UK*Sports Retail and Premium
Lifestyle), European Retail, Rest of World Retail

s el W Woldnetdd Rt © Lewming SOt
iem) lem) lem) 1] iem) (Lm) lem} tem} tem}
Sales to external customers 19685 756 1041 6152 w27 34m0 1933 — e
Soles to othar segments - - - - 954 155.4) -
retail store operations in the UK, plus all REVENUE 15685 e 27081 o152 B2 aume us7 541 3ema
the Group's sports retail online business Gross profic 6293 303 uswe 297 610 1an3 75 SRR
‘OPERATING PROFIT/-
Mountain Sports, Malaysia and Baltis), LS me o wa me  m m o om
(TEws, DIsPOSAL OF
PROPERTIES AND IFRS 18
and online operations, and retail store Lo L) EL) - L] (L
Prolit on disposal of 25 78 R R s R s
intangible assets
Profit on sale of properties 10 - 1.0 88 o) LAd - 97
retail b Foreign exchange reclised 1202) 0.2 (204) 08 b4y oy {5.3) 128.3)
Flannels, Cruise, Van Mildert, Jack Wills, B 1ot A Yo &2 B8 (o) : ——
House of Fraser and Sofa.com along OPERATING (LOSSY/PROFIT (s8.3) ny {36.4) (53.4) ue s.2) us - 160.3)
Investmant incorma 1007
Investment costs 14/
i 0
operations in Europe including the Group's ::::::::;2“ ree— m.:’
Taxation 05
LOSS FOR THE PERIOD w0
Other segment items included in the Income
Statement for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021:
UK P UKRetall  Europaan  Restol ool Wholesala aroup
. Sports Litastyle otal Retall World Retail Retail & Licemsing Tatal
. . . tem tom) itm) tm tm . tmy tem teml
Whalesale & Licensing - includes the results Proparty, plant & equipment depraclation 1538 204 e 353 57 52 2 264
Property, plont & equipment inpairment 956 120 1026 40.6 - us.2 - ALLEY
IFRS 16 ROU depreciation 518 64 519 29 23 221 - 824
RS 16 ROU impoirment s 25 e 310 26 1602 - 1602
ivastment property deprociation 5 - 9 - - 19 - 5
tavesiment property impirment o5 08 - - s - o8
e e ool 561 (5.0 w - @n
Intangible amortisation - - - 0s - 05 66 il
Intanglblo impoirment a7 23 50 n - 91 - 91

and Wholesale & Licensing. Management is
satisfied that the UK Sports Retail and Premium
Lifestyle will meet the criteria permitted under
IFRS 8 to aggregate as one segment in due
course.

Pr]r!led on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new British woodland across the UK
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Information regarding segment assets and liabilities os at 25 April 2021 and capital expenditure for,

the 52 weeks then ended:

European  RestOF

Information regarding segment assets and liabilities as at 26 April 2020 and capital expenditure for

the 52 weeks then ende

UK Retail Total  Wholusale Group UX | Premium  UKRetal  European  Restof Totol  Whelasale L Group
Sports  Litestyle Tatal “Retail World Retail Retoll & Licensing ClominGtions Yotal Sports  Litestyle Total Retall World Retail Retall & Ucarulng n otal
tem (tm) tem) tam ttm) tem (tm ttm frm) . tem tem t&m ttm) tem (Em) it tm)
Totot assets . 35352 4387 RXED 6708 1586 48033 3447 11.362.9) 27851 Total assats 33249 4747 3.799.6 4559 1286 43841 1860.2) 3.888.2
Total fiobilties 03578) " (4996) (285741 (8570) 950 33098 nz7s) 13629 (s 09863 (556 (25429) 16270) 0951) (236800 1833 8502 (238.9)
Tangible asset additions 746 29 wes e 30 2169 25 - Tangible osset additions 2368 2.4 2622 1 - 1s s - - 3238
Right ofuso asset additions s 141 o8 223 28 e o5 N Right of use assel additions 506 29 ns 255 22 w012 - - w2
: i qui 27 89 ne 31 - us - - ur
Intangible assets acquired 37 2.3 6.0 - - 60 10 - 10
) ) 5 Geographic Information :
Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020: . srap :
Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021:
Premium  UKRetsil © European  Restof Total sole i tions Group
- Sperts itestyle fotal il lcans min¢ o
ports Lifestyl Total Retail World Retail Retail & Ucensing Total w Europs uia Asia Eliminations Total
: (Em) (Em) L {em) {Lm) {em) {em) . (em) (em) (£ em) - {Em) tm (Em) {em} {Em)
Sales to external custormers 22033 0 2925 977 42 913 160.2 - 39574 Segmantal revenae h 20 6162 237 27 - 26253
Sales to other segments hd - - - - - 128 (12.8) hd Totol capltal sxpenditure 1965 V7.4 32 23 - w4
REVENUE 22003 mo 29153 e13 2 912 8o o8 39574 Non-current segmant assets” 10523 nag w1 a6 - 12998
Grass profit 903.2 3486 12518 2679 774 15971 655 . - 1,662.6 » assets . 62687 5892 2562 379 11,3629 27881
‘OPERATING PROFIT / B
(LOSS] BEFORE FOREIGN R “Excludes deferred tox and financial instruments.
EXCHANGE, EXCEPTIONAL us.e 118.0) e us 105 "4 W
ITEMS AND IFRS 16 Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020:
en 69 ) @5 - ) - - my
Profit on sale of properties 332 - 32 20 - 542 . - 842 K Non-ux us s Elminatlons
Foreign exchange realised 295 14 109 4 0.4 354 5] - S - fEm) fem) fem} {em {em
1FRS 16 odjustments 2 on I 065 7 ) N - e Segmental revenue from external customers 29510 m3 2352 489 .
OPERATING PROFIT/ [LOSS) 2079 (1.2} 1y . {104} 33 161.0 10.9 = ms Jota! capitol expenditure 2625 568 18 23 .
Investment income 1 Non-curcent segmental assets* un6 nax 2704 s -
Investment casts el i i 38611 3 3505 95 (@502
Finance in - Y
2 income, o “Excludes deferred tox and financiol instruments.
Financa cost 9) .
Share oflss of ossacoted 59 Material non-current segmental assets - by a non-UK country:
undertokings
e 04 USA  Gelgm  Awtda  Estonla  Ireland Spaln
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION urs Yo ol Lo L femd tem)
E— - - e P 277 68 74 - 29 399
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD N - w10 £re LEL 22 e 22 25 367
N . . teri - d
Sales to other segménts are priced at cost plus a 10% mark-up. Mo erial segmental revenue from exkem_a! customers hy' @ non-UK country:
Other segment items included in the Income Statement for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020: usa fatda Etonle - Iatand T spaln
R (e ttm) 2] (e (em)
vk Pramium UK Retail ro) Rast OF Total  Wholasale Group Lazl) 237 L3l 967 954 2081
Sports  Lifestyle ol Ratal World Ratail Retall & Uconsing Yotal ) 2352 552 1031 73 841
£ £om)
ttend tim) ttm) tem) temi (tm) ] (tem) 0% of prior period.
Depreciation s - 207 wa 394 48 1634 14 1648 g
IFRS 16 ROU nat 163 wa 70 u3 w3 .- 195
IFRS 16 disposal of loase liobilities 22 102 129) (6.4} {0.4) 19.) - 19.7) N -
Exceptional Impairment” 2.7 69 9.6 35 - na - 21
Amontisation/tmpairment 21 20 4 29 - 20 124 204 R R
91
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The following table reconciles the reported operating profit to the underlying EBITDA as it has been OTHER OPERATING INCOME
one of the main meoasures used by the Chief Operating Decision Maker when reviewing performance . ‘ .
N - . S2masks anded S2weeks onded
during the period: sapiizon 26 Aprl 2020
' . ina (1 £ " . t&m . (€m)
p to underlying EBITDA for the 52 week period E
- Rent receivoble . e 163
Other 207 162
N . ) ns
. UKSparts  Pramium  UKRetall  Euopean  Restol ool Whl
. Retail  Lifestyle Total Retail Waorld Retail & U other opercting i tor ircrat, torms. o ‘o thied portics,
ttm) (em) i) ttem) ttm) e
oPSRATING 08 PREFT _ ) 2 1364) (53.4) us o5 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS .
1FRS 16 disposal and modificat . _
remeasurement o eoss iabiios (00 58 el oa o1 b Rl S2waaks ended 32 weeks anded
IFRS 16 ROU depreciation 515 64 59 29 23 821 - 21 - 25 apeil 2021 26 April 2020
FRS 16 ROU Impai s 208 ) 6 68, - fomd ol
IFRS 16 ROU impairment nas X s 30 2 1602 - 1682 pr— - o w
. Hincluing investment R A7) 81 ;3 57 ma 12 ma Profit on disposal of Intangible assets - 75 -
o imctoding 1 .8 . ma)
PPE impairment finclucding investmont w62 . . 106 . es i wea
prope The impalrment in both the current and pr sent value of Iuture cosh llows do nat suppert the full
Intangible amortisation R . . o5 - o8 66 " Vi o the anars. e pref o disposd f iomgile osecseres v e s of conon I m!nl\ng to the BELONG businoss.
REPORTED EBITDA w2 - me aus us us sus 27 5165 7 PROFIT ON SALE OF PROPERTIES
{Prolitiloss on sale of properties 10) - o) 8 o "o . 021 . N
Cocoptiondltoms o i wn ) - e - e Sy anded Styksanded
1FRS 16 ogjustments 61 (2351 155.8) 1639) w0y (69 - e) tem) tem
Realsad FX foss / (gain) 202 02 204 108) 14 10 53 263 Profit on sale of properties 97 - a2
UNDERLYING EBITDA . msa2 59 ma 1.6 1628 0 190.8 The profit on the sale of he current period incl the sale he prior pev!mﬂ rgely relat
e el ot ot o e Shecraa om0 e R o o o oo B o
1FRS 16 rent
Reconc:hanon of operuhng profit to undeﬂymg EBITDA for the 52 week period ended 26 April 2020: 8.  OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD
UK Premium  UKRetail  Europacn Yotal  Whelesale Group Operating {loss)/profit for the period is stated after charging/(crediting]
i Sports  Lifestyle Total Retail World Retail otail & Licensing Total . .
" em (e ttm) tEmi (em) (em (em - . S2weeks ended Stk ended
- 20
OPERATING PROFIT /(LOSS] 2019 (3321 m (10.4) o) 1610 105 38 Aprt 2011 26 e :,..,
5 (tm)
RS 16 Disposol of lease liobilly 7 0. 3.0 . 0. 21 -
RS 16 Ovpose! o o el L o) fod) 09 L) toss /(ggin 263 a5
1FRS 16 ROU depreciation/impairment - a1 161 2 70 13 795 - XD AMORTISATION OF O -CURRENT ASSETS:
{FRS 16 PPE Impaimment .32 - 32 60 - 52 - 92 ~Depreciation of property, plant § equipment (incl. right-of-use asset) 2985 2584
Oepreciation 953 06 s a5 d a2 1a 1556 ~impairment of property. plant & f-use assot] 64 26
Amortisation/impairment . 2 20 . a1 s - 20 s 205 ~Depreciation of invesiment properties _ 19 33
Share of loss of associcted undertakings. as9) - 159 - - 53 - s9) Ampoliment of nvesiment propery Lo
ngible ossets 2 145
REPORTED EBITDA - 4o 52 4082 1016 ua 5262 ua ssto- it of langile smets o - o0
Profit on sle of properties 3321 - ) ?.0) - (4.2) - 542) 1FRS 16 LEASES:
Excoptional tems. ) 27 69 96 35 - wi B na Profit on disposal ar i of lease liabilities - @z o0
IFRS 16 adjustment: W5.9) 163 122.0) 130) 20.8) (m29) - (72.9) Vatiable lcase payments 255 158
Realised FX (goln) / loss s 0s) o) 142) ©2 653) 04 ) Short tor and low value leose expenses - == 560
UNDERLYING EBITDA 4 us ms 18 t6.0) 789 32 3021 - s
) Relotes tothe reversal of IFRS 16 rent and onerous lease provisions. : -
92 ) : .
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SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE GROUP'S AUDITOR

10.  INVESTMENT INCOME

The remuneration of the auditors, RSM UK Audit LLP, and associated firms, was as detailed below: S2waeks ended 52 wasks ended
- - N 28 Aprt 20m 26 8pri) 2020
S2wesks ended 52 waka ande tem) tem)
April 2010 26 April 2020 Prolit on disposal of financial assets and equity derivative f 274 )
ttm (tm) o dervative financial i 206
AUDIT SERVICES Fair volue gain on equity derivative financial instruments , 552 23
Audit of the Group ond company - recurring - 15 [ idend s o5 o5
Audit of the Group and company - non-recurting - 03 o on o
Audit of subsidiary componies os o8
i i as The profit on disposal of financial assets mainly relates to Hugo Boss contracts for leference The
24 29 fair value gain on equity derivative financial instruments mainly relates to Hugo Boss options and

There were no non-audit services provided in either the current or prior period,

9.  PAYROLL COSTS

The average monthly number of employees, including Executwe Directors, employed by the Group
during the period was:

S2wasks ended 52 waeks ended

25 apeil 2021 26 Apri) 2010

Retail stores . S 25505
Distribution, i . - a1 e
26498 209

The decrease in employees is mclnly due to naturat uttrmon, including in part, the mtegmtlon of new
acquisitions,

The aggregate payroll costs of the employees, including Executive Directors, net of amounts received
from Government grants, were as follows:

contracts for difference. The premium received on derivative financial instruments mainly relates to
Hugo Boss options.

1. INVESTMENT COSTS

¢ Sawesksended S2wasks ended

. 26 apsil 2020

tem (gm)

- 140

. 358

i ).v 498

The fair value loss on equity derivatives in the current penod mainly relates to movements in
contracts for difference.

The loss on disposal recognised in the prior period mainly relates to the sale of equlty derivatives.
The fair value loss on equity derivatives in the prior period mainly relates to Hugo Boss options and
commodities.

12. FINANCE INCOME

S2wieks anded 52 waeks andad
25 Aprit 2021 26 Apr 2020

Wages and salaries . 2422 4564 S waeks anded S2weeks ended
ial ty costs. 293 305 28 Apeil 201 020
Pension costs 56 59 (e )
i i s 420 Bonk interest receivable 35 C w6
i - N Other finance income. B 55 &
Aggregote emoluments of the Directors of the Company are summarised below: o e 3 n s
: s0 no

25 apdl 2001 28 April 2020
- (e ttm
Aggregate emaluments o5 o4

Further details of Directors' remuneration are given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report. Details of
key management remuneration are given in note 34

93 - . o

The fair volue adjustment to derivative financiol instruments relates to differences between the fair
value.of forward foreign currency contracts and written options that were not designated for hedge
accounting from one period end to the next. Other finance income largely relates to premiums
received on option contracts.

.

F’riflted on Stenbeis 300% Recycled and Carbon Capiured through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new British woodland across the UK - . . -
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13. FINANCE COSTS

52weaks endad S2waeks ended
25 april 2021 26 April 2020

3 tem . tm

Interest on bank I s - o 9
Other interest - R 86 . o0
. Interest on retirement benellt obligotions .o o1
IFRS 16 leaso interest 18 109
Folr value adjustment to derivative financial instruments a6 N

. 362 3

The fair value adjustment to derivative financial instruments relates to differences between the fair
value of forward foreign currency contracts and written options that were not designated for hedge
accounting from one period end to the next.

14. TAXATION

15. - EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM TOTAL AND CONTINUING OPERATIONS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

Basic earnings per shcre is calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

For diluted'earnings per share, the weighted average number of shares, 501,955,281 (FY20:

- 505,826,890), is adjusted to assume, conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares under the

Group's share schemes, being 88,605 (FY20: 1,239,075), to give the diluted weighted average number

" of shares of 502,043,886 (FY20: 507,065,965). However, as there is a loss for the period ended 25 April

2021; the effect of potentially dilutive ordinary shares is anti-dilutive, and therefore the weighted
average number of shares for the Diluted EPS calculation has been kept the same as for the Basic
EPS calculation for the current period.

Basic And Diluted Earnings Per Share

- . 52wasls ended 52 wasks ended
25 April 2021 126 Apeil 2020
tem [C]
Current tax - - 832 512
- Adjustment in respact to prior periods 136 39
TOTAL CURRENT TAX. - 968 &
Deferrod teix won @58
Adjustment in respect of prior periods - 102) 22
TOTAL DEFERRED g . 10.3) 8.8
863 as
Profit ? 88 1435
Toxation ot the standardrate of tax in the UK of 19% (2020: 19%) 16 73
a1 - (224
Expenses not deductble fortax pusposes: . 70 190
* Other tax adjustments 1n6) 96
Adjustments in respect of prior pefiods - curent tox - ue 39 -
of prior periods - deferred tox = . - 02 72
Changes in deferred tox rate - 1)
v s6s - T as

Non-taxable income largely relates to profits on property dlﬁposul due to differences between capital
allowances and depreciation. Expenses not deductible for tax purposes relate to non- quallfylng
depreciation; |mpmrments and fair valuation of investments.

94

S2wesks anded 52wacks anded
28Apil  8Apil  26Aprl 26 April
2021 2020 20 200
Buskc  Diuted Basle  Diluted
: ey tem (em tem’
{LossV/profit for the period - ®20) @0) 938 918
Numbar in thousands ___ Numbar in thousands
‘Welghted overage number of shares 501955 S0I9S5S 505827 507066
i Pence porshars Pance per thare
Eornings per share. 165) 165} 185 185

Printed,on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodtand Trusl. helping to create new British woodland across the UK
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Underlying Earnings Per Share

The underlying earnings per share reflects the underlying performance of the business compared
with the prior period and is calculated by dividing underlying earnings by the weighted average
number of shares for the period. Underlying earnings is used by management as o measure

of profitability within the Group. Underlying earnings is defined as (loss)/profit for the period
attributable to equity holders of the parent for each financial period but excluding the post-tax
effect of certain non-trading items. Tax has been calculated with reference to the effective rate of tax

for the Group.

The Directors believe that the underlying earnings before exceptional items and underlying earnings
per share measures provide additional usefut information for shareholders on the underlying
performance of the business and are consistent with how business performance is measured
internally. Underlying earnings is not a recognised profit measure under IFRS and may not be directly

comparable with “adjusted” profit measures used by othef companies.

52 weeks ended 52 waeks ended
. 25 april 28 April 26 Apri 26 April
0 0 2020 2020
Basic Dibutad Basie Dihrted
tkm tem t&m) (€m)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 183.0} {83.0) 91.8 9.8
Post tax adjustment to (loss}/profit for the period for the following items: -

Realised in) on forward foreign exchange contracts - 197 197 {26.) {26.0)
Fair value adjustment to forward foreign exchange contracts 3.4 - 34 16,0} 116.0}
Fair value gain on step acquisitlon . - - {20.4} (20.4}
Fair value adjt to derivative financial i {47.5) 147.5) 269 . 269
Dividend income and profit an disposal of financiol assets and Es: derivotive (48.5) (48.5) 77 77
Profit on disposal of properties 9.7 [CX)] (54.2) (54.2)
Impairment of goodwill 9.4 9.1 13 133
Profit on disposal.of intangible assets - - ! (5.6 {5.6) - - -
IFRS 16 adjustments 76.8 76.8 . 569 56.9
UNDERLYING (LOSSV/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD (85,3} (85.3) 817 817
. Number in thousands Number in thousands
,_Shares in issue at the period end 501,955 501955 505,827 507,066
Pence per share Pence per share

Earnings per share (1.0) “(n.0} 162 181

95

led on Steinbeis 100°% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodiand Trust, helping to create new British woodland across the UK

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

. ' Freshold Short-term

. et tondend  (UIlemsbeld JODAN o
o em tem [ {Em) {Em) (€m)
cosv i
AT 28 APRIL 2019 - 1.3 68.0 1337 623.8 1,5712.8
Recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 422.5 - - - - 42235
Acquisitions 18.8 25.4 . 05 . - 61 - 508
Additions 101.2 7.2 22 15.4 1287 443
Eliminated on dispasols 1209} {33.5) 0.3) 16.7) 28 (9.2
Reclassifications / Remeosurements ' 28 - ) - - 3o 35.8
Exchange differences . - 25 02 .8 28 a7 )
AT 26 APRIL 2020 . . $24.4 918.9 70.6 1316 me V24181
Acquisitions (see note 31} 23 X - - 290 3.6
Additions 18.8 843 a3 20 128.8 338.2
Eliminated on disposals {482) 16.5) on 16.0) 57.4) {128.)
Reclassifications / Remeasurements ' 76.4 179.4) 79.2 04 87 mo
Exchange differences N (4.5) 2.4 (0.1) (0.3) 2.9) (10.2)
AT 25 APRIL 2021 i 669.1 . 9034 X 1533 14 788 27340
ATED DEP; AND
AT 28 APRIL 2019 . . (132.8) (1.2 ann (484.9)" 9.6)
Recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 _ - - - - {6.2) (6.2)
Charge for the period® {219.6) (42.8) {2.5) {7.0) (104.2) {3811}
Eliminated on dispasals . - 278 o1 100 248 >3
Exchange differences 09 0.5) 0.1) 0.8 2.6 3
AT 26 APRIL 2020 (218.0) (153.3) (1e.3) m9) (367.9) (1,008} -
nmo.mo for the period . {82.1) (74.5) n.6) n.s) (18.8) {293.5)
Impairment {168.2) {84.4) " 39) oy {59.8) (364}
Eliminated on disposals to. a5 n2 0.3 6.7 54.4 1203
Reclassifications / Remeasurements'* B - 181 {17.9} - T (8.8) (8.6}
Exchange differences . 24 02 Ll 01 2.3 - 48 ’
AT 25 APRIL 2021 419.4) (2827} (49.7) ma.7} {698.6) (15691}
NET BOOK VALUE .
AT 25 APRIL 2021 9.7 6127 103.6 83 1202 11649
AT 26 APRIL 2020 3057 765.6 33.9 n? 2047 13476
AT 28 APRIL 2019 . - 615 $3.8 16.0 1289 821.2
m The £33.0m was ] due to Shi plant and il not forming part of tha final wn_o and leaseback completed n.i:w.
= the prior year.
(2} Inthe prior period there is no separate disclasure of impairment from depreciatian in respect of the praperty, plont and equipment. Tatal
impairment in FY20 wos £122.6m of which £97.8m reloted to the Right-of-use assats,
{3 In the current periad a number of properties were identified that were previousty clossified within Freehold Land and Buildings but management

believe it to be more appropriate to classify within Long-term Leasehald, These have therefore been adjusted in the period as reclussificatiens.

Note 2 provides further detail on the property related impairments :m_on_:m to ROV assets, freehold
land and buildings and onerous lease u3<_m_o:&
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. 18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Leases .
The Group adopted IFRS 16 on 29 April 2019. The Group only has property leases within the scope of Goodwill Tradsmar Brands Yotat
IFRS 16, including retail stores, offices and warehouses. Leases are largely for a period between 1- 15 cndlicences
years typically with break clauses. It is management's intention to continue to enter into turnover - ) L] LS.
linked leoses in the future. cost
AT 28 APAIL 2019 161 BN 64 043
The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in Acquiiitions j 7 20 - ur
‘property, plant and equipment, the same line item as it presents underlying assets of the same Disposals - 104 - (04)
nature that it owns. The carrying amount and movements in the period can be seen in the table Exchange adjustmants R 46 06 40 02
above. ) AT 26 APRIL 2020 ma 940 504 3.8
Lease liabilities are p d T y within the Cor d Balance Sheet The maturity Acquisitions {sea noto 3 * 89 - . 80
analysis of lease l|qb|l|t|es is show in note 29e. Interest expense on the lease liability is presented as a additions - 0 - 10
component of finance costs as per note 13 Cash payments for the principal portion and the interest Disposals - R - 0.
portion of the lease liability are 1in the C lidl Cash Flow S t with further Exchange adjustments 81 10} 98] 19.5)
details given in note 2. ) s oo . m er  ws
The Group is party to a number of leases that are classed as short term leases and with variable AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT B
lease payments. These are typically property leases on turnover based rents. Note 8 discloses AT 28 APRIL 2019 (58.8) (82.5) - (181.3)
variable lease payments and short term and low value lease expenses incurred in the period. Cash Amortisation chorge - 0.3) 72 1601 1145
flows in the period relating to variable lease payments, short term lease payments, and leases for low - Impairment . (1901 - - (19.0)
value assets were approx. £24m (FY20: approx. £72m). It is expected that future cash flows will not be Disposol - N s T . oa
materially different to the FY20 cash flows. Leases to which the Group is committed but have not yet [——— o2 P N R
commenced at period end are not considered to be material.
AT 26 APRIL 2020 119.3) (29.1) (601 aua
7. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — .
Frashold land and Disposal - 33 - 33
Buildings
" em Exchange adjustmants a7 06 o7 58
corr AT 25 APRIL 2021 w2401 (s (10.8) (21s)
AT 28 APRIL 2019 AND 26 APRIL 2020 . ass e v P o Py os
Eliminoted on disposols _ 051 PEroye o - P
aTasaRLIOn . . 2 - g
AT 28 APRIL 2019 s1a 93 64 130
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT -
AT 28 APRIL 2019 ) (2.6 Amortisation is charged to selling, distribution and ¢ ative in the licl
Ghorge for tha period FE) Income Statement. :
AT 38 aPRIL 2020 - L) The majority of the netbook value of intangible assets relates to the £86.5m purchase of Everlast in
Charge for thie period N ) 2007.
\mpalimant : N 06
Eliminated on dispesals . 53
AT 25 APRIL 2021 - un
NET 800K vALUE
AT 25 APRIL 2021 . T w
AT 36 A9RIL 2020 : § T s
AT 28 apRIL 2019 . 22

The fair values of the Group's investment properties as at 25 April 2021 were estimated as being
materially in line with carrying values. The valuations were calculated by the Group's internal
property team who are appropriately qualified chartered surveyors ond follow the applicable
valuotion methodology of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors. Note 2 provides further detail
on the property related mpalrments .
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-19.  INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

The Group uses the equity method of accounting for ossociates and joint ventures in accordance
with 1AS 28. The following table shows the aggregate movement in the Group's investment in
associates and joint ventures:

20. LONG-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group is not looking to make gains through increases in market prices of its long-term financial
assets, therefore on initial application of IFRS 9 the Group made the irrevocable election to account
for long term financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income {(FVOCI). The
election hos been made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, only qualifying dividend income is

Avsociates r ised in profit and loss, changes in fair value are recognised within OCI and never reclassified
- (L] to profit and loss, even if the asset is impaired, sold or otherwise derecognised. The majority of
AL APRIL 2019 - 1o g-term financial assets are recognised in the UK Sports segment.
Additians 56 X
Share of loss for the perlod B . (159 The fair value of the lorig-term financial assets is based on bid quoted market prices at the balance
Fair value adjustment - S 204 sheet date or where market prices are not available, at mariagement's estimate of fair value. .
Dispasals . 2

AT 26 APRIL 2020 AND 25 APRIL 2021 i .

The share of loss in the prior period relates to Game Digital plc prior to obtaining a controlling
interest in July 2019.

The fair value adjustment in the prior year relates to the in
held 38.1% equity interest in Game Digital plc at the acqu

ase in the fair valug of the previously
ion date on 8 July 2019.

The disposals in the prior period mainly relates to the de-recognition of Game Digital plc as an
associate due to obtaining a controlling interest. N

The Group currently holds a 49.0% share of Four {Holdings) Limited {FY20: 49.0%), the carrymg

- amount of this investment is £nil. Detailed disclosures have not been‘presented as the results are

immaterial. The Group.is owed £64.9m from the group of companies headed by Four (Holdings)
Limited (£26.5m net of amounts recognised in respect of loss allowance} (FY20: £67.5m, £33.8m net
of loss allowance), see note 22 for further details. The group of companies headed by Four (Holdmgs)
Limited made a profit of £8.1m in the period (FY20: loss of £19.8m).

98

The following table shows the aggregate movement in the Group's financial assets during the period:

25 Apil 2021 26 April 2020

tem (emi

A beglnning of period ’ 638 846
Additions g na3 248
Disposals ot (59)
i ive i 73 97

Exchange differences n -
2633 s

Included within long-term financial assets at the period ended 25 April 2021 are the following direct
interests held by the group:
* 36.8% (FY20: 12.5%) interest in Mulberry ¢ 51% (FY20: 0.2%) interest in Hugo Boss AG

Group ple + Various other interests, none of which
+  35.6% (FY20: 36.9%) interest in Studio Retail represent more than 5.0% of the voting
Group plc power of the investee

During the period the Group sold its 26.1% interest in French Connection Group pic due to it no
longer being considered part of the Group's long-term strategy. The fair value ot the dote of
derecognition was £2.6m with the £1.7m gain on disposal being recognised in investment income.

The following table shows the fair value of each of the Group’s long-term financial assets (c;II listed):

Bapitzon - 26 aprii 2020

(em) (em)
Mutberry Group pic 520 1“6
Studio Retail Group ple ; 897 612
Hugo Boss AG 187 24
Franch Connection Group plc - 16
Other 29 40
AT END OF pERIOD T e

These holdings have been assessed under assist in building relationships with key suppliers
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and categorised and brands.
as long-term financial assets, as the Group

does not consider them to be associates and

therefore, they are not accounted for on an

equity basis, see note 2.

Our strategic investments are intended to allow
us to develop relationships and commercial
partnerships with the relevant retailers and

Pnr!led on Steinbeis 100°% Recycled and Carbon Laptured through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new British woodland across the UK
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21.  INVENTORIES

The amounts owed by related parties mostiv relates to the group headed by Fouy {Holdings} Limited,
for further details see note 34.

. 28 agii 200 26 April 2020 .

em L m Exposure to credit risk of trade receivables:
Goods lor rosole 10966 983 . ' At zon 26 April 2020

e
As at 25 April 2021, goods for resale include a right of return asset totalling £4.5m (FY20 £. 4m). P e s
Amounts written off in the period relating to stock was £24.3m (FY20 £39.0m). 030 dops port o 2o 0
The following inventory costs have been recogmsed in cost of sales; 3060 days past due 40 - 42
6090 days post due . 2 30
25 Apil 2021 26 April 2020 Over 90 days past due 70 - 23
{Em). (em) 572 7.5
Cast of s i i expanse N N 20945 22948

The Directors have reviewed the oper{ing and closing provisions against inventory and have
concluded that these are fairly stated. The Group has reviewed its estimates and assumptions for
caleulating inventory provisions at 25 April 2021. Overall provisions have decreased from £223.0m in
FY20 to £219.8m os at 25 April 2021, changes in the provision are recognised in cost of sales.

The credit quality of assets neither past due nor impaired is considered to be good.

The movement in loss allowance relating to trade receivables and umounts owed to related parties
can be analysed as follows:

52waeks anded 52 weeks ended

25 April 2028 26 April 2020
tem [z
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — o
A Opening position - 262 338
. 25 April 2021 26 8pr 2010 Amounts chargod to the income statoment 23 96
(m (em) Armounts written off as uncollectoblo [ 166}
Trade receivables - 5.2 __ sis during the period 10 (06)
Deposits n respect of derivativa financialinstruments 1310 73 CLOSING POSITION o83 482
Amounts owed by related porties (sea nate 34) - 268 302 . . . . .
= Included in the below table is the loss allowance movement in amounts due from related parties as
Other rocaivables 269 1967 foll
Prepayments . a6 545 follows:
- - 203 4 S2wnaks anded - S2weeks anded
" . . . . 25 apeil 2021 26 April 2020
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to ™ tem) * (em)
. their fair value. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the-carrying value of Opening podiion n - ET) 208
eocl} closs of asset above, plus any cash balances. Other receivables also include unremitted sales Armotunts chargad to the Incorme stotement oo 20
receipts. cLosING PosITION B - 04 0

Deposits in respect of derivative financial instruments are collateral to cover' margin requirements for
derivative 1s held with ties. The coll: it changes with the market
(which is dependent on sharé price, interest rates and volatlhty) ond further purchases / sales of
underlying investments held. .

Included within other receivables is the reimbursement asset totalling £118.3m (FY20: £118.3m) in
relation to the Group's ongoing non-UK tax enquiries, for further information see note 28,

The majority of the Groups trade receivables are held within the Wholesale & Licensing businesses,
" each s thiness is i before payment terms are agreed.

Under IFRS 9, the Group has applied the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses
for trade receivables, using the fifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses trade receivables have been grouped based on a very low credit risk

ch ic, 's view of the risk, and the days past due. The credit quality
of assets neither past due nor impaired is considered to be good. The Group considers a debt to be
defaulted at the point when no further amounts are expected to be recovered. Financial assets are
written off when there is no bl ion of recovery. If ies are subsequently made
after receivables have been written off, they are recognised in profit or loss.

99

The gross carrying amount of the balance due is £65.2m (FY20: £67.5m). The chargé in the period has
been recorded in Selling, distribution and administrative expenses. £12.4m of the gross amounts due
from related parties balance is due in less than one year with the remaining being due in more than
a one year (FY20: £7.9m due less than one year),

The Group has no significant concentrotion of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large.number
of customers. The loss allowance / charges have been determined by reference to post default
experience, current / forecasted trading performance and future economic conditions.

Deposits in respect of derivative financial instruments and prepayments are not considered to be
impaired.

;_Prinlted on Steinbeis 100°% Recycled and Caibon Captuted through the Woodland Trust. helping to creats new British woodiand across the UK
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

25 april 2001 26 aprit 2020
ttm) (tm)
Cosh in bonk and in hand - Sterling a1 4528
Cosh In ban' and in hand - US Dollars 914 s
Cashin bank and in hand - Euros 1925 552
in hand - Other 230 85
40 40
24. SHARE CAPITAL
25 April 2011 26 April 2020
" tem) (Em)
AUTHORISED
999,500,010 ordinary shares of 10p cach 1000 1000
ALLOTTED, CALLED UP AND FULLY PAID
540,602,369 (2020: 640.602.369) ordinary shores of 10p each 641 64
SHARE CAPITAL
ALZS April 2021 0nd 26 APl 2020 . 641 a1

The Group holds 121,260,175 shares in Treasury as
at period end (FY20: 121,260,175).

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
ond are entitled to one vote per ordinary share
ot general meetings of the Company.

We are aware of unsponsored American
Depository Receipt (ADR) programmes
established from time to time in respect of our
shares. We have not sponsored or authorised
their creation and any questions should be
directed to the relevant depositary.

Frasers has not and does not intend to offer or
sell its Ordinary Shares or other securities (in
the form of ADR or otherwise) to the general
public in the United States nor has it listed
or intends to list its Ordinary Shares or other
securities on any national securities exchange
in the United States or to encourage the trading
of its Ordinary Shares on any over the counter
market located in the United States. Frasers does
not make arrangements to permit the voting of
Ordinary Shares held in.the form of ADRs and
its publication of periodic financial and other
information is not intended to facilitate the

ion of any

Contingent Share Awards

The Executive Share Scheme

Under the terms of the Executive Share Scheme,

which was approved by Shareholders on 10
September 2010 and is a HMRC approved
scheme, the Board may make share awards in
respect of the ordinary shares in the Company.
Awards may be made to Executives and Persons
Discharging M ial Responsibilities over a
fixed number of shares subject to performance
conditions. Further details are set out in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report.

An award of 8,073,036 shares was granted on
10 September 2010 at a share price of 125.5
pence. Between 27 Aprit 2020 and 25 April 2021,
1,000,000 shares sold by participants following
exercise of awards were dcquired by Estera
Trust (Jersey) Limited, as Trustee of the Sports
Direct Employee Benefit Trust (Trustee), with
the acquisition funded by a loan advanced

by the Company. The shares were acquired at
374.8 pence per share. At the period end 6m

of the shares in the scheme have since vested
(FY20: 5m) and 2m have since lopsed meaning
all shares granted by the scheme have now

per ADRp
under Rule 12g3-2(b} of U.S. Securities. Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended or otherwise.

100

d or lapsed.

Share Schemes

The 201 Share Scheme was & four year scheme
based upon achieving underlying EBITDA
{before the costs of the scheme) of £215m

in FY12, £250m in FY13, £260m in FY14 ond
£300m in FY15 coupled with the individual
participating employee’s satisfactory personal
performance and continued employment.

All of the above targets have now been met
meaning that approx. 11.6m shares vested in
September 2017 and approx. 4m shares vested
in September 2015.

Between 27 April 2020 and 25 April 2021,
150,470 shares sold by participants foilowing
exercise of awards under the Group 201
Share Scheme were acquired by Estera Trust
(Jersey) Limited, as Trustee of the Sports Direct
Employee Benefit Trust (Trustee), with the
acquisition being funded by a loan advanced
by the Company. The shares were acquired at
prices of between 251.8 and 460.8 pence per
share in off-market transactions. The weighted
average purchase price was 365 pence per
share (FY20: 257 pence per share}.

A share-based poyment charge of £nil (FY20:
nil) was recognised in respect of this equity
settled award for the 52 weeks ended 25 April
2021, based on the Director’s best estimate of
the number of awards that will be made. The
charge is calculated based on the fair value on

* the gront date, which is deemed to be the date

on which the entity and counterparty reached o
shared understanding of the scheme.

The Group holds 17,386,913 shares in the
Own Share Reserve as at period end {FY20:
17,386,913).

Pnnlmd on Stemnbeis 100°% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new British woodland across tha UK

Fearless 1000 Bonus Scheme

At the annual general meeting in October
2020, our shareholders gave approval for
the Fearless 1000 bonus scheme. Under this
scheme shares may be issued by the Group to
employees for no cash ideration. All Group
mpl luding executive di . their
family associates, and the Chief Commercial
Officer) are eligible to participate in the
scheme. Under the scheme, 10 million shares
are awarded to eligible employees if certain
market conditions are achieved. This would
equate to £100m worth of fully paid ordinary
shares in Frasers Group plc that could be paid
to eligible employees if our share price reaches
£10 any time over the next four years. The share
price must stay above £10 for 30 consecutive
trading days to trigger the vesting of shares at
the end of the four year vesting period. 50%
of the shares are granted after 4 years and the
remaining 50% ofter 5 years. One thousand
eligible employees will receive the shares with
a potential value ranging from £50k to £1m if
the share price is at £10 at the vesting dates. In
all other respects the shares rank equally with
other fully paid ordinary shares on issue.

The share element of the scheme is deemed

to be an equity-settled scheme as defined by
IFRS 2 Share-based payment. In line with the
accounting policy in note 1, the fair value at the
date of grant is expensed to the Consolidated
Income Statement on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with the corresponding
credit going to equity.

The assessed fair value at grant date of the
shares granted during the period ended 25
April 2021 was 165.69p per share for the 4 year
vesting period and 165.95p per share for the 5
year vesting period. The fair value ot grant date
is independently determined using an adjusted
form of the Black-Scholes model which includes
a Monte Carlo simulation model that takes

into account the exercise price, the term of the
option, the impact of dilution (where material),
the share price ot grant date and expected
price volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend yield, and the risk-free
interest rate for the term of the scheme.
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The model inputs for shares granted durir}g the périod ended 25 Aprit 2021 included:
- exercise price: £nil

- grant date: 10 February 2021, being the date the Déed of Grant was executed

- expiry date: 7 October 2024 and 7 October 2025 ‘

- share price at gront date: 450p

- "expected price volatility of the company's shares: 38.8%

- expected dividend yield: 0%

- risk-free interest rate: 0.1%

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the

scheme), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly

25. OTHER RESERVES-

A charge in the Consolidctéd Income Statement of £0.8m has been recognised in the period in
relation to the equity-settled element of the scheme resulting in £0.8m now being held in equity.

The.scheme also has a cash-settled bonus for all other eligible employees who do not qualify for
the Fearless 1000 share scheme. The cash bonus ot the end-of the 4 year period is based on the
émployee tenure and has béen os an other long: pl benefit as‘defined by
IAS 19 Employee Benefits. A charge in the Consolidation Income Statement of £0.5m has been
recognised in the period along with a corresponding liability.

101

T S I i et
tocapital  ruserve sarve
- (tm itm) U tm tem)
AT 2 apRIL 2019 - o1 s0 (90131 w1 pnsn
Gash flow hedges
- cacognised in the period - - - 160 164
- cecognised in the period « ineffectiveness - - - 02 02
- reclassified n the pericd and reported in the sales - - - 07) )
- coclassifiod and reported in cost ofsoles - - - aa e
- toxation - - - .- - a8 18
T 26 aPRIL 2020 o1 a0 ) ma s
Cash flow hedges
- racognisod In the peried - - - 04 04
 ceclossfied in the period and reported in soles - - - 08 28
- reclassified and reported in cost of sates . - - - o
- toxation . - - - - 30 30
AT 25 APRIL 2021 . o1 a0 1s7.3) ns e

The permonent contribution to copital relates to a cash payment of £50,000 to the Company on 8
February 2007 under a deed of capital contribution.

The capital redemption reserve arose on the redemption of the Company’s redeemable preference
shares of 10p each at par on 2 March 2007.

The reverse acquisition'resewe exists as a result of the adoption of the principles of reverse
acquisition accounting in accounting for the Group restructuring which occurred on 2 March

2007 and 29 March 2007 between the Company and Sports World International Limited, Brands
Holdings Limited, International Brand Management Limited.and CDS Holdings SA with Sports World
International Limited as the acquirer.

The hedging reserve represents the cumulative amount of gains and losses on hedging instruments
deemed effective in cash flow hedges. The cumulative deferred gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised in the income statement only when the hedged transaction impacts the
income statement.

ted on Steinbeis 100°% Recycléd and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new British weodland across the UK
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Other Balance Sheet Reserves

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the
translation of the Financial Statements of foreign subsidiaries and associates.

The own.shares and treasury shares reserve represent the cost of shares in Frasers Group plc
purchased in the market and held by Frasers Group Employee Benefit Trust to sansfy options under
the Group's share options scheme. N

The Group holds 17,386,913 shares in the Employee Benefit Trust as at period end (FY20: 17,388,755).

The non-controlling interests of the Group mostly relates to Sportland International Group AS and
its idiaries. This is i d in Estonia with the principal places of business being a
number of Baltic countries in Europe. The non-controlling interests hold 40% of the share capital of
Sporttand International Group AS. During the period £3.0m profit (FY20: £2.8m) has been allocated
to the non-controlling interests of Sportland International Group AS, resulting in an accumulated
non-controlling interests at the end of the period of £12.4m (FY20: £9.4m). A dividend of £0.9m was
paid to the non-controlling interest in the period (FY20: £nil). The group of companies hecded by

Sportland International Group AS has total assets of £67.8m and total liabilities of £14.6m.
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-26. BORROWINGS

125 Aprit 2021 26 April 2020

- (. (tm)
‘CURRENT
Looss iabilties 1885 ws
NON-CURRENT:
Bonk ond other foans R 7059 5000
L liobilitie N T s342 4762
TOTAL . 1428.6 1524

An onblysis of the Group's total borrowings other than bank overdrafts is as follows:

25 april 2001 26 April 2020
- (m tem}
Bonrowings - sterling 7059 9000

As ot period end, loans are at a rate of interest of 1.3% (FY20: 13%) over the interbank rate of the
country within which the borrowing entity resides.

Reconciliation Of Liabilities Arising From Financing Activities

. .
The changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

Nohcurrent  Curent  Sharabuy Total
borrowings  borrosings
[ ttm) tem) tem)
aT2aRL200 265 - 100 sses”
caswFlows:
- Borrowings drown dawn 5100 - - s10.0
- Borwowings repaid . © 1368)) - - s
- Share buy back - . - - (439) [
- IERS 16 Lease Liabilties . 1508 1363 - ses
- IFRS 16 Leose Liabilities - Acquisitions. 16.4 ne : 8.0
MON-CASH MOVEMENTS:
- Share buy bock - - 19 s
AT 26 APRIL 2020 j 12 s - usu
casn-FLOWs:
- Borrowings drawn dawn 11283 - - 184
- Borrowings repold w22 - - tamay
LEASE UASILITY:
- IFRS 16 Lease Liobilties - cash-Flows - - 7801 - 8.0)
oS ek o e wm
- IFRS 16 Lease Liabilitlos - naw leases 983 205 - e

AT 25 APRIL 2021 12404 185 - 146
The acquired borrowings {note 31) of £1.4m were repaid in full during the period. ’

The Group's Working Capital Facility is at £913.5m (FY20: £913.5m) available until November 2021
and is not secured against any of the Group's assets. During FY19 the Group enacted an extension
option for a further year to November 2022 for £847.5m.

Prinlted on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodtand Trusl. helping to create new British woodiand across the UK
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The Group continues to operate comfortably within its banking facilities and covenants, The carrying 28. PROVISIONS
amounts and fair value of the borrowings are not materially different. .
. Legclond  Property Othar Tatal
Reconciliation of Net Debt: regulatory - ealated
. . R ttm ttm) (e tem)
| . sapsizon | 268p1 2020 AT 29 APRIL 2019 o 913 20 wa
e (& Amounts provided g 130 58 - 888
Borrowings 14286) 1.5241) lised / reversed 21.6) 70.8) 153} o1
A0D BACK: - Acquisitions . - 06 - 106
- Leaso liobilios 721 6201 - -
Cash and cash equivalonts 4570 5360 AT26 APRIL 2020 284 019 ) 180
NETDERT (a9 a86.0) ‘Armounts provided - 73 s )
i Amounts utilsed / reversad 69 531 0 236)
27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES . AT 25 APRIL 2071 . e s P e
‘m“‘:l:l"_‘; Taxlosses Bonusshare  FOTERd ot Othar . Legal and regulatory provisions relate to management's best estimate of the potential impact of
B extaedingtar racovarabla oy Brands  gmmeerary  Totsl ¢laims including legal, commercial, regulatory and ongoing non-UK tax enquiries. The timing of
depraciation o . o the outcome of non-UK tax inquiries and legal claims made against the Group is dependent on
i) fmd i) ) — o) fend femd factors outside the Gréup's control and therefore the timing of settlement is uncertain. After taking
AT 28 apRIL 2019 . e 18 13 ©.0) 0.0 w0 ey ! N N : N -
appropriate legal advice, the outcomes of these claims are not expected to give rise to material loss
Credited/ichargedi to the income statament 23 10 as 03 18 24 28 e N N
in excess of the amounts provided.
Chorged to reserves 72 - - - - - - 72 .
Credited to hedging reserve . B B B 38 N . 38 A reimbursement asset of £118.3m (FY20: £118.3m) has been recognised separately within debtors
AT 26 A7R1L 2020 s s - - o) e 1w ua relating to ongoing non-UK tax enquiries.
Credited/icharged) to the income statement 146 kil - - Ra 10 pa  toa Included within property related provisions are provisions for dilapidations in respect of the Group's
Charged to resarvas - - - 03 - 28 - 22 retail stores and warehouses. Further details of managements estimates are included in note 2.
Credited to hedging reserves - - - - 0 - - 30 . - . .
" Other provisions relate to provisions for restructuring and employment {non-retirement related).
725 APRIL 2021 aa na - o3 a0 n so 1 : St
. During the period, onerous lease provisions {pre-IFRS 16) were recognised due to an ongoing
25 aprl 2029 © 268pM 2020 management review of the Group's store profile and strategy including current and anticipated
L fem freehold acquisitions, resulting in‘overall increased provisions of £71.9m (FY20: £26.9m), with reference
Oslarred oy ausets 668 499 to the Group's alternative performance measures. See Glossary for more details.
Deferred tek Habllitios 210) 561 .
NET OEFERRED TAX BALANCE 928 ua ;

The tox rates used to measure the deferred tax assets and liabilities was 9%, on the basis that this
was the tox rate that was substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

-Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that realisation of the related tox benefit is probable .
on the basis of the Group's current expectations of future taxable profits. The Group has approx.
£134m of taxable losses not recognised as a deferred tax asset (approx. £25m deferred tax osset).

Included within other temporary differences is a deferred tax asset in relation to the Share Scheme
and a deferred tox liability recognised on other intangible assets upon acquisition.

The deferred tax effects of the acquisitions made in the year were considered and it was determined
that there was no material impact on the Group, or the fair value of net assets acquired.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSETS - 26 APRIL 2020 et Leal2 oval3 Other Total
- P - . N fem (em) (e tem tem)
a. Financial Assets And Liabilities By Category And Fair Value Hierarchy ORISR CoTT:
The fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities, which are principally denominated in Trode ond other receivables* . . . 255 3285
Sterling or US Ddllars, were as follows: . ot ond cosh squivalents g " " " P o
FINANCIAL ASSETS - 25 APRIL 2021 Levelt  Levlz Lwel3,  Other Totat Amaunt awed by related parties - - - 362 u2
| i tem) e a 8 E
tem) (tm) tem) e
AMORTISED COST:
nanci ity Instruments) - designated 8 - Y
Trode and ather receivables - - - aasa asa Long Term Fnanci] Assets (Equlty Instrument) - designats & d
Cash and cash equivalents ] c - - - 4570 450 o SSETS (FV): ‘
Amounts owed by related parties R R R 268 208 Forelgn forward purchase and soles controcts R - 704 - - 04
— Derivative financial assels - contracts for difference - 77 - - "
Fvock:
Lang Term Finangiol Assats (Equity Instrumants} - dasignoted 2633 - - - 603 - . il . . 71
- : FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - 26 APRIL 2070
INANCIAL ASSETS (FVE:
Foreign forward purchose and sales contracts - 353 - - 333 -
2 g Non- i - - - (5000} 00.0
Derivatlve fi - contracts for dilf i - 201 - - 201 onurrent borcowings . oo _ o)
< - . - - 5843 5
a . o Trade and other payables (s8a7  (s843)
p 1FRS 16 Leasa liabilties - - - 6241} te24)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - 23 APRIL 2021 - : - ]
PR — DERIVATIVE FINANGIAL LIABILITIES (FVE
Foraign farward and written option purchase and sales contract - Unhedges - 198 - - 8
Nan-current borrowings - - - (10591 f103.) 2 ton optien purchose ond soles contract - Unhedged o8 Lol
N Viabilties - contracts for dilf ity options - ) - - (34.4)
Trade and other payobles™ . - - - 16205) (620
- wa2) - - “y
- - o2 223) -
“Prapaymnts of £545m are nat includad os a financlal assat.
UABILITIES (FVI:
Foreign lrword and witen aptions putcvare ond soes contracts - Unidand T e - N = **Othortes incluciog soil secuty costs of £78m ore ot Inclded o  inanil bty . -
Darivative financial llbilities - cantracts for différence & o - wn - - 0 " s A R -
b. Financial Assets And Liabilities Sensitivities By Currency
w.) .- - )

included as o fir

**ther taxes incluxding social securlty costs of £26.2m are not included o a financial liobility,
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The Group's principal foreign currency exposures are to US Dollars and Euros. The table below
illustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Group's reported profit and equity to a 5% increase
ond decreose in the US Dollar / Sterling and Euro / Sterling exchange rates ot the year-end date,
assuming all other variables remain unchanged. The figures have been calculated by comparing the

. foir values of outstanding foreign currency contracts, assets and liabilities at the current exchange

rate to those if exchange rates moved as illustrated. The income statement figures include the profit
effect of any relevant derivatives which are not in a designated cash flow hedge. The impact on US
Dollar and Euro related hedging instruments is included in equity.

The analysis has been prepared using the following asst ions: . .
1. Existing assets ond liabilities are held as at the period end;

2. No additional hedge contracts are taken out. . -~
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¢. Derivatives: Foreign Currency Forward

The most significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations relates to purchases
made in foreign currencies, principally the US
Dollar and online sales in Euros. The Group's
policy is to reduce substantially the risk

d with foreign currency spot rates
by using forward fixed rote currency purchase
contracts, taking into account any foreign

sensmvITY
vio . EUR Contracts
e usp EuR Total N % 5% s i

- - Other - (if HEDGING
ey -

Teade and Other Recalvables 701 252, 98 ama 03 u ao . 20

Cash and cash aquivalenks . 334 454 562 a0 as 5 an 7

Trade and Other Payables 1489.0) (2251 10861 te20) 1 0 53 53)

Fr2o: -

Trade and Other Roceivables 2577 266 a2 s ) “ (20) 22

‘Cash and cash equivalents 13 s 552 540 (0.0 s 26 19

Trade and Other Payabies 161 sl

1107.2) s47) 12 [ 51 (s.6)

There is no difference between fair value and carrying value of the above financial instruments

{FY20: £nil).
Fair Value Hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for
determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial instruments by valuation technique:

+  Level : quoted (unadjusted) prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

* Level 2: other techniques for which all
inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either
directly or indirectly; and

+  Level 3: techniques which use inputs which
have a significant effect on the recorded
fair value that are not based on observable,
market data.

Contracts for difference are classified os Level
2 os the fair value is calculated using quoted
prices for listed shares and commodities at
contrdct inception and the period end.

Fore'ign forward purchose and sales contracts
and options are classified as Level 2, the

Group enters into these derivative financial
instruments with various counterparties,
principally financial institutions with investment
grade credit ratings. Foreign exchange

forward contracts.and options are valued

using voluation techniques, which employ the
use of market observable inputs. The most
frequently opplied valuation techniques include
forward pricing ond swap models using present
value calculations. The models ir

various inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and
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forward rates, and yield curves of the respective
" currencies.

Long-term financial assets such as equity
instruments are classified as Level 1 as the fair
value is calculated using quoted prices.

The fair value of equity derivative agreements
are included within the derivative financial
assets balance of £20.1m and derivative
financial liabilities balance of £17m. The
derivative financial assets and derivative
financial liabilities as at 25 April 2021 relate to
strotegic investments held of between 0.04%
and 8.41% of investee share capital. .

Sold options are classified as Level 2 as the
fair value is calculated using other techni

currency cash flows. The Group does not

The hedged items and the hedging instrument
are denominated in the same currency and as a
result the hedging ratio is always one to one.

All derivative financial instruments used for
hedge accounting are recognised initially ot fair
value and reported subsequently at fair value*

in the statement of financial position. To the
extent that the hedge is effective, changes in the
fair value of derivatives designated as hedging

-instruments in cash flow hedges are recognised

in other comprehensive income and included
within the cash flow hedge reserve in equity.
Any ineffecti in the hedge relati

hip-is

hold or issue derivative financial i
for trading purposes, however if derivatives,
including both forwards and written options,
do not qualify for hedge accounting they are
accounted for as such and accordingly any gain
or loss is recognised immediately in the income
statement. Management are of the view that
there is a substantive distinct business purpose
for entering into the options and a strategy for
ging the options indeperidently of the
forward contracts. The forward and options
contracts are therefore not viewed as one-
contract and hedge accounting for thé forwards
is permitted.

Hedge effectiveness is determined at inception
of the hedge relationship and at every reporting
period end through the assessment of the
hedged items and hedging instrument to
determine whether there is still an economic
lationship between the two.

where inputs are observable.

Trade receivables / payables, amounts owed
from related parties, other receivables /
payables, cash and cash equivalents, current /
non-current borrowings, and lease liabilities are
held at amortised cost.

The maximum exposure to credit risk os at 25
April 2021 is the carrying value of each class of
asset in the Balonce Sheet, except for amounts
owed from related parties which is the gross
carrying amount of £65.2m.

The critical terms of the foreign currency
forwards entered into exactly match the terms
of the hedged item. As such the economic
relationship and hedge effectiveness are based
on the qualitative factors and the use of a

. hypothetical derivative where appropriate.

Hedge ineffectiveness may arise where the
critical terms of the forecast transaction no
longer meet those of the hedging instrument, for
example if there was & change in the timing of
the forecast sales transactions from what was
initially estimated or if the volume of currency

in the hedged item was below expectations
leading to over-hedging. Differences can arise
when the initial value on the Hedging instrument
is not zero. .

bon Captured through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new British woodiand across the UK

recognised immediately in-profit or loss.

At the time the hedged item affects profit or
loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassifi

from equity to profit or loss and presented

as a reclassification adjustment within other
comprehensive income. If a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, any refated
goin or loss re ised in other p
income is transferred immediately to profit
or loss. If the hedging relationship ceases to
meet the effectiveness conditions then hedge
accounting is discontinued and the related gain
or loss is held in the equity reserve until the
forecast transaction occurs.




FRASERS GROUP - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

The fair value of hedged contracts as ot 25 April 2021 was: 28 april 2001 26 April 2020
. ttm ttm)
28 aprinz0n 26 april 2020 nge  Change o Change
! ange In the
tem} ttm) atbetolr Inthefal rairvatasot 0t
assETs cumency thahadged TSy edged
g forward item forwer Bom
US Dollar purchases - GBP 24 car L. (48 te8) - -
US Dollor purchases - EUR 23 i
= u: -EUR 2 2 67 67
Euosoles . 07 as
Euro sales - j B 0 98 95
TotaL R 34 5o g
LiasiLITIES At 25 April 2021 £242.4m of forward sales contracts and £607.0m of purchase contracts qualified
US Dolar purchases - GBP i ) - for hed.geJnf:counling and the gain on fair valuation of these contracts of £0.4m has therefore been
US Dollar purchases - EUR . B s o1 N in other comp income.
voraL - 4 - At 25 April 2021, £210.5m hedged purchase contracts had a maturity of greater than 12 months (FY20:

The details of hedged forward foreign currency purchase contracts and contracted forward rates

were as follows: .

£nil of purchase contracts) and £242.4m of hedged sales had a maturity of greater than 12 months

{FY20: £242.4m of sales contracts).

The movements through the Hedging reserve are;

25 aprt 2021 26 Apri1 2020
ttm (tm Total
Carrency o8P Cumency Gap USD/GEP  GUR/GED  AUD/GEP  USD/EUR ToaMedsn  Drfemed g5,
- Reserve
US Dollor purchases 7200 231 ~ A3 AT 28 APRIL 2019 . s 80 . 0 P s el 407
Conteacted rotes USD / GBP 136 141 : J
US Doller purchoses 1200 839 1200 %09 Recognised - - 2 - e L - ol
Contacted roies USD/ EUR T 132 neflectiveness - o2 - - d o2
oo vafen - P e 00 o Rocassified n salos - o ©3) - wn e uz
Comraced es EOR 7 GBP g o9 oo von Reclassified In inventory / cost of safes (245) - - s) a4 - o744
B Deferred Tax . - - - 8 38
The timing of the contracts is as follows: = . =
A5 AT 26 APRIL 2020 - 188 - na na 52 0
Currency MHedging against Currency value Timing Ratex - - - >
Recogrised 149) 32 - 2 s - 04
USD/GBP SO inventory purchoses USD 7200m Fv22-Fv23 136 - 141
USD/EUR USD inventory purchosos USD 1200m F122.FY2s 12113 + Reclassifid in sates L] - h na - 28
EUR/GEP Euro sales EUR 2600m Fr23 099 Reclassified n Inventory / cost of sales - .- - - oz o - my
e i : N . . N Deferred Tox ‘. - - S - - 30 10
Hedge ineffectiveness may arise where the critical terms of the forecast transaction no longer meet ‘s =
those of the hedging instrument, for example if there was a change in the timing of the forecast sales A5 AT 25 APRIL 2001 sl o - 22 ua (23 ns

transactions from what was initially estimated or if the volume of currency in the hedged item was

below expectations leading to over-hedging.

contracts and contracted rates were as follows:

"(ii) The sterting principal amounts of unhedged forward contracts and written currency option  +

25 apeil 2001 26 apri 2020
. (een) L] 25 aprl 2021 26 April 2020
190 i spot value of of the hedge - (1a5) * 135.6) {Em) (&m)
of hedged i i 1281 15991 ° US Dollar purchases 03 -
g Contracted rates USD / EUR 3 -
- Euro sales 818 (6200)
. Cantracied rates EUR/ GBP 099 099109
. - Euro purchases - 720
c - rates EUR/ GBP - 6

The loss on fair value of the written options and swaps of £4.6m has been included within finance

income (FY20: gain £21.3m}. .
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At 25 April 2021, £nil of unhedged purchase contracts had a maturity at inception of greater than 12
months (FY20: Enil purchose contracts) and £335.4m of unhedged sales had a maturity at inception
of greater than 12 months {FY20: £240.0m of sales contracts).

These contracts form part of the Treasury management activities, which incorporates the risk
management strategy for areas that are not reliable enough in timing and amount to qualify for
hedge accounting. This includés isiti i of overseas idiaries, related working
capital requirements, dividends and loan repayments and purchase and
sale of overseas property. Written options carry uddmonal risk as the exercise of the option lies with
the purchaser. The options involve the Group receiving a premium on inception in exchange for
accepting that risk and the outcome is that the bank may requiré the Group to sell Euros. However,
the Group is satisfied that the use of options as a Treasury management tool is appropriate. .

In FY21 there are nil short term swaps at period end. FY20 value excludes short term swaps of USD/

GBP of USD 190.0m and EUR/GBP of EUR 75.0 and EUR/USD of EUR 80.0m which were required for -

cash management purposes only.
d. Sensitivity Analysis

The Group's pnnclpol forelgn currency exposures are to US Dollars and Euros. The table below
illy the ity of the Group's reported profit and equityto a 10% increase

" and decrease in the US Dollar / Sterling and Euro / Sterling exchange rates at the year-end date,

assuming all other variables remain unchanged. The figures have been calculated by comparing
the fair values of outstanding foreign currency contracts at the current exchange rate to those if

Positive figures represent an increase in profit or equity:

tncome Stotement - Equity
- . apdl  26Apdl  25Apd] 26 Apdt
. 200 2020 201 2020
tem) m) (em) [
Interest rote increase of 0.5% Bol - a0} [
Interest rate decrease of 0.5% a0 4 20 4

Long-term Investments Sensitivity Analysis

The following table illustrates the-sensitivity of price risk in relation to long term investments held by
the Group:

23 Aprit20m

Equity

temp

Share price increase of 10% 258
Share price decrease of 10% 58

e. Liquidity Risk
The table below shows the maturity analysis of the undiscounted remaining contractual cash flows of
the Group's non derivative liabilities and foreign currency derivative financial instruments:

sheet date is assumed to have been outstanding for the whole year.

risk for the purpose of this onclysls
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Fixed rote financial instruments that are carried at amortised cost are not sub;ect to interest rute

exchange rates moved as illustrated. The income statement figures include the profit effect of any Lessthan "':M, . “'{';: ""'("'w" “""“‘: '(:‘m“
relevant derivatives which are not in o designated cash flow hedge. The impact on US Dollar and o
 Euro reloted hedging instruments is included in equity. P ————TR—
Positive figures represent an increase in profit or equity: Bank loans ond overdrofts i 1059 b b 059
. : Bank loans and overdrafts interest - 99 - - 99
Incoms Statoment - Equlty Trode and other paycbles 6463 - - - 6463
Wapil  2Apd Al 26 Aprl
202 201 20m 2010 IFRS 16 Lease liabilies 1966 L7 1968 6709 1mo
tem) im) wm  (tm
Steling strengthens by 10% . Cash inflows - (39651 (7665) (806! - o)
S Dollar ) a1 146 2.4) 134 Cash outllows . 3891 7989 85 . 12695
Euro 234 151 109 m o5 8505 1 G109 25648
Sterling woakens by 10% 2020
US Dollar - ©9) (340} 213 116.4) NON DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
o g YY) wa a1 Bonk loans and overdrafts - - 5000 » . - - 9000
nt Rate s Analysi Bank loans and ovardralts Intarest - m - - n2
Inter
erost Rate Sensitivity Analysis [—— wans - } — s
The g table i the of the Group's reported profit and equity to o 0.5% 1167 1021 1982 257 041
increase or decreuse in interest rates, assuming all other variables were unchanged. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS":
Th 1vsis has b Hlising the Tollont 3 Cash inflows . (8651 (4628) - < sy
e analysis has been prepared using the following assumptions: Cash outliows 12251 4848 - - 1709.9
«  For floating rate assets and liabilities, the amount of asset or liability outstanding at the balance ‘ 7808 10913 L) 4 22804

“Excludes contingent cash llows.
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Capital Munugpment

The capitcfl structure of the Group consists of
equity attributable to the equity holders of the
parent company, comprising issued share capital
(less treasury shares), share premium, retained
earnings and cash and borrowings.

It is the Group's policy to maintain a strong
capital bose so as to maintain investor, creditor
and market confidence and to sustain the
development of the business. .

In respect of equity, the Board has decided that,
in order to maximise flexibility in the near term
with regards to a number of inorganic growth
opportunities under review, not to return any
cash by way of a final dividend at this time.

The Board is committed to keeping this policy
under review and to looking to evaluate
methods of returning cash to shareholders when
appropriate.

encourage employee sharé ownership and to link
employee’s remuneration to the performance of
the Company. It is not designed as a means of
managing capital.

In respect of cash and borrowings, the Board
regularly monitors the ratio of net debt to
Reported EBITDA (Pre-IFRS 16), the working
capital requirements and forecasted cash flows,
however no minimum or maximum ratios are set.
The rditio for net debt to Reported EBITDA (pre
IFRS 16) is 0.5 (FY20: 0.7). The objective is to keep
this figure below 3.0 (FY20: 3.0). :

Based on this analysis, the Board determines
the appropriate return to equity holders whilst
ensuring sufficient copital is retained within the
Group to meet its strategic objectives, including
but not limited to, acquisition opportunities.

These capital management policies have
remained unchanged from the prior year.

31.  ACQUISITIONS

i. On 22 August 2020, the Group acquired
the trade and ossets of DW Sports for cash
consideration of £37.0m which is deemed
to be the fair value of the consideration. §
The acquisition complements the Group's i
existing gym and fitness club portfolio and is
consistent with the Group's elevation strategy.
Goodwill the premit iated
with ad 15 site |

- transaction between market participants

at the acquisition date. The leases were
acquired under short-term licences and
therefore no right-of-use asset or lease
liability has been recognised on acquisition.

During the year the Group acquired the entire
share capital of Psyche Holdings Limited, the
entire share capital of GRMNT Limited, and
the trade and assets of 18 Montrose (51%
owned) for consideration of £2.7m. These

) P
growth opportunities offered by

of scale, and the assembled workforce. The
fair value adjustment to property, plant

and equipment relates to management'’s
assessment of the price that would be

paid for the acquired assets in an orderly .

will provide i product
offerings in the ‘Premium Lifestyle’ division.
The fair value adjustment to property, plant
and equipment relates to the recognition of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

The asset and liability values at acquisition are detailed below. We have reviewed the fair value of
the assets and liabilities acquired. The following table summarises the fair values of

consideration paid: -

oW sports Othar
- . . tem) temy
The objective of the Share Scheme is to
‘Cash consideration 370 27
30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES oW sperts Other
Falr val Falr Vatus
: S2uarks ended F—— BookVetie FV v ockvaie TN v,
25 april 2011 26.aprl 2020
e emi ttm) tEm) itm) tem )
93 026 Property, plant and equipment - 1 ta2 0 n 15 26
Amounts owed to refated ndertakings 2% P Intangible assets - 29 29 - - - -
i ity eosts 262 8 inventories 3 o5 40 52 - o7 59
Other payables 930 053 . N ) N o3 N o
Aceruols 252 2.4
- Borrowings - - - ne - 14}
463 025 -
N 5 Working capital 03 - o3 08 - (0.4)
Included within other payables are amounts ding in respect of gift cards and vouchers of Lease liabiity N R N N n an
£28.8m (FY20: £40.6m). s - P " . " -
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their Bargain purchase - - - - o1 By
fair value. Non-contralling interests  ~ - () 00).
. Nat assets acquired 74 (0.4 o a4 an 27
. The bargain purchase of £3.1m from the Other acquisitions has been recognised within cost of sales
within the period. The Goodwill arising on all acquisitions of £6.0m has been impaired to £nil as at
period end with the impairment being ised in E: ional Items, see note 6.
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Since the date of control, the following amounts have been included within the Group's Financial
Statements for the period:

33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group had capital commitments of £87.1m as at 25 April 2021 (26 April 2020: £31.8m) reloting to

Acqui oW Sports. Other - Total warehouse development.
temi (em) ttm .
Revonse —22 35 —a 34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS .
Operating {Lossiprofi - 52 03 049)
{LOSSI/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (5.2} 03 " - (149} The Group has taken advantage of the exemptions contained within IAS 24 - “Related Party

Had the acquisitions been included from the start of the period the following amounts would have
been included within the Group's Financial Statements for the period:

Disclosures” from the requirement to disclose transactions between Group companies as these have
been eliminated on consolidation.

N . The Group entered into the following material transactions with related parties: -
Acqusitions oWsports Othar Tota) .
i£m) &m (€m) 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021;
Rovenue - ' 160 63 243 )
Oparating loss a7 02 149 Trads
oty L o e Relationship Scles  Purchases and other
1038 BEFORE TAX . () ©1 ) pavables
. R, . . tem) ttm temy
There were no contingent liobilities acquired as o result of the above transaction.
S RELATED PARTY
. : Four (Holdings] Limited § subsidiaries . Associate 22 au 25 o
32.  CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES e
Mash Holdings Limited . . - 02 -
. company
25 april 2021 26 April 2020 Mike Ashley™ N Plc Director 13 - - -
. tom). {em N M4 Design London Limited Connected - o - c.
Profit before taxation B &5 1435
Net 22 7 MM Prop Consultancy Limited . Connected - - 25 - 25
Not investment incometfcost . 19601 346 persons
Shore of losses of ussociated undertakings N - 159 Neweastle United Football Club Limited § St Jamas Holdings Limited(3) °°';":,§:§ 02 0 3 B
Fair st - _ 108
OPERATING (LOSS/PROFIT - woar e Rangers Retail Limited Associate - - <. .
Depreciotion of property. pl quipment - 2085 3810
Deprecioti s . 9 33 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020:
Guin on disposal a vient of lease liabilities (222) LX)
Amontisation of intangible ossets n 45 . Trads
Impoirment o tongl i Gssets and investiment properties 261 190 Relationshlp  Sales  Purchas “;‘:'::;:'
Profit on disposal of praperty. plant and equipment ! o7 (5421 tem) (tmt (Em)
Proft on disposal of intangible assets 51 - RELATED PARTY
Goin on burgain purchuse d {2 - mited & subsidiaries Assoclote 21 as 28 24
OPERATING CASH INFLOW BEFORE CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL s15.3 5158 —
ncagsa  dcroce nessvabes wase s Mash Hoidings . - company h :
Oecroase /inrease ninventories - 993 1208) [ e Direcror 70 ” N
Increase in payobles 609 618 -
Increose / in prapisi 254 T s Newcostle United Footbel} Club Limited & St Jumes Holdings Limited Connected 07 20 o1 20
‘CASH INFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 783 asa = N
- - Rangers Retail Limited Associote - - - o1
N " ings) Limited reffect Agent Provocateut. M cansider that ying
. results of Four i ity of the . The results of os! not moteriat on
th basis of net assets and profit before tax i VFRS 2.
2 useo ! a0 chorged at
B Thesoles ing ch

109

Pnnlled on Steinbeis 100°% Recycled and Calbn;n Captured through the Woodland Trust.

helping to create new Bntish' woodiand across tha UK



FRASERS GROUP - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

An agreement has been entered into with
Double Take Limited, a compeny owned by
Mash Holdings Limited in which Matilda Ashley,
Mike Ashley's daughter, is a director. Under

the agreement, Double Take Limited licenses

recognised in respect of loss allowance)
which attracts interest at a rate of 3% within
current assets. This has been accounted for
at amortised cost in accordance with IFRS 9.
The carrying value has been determined by

Key M E ive And Ni

the Group the exclusive rights to the i
brand SPORT FX. During the period a review
has been undertaken and no royalties or other
fees are expected to be payable to Double Take
Limited for these rights until at least September
2021, the fee arrangement will continue to bé
reviewed on an ongoing basis, no provision is
required in the financial stotements. It should
be noted that the Group (rather than Double
Take Limited) owns the rights to SPORT FX for
clothing, footwear and sports equipment.

N M Design London Limited a company in
which Nicola Murray, Michael Murray's mother,
is a director, perform design work for the Group
in relation to some of the Group's sites.

A provision was made in FY20 for £2.0m
payable to Newcastle United Football Club, this
was reversed in FY21.

The trade and other receivables balance with
Four {Holdings) Limited includes an unsecured
loan balance of £60.0m (gross of amounts

g the bility of the ivabl
balance, discounted at an appropriate market
rate of interest. £4.7m was recognised in the
year in respect of doubtful debts. Further
disclosure can be found in note 22.

The sales amount in relation to Four {Holdings)
Limited relates to the interest charge on the
loan and the purchases relate to the purchase
of clothing products. .

At the period end the Group does not have
significant influence over but holds greater than
20% of the voting rights of Studio Retail Group
plc and Mulberry Group plc. Studio Retail Group
plc have disclosed transactions with the Group
as a related party within their most recent
Financial Stotements. Transactions between
Studio Retoil Group plc and the Group related
to normal commercial trading orrangements
and are not considered material to the resuits
of the Group. The latest equity omounts and
results are shown below: .

ive Director Ci
25 april 2001 26 pri 2020
. 3 fem) tem)
Selories ond short-term benafits 13 15
S N B
Other payments - 43
ToraL [ 52

Key it | are i to

be the directors and members of managément
who play a key part in the long term strategy
and operations of the Group.

MM Prop Consultancy Limited, a company
owned and controlled by Michael Murray, who

* is a member of key management personnel

as per |AS 24, continues to provide property
consultancy services to the Group. MM Prop
Consultancy Limited is primarily tasked with

In the current year £2.5m has been accrued
based on 25% of the value created on two
properties where the gain has crystallised
through contract exchange or completion

of sale {FY20 - E£nil provided and £nil paid,
MM Prop Consultancy Limited was last paid
in relation to FY19). This is payable to MM
Prop Consultancy Limited and agreed by the
independent Non-Executive Directors.

During the period the Group entered into an

finding and iating the isition of new

with MPM Limited, a

sites in the UK, Europe and Rest of the World for

both our larger format stores and our combined

retail and gym units but it also provides advice
to the Company's in-house property team in
relation to existing sites in the UK, Europe and
Rest of the World.

In the year all properties are assessed and
those that are considered by the Group's .

independent non-executive directors to have
d P and be eligible for

c
review at the year-énd are assessed and if
required valued by an independent valuer

who confirms the value created by MM Prop

y Limited. The Group's independent

20n 200
Sharo Capital 30 82
‘Share Premium 22 -
OtherReserves o2 09
Retained carnings 20 183
Total aquity 24 45
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD . P 10

The Group does not consider it has the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the entities and so management do not consider the Group to be able to exert
significant influence over these entities as per IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

and IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

10-

tive directors then review and agree
the value creatéd and hove full discretion to
approve a payment to MM Prop Consultancy’
Limited of up to 25% of the value created.
There is a current pipeline of properties that
may be eligible to be assesséd both positively
and negatively by the Group's Non-executive
“directors in future years.

Pm!led on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Cap{uued through the Woodland Trusl. helping to create new British woodland across ths UK

company owned and controlled by Michael
Murray in relation to elevation strategy services.
M.P.M Elevation Limited will be paid an annual
fee of £0.1m in relation to the provision of the
elevation strategy servicés (FY20: £nil).
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35. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY ’

The Group is controlled by Mike Ashley through
his 100% shareholding in Mash Beta Limited and
Mash Holdings Limited, which own 303,507,460
(58.44% of the issued ordinary share capital

of the Company) and 26,492,540 (5.10% of the
issued ordinary share capital of the Company)
ordinary shares respectively at the period

end. MASH Holdings Limited is the smallest

and largest company to consolidate these
accounts. MASH Holdings Limited is registered in
England and Wales and a copy of their financial
statements can be obtained from Companies
House, Crown Way, Cardiff, CF14 3UZ.

36. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 4 Moy 2021 the Group commenced a share
buyback programme with the aggregate
purchase price of all shares acquired under the
programme to be no greater than £60m and the
maximum number of shares to be purchased
of 10m ordinary shares with a nominal value of
10p each. The purpose of the programme was:
to reduce the share capital of the Company.
3,895,835 ordinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £22,429,985 were acquired
through this programme.

On 21 June 2021 the Group commenced an
irrevocable non-discretionary share buyback
programme to purchase the Group's shares
during the closed period which commenced 21
June 2021 and ends on the day of reporting full
year FY21 results, The aggregate purchase price

- of all shares acquired under the programme

were no greater than £60m and the maximum
number of shares to be purchased were 10m
ordinary shares with a nominal value of 10p
each. The purpose of the programme was to
reduce the share capital of the Company. In total
to date 2,024,127 ordinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £11,937,385 have been acquired
through this programme. .

m

‘

The Board is now in discussions with regards
to transitioning the CEO role from Mike Ashtey
to Michael Murray over the course of FY22.

It is currently proposed that Michael Murray
will assume the role 6f CEO on 1 May 2022.

* A reward and remuneration package is now

under consideration on the assumption Michael
Murray will assume the CEO role, Any reward
and remuneration package will be subject to any
requisite shareholder approval.

The Group's elevation strategy is transforming
the business and receiving positive feedback
from consumers and our brand partners,
especially on projects such as the new Oxford
Street Sports Direct which opened in June 2021,

The Board consider it appropriate that Michael
leads us forward on this increasingly successful
elevation journey.

Should Michael Murray assume the CEO role,
Mike Ashley would step down from the CEO role
ot the same time but would remain on the Board
os an executive director.

Ay
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37. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS : Parc industil, Avene Ernest,
. COSIPSA * Solvay 29 1480 Seites, Befgium. 406461077 1o
T Nane REGISTERED OFFICE COMPANY  PERCENTAGE OF ISSUED SHARE Giro Cittrio Brands Limited - Shirebrook® 1690676 00
. ‘ADDRESS NUMBER CAPITAL MELD
- - - Community Bug Limited Shirebroole® 6260240 100
18 Monrosa Retail Limited Shirebrooiet 1577636 s -
- Criminal Clothing Limited Shirebrook® - 4184750 - 100
Fourth Floor Toronto Square el Clofting i nemrod
5 Pointz Limited in Bquidation) Toranta Straot Leads LS) HJ on sasona 100 e Limited ‘Mortin House, 184 Ingtom Strcot,
. 23 April 2020 Cruiso Clothing Limited g Seoalgnd 61 1ON scaE991 100
Activator Brands Limited . Shirebrocie? 5344658 100 R C.C.Puerto Venecia, local B4,
Curlina Investments 5.1 . T, Jardines Reales, 7, 50071 Ba1S369 100
Activator Products Limited Shircbrooiet 420261 100 esiments S 7. S002 8

Zosagozo, Spain

Cagency Global Inc. 850 New

i . v David Geoffrey & Assaciates {UK) Limited ‘Shirebrook™ 670530 100
Activa Apparel New Corp Burton Raod Suite 201 Dover o8 100 -
- . Delaware 1990 Design Source Supply Limited Shirabroo® 9626568 100
‘Alpho Bevelapments Stockport Ltd Shirebrook® V2662364 100 Dink Digital Holdings Limited Shirebrook® 1az016 100
12th Fioor, Menara Synphony : Dink Digital Limited Stirebrook™ 072685 50
. No', Jolon Semangat tJalon Direct Fishing Limitad Shirebrook® 6203469 100
g H rofessor ay Kir) irect Fishing Limite irebre 4
‘AP Brands Holdings Ltd B e g o7 100 e, Pihing U oo
* bataling Jaye. Setanger Dorct . . = Diract Goll 1P Limited Shirebrool® 9911086 100
Ensan, Molaysia Direct Goll Retail Limited Shirebiook™ 9825889 100
Clinchs House, Lord Street,, . copoldstraat nr 7
. Bollatrix Assoclotes Linited . Douglas, sl of Man, 1M99 1RZ, . menc . 00 Donnay Internotional N, Loapokdstrat v 72800 P 100
. isle of Man
Unit 19038 § 1905, Exchi
Clints Houes, Lord St } Tt 33 o o R,
Ballatrix Overseas Limited Oouglos, sle of Man IM99 1RZ, nss27C 00 Eastchance Limited oo B o, . 1438 100
sle of Man Hiang Kong
) Clinchis House, Lord Streat . B First Floor Lo Chasse Chambers .
Bellouix Unlimited Oougios, sl of Mar, 99 1RZ ez 100 Epoch Properties Limited B e 155 SUE Toreny 2153 100
. - isle of Man . .
. Blua Square Sofes Limited - ShirebrooK® v, . s E1ail Services Limited Shirebrook® 5126997 100
PP — Evans Cycles Brands Limited Shirebrook” 634915 100
Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Evans Cyeles Limited Shirebrooi®* 1577650 100
Botss Stares USALLC Orange Straat, Wilmington, New 633085 00
Castle County OE 19801, . Evans Cycles Property Limited Shirebrooke* 11634939 100
Unlted States * . g
Evertast Austratia Limited . Shirebrook™ 803912 100
Leopoldstract. nr. 79, 2600
Brands & Fashion NV poldsiroct - Soigom 0477-995-412 998 Evorlast 42 West 39th St. rd
- International inc. Corp. Floor Now York, New York, 10018, 132811360 100
Brands 001 Limited Shirebrook® 5347520 100 : . United States
Brands Africa Limited Shirebrook™® * 66836765 100 : . Carporation Service Company
Everlast Sports Mig. Cor 80 State Stresy, bany, 139804772 100
Brands Holdings Limited" Shirebrock™ <087435 100 verlost Sports Mg Corp. New Yark, 122207-2503,
United States
Brands Hotdings Sponsorship Limited - Shirebrook™ 10375018 10
Corporation Service Company
8rands Inc Limked Shirebrook® 3585719 100 Everlast Warld Boxing Headquarters Corparation 80 State Street, Atbany, New . 131804773 100
Brasher Lolsure Limited . Shirebrooi® 999a21 100 York, 122207:2543 United Stotes e
B5L International Limited Shirebrockt 2800025 100 The Corporation Tnust Company,
poration Trust Center, 1209
‘ Via Central de Milhelros no 121 . Everlost Warldwids Inc. Orango Streat, Wilminglon, Now 13267276 100
. . 4475-33¢, Frguesia de Milherios. - Castle County DE 19801,
Calica - Comercio de Anigos de Desporos 5.4 e ooy e . sowsmos w00 Lo nted Stotes
~ Portugol Exsports Limited Shirabroak 2779040 100
. Campti Limited - Shirebrocket 5398677 I
ompr imie i il Feniger And Blackburn Limited Shirebrook 639596 100
. C.C.Puerto Venacio, local 84, i - . .
Cardinal Investments S1 - Teav. Jardines Reoles, 7, 50021 BBBSA766 00 FG IAF Holdings) Lirited Shirebrook® 13261983 190
. Zarogoza, Spain FG USA Trade Group Limited Shirebrook™ 13216390 100
Cartion Shustlecocks Limited Shirebroo® - agose2 . 100 /0 Oult & Phetos Lt
o " - . the Chancery S8 Spring
‘Cartton Sports Company Limited hirobre 467 f
po pany U Shirebrock 67686 0 Fleld & Trek (UK Lid in fiquidation) Gordens, Manchester, Greater 5622577 100
B C.CPuerto Venacio, locat 84, ‘Manchester, M2 1EW,
Catrinana Investments S.L Trav, Jordines Reales, 7, 50021 | esasazs) 00 - Uniced Kingdom
Zarogoza Spain Fisetrop Limited_ Shirebrook™ 6836684 100
12 . . ..
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Foraver Madia Limited - Shirebraok" s2ai65 100 international Brand Management Limited" Shirebrook" suams 100
Forovar Sparts Limited Shirebrook™ 946981 100 investing Busingss Limited Shirebrook® g3t 100
Frasers Group {European Holdings) Limit ‘Shirebraok® 12903845 100 Jack Wills (IP) Limited . Shirebrook® 775495 100
Frosers Group Financial Services Limited Stirabrook® 191369 100 Jack Wil Property Liiced Shirsbrook™ 15643 100
Frasers Group Loyalty Services Limiled Shirebrook™ 13340837 100 Heaton House, IDA Business

Sock Wils Retal relond } Limted Park, Whitestown, Tallogh. - sse208 100
Frecshleld Limited Shirebroo® 6330785 100 Db, reland. DI4E302.
Gama AR Limited Basingstoke 10142852 100 Jock Wills Retail Limited ‘Shirebrook™® 11634810 100
Gome Belong Limited Shirebrook® 79447 100 J— i Shirebroak™ Ba0 100
Game Digital Holdings Limited Basingstoke'” 7853832 100 cangol Roldings Limied Shirebroak® s 100
Gome Digital Lirited Basingstoke* 9040213 100 angol Umited Shirebrook® 230793 00
Game Dightat Solutions Limied Basingstoke 9476209 100 omgol Trstees pimited Ee— o5 00
Garme Esports and Events Limited j Sosingstoke ™ s4sa730 100 K Arinaka Kudan Bulding 6/F,
T— Kanitnor Iternatiorial Gimitod 114417 Kudonkita, Chiyoda-k, 0100-01-01128 9%
Gome Retal Limited Basingstoke 737246 100 e o
Goma Spain Holdings Limited Basingstake 10845707 100 pr——— e— poe o
- v "
Gome Spain Investments Limited Basingsicke 10363831 100 Kensington Health Clubs Limized Shirebroote® so21e89 100
C/Virgiio 7-9, Porcelos - 13, g ; .
* " Game Stores Iberia SLU Pazuslo de Alorcan, Madrid Ba1209751 100 Xo0Ga IP Limited Shirebrook 12402087 100
. Spoin Lo lollo (4K) Limited Shirebrook” 5737550 100
Gelrt 1P Urnited Shirebroo aststes w00 (RS — o reores oo
Golart Limited Shirebraok® astez04 00 Ao —— . Shirebrook™ 290939 00
U"‘i‘ “m-':'g i‘q"&é"ﬂ;’"?‘ﬂ Litesome Sportsweor Limited Shirebrook™ 207867 100
o) (k) it fower, 33 Wang Chia Rodl
Globol Appore) (HK) Limitad Kowloon Boy, Kowloon, 130162 b Lonsdale Austrolia Limited Shirehraok™ 7665685 100
Hong Kong
Lonsdole Baxing Limited Shirebuoler 392301 100
Golddigga Brands Limited Shirebraok® ~ easoms 00
Lonsdale Sports Limited Shirebraok®” ss30781 100
. C.C.Pusrto Vanecio,local 84, . ——
Gotay Investments S Trav, Jardines Reales., 50021 638542709 100 Lovel Sports (Holdings) Limited Shirabrook® 9608995 100
- Zorogoza Spoin Lovell Sparts Limited Shircbrook” aigazse 100-
p I :
Graduate Clothing U Shirebrook 250038 k) Lovels 5P Linitod Shirebrook” 8907509 100
GRMNT Ltd Shirebrook® 144039 100 pr— P pve— oo
‘art Hoanstrakade 2, 087N, " "
Hoonarakode 7, 09TON. mizsz0 100 Midtown Led Shirebrook 9467997 100
: The Corporation Trust Compar
Gul 1P Limi i ;
Limited Stirebroo 6478 100 Carporation Trust Center, 1209
Gul Watarsports Linited . Shirebrook® 7589716 00 Missssiopi Monufacturing LLC Oranga Stroet, Wimington, Now 700 100
Castla County DE 19801,
PO Box BTISEX. Sth Floor Leslay . ited Stctas
Haatons (84) Limited Buildings. 61-65 Fountain Strsat, 035599 100
Ballost, Northern freland The Corporatian Trust Company,
- Corporation Trust Center, 1209
Heaton House, DA Businass Mountaln Sports LLC Orange Stroat, Wilmingion, New s36226 100
Hoatons Stores Limited . Parc Whitestown, Tallaght. s09525 100 Castle County DE 19801,
‘Dublin, helond, D24E932, Unized States
Heaton House, DA Business The Corporation Trust Company.
Heatons Uniimited Company Park, Whitostown, Tallaght. nzs 100 Corporation Trust Center, 1209
Oubin, rolond, D24E932 Mountein Sports USA LLC Orang Strect, Wilmington, New mase 100
- Castle County DE 19801,
Weaven or Hel Uimited Shircbrook® s899282 100 Unitod States
[ Eskilsrpovagen 265 96 065100189 0o reddylox P Gived Shirebrook® oreros 0o
Muddylox Limited Shirebrook 4187350 " 100
Hoaton House, IDA Business
. HOF leland Stores Lirited Park Whitestown, Tallaght, 626384 100 Novica IP Limited Shicbrook® ca36178 100
Oublin reland, 024£937
No Fear Brand Limited Shirabrook 5568043 100
Hot Tuna IP Uimited Shirebrook® 5816752 100
No Fear Intemational Uimited Shircbrook™ ssa2482 100
House of Fraser Brands Uted Shirebrook® 10637367 00
No Fear USA Limited - Shirebrook™ n2at0 100
House of Fraser Limited Shirebrook 10685681 100 -
- i Shirebrook' 1635036 100

13 co.
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SOi(Fulhar) Limited Shirebrook* 7852037 00 SD! (Newton Abba) Limited Shirabrook 6836666 100
50} (Gainsborough) Limited - Shirebrook® 6338907 00 SDIINFSK) Limited Shirabrook™ 10919102 100
SO (Golashiels) timited Shirebrook® 7852091 100 SO (Northompion) Limited Shirabrook* 7852272 100
DI (Glosgow For Limited Shirebrook™ 9861504 100 SDI (Northwich) Limited Shirebrook™ 5656295 100
5D Glosgow Frasers) Limited Shirebrook” ns3s96 100 D! {Nattingham) Limited . Shirabrook® 10100609 100
SDI Glasgow Ingeam Street) Limited Stirebrook? * 00 5D (Nuneaton) Limited Shirebroak™ 7852209 100

- SDilGloucester) Limitad Shirebrook™ 7852067 100 SO {Oswestry} Limited Shirebrook™ ©_ 752363 100
SDI (Great Yarmouth) Limited Shirebrook® - wraes 100 DI (Oxford Street HOF) Limited j Shirebrook® 7978780 100
SDI tHanloy) Linited Shirebrook® 228007 100 SDI(Oxlord Street) Limited . _Shirebrooic? 10045080 00
SDi tHostings) Limited Shirebrook® 8625893 w0 SDI tPenzance) Limited Shirebrook™ 7852207 - 100

) SO (Hereford) Umited Shirebrook™ 9888642 100 SO (Patertee} Limited Shirebrook™ 7652401 100
501 [Hofco) Limitad Shirabrook .+ ensss0 100 DI (Plymouth Flannels) Limited Shirabrooi* 9127387 100
SO (HoH Holdings) Limited Stirebrook® 0161552 100 SO (Plymouth Limited Shirebrook" 9470268 100
DI {Hounslow) Limited Shirebraok 10086218 100 SOI {Portsmouth) Limited Shirebraok 12579294 100
DI {Hul) Limited Shirebraok® 9638564 100 SO (Preston) Limited Shirebrook™ 10915199 100
SO lipswich 2) Limited Shirebrack® 12578348 100 DI tPropco 100) Limited i Shirebrook™ 32700 100
SDitipswichi Limited Shirebraaie® 97884 100 $D1tPropco 101) Limited Shirebrook™ 1773486 100
51 (sle of Mani Limited Shirébrook® - ss01745 100 SO tPropeo 102) Uimited - Shirebrook® urs629 100
SO ersy Holding) Limited j Shirebrook ¥ 10177028 100 D1 {Propco 105) Limited Shirebrook™ W775597 100
SDHK Lynn) Uimited Shirebroak® 10073076 00 SO {Propca 107 Limited Shirebrook™ w5706 100
DI (Keighley} Limited . Shirebroolct 6260239 100 SO {Propeo 11 Limited Shirabrool* wrsm2 100
DI {Kendol) Limited Shirebroak™ 6338918 100 SO (Propee 112) Limited - Shirebrook" 927160 © w0
DI (Kentish Town) Limited Shirebroale® 9501702 00 DI (Propco 114) Limited Shirabroak" 12298708 100
01 (Kiddarminster) Linitod Shirebrook™ 5209731 100 DI (Propco 1] Limited Shirabrook™ 300052 10
DI Kilmarnock) Limited Shirebrack® 7853433 100 SDI(Propca 16 Limited Shirebrook! 132260 100
DI {Kingston) Limited Shirebrookc® 10915209 100 SDItPropco 1) Limited Shirabrooi 12332486 100
DI (Kiskealdy) Limized Shirebrook 7852097 100 SDH{Propeo 118) Limited i Shirabrook* . 123n859 100
SO (Loeds) Limited Shirebrook® 920355 100 5D} (Propca 119] Limited Shirabroal™ 1332882 100
SO lLelcester] Limitod Shirebroak® s 100 SO {Propco 125) Limited Shirebroolc® 157378 * . w00
5D {Liverpool]Limited - Shirebrook ! 9888734 100 SDI (Propco 131 Limited Shirebrook 1266 100
SOl lLowestok] Limited Shirebrook™ 7852265 00 5D {Propco 133} Umited Shirebrook™ 972499 100
SDI(LSL Holdings) Limited Shirebrock™ 0161824 100 5D (Propco 134) Limited Shirebraok™ 9625631 100
DI (Monchastar Chectham Hill Limited Shirebrook® 10100969 100 SDI (Propco 137) Limited Shirebrook® 227 100
SDi {Manchastar Denton] Limited 3 Shirebrook® 9127295 100 DI (Propco 35) Limited Shirebrook' 11500282 100
DI (Market Road) Limited Stirebrook - 10799247 w00 SO {Propeo 36) Limited . Shirabrook* s23336 100
DI {micdlesbrough) Limited Shirabrooic 10081909 00 SD! (Propco 37) Limited Shirebrool™ 523343 0
SDI tassau Swreet Linited Shirebrook™ n227964 100 SDI (Propco 38) Limited Shirabrooy ns2aaze 100
DI INeoth) Limited Shirebrooie* 7853508 100 51 (Propeo 39) Limited Shirebroak™ 11523080 100
SO [Newark) Limited Shirebrock™ 7853470 100 D1 Propco 40) Limited * Shicehroald 23489 100
DI (Newcastle] Limited Shirebroo onnss 100 SDI {Propco 41} Limited Shirebrook™ 1523621 100
DI (Nowport 10W] Ltd Shirebrook® 12578944 100 SDI (Propca 42) timiled Shirebrook” 71953 100

: 5Di iNewport} Limited Shirabrook® " asoma 100 DI {Propco 43) Limited Shirebrook™ 11523609 100
DI INewauay) Limited Shicebrootet 10089800 00 SO {Propeo 44} Limited Shirabrooie™ 523608 100
. Sth Floor, Lesley Buiklings, DI {Propco 45} Limited § Shirebraok™ 11523654 100
DI iNewry) Limited 61-65 Fountain Street, Beflast, NI6s3358 w00 g
. ‘Northarn treland, BT) SEX SO (Propeo 46) Limited Shirebrook™ us23748 100
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501 (Propeo 47) Limited Shirebrook " 530370 100 5Dl (Ramsgate] Limited Shirebrook™ 7852250 100
§ imited i lquidation 4 Floor Toronto Sauare, SDI (Reading) Limited Shirebrook™ 10822164 100
$DI{Propco 48) Limited fn liuidation) Toromte Sheet, Lenty Lova 523759 00
inited Shirebrook™ s 100
SD {Propco 49} Limied Shuebrook ™ ns2615 00
SDHRotle SU Limited Shirebrook® 7852669 100
SO {Propco 50 Limited Shirebrook® nsasia2 100
- Shirebroak® . 10071547 00
$D1(Propco 51 Limited Shirebrook ¥ ns27237 100
Shirabroolc* 0107572 10
DI (Propco 52 Limited Shirebrook® ns26972 - 100
Limited Shirebrook™ 6328463 100
5D (Propco 54 Limited Shirebrook* nsanes 100
Parishes Shirebrooke™ - W30482 100
SDI (Propeo 55 Limited Shirebrook* ns27303 100
- Limited Shirebroaic™ 7852055 100
5D {Propco 56) Limited Shwebrook® 527362 100
peo 136) Limited Shirsbrooic® 9888635 100
$DI (Propeo 57) Limited Shirabrook® 527500 100
) imited Shirebrooi™ 9665889 100
SOI (Propeo 58} Limited Shirabroak® 27596 00 .
- Limited Shirebroak™ 8512480 100
. th Flaor Toronto Square,
SDItPropco $9) Limited Toronto Street, Leads, LS1 2H) ns2ises 00 $DI (Southport) Limited Shirebrook® 9888806 100
DI {Propco 60) Limited Shirebrack™ 1531386 100 SO (5t Austel) Liited Shirebrook™ " ms;ee 100
SDI (Propeo 61) Limited Shirebrook * 1is31382 100 S 156 Helens) Uimited. Shirebrooi™ 7852281 100
DI (Propeo 62} Limited “Shirebrook® nsarae 00 SO (Stafford) Limited Shirebrook™ 8568661 100
DI (Propco 63) Limitod ‘Shirebrook® 1531503 00 SDI {Stoines) Limited Shirebroak™ 626482 100
SDI {Propco 64) Limited Shirebrook ¥ 11531506 100 SOI {Stockport) Limited Shirebrook™ 6372181 100
1 (Propco 63) Limited Shirehrook® sas37 00 5D (Stoke Longton) Limited Shuebrook™ @587 100
SDI(Propco 67) Limited Shirebrook® Vis72676 100 DI (Stoke Newingeon Limited Shirehrook™ 7852207 100
DI (Propco 68) Limited Shirebrook® s72an 00 DI (Strabone] Limited Shirabrook 9890243 10
. SDIPropco 69) Limited Shirebrook® 1572830 00 D (Strectham Limuted Shirebrook™ 10066335 100
. SDilPropca 70) Limited ) Shirebrook* ns7933 100 SDI (Strood} Limited Shirebrook™ 7852251 100
DI {Propco 71 Limited R Shirebrook® 1572887 100 5D (Sunderland) Limited Shirabrook™ 8755347 100
. SDIPropco 73) Limited Shirebrook* 11575050 100 DI {Sutton) Limited Shirebrook™ * 22801 100
$DI{Propco 74) Limited Shirebrook® 525091 100 DI {Swindan) Limited Shirebrool™ 988862 100
SDI{Propco 75) Limited Shirebrook 1577256 100 SD! {Talloght) Limited Shirebrook™ 10915203 * 100
$D! (Propco 76) Limited Shirabrook® ns77617 00 SDI (Teunton) Limited Shirebrook™ 852191 100
SO (Propco 77) Limited Shirebrook" 8164 100 SDI (Thanet) Limited Shirebrook®™ 1257903¢ 100 -
DI (Propeo 80} Limited Shirabrook” 577670 00 SDI (The House Yarm Limited Shirebrook® 133287 100
DI [Propeo 81) Limited Shirebrook™ nean2a 00 501 (The Lion Hotel Limited Shirebroo™ 6836880 100
DI (Propco 83) Limited Shirebrook® 11646307 00 SO (Thurrock) Limited Shirebrooi™ 10089743 100
501 {Propeo 85 Limited: Shirebrook® eesear 100 SO (Trowbridge} Limited Shirebiook™ 12355661 100
SDI {Propco 86 Limited Shirebrook® 649235 0o DI Uxbridge 2) Uimited Shirebrook® 9127316 00
DI (Propco 87) Limited j Shirabrack® 1649336 100 DI [Uxbridge) Limited Shirebrook™ w0276 100
DI {Propeo 88) Limitod Shirabrook® neTarsy 00 DI Wokefield) Limised Shiebrook® 8483731 100
SO1{Propeo 89) Limited Shirebrook® 11649347 100 SO tWolsol Limited Shirebrook™ 7852289 100
SDI {Propeo 90) Limited Shirebroot 649431 00 SDI Wotlord) Limited Shwebrook™ 6328505 100
SDI{Propeo 91 Limited . Shwabrook™ ea1077 100 SO) Widries) Linited Shirebrook™ 876472 100
5DI{Propeo 92} Limited Shisebrook* 730204 00 SDI {Wigani 1P Limited Shirebrook® 6835407 100
SDI (Propco 93) Limted Shirebraak> 11730253 100 SO {Wigan) Lirited Shirsbrook™ V279287 100
D1 {Propeo 94) Limited Shirebragk® 30220 00 SO (Wishaw) Limited Shirsbroalc™ 5656365 100
SDI{Propco 96) Limited Shirebrook® 1730503 100 SD1 (Wrexhom) Limited Shirebrook™ 10915200 100
SDI{Propeo 98 Limited Shirebroak® W30868 100 DI (Wythenshawe] Limited Shirebrook™ 9659156 100
SDH{Propeo 99) Limited Shirabrook® wnm 100 DI tYeovil Limited Shirebrook™ 12571967 100
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SDI (York) Limited Shirebrook™ 1331391 100 SDI Fitness (Northfield) Limited Shirebrook* 9039412 © 100

ion Trust Company, SDI Fitness (Rugby) Limited Shirebroal* 9039408 100

5017300 Colins LLC Orange Street, Wimingtan, New . 6870031 ’ 100 S Fitness Sale) Limited Shirebrook® +_s01905 00
Gastlo County DE 19801, United SDI Fitness (Salisbury) Limited ‘Shirebroal® 9039429 100"
F— R SO Ftness 1 Limited Shirebraok™ anoa 100
Carpar Trust Canter, 1209 SDA Fitness 10 Limited Shirebrook™ 12372368 100
$DI735 Collins LLC. Orange Street, Wilmington, New 68700128 100 DI Fitness 10 Limite 3
Castls County DE 19601, United SO Fitness W Limited Shirabrook™ a0 100
ot - .
SDI Fitness 12 Limited Shiretrool™ 1267058 00
501 Aviation Limited® Shirabrook™ assisz 0o -
- SO Fitness 13 Limitod Shirebrook™ . s085 100
SDI Fitness {Blrmingham} Limited Shirebrook®™ 9038982 0o .
SDI Fitness 14 Limited Shirebrook™® 12820516 100
SDI Fitness {Bury St Edmunds) Limited N Shirebrook® 9038949 00
SO Fitnos 15 Limitad Shirebroak® . eaz2es 100
SDI Fitness (Chaltenham) Limited Shirebrook™ 9039840 100
SO Fitness 16 Umited Shirebraoe” aarzses . 100
SDI Fitness {Calchester] Limited Shircbrook’* 9039011 00 =
- SO Fitness 17 Limited Shirabrook™ nan697 100
SDI Fitness {Croydon) Limited Shirebfook™ 9039243 00
501 Fitness 18 Limited Shirebrook® ez 100
SDI Fitness {DW) Limited Shirehrook™* 12298794 100
SO Fitness 19 Limited Shirebrook 12622856 100
« SDIFitness [Epsom) Limited Shirebrook 9039043 100
P—— SO Fitaess 2 Umited Shirebroole” arzies 100
: ounth Floor Taranto Squar, -
SOI Fisness {Farsham) Limited {in liquidotiont Toranto Strect, Loeds, LS12H)  * ' 9039057 100 SO Fitness 20 Limited Shirebrookis 12823720 100
SOI Fitness {Formby) Limited ; Shirebrook* 9039895 100 SOI Fitness 21 Limited Shirebrook® 12823572 100
SO Fitoess (Glosgow Limited Shirabrook® 903881 100 SO Fitness 22 Limited Shirebrooit 12623510 100
SOI Fitaess (Guildford) Limited Shirehrook'* 9039269 100 SO Fitness 23 Limited Shirebraok™ 12823786 100
SO} Fitness (Hove) Limited Shirebraok* 9039030 100 SOI Fitness 24 Limited Shirebrook® 12823986 N 100
SDI Fitness {Huntingdon} Limited . Shirebrook'* 9039881 100 SO Fitness 25 Limited Shirebrook” 12823926 100
SDI Fitness (K Heath) Limited Shirebrook'* 9039M7 100 SDI Fitness 26 Limited Shirebrook™ 12825248 100
01 Fliess € Lyne) Lrnfied T eriretrao Soasear 00 SO Fitness 27 Lmited Shirabrooie? 1283080 100
SDI Fitness (Kattering) Limited Shirebrook'* 3 9039852 . 100 SDI Fitness 28 Limited Shirebrook™ 12825356 100
SDi Fitness (Lincoln City} Limited . Shirebrook™ 903933 100 SDI Fitness 29 Limited ~ Shirebrook™ 12825569 100
SDI Fitness (Lincoln South West) Limited 7 Shirebrook'* 9039319 100 SDI Fitness 3 Limited Shirebrook™ 12372168 100
SOI Fitness {Liverpaol) Limited Shirabrook* 9039347 . 100 SOI Fitness 30 Limited Shirebrook . 12825721 100
SDI Fitness (Manchester) Limited Shirebrook 9039339 100 SDI Fitness 31 Limited Shirebrook™ 12930743 100
SDI Fitness [Milngovie) Limited Shircbrook® 9039510 100 SDI Fitness 32 Limited . Shirebrook™ 12930838 100
SDI Fitness (Newark) Limited ‘ Shirebrook® 9039640 100 . SDIFitness 33 Umited ) Shirebrook™ 12930826 100

/o Kennedys, 10th Fldor, River SO Fitness 34 Limited Shirebrook™ 12930829 100

House, 48-60 High Street,
Betfast, Northern Ircland, 671
2BE, United Kingdom SDI Fitness 36 Limited . Shirebrook™ 12930954 100

5D Fitaess (N1 1) timitod . NIET2034 100 . SDI Fitness 35 Linited Shirebrook™ 12930938 100

ol e 06 ot . . o Furs 3 Ui Shtrons o oo
SDI Fitness (NI 2) Limited s 4 s roet =
(812} Limit Bellast, Northern Ireland, BT1 1672033 100 SDI Fitness 38 Limited Shirebrook® 09038724 100
£ Unitod Kingiom .
SO Finess 39 Limited \ Shirebroalet 08038768 100
cloKennedys. 10th Floor, Fover -
. Housa, 48-60 High Streat, SD1 Fitness 4 Limited Shirabrook® I 100
SOIftness NI Limied Battast, Northero Irelond. BT1 N72035 100 s : .
I Ve amarion S0 Fitnsss 40 Limited Stirebrook® 05038581 100
o Kennodys, 10th Floor, River - D1 Fitness 41 Limited Shirebrook® 09018839 100
. . House, 48-60 High Struet, " " g .
SDI Fitness NI 4) Limited Belfast, Nerthern Ireland, BT1 NIGT288S ©o SD! Fitness 42 Limited Shirebrook® 09038943 100
€ United Kingdom 501 Ftness 43 Limited Shirebrook® osoas0n3 100
e Kannady 10 ot iver . 501 Fitness &4 Uimited Shirebrook® 0903930 00
e i " House. igh Steet,
SDI Fitness (NI ) Limited Belfost, Northern Irefand, BT1 NI67288¢ 100 SDI Fitness 45 Umited Shirebrool* . 0903948) 100
2BE, United Kingdom T
SDI Fitness 26 Limited Shirebrok® wsos0e3s 100
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SO Fitnoss 47 Limitad Shirebraok® 13030364 100 The Corporation Trust Company,
— Corporation Trust Centar, 1209
SD1 Fitness 48 Limitod R Shirebraok® 13030107 100 SO Ventures LLE Orange Street, Wiltington, Now ser0023 100
DI Fitness 49 Limitad Shirgbrook® 13030173 100 Costle County DE 19801
SO0 Fieness § Limitad, . Shirebrook™ 1237199 100 D) Praperty (Bitburg) BY. Netherands 2495607 100
SO Finess 50 Limited Stivebrook® 12030175 100 P— Shirebrook® Son2ss 00
501 Ftness 6 Limited -Shirabrook" e 100 o [T y—— P .
SD) Fitness 7 Limited Shirebraok'® 12372218 100 Solvay 29 1480 Saintes, Belgium
. SD) Fitness B Limked S Shirebrook® 3208 100 Seven Strong Limited . Shiebrook® 56386 100
01 Fitaess 9 Limitod. " Shirabraok® waroa 100 Shetico A3 Limited Shirsbrook” 10687408 100,
SO) Four Limited " . Shirebrook* 9719779 00 S1A SIG Logistics A Deglava sir 50 Lv-1-35 Riga 2020311076 60
‘Tha Corporation Trust Company, ;
Carporation Trust Center, 1209 S1A Sportland . A Deglava sir SO LV-1-35 Riga 40003530961 60
SDIGift Card LLC Grange Street, Wilmington, New semans 100 atvia
Costle County DE 1980 S —
United States 7 SIA Sportsdirect.com A Deglava str S0 Lv-1-35 Rige 40103932873 60.
SO! Golt Limited Shirebrook? 9083512 L] Ski and Outdoor Warohouse Limited Shircbrook™ 2ovm 100
The C’;{’::;"ﬂ',:;‘:i;:ﬂ:‘;’a‘; Skins IP Limited - Shirabrook™ 12168568 100
SD1 Holdings USA inc Crono e, Wiingon New s6s1201 wa Stazengar Carlton (Hokdings) Uiited Shirabrook™ 10463051 00
ostle County
. United States Slazengers Australio Uimited Shirebrook® o3 - 100
SDIUifestyle imitod Shirebrook 2936 00 Slozengers Uimited - Shirebrook® 116000 100
Corporation Service Campany. Smith & Brooks Limited Shirabrook™ 2073720 100
SDI Properties (USA Inc. 20ffice Park Cour, Sua 103 siser2 w0 <
§ Columbia Smith And Brooks Group Limited Shirobrook™ 01931 100
- [PE——— Simith And Brooks Holdings Limited Shirabrook" 4983573 100
501 Proporty Europo) BY. 4672PL Bergan op Zoom 69042594 100
Netherlonds SNO Spori Vortriebs GmbH  * Flugplatzsrafie 30, 4600, Wels 22671 m 100
i Autdia
SDI Propeny (Evans Cyeles) Limited Shirebrook® 6as219 100
The Black Church., St Morys
any i * o
501 Property Limited: Shirebrook® 276m93 100 Sole Manufactura treland Lirited Place, Dublin 007 péAX ralond 69923 100
- The Corporation Trust Company. ‘Sofa.com Bidco Limited ) Shirabrook(1) 9341955 100
Corporation Trust Center, 1209
SD1 Property US Inc Orango Street, Wimington, New 64700024 w00 Sofo.com 8V Flags 1V 6. Dan Dungen. 1196766 100
Castle County DE 19801 S27SHH, Nathedands
. i United States Sofa.com Ud Shirebrook® 222498 100
SD1 Property US Limited, Shirebrook® 323420 w00 ‘Sondico 1P Limited Shirabrook” esaant 00
S1 Retail Srvices Lintod Shirsbroos 143303 100 oo Unied Shrabrook ‘o900 o0
DI Spor London Limited Shirebrook® 848767 100 . - o -
Spon Eybh & Sports Exparts Logistkbatriebs GmH gptatzstiofe 30. 4600, Wels 896024 m 100
501 Sports (SC 2016) Lid Shirebrook" a0 100
501 Sports (Stoke imited Shirabrook® 6 00 Sprt Eybi Holding GmbH - Flugploustiafie 30, 4600, Wols 180095 x 100
port Eybi Holding Austria
The Corporation Trust Campany, -
) Center. - Minzhi Avenue, Xinniu
1 Sports Group America vange Street, Wimington, New ] :
. SDI Sports Group Americas LLC Orange Sueet ;‘:"wmy e aon oan% o ‘Spandirect.com China Pte Limited Communisy, Minzhi Street, 91440300579987503D 100
United States . Longhua Distict Shanzhen.
China
The Corporation Taust Compony.
B Carporation Trust Center, 1209 Sportland Eestic AS. B s 10677712 50
$01 Stares LLC Gronge Street, Wilmington, New 24032 100 stonia -
Castle County DE 19801 i Pornu mot 139 Kesdinna,
. Urniea Sictee Spartiand International Group AS. et 129 Keskina, 10993195 60
E The Corporation Trust Campany. 4 Tong Sen Streat, 11
Corporation Tust Camer 1205 Spons Dirsct Singapore) Pretd L. pltuTongSenStieat #1105, 2020085022 s
st Canie. The Central, 05981 Singapora
soiusaLLe Oranga Straet, Wilmingtan, Now - ssss 100
R Cosle County DE 19601 - Leval 152, Bangunan Faber
United States: imperial Cour, Jolan Sultan
Sparts Diract Asia Retail Sdn Bhd et Court, Jlan Suten 201901040821 s
. Maloysia
: Sparts Direct Holdings Limited Shircbrook' s464317 100
18 . . )
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Sports Direct International Holdings Limited® Shirebrook® sonn 100 Sportsdirect.com Vienna North GmbH Wels, Flugplatzstrobe 30 FNI0485G. - 100
Sports Direct Intornational Limited Shirebrook 728757 100 S5G Sport GmbH 155D) ernhoa. 8, 9403, sz, RS 7134 100
Leve! 15-2. Bangunan Faber
< Dire n Imperiol Court Jolan Sultan o Sterling Resources (Holdings} Limited Shirebroak assi7or 100
Sports Direct MST Sdn Bhd a0 Kot v a286M s
o Sterling Resources Limited Shirebroak* rerase 100
Sports World international Lirmtad Shirebrook® 6531266 100 St e Street) Limite Martin House, 184 Ingram Straet,
Stiings (Argyle Street) Limited . e e o scossios . 00
Van Koniienburgweg 45, 4612 PL.
Sports World The Netherlonds BY. o Korerbugues 4462 L 3u056291 100 S — pe— ooves oo
avoaur, - Stike s, wd Shirebrook* 820529 100
Sporisdirect iceland) eht Skogarind 2,201 Kopavogur, a0m1760 100 e Success e
lcalan C.C.Puerto Venecin, local 82, "
Unik 19038 § 1905, Exchonge Suploy investments S.. o Jrdnes Rocos 50021 BaEsaz651 00
Tower, 33 Wang Chiv Road, . aragozo, Spolm
Sportsdirect.com (Asiol ltd e o o oo, mens 100 P———
ong Swimmo Eupen SPRL A It bt 78673906 100
frot e vagomplicin Table Tennfs Pro Europe Ltd Shirebrook® 002853 T oo
Sportsdirect.com Shanghail (Shanghai Pt Fres Zone. NNONSMATKAEIAGE o 773 Howard Huges Phway, STE
Shonghoi, China The Antigua Group Inc 5005 Las vegos, Nevado, USA 0734679-4 100
. 6FA85-9,No 213, ChooluRd. 89169601
Sportsdirectcom (Taiwon Limited i s Tlchung iy 40 oy 95 ‘The Flannets Group Limited Shirebrook® asio 100
The Trademrk Licensing Company Limited Shirebrok® 417825 ] 100
Sportsdirect.com Austria GmbH + Flugplatzstrafe 30, 4600, Wels 20038y 100
Austrio Total Estates Limited Shirebrook* 958710 100
o Belgtom Pare Industiel, Avenue Ermest, Tri Yoowi UK Limitad Stitabrook® 10680690 100
Sportsdirect.com Belgium S.A Sorons 381480 Setmen B 626847 100 P ——
i i Vilus,
" . UAB SO Gediming) LT eimyniskiu g 3 135029836 Bl
. Mitiodes Stylianou 148, Shoi 2, Lithuania
Spartsdirectcom Cyprus Uimited e e, B % . HE230360 100 - P ———
eimyniskiu g, 4 Vlnius,
T UAB Spartland LT . 135039836 5
i Progue - Nove Mesto, Na Pori Lithuonia
Spartsdirect.com Crech Republic 5o, e 10b o e et 20268933 00
Seimyniskiu 9. 3. Vilnus,
Sportsdirect com Fltness Uimited Shirebroak® 9028577 100 UAB Spartsdirect.com Uthuani vassen =
Zac des Brateaux. Rua des Univorsal Cycles Limited Shirebrook® 1339667 100
Spartsdirect com France Bt Brua. e det FR27379062813 100
USA Pro (P Limited Shirebrook™ 649791 100
H-1053 Budapest, Korolyi Mihaly
Spontsdirect.com Hungary Kit uica 12, Hungory o1-09-986824 100 — P s036808 0
Spontsdirectcom mmobilian GmbH Flugplatastrafe 30, 4600, Wels oarsip 00 Used Tackla Limited ._Shirebrogk’ . 7589154 100
i Shirebrack® 8319959 100
Browery Street, Zono 3 Centrol " "
Sportsdirect.com Malta Limied Business Distict Birkirkora CBD oo 100 Vinecomb tnyestments Holdings L Shirabrook? 10161816 1%,
040 Malta Vinocomb Investments Limitod Shirebrook™ 220602 100
. Parnu mnt 139¢, Kesklinna, o ook
Sportsdirect.com OU . e s asey 100 Voodoo Dalls Brand Limited Shirebrool s323305 100
’ i irebrook
3 Suiadows Serees 1880 Wareshop2 Limited Shirebrook 9870840 100
Sportsdirectcom Polond SPZoo - Poznof, Poland , 00-672, 452610 100 : Heaton House, IDA Business
. Warsaw Wermambool * Park, Whitastown, Tallaght, 3870 100
Oublin 24, reland
- /o Norton Rose Fulbright, Li,
Sportsdirect.com Pty Ltd 285 Bourkn Street, Melbourne 603187 219 100 Woterine Angling Products Lirmited Shirebrook® 2696374 00
VIC 3000, Australia
15 Atholl Crescent, Edinburgh,
- - K “Pare Industrioh, Avarus Emest, West Coost Capital{HOFCO) Limited g scagreta 100
Sportsdirect com Retoil (Europe) SA S 30 1190 o B 458883066 00 :
. 20ffice Pork Court, Suite 103,
Sportsditect.com Retail Limited* Shirebraok® 3406347 100 Westminster Manufacturing LLC Covmbia S 39233 Sk 24358 100
e S Comerl Pt : Widiow Urmited Shirebrook® 45678 100
N . enecio, Local 84, Travesia
Sportsdirect.com SLL4. Spain Tos Jardinas Reales n* 7, 50021, B-asseraso o0 Wiliom Sykas Liitad Stirabrook™ 2ans 100
Zoragoro. Spoin
90t0. X World of Senvica Intornationol timited Stirobrook 1202465 100
. Vysoka 2/8, 81106, Bratislavo,
Sportsdirect.cam Slavokio sro. = 8. 81106, Brovisovo. 47240258 100 ‘World of Service Limited ‘Shirabrook® 6020729 100
Sportsdirect.com SLYN d.oo. Planjava 4, 1236 Train, Slovenia 198157000 100 Yeomans Outdaors Limited Shirebrook® 80sg7a 100
i AG. Switzerland 27,301 Bem, Zoparon SPzao ol Zarnicko 22 Robokawa, KRS 0000459435 "
che- Suitzerlond nea3sn 100 > 62-023 Gag Polond 000045943 00
) Unit A Brook Park Eost, Shirebroak NG20 8RY
“Direct shoreheldings held by Frosars Group pl.
19 2 Unity House, Telford Road, Basingstake, Hampshire, RG12 6YJ
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Frasers Group plc intends to provide a parental guarantee for the following United Kingdom SDI {Gansborough) Limited . 06338907 DI (Straathaum) Limited . 10066335
incorporated subsidiaries thus entitling them to exemption from statutory audit under section 479A SD) (Galashicls) Limited 07852091 SO {Strood) Limitad 07852251
of the Companies Act 2006. SDI (Glasgow Fort) Limited 09861504 SOt (Sunderland High Street) Limited 10107775
COMPANY NAME COMPANY NUMBER COMPANY NAME COMPANY NUMBER SDI Glasgow Frasers) Limited 531596 SOI (Sundarland) Limited 08755347
Directfishing Linited 08203489 SOlMarketRoudiLimited _ wroszr SO (Glasgow ngram Streat) Limited 09928519 . SD! {Suttor) Limited . n2280m
ot Tuno P Limited . 6816792 SO (Middlesbrough Lumked 10081905 SOI (Gloucastor) Limited 07852067 5D {Swindon) Limited 09888662
SD Equestrian Limited 08692780 51 {Nassau Street) Lunited 12968 SDI (Graat Yormouth) Limitad 1732687 DI {Tallaght) Linited 10915203
SD Cutdoor Limitad oussuas0 ey — 0853548 DI [Hanley) Lirnted nz28017 SDI (Taunton) Limited 0785219
SDI (Aberdoen) Limited ©oBsis9 SDI {Now Cavendish Straat) Limited 06306917 SOI (Hastings} Lirmited 08625893 SDI (Mmweack) Limitod 10089743
SDI (Aberwystwyth) Limited 02789996, SD1 (Nowark) Limited 07653470 . SDI (Horeford) Uimited 09888642 SDI (Uxbridge 2) Linitad osz3e
DI (Aintrae) Limited 03352062 SO (Noweastle) Limited o9iznse SDI (Hofco) Limited 08319960 SDI (Uxridge) Limited 10177276 .
SDI (Ashford) Limitad 07848460 SDI (Newport) Limited 08679118 SDI (Hoh Holdings) Limited 10161592 SDI (Wokefield) Limitad 0Ba8I7N
SDI (Ashington) Limited 07849231 SDI INewquay] Limited 10089800 DI (Hounslow) Limited 10086218 SDI (Walsall) Limitad 07852289
SDI (Aye) Limited 05528267 SOI (Nawton Abbat) Limited 06836666 DI (Hull Limited 09638564 SOl (watlord) Limitad 06328505
SDI (Bangar) Limited 05529705 SDI (Northampton) Limited ores2272 SDI (1pswich) Limited o9rBaam SDI (Weymouth) Limited 06716652
DI (Barrow tn Furness) Limited o7asisi SD! (Northwich) Limited 05656295 SO fisle Of Man) Limited 09901745 SO (Widnos) Limited 08576472
- SO (Beddgelert) Limited 08577551 SDI (Nottingharn Limitad © 30100609 DI K Lynn) Limited 10073076 SO! (Wigani Limited 12579287
50! (Beffast} Limited 09872471 SOI {Nuneaton) Limited 07852249 SO (Keighley) Limited 06260239 SDI {Wishaw) Limited 06656365
SO (Berwick) Limitod 02739957 SO (Oswestry) Limited 07852363 SO {Kendal) Limited 06338918 SDI {Wolvarhampton) Limitad 09788373
D1 {Botws-Y-Cood) Limitad 06836673 SO1 (Oxford Stroet) Limitad 10046080 SDI (Kantish Town) Lirited agsonr02 SDI (Wythenshawe) Limited 09659156
SDI {Bexleyheath) Limited 09786372 SOI Paisley) Limited 02933408 SO (Kiddlerminster) Limited 09209731 SDI (York) Limited n331391
SDI (Birkenhead) Limited osasiss DI {Panzance) Limmitad 07852297 SO1 (KHmarnock) Limited oms3en 301 Four Limtad L2l
DI (Bishop Auckland) Limited 03004246 SDI {Peterlee) Linuted 07852401 SO (Kingston) Limited 10915209 DI Golt Limited 09083512
SO (Bridgwater) Limited 07852061 SDI (Plymouth Flannels) Limited 09127387 SDI (Kirkcaldy) Limited 07852097 DI Properties (Wigan) Lini 06836522
- SO (Brixtord imited 9127300 5D (Phymouth) Limited 0470468 SO (Leeds) Limited 09293515 « _SDI Proparty Limitad 02767493
501 (Burton) Uirited 0819563 '$D1 (Prastor) Limited 0915199 SO (Lercaster) Limited oonnzo SDI Sport Landon Limited 09848767
SDI (Cardiff Flannls) Limited 10177359 . DI (Rarmsgate) Limited 07852250 SDI {tiverpaol) Liited 09888734 SO1 Sports (East Hom) Limited 10259103
SO (Carliste) Limitad oresess - SO (Reading) Limitad oazn6a SDI (Lowastoft) Limited 07852265 DI Sports (Stoke) Limited 10163722
SO (Chatharm) Lamited 06836679 SO {Redeor) Limited sz DI (L) Holdings) Limited 10161824 Stirings (Argylo Strael) Limitad scossios
D1 (Cheshant 2) Liited s SOI Rolle st} Lirmted, 07852669 DI fLutor) Limited 09680625 Vinecomb Invastments Holdings Lirmited 10161816
SO1 (Cheshunt) Uimited 1775599 SO} {Romford) Limitad - 10071547 SDI (Manchoster Cheethar Hil Limited 10100969 Wareshopt Limited 09870849
SDI (Clacton) Limited 07852078 SDI (Salisbury) Limited 10107572 SDI Manchostor Danton Limited o258 Wareshopd Limited 09870808
SO (Colchoster) Linted ‘0sex190 D1 (Scarborough) Linitad 06328463 Alpha Devaloprnents Stockport Limited 12662564 SDI (Propco 75} Limited 11577256
5D (Con Limited 75763 SDI (Scunthorpe) Limited 7852085 SO (Stockpor) Limited 06372181
SO (Darlington) Limited 10915193 DI (Slough) Linited or8s2a17 . : ’
SDI (Derby) Limited j 09310031 DI (Solibull Limited 08612647
SDI (Derry) Limited NI653340 SDI {Southamplon 2) Limited 09665889
DI {Dancaster) Limited 09888670 SDI (Southampton) Limited 08512480+
501 (Dunde) Limited osr02000 SDI (Southport) Limitad 09888806
SDI {Durtennline) Limited 08483679 SDI (St Austell) Lisuted 7852284 -
SDI (East Harm) Limitod 09810378 +SDI (St Helens) Linmited o7852281
SDI {Eost Kilbridol Limitod 06656368 SO {Stafford) Limited 08568681
SDI (Edinburghy Limited 10100990 5D (Stoke Longton) Limitad o78s3877
SDI (Enficld) Limited 10086209 SDI {Stoke Newinglon) Lmited 07852207
SDI (Fulham) Limited 07852037 SO (steabane) Lirutad 09890243
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FRASERS GROUP

'FRASERS GROUP PLC
COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

- at 25 April 2021

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN EQUITY

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

Notes as at anct .
28 April 2021 26April 2010 Called  Share  Treamury o Copltat o Share
temi tem) upshure  premium  share  contnto redamption VPN bened Totat
FIXED ASSETS capital  gccount - reserve  capt rarerve -
Investments . 2 ~ uases 12358 (tm) tem . (tm) tem) tem) tem) ttm) (e tem)
CURRENT ASSETS 3 AT 20 APAIL 2019 o4 23 aa) o1 20 e - uta sy
Debtors . | PR 1625 68 {Loss}for the financit period __ - - - - (22n wn
Cash ot bank and in Fand e 3536 Fair volus adjustmeni in respect of lang- . . . .. . wn
ki) L04 - - a0 02 - - )
Creditors: amounts falling due within one yoor s - 16090) 19015} Raverat of i yeor [ valuation o N N oo ) T e
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES D w00 o share buyback controctual obligation
Nerassers " § oss ar A3 AT 26 APRIL 2020 43 3 ey 3 20 toro) - s 4
d Profi for the financial period - - - - 218 ame
CAPTAL ANDRESEAVES 5 Fair value adjustment in respact of long- . . . ma na
Caled up shore copital N © 641 621 term f - recognised
Share premium . ) - 8743 8783 Share scherme - - - - 03 08 - 11
Treasury share resorve ) (2957) AsaTasAPRILZON P o3 assa o1 8o (s67) 08 4800 - 106489
Permanent contbution to copitol - ot o The share premium account is used to record the excess proceeds over nominal value on the issue of
Copital redomption raserve 89 L shares, The permanent contribution to capital relates to a cash payment of £50,000 to the Company
Own shore reserve (66.7) 1670) on 8 February 2007 under a deed of capital cantribution. The capital redemption reserve arose on
Share based paymont reserve - 08 the redemption of the Company’s redeemable preference shares of 10p each at par on 2 March 2007,
Profit and Loss account . 4800 09 . The own shares and treasury reserves represent the cost of shares in Frasers Group plc purchased in
SHAREHOLOERS FUNDS. Voeas a7 - the market and held by Frasers Group plc Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy options under the Group's

Frasers Group plc reported o profit after taxation for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021 of £231.8m

{FY20: a loss of £47.7m).
The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements were approved by the Board on § August 2021 and were signed on its
behalfby: 7_ " .

Chris Wootton
Chief Financial Officer -
Company number: 06035106 -

2 .

Share Scheme. For further information see note 25 in the Group Notes to the financial statements.

ted on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon. Captured through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new.British woodiand across the UK
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FRASERS GROUP

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting Policies

Frasers Group plc (the “Company") (Company
number: 06035106) is a company ificorporated
and domiciled in the United Kingdom, its shares
are listed on the London Stock Exchange. The
registered office is Unit A, Brook Park East,
Shirebrook, NG20 8RY.

These financial have been prep

As permitted by FRS 102 the Company has
taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions
available under that standard in relation to
financiol instruments, presentation of o cash
flow statement, share-based payments, the
aggregate remuneration of key management
personnel and related party tronsactions with
other wholly-owned members of the Group.
Where required, equivalent disclosures are given
in the Group accounts of Frasers Group plc.

Principal Activity

in compliance with FRS 102 *The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland” {"FRS 102") and the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements are prepared in
sterling, which is the functional currency of the
Company. Monetary amdunts in these financial
statements are rounded to the nearest £0.1m.

These accounts have been prepared in
accordance with applicabte United Kingdom
accounting standards. A summary of the
material accounting policies adopted are
described below.

Basis Of Accounting

The accounts have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for the modification
to a fair value basis for certain financial
instruments as specified in the accounting
policies below.

These financial statements for the period ended
25 April 2021 are prepared in accordance with
FRS 102, The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland.

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies
Act 2006, a profit and loss account of the
Company is not presented. The Company’s
profit after taxation for the 52-week period
ended 25 April 2021 was £231.8m (FY20: loss of
£47.7m).
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The principal activity of Frasers Group plc is
that of an investment holding company.

investments

Fixed asset investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for ot cost less provision for
i i In the Group

Fair value movements through other
comprehensive income

Elections are made on an instrument-by-
instrument basis to account for movements
in selected instruments through other
comprehensive income. The Company has
elected to account for movements in its listed
investments through other comprehensive
income. These investments are not subject

to impairment and gains and losses are not
recycled to the profit and loss account on the
disposal of listed investments. Dividend income
is recognised in the profit and loss occount.

This treatment does not apply to investments

in the Company’s subsidiaries and associates

where movements are recognised in the profit
and loss account and investments are subject
to impairment.

Associates

An entity is treated as an associoted

Employee Benefit Trust

An Employee Benefit Trust has been established
for the purposes of satisfying certain share
based awards. The Group has ‘de facto’ control
over the special purpose entity.

The cost of shares acquired by the Sports Direct
Employee Benefit Trust is recognised within
‘Own share reserve' in equity.

Deferred Tuxniirm

Deferred tax is prov-ded for on a full provision
basis on all timing differences, which have
arisen but not reversed at the balance sheet
date. A deferred tax asset is not recognised to
the extent that the transfer of economic benefit
in the future is more unlikely than not.

Deferred tax is calculated on a non-discounted
basis at the tox rates that are expected to
apply in the periods in which timing differences
reverse, based on tox rates and laws enacted

undenukmg where the Compony

fl, in that it has the power to

are accounted for under the equity method

by which the Group's investment is initially
recorded at cost and subsequeritly adjusted

to reflect the Group's share of the net assets

of the associate. As this is not permitted under
FRS 102 associates are accounted for at,cost
less provi: for i An is

participate in the opercltlng and financial policy
decisions.

Financial Assets

Financial assets, other than investments
and derivatives, are initially measured at

mcde at each reporting date of whether there
are indications that the Company’s investment
in subsidiaries or associates moy be umpulred or
that an impait it loss p

has fully or partially reversed IF such indications
exist, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset. Shortfalls between the
carrying value of the investment and their
recoverable amounts, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value-in- use, are
recognised as impairment losses. |

) price (including transaction
costs) and subsequently held at cost, less
any impairment. Provision for impairment is -
established when there is objective evidence
that the Company will not be able to collect
amounts due according to the originat terms
of the receivable. The Company applies o
consistent accounting policy as the Group in
terms of impairment of financial assets and the
recognition of expected credit losses.

losses are recognised in profit or loss.

The Company has followed the requirements
of IFRS 9 for listed investments, as permitted
by FRS 102 Section 12. The Company has made
the irrevocable election available under IFRS

9 to account for the investments at fair value
through the other comprehensive income
(FVOCI).

fal Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified according

to the substance of the financial instrument's
contractual obligations, rather than the
financial instrument’s legal form. Financial
liabilities, excluding convertible debt and
derivatives, are initially measured at transaction
price (after deducting transaction costs) and
subsequently held at amortised cost.

Pm!ted on Steinbeis 100% Récycled and Carben Captured through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new British woodland across tire UK

or st ively enacted at the balance sheet
date.
Foreign Currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
recorded in the Company's functional currency
by applying the spot exchange rate ruling at
the date of the transaction. Monetary ossets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retransiated at the rate of exchange ruling
ot the bolance sheet date. All differences

are taken to the profit and loss account.
Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Dividends

Dividends on the Company’s ordinary shares
are recognised as a liability in the Company's
Financial Statements, and as o deduction from
equity, in the period in which the dividends

are declared. Where such final dividends

are proposed subject to the approval of the
Company's shareholders, the final dividends are
only, declared once shareholder approval has
been obtained.
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Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company ofter deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company,
with the exception of those accounted for via
merger relief available under Section 612 of

the Companies Act 2006, are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of any direct issue costs.

Income From Group Undertakings

Income from Group undertakings is recognised
when qualifying consideration is received from
" the Group undertaking.

Related Party Transactions.

The Company has taken advantage of the
exemption contained in FRS 102 and has

herefore not disclosed tr ions or balances
with wholly-owned subsidiaries which form part
of the Group. See note 34 of the Group Financial
Statements for further details of related party
transactions.

Share-Based Payments

The Company issues from time to time
equity-settled share-based payments to certain
Directors and employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries. These are measured at fair value
at the date of grant, which is expensed to profit
and loss on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with the corresponding credit going to

- equity. -

Non-market vesting conditions are not taken
into account in determining grant date fair
value. Instead, they are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments to
vest. At the end of each reporting period the
Company revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non market vesting and service conditions. Any

* revisions, if any, are recognised in profit and loss
with an adjustment to equity.

Fair value is calculated using an adjusted form of
the Black-Scholes model which includes o Monte
Carlo simulation model that takes into account
the exercise price, the term of the option, the
impact of dilution (where material), the share

123

price ot grant date and the expected price
volatility of the underlying share, the expected
dividend yield, and the risk-free interest rate

for the term of the scheme. The expected staff
numbers used in the modél has been adjusted,
based on management's best estimate, for the
effects of non:transferability, exercise restrictions,

+ and behavioural considerations.

For cash-settled share-based payment
transactions, the Company measures the services
received and the liability incurred ot the fair
value of the liability. Until the liability is settled,
the Company remedsures the fair volue of the
liability at the end of each reporting period and
at the date of settlement, with any changes in
fair value recognised in the Income Statement
for the period.

The credit for the share based payment charge
does not equal the charge per the profit and loss
as it excludes amounts recognised in the balance
sheet in relation to the expected national ~ *
insurance contributions for the shares.

Critical A i i And

In the application of the Company's accounting
policies, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The

estimotes and associcted assumptions are based

on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The esti anid ying p

are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions

to accounting estimates are recognised in the

« period in which the estimate is revised, if the

revision offects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods.

The estimates and assumptions which have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
are outlined below.

Control and Significant Influence Over Certain
Entities ’

The Company holds greater than 20% of the
voting rights of Studio Retail Group plc and
Mulberry Group plc. The Company exercises the
same judgements as per Note 2 of the Group
financial statements on assessing whether it has
control and significant influence over associates
and joint ventures.

Impairment of Investments

At each period end manogement assess the
future performance of entities with which the
Company holds an investment in'to ascertain
the future economic value of its investments.
Judgement is involved in the assessment of
future performance and this involves an element
of estimation uncertainty. As at the period end
the directors have reviewed the carrying value
of its investments and has made impairments
as disclosed in Note 2 of the Company financial
statements.

Hed on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured lhrough the Woodland Trust. helping to create new British woodland across the UK



FRASERS GROUP - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

2. INVESTMENTS

3.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

not available, at management's best estimate.

Long-term financial assets include various
holdings including a 35.6% stake in Studio
Retail Group plc and o 36.9% stake in Mulberry
Group plc for further details refer to Note 20 of
the Group Financial Statements.

" For further disclosures in relation to investments

in associates and long term financial assets

. see note 19, 20 and 34 of the Group Financial

Statements.

The Directors assess the value of the
investments in subsidiaries at each period

end for indicators of impairment. For the

period ended 25 April 2021 an impairment

toss of £1.1m has been recognised within the
income statement for loss making componies
where the recoverable amount is less than the
carrying value (FY20: £22.0m). The additions to
investments in subsidiaries in the period are due
toar isation of the US subsidiari

124

note 37 of the Group Financial Statements.

The Group's policies for financial risk
management ore set out in Note 3 and Note 29
of the Group Financial Statements.

Investmantn  Investments Lc;";::o;w: o Financial Assets And Liabilitics By Category
subsidiaries  In associter el otal B . ) . . N
anats The fair value hierarchy of financial assets and | ly in
(em) fem) (tm) fem) Sterling or US Dollars, were as follows:
3 AT 28 APRIL 2018 12 o © 809 1161 -
Additiens * 78 48 242 668 5 Aprit 2021 26 April 2020
Transfer we - usal - - ttm) (em)
Impaiment charge wo _* - c- a20) FINANCIAL ASSETS
AMORTISED COST:
Disposals 2y @)
Trode and ather receivables® 1381 743
Amaunts recogaised through ather comprehensive income - @ 1 :
A3 AT 26 APRIL 2020 1883 - 203 1ass Fvoct:
Additions 89 - 3 o Long Term Financiol Assats (Equily Instrumens) 2616 803
Impairment charga o - - o DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL v
Disposals - (5.6} [ Derlvativa financiol assets - contracts for difference 203 7
- ) na f ans 1623
Exchange differences B . o) on FINANCIAL UABILITIES
A3 AT 25 APRIL 2021 1333 - 2016 14549 AMORTISED COST:
T Trade and other payables 607.3 8671
The fair value of the iong-term financial assets The Company is the principal holding company — — s :
X 8 N ; g " DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (FVE: .
is based on bid quoted market prices at the of the Group. The principal subsidiary . —— 5
balance sheet date or where market prices are * undertakings of the Company are set out in Dorivative financial Liobiltis - contracts for diftarence L ot
s05.0 so13

Prepayments of £37m {FY20: £0.1m}, corporation tax of £1.0m (FY20: £10m) and daferred tax assets of £nll (FY20: £3.7m) are not includad as a
t

financlal asset.

4. DEBTORS
' 28 Agril 2021 26apr 020
] teml
Amounts owod by Group undertakings 68
Derivative financiol assets j 201 7
Other debtors 3 73
Corporation tox 10 10
Prepoyments 37 o1
Dofarred tox assats inte 6) 37
1629 262
Other debtors includes £131.0m (FY20: £71.3m) of deposits in respect of derivative financial
instruments which are collateral to cover margin i for derivative ions held with

counterparties. The collateral requirement changes with the market (which is dependent on share
price, interest rates and volatility} and further purchases / sales of underlying investments held.

Further information on derivative financial assets can be found in the Group consolidated accounts

in the financial instruments note 29 and the financial risk management disclosure note 3.

Prir!\ed on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new Bntish woodland across the UK
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5. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR -

8. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 4 May 2021 the Group commenced a share
buyback programme with the aggregate
purchase price of all shares acquired under the

p to be no greater than £60m and the

25 Apri 2021 26 April 2020

) (Em)
Trade creditors 13 05
Amounts owed to Group undertokings i 6025 8658
Derivative financiol liabilties 17 34e
Other creditors 35 . o8

605.0 : sos

The amounted owed to Group undertakings mainly relates to an unsecured interest free loan with
Sportsdirect.com Retail Limited which is repayable on demand. .

Further info ion on d financial li can be found in the Group consolidated
accounts in the financial instruments note 29 and the financial risk management disclosure note 3.
Other creditors at 25 April 2021 mostly relate to the accrual for costs payable to MM Prop
Consultancy Limited, see note 34 of the Group financial statements. .

6. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Other temporary

iffarances
AT 28 APRIL 2019 33
Creditedto the profit ond lass account 04
AT 25 APRIL 2020 2]
Charged to the profit and loss occount e}

number of shares to be purchased
of 10m ordinary shares with a nominal value of
10p each. The purposes of the programme was
to reduce the share copital of the Company.
3,895,835 ordinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £22,429,985 were acquired
through this programme.

On 21 June 2021 the Group commenced an
irrevocable non-discretionary share buyback
programme to purchase the Group's shares
during the closed period which commenced 21
June 2021 ond ends on the day of reporting full
year FY21 results. The aggregate purchase price
of all shares acquired under the programme
were no greater than £60m and the maximum
number of shares to be purchased were 10m
ordinary shares with a nominal value of 10p
each. The purpose of the programme was to

Should Michael Murray assume the CEO role,
Mike Ashley would step down from the CEO role
at the same time but would remain on the Board
as an executive director.

9. ' PAYROLL COSTS

Frasers Group plc has no direct employees, the ’
Directors are remunerated through Sportsdirect.
com Retail Limited. Details of the Directors’
remuneration can be found in the Directors’
Remuneration Report.

10. RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions with the Company
are disclosed within note 34 in the Group
Financial Statements.

reduce the share capital of the Company. In total

to date 2,024,127 ordinary shares of 10p each for

AT 28 APRIL 2021 -

. The tax rate used to measure the deferred tax assets and liabilities was 19% (FY20: 19%) on the
basis that these were the tax rates that were substantively enacted at the balance sheet date for the
periods when the assets and liabilities are expected to reverse.

7. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

25 Aprit 2021 26 Apri) 2020
tem (em)
AUTHORISED .
999,500,010 ordinary shares of 10p eoch - 1000 1000
499,990 redeemable preference shares of 10p each -
0.0 wo0
CALLED UP AND FULLY PAID i
60,602,369 {FY20: 640,602.369) ordinary share of 10p cach 641 641
SHARECAPITAL - . . s o4t

The company holds 121,260,175 ordinary shares in treasury as at the period end date
(FY20: 121,260,175). .

125 - .

onsi ion of £11,937,385 have been acquired
through this programme.

The Board is now in discussions with regards

to transitioning the CEO role from Mike Ashley
to Michael Murray over the course of FY22.

It is currently proposed that Michael Murray
will assume the role of CEO on 1 May 2022.

A reward and remuneration package is now
under consideration on the assumption Michael
Murray will assume the CEO role. Any reward
and remuneration package will be subject to any
requisite shareholder approval.

The Group's elevation strategy is transforming
the business and receiving positive feedback
from consumers and our brand partners,
especially on projects such as the new Oxford
Street Sports Direct which opened in June 2021,

The Board consider it appropriate that Michael
leads us forward on this increasingly successful
elevation journey. -

Prinlled on Steinbeis 100°% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust. hél;img to creale new British woodtand across the UK
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GLOSSARY : . . ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES
. . i Ry iliation of excludil isitions and currency neutral performance measures:
CONSOLIDATED FIVE YEAR RECORD - ' co. . . UKSports  Premium  European  RewtOl  Wholmale o .,
Retall __Lifestyle Retail WorldRatail & Ucensing ?
Unaudited Income statemént . REVENUE
I Y21 Reported 19685 7356 6152 1527 193 aesa”
prbirie il ivd nieazs s Adjustments for acauisions and curtency noutrel v wess)  aos - - oo
Apil2001  Apil2020  aprizow PR april20n FY21 EXCLUDING ACQUISITIONS AND CURRENCY NEUTRAL 18601 a5 ans 27 w3 aons
Ll ) el tm) Ll FY20 Reported 22033 ™o 6927 1782 602 3954
CONTINUING OPERATIONS: . D
Adjustments for acquisitions anid currancy noutrl sz 92} w89) wal [
REVENUE 363 o574 019 3395 32653 -
NEVTRAL 19086 sz sina 110 w9
Cost of salas (Q0%S) (22948 @NeA  R0264)  nsun - 2
GRO3S PROFIT . C AsI08 16626 15835 13 13306 % VARIANCE 4e%) % @oSW)_ (s3m) 0% (A%
Seling,disibuion and admiisvative xpenses - (16360) 15643 0438 (e 02556 UNDERLYING EBITDA
Other operating income _ 68 25 24 25 e 121 Reported 2792 539 4 256 280 3508
Exceptional items i 6} iy (10) s . wal Adjustments for acquisiions and currency neutral 04 138 .9 - B (108
Profit on disposal of praperty 5y 542 s 3 - . P NEUTRAL 798 w0 oy 36 20 w00
_Proft on disposo of subsidiary - - - 79 - a = P P o ons
OPERATING (LOSSY/PROFIT (60.3) me 1605 2005 1601 Adjustments for acquisitions and currency newtral 6 39 50 - o1 ©1) us
Investment income/icosts) © seo ) 67 932 ma NEUTRAL s o4 s (86} u3 66
Finance income . _ 50 a0 00 3¢ wa . vaRIANCE - BI%  amaw  (esswl  Umew)  waw  tew
Finance cost (18.2) 931 0.4 1091 194)
Share o floss)/ profi of associated undertakings and oin ventures - 0s9) @6 ®n 08 - . .
B B B Movement in provisions pre-IFRS 16;
Fair value galn an step acquisition . 204 . . ,
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION s 1435 92 o 2816 :
. Lesoland Othar Totat
Taxation is63) 1925 (632) 1a79) 1499) . regslatery
(LOSSH/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 8.0l 1010 1160 232 237 . . L] fem} L]
' = AT 28 aPRIL 2019 § i 140 10 03
Equity holders of the Graup 183.0) 928 n20 201 299
ided 10 ma - 4
Non-controlling ntorasts 50 72 a0 n 18
. reversed i w6 00} 53 [
(LOSSY/PROFIT FOR THE RERIOD o1.0) 1010 150 22 27
Acquisitions - 106 . 106
Notes to the consolidated Income Statement five yeor record: PETYye—— 54 s ™ e
' 1. Allinformation is presented under IFRS. Amounts provided 74 182 - 8.6
. . . o Amounts utilised / revarsed 170 (45.8) 4] j64.2)
2. The five year record has been prepared on the same basis as the Financial Statements for the 52 mounts uilsed / evers 7o) 142
weeks ended 25 April 2021, as set out in note 1, basis of preparation, of the Consolidated Financial . AT 25 APRIL 2024 ns8 me A 8190
Statements. : During the period, onerous lease provisions (Pre-IFRS 16} were recognised due to an ongoing
management review of the Group's store profile and strategy including current and anticipated
freehold acquisitions, resulting in overall additional onerous provisions of £71.9m (FY20: £26.9m) in
the period, with reference to the Groups alternative performance measures.
N
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Reconciliation of underlying performance measures ([EBITDA and PBT):

Reconciliation of Adjusted Profit/(loss) before Tax performance measure:

27 R

N Prinlted on Steinbeis 100°% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodiand Trust. helping to create new British woodland across the UK -

S2weaks anded 32 wasks anded $2weeks anded
. april 2021 28 april 202y 26 April 2020
. €a1TDA PeT . N pBT poT
- . . tem [ m) tem
OPERATING (LOSS)/ PROFIT te03) - ms - REPORTED s wis
ot use umln properies 2183 - 1308 - Exceptional items . 16 131
Impainmen of property. plont and equipmen: and Investment properti e . 708 . Folr volue g on step oéauisition _ (204
fexcluding right-of-use osset) Fair value adjustment to farsign currency contracts 6 [LE)
+ Amartisation of intangible assets . n - TS - Net Investment (imcarmel  costs . 19601 106
Impairment of intangible ossets {nan-exceptianal) - - ~s9 - Realised Fx loss / tgair) 263 )
{FRS 16 ight-of-use asset depraciotion ;. - n26 - “chore seherme X R 13 .
IFRS 16 right-of-use osset impairment 1682 - 1061 - "ADIUSTED 17} 1
IFRS 16 disposal and mdiicoti of lease liabili @2 - ©7) - “
N s165 - 3669 - .
Shara of ffoss} / profit and impairments of associates - - 159 - .
REPORTED § 365 s ss10 uis '
Exception . 1% 16 13 i3 . X
. 16 ‘1 189 n1 -
IFRS 16 Reversal of rent expense 0273 a3 nazs) v3rs) T .
IFRS 16 Roversal of onerous tease provision . (36.6) (366 1355) 355) .
IFRS 16 right-of-use asset depreclation - a1 - 226 .
IFRS 16 dight-ol-use osset impairmiont - 1682 . 1062 o
1FRS 16 dis of easo fiobil . .- @ - ©n
Interest Payabla - IFRS 16 - - na - w09 .
. (1635) 05 0 69 ’
Profl on sole of prope :
Profit on sale of propertis - pre-IFRS 16 basis C 1071 ©n__ oea)  nosal : -
(FRS 16 sale and leascback - adjustment to post-IFRS 16 bosis - - 551 ss1 A
o0 2 1s42) (542)
{Profi) /lass on disposal o financiol instruments - 1e85) - 2
Realised FX loss / (gain) N - 263 263 ) (348)
Falr value odjustment on equity desivativs : - 1475} - %9 -
Falr volus adjustement on foreign currency contracts - 6 ) .
Fair volue gain an step ocquisition f B - . 120.4) ) .
UNDERLYING 1908 58 1021 me '
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COMPANY DIRECTORY

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Investor Services plc
The Pavilions :

Bridgwater Road

Bristol

BS99 62Z

Telephone:
0370 707 4030 -

COMPANY SECRETARY AND
REGISTERED OFFICE

Frasers Group plc

Unit A, Brook Park East
Shirebrook

NG20 8RY

Telephone:
0344 245 9200

Frasers Group plc is registered in England and
Wales (No. 06035106)

'SOLICITORS

Reynolds Porter Chamberlain LLP
Tower Bridge House .
- St Katharine's Way

London

ETW1AA |

Dentons UK and Middle East LLP
One Fleet Place

London

EC4M 7WS

BROKERS

Liberum Capita! Limited
Ropemaker Place, Level 12
25 Ropemaker Street
London N
EC2Y 9LY

128

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Barclays Bank plc

5 The North Colonnade
Canary Wharf

London

E14 4BB

HSBC Bank plc
8 Canada Square

" London

E14 SHQ

AUDITORS

RSM UK Audit LLP .
25 Farringdon Street
London

EC4A 4AB

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The date, time ond format of the Annual
General Meeting to be announced in line with
Covid-19 guidance. Each shareholder is entitled
to attend (subject to Covid-19 guidance) and
vote at the meeting, the arrangements for
which are described in a separate notice.

RESULTS
For the year to 24 April 2022

* Half year results announced:
tbc December 2021

Preliminary announcement of full yeor
results: tbe :

Annual Report circulated: tbc

SHAREHOLDER HELPLINE

The Frasers Group shareholder register is
maintained by Computershare who are
responsible for making dividend payments

ond updating the register, including details -
of changes to shareholders’ addresses. If you
have @ query about'your shareholding in Sports
Direct, you should contact Computershare’s
Frasers Group Shareholder Helpline on:

0370 707 4030. Calls are charged at standard
geographic rates, although network charges
may vary.

Address:

The Pavilions
Bridgwater Road
Bristol !
BS99 622
Website:

www.computershare.com

Prir!!ed on Steinbeis 100°% Recycled and Carbon.Captured through the Woodtand Trust. helping to create new British woodland across the UK

. WEBSITE

The Group website at www.frasers.group
provides news and details of the Company's
activities plus information for shareholders and
contains real time shafe price data as well as.
the latest results and announcements.

UNSOLICITED MAIL

The Company is obliged by law to make its
share register publicly avaitable and as a
consequence some shareholders may receive
unsolicited mail, including from unouthorised
investment firms.

For more information on unauthorised
investment firms targeting UK investors, visit the
website of the Financial Conduct Authority at
www.fea.org.uk -

If you wish to limit the amount of unsolicited

mail you receive contact:

The Mailing Preference Service
DMA House

70 Margaret Street

London ’

W1W 85S

) Telephone:

020 72913310
Email:
mps@dma.org.uk

or register online at
www.mpsonline.org.uk

Frasers Group plc

Unit A, Brook Park East
Shirebrook

NG20 8RY

. 0344 245.9200

www.frasers.group



